
 

FRANKLIN CITY HALL CHAMBERS 

9229 W. LOOMIS ROAD  

FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN 

 

 

            
PLAN COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA 

Thursday, February 8, 2024 at 6:00 P.M. 

 

A. Call to Order and Roll Call 

 

B. Approval of Minutes 

 

1. Approval of regular meeting of December 21, 2023. 

 

C. Public Hearing Business Matters 

 

1. Hamed Area Exception. Request for lot coverage increase to allow for a single-family 

dwelling upon property located at 7780 W. Faith Drive (792 0272 000). 

 

D. Business Matters 

 

1. Croatian Park Pavilion Site Plan. Request for approval of a Site Plan Amendment 

application to allow for the development of a new pavilion to replace the existing stage, 

pavilion and other existing buildings in the northwest corner of the park, upon property 

located at 9100-9140 S. 76th Street (884 9995 000).  

 

2. Rural and Urban Areas map update. Proposal to redefine the rural and urban areas as 

provided in Ordinance No. 85-860 regulating truck parking and raising animals. 

 

3. Amendment to Plan Commission administrative procedures. Proposal to change meeting 

frequency to once a month. 

 

4. Franklin Public School District Site Plan Amendment. Request for approval of a Site Plan 

Amendment for a building addition, parking lot, landscaping, lighting, soccer fields, 

playground, detached storage building, and storm water management facilities upon property 

located at 8225, 8255, 8429, and 8459 West Forest Hill Avenue (838 9978 001). 

 

5. Forest Home Commercial Condominium Plat. Request for approval of a Condominium 

Plat for property located at 11217 West Forest Home Avenue (Tax Key No. 748 9961 001). 

 

6. Dairy Queen Site Plan. Request for approval of a Site Plan for a new Dairy Queen for 

property at 7730 S Lovers Lane Road 

 

E. Adjournment 

 
 

The YouTube channel “City of Franklin WI” will be live streaming the Plan Commission meeting so that the public will be able to 

watch and listen to the meeting. https://www.youtube.com/c/CityofFranklinWIGov. Any question regarding items on this agenda 

may be directed to the Department of City Development’s office at 414-425-4024, Monday through Friday, 8:30 AM – 5:00 PM. 

https://www.youtube.com/c/CityofFranklinWIGov


 

 *Supporting documentation and details of these agenda items are available at City hall during normal business hours. 

 

**Notice is given that a majority of the Common Council may attend this meeting to gather information about an agenda item  

over which they have decision-making responsibility.  This may constitute a meeting of the Common Council per State ex rel.  

Badke v. Greendale Village Board, even though the Common Council will not take formal action at this meeting. 

 

  [Note: Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids  

  and services.  For additional information, contact the City Clerk’s office at (414) 425-7500.] 

 
  REMINDERS: 

  Next Regular Plan Commission Meeting: February 22. 



  

City of Franklin unapproved 

Plan Commission Meeting 

December 21, 2023 

Minutes 

 

A. Call to Order and Roll Call 

Mayor John Nelson called the December 21, 2023 Plan Commission meeting to order at 6:03 p.m. 

in the Council Chambers at Franklin City Hall, 9229 West Loomis Road, Franklin, Wisconsin.  

 

Present were Mayor John Nelson, Alderwoman Courtney Day and Commissioners Patrick Leon, 

Kevin Haley and Michael Shawgo. Also present were Director of Administration Kelly Hersh, 

City Attorney Jesse Wesolowski, Alderman Mike Barber, Principal Planner Regulo Martinez-

Montilva and Director of Economic Development John Regetz. Excused was Commissioner 

Patricia Hogan and City Engineer Glen Morrow.  

 

B. Approval of Minutes – Regular Meeting of December 7, 2023 

Commissioner Leon moved and Commissioner Haley seconded a motion to approve the December 

7, 2023 meeting minutes. On voice vote, all voted ‘aye’; motion carried (4-0-2). 

 

C. Public Hearing Business Matters 

 

1.    Administrative review for sign permitting in the Franklin Industrial Park. Request to 

amend the sign permitting process for the Franklin Industrial Park (Planned Development 

District No. 7) by providing for administrative review of sign permits by the Department of 

City Development staff, without the prerequisite of an additional review and approval by the 

Economic Development Commission (EDC).  

 

 Principal Planner Martinez-Montilva presented the request by the City, applicant.   

 

The Official Notice of Public Hearing for administrative review for sign permitting in the 

Franklin Industrial Park was read in to the record by Principal Planner Martinez-Montilva and 

the Public Hearing opened at 6:09 pm and closed at 6:09 pm.  

 

 Commissioner Leon moved and Commissioner Haley seconded a motion to determine the 

proposed amendment to Planned Development District No. 7 to be a Major Amendment. On 

voice vote, all voted ‘aye’; motion carried (4-0-2). 

 

Commissioner Leon moved and Alderwoman Day seconded a motion to recommend approval 

of an Ordinance to amend Planned Development District No. 7 as it pertains to the 

administration of sign permits. On voice vote, all voted ‘aye’; motion carried (4-0-2). 

 

2.    Hiller Ford Special Use Amendment. Request for an amendment to a Special Use Permit for 

a proposed building addition of a parts warehouse use at the west end of the existing shop 

building located at 6455 South 108th Street (TKN 704 1014 000).  

 



  

Principal Planner Martinez-Montilva presented the request by Hiller Ford. Mark Castensen, 

applicant’s representative, presented the Special Use amendment request. 

  

The Official Notice of Public Hearing for a Special Use Amendment was read in to the record 

by Principal Planner Martinez-Montilva and the Public Hearing opened at 6:35 pm and closed 

at 6:36 pm.  

 

Commissioner Leon moved and Commissioner Shawgo seconded a motion to recommend 

approval of an amendment to a Special Use permit for Hiller Ford for a proposed building 

addition of a parts warehouse use at the west end of the existing shop building located at 6455 

South 108th Street (TKN 704 1014 000). On roll call vote, all voted ‘aye’; motion carried (4-0-

2). 

 

D. Business Matters 

 

1.    Anhalt, release of plat restriction. Request to allow for a fence and shed within the 30 foot              

“Planting Strip” upon Lot 2 in Southwood East Addition No. 2 Subdivision, 4107 W. 

Barnwood Court (TKN 880 0021 000).  

 

Alderwoman Day moved and Commissioner Leon seconded a motion to recommend approval of a 

Resolution authorizing the installation of a fence within the 30 foot planting strip plat 

restriction, upon lot 2 in Southwood East addition No. 2 subdivision (4107 West Barnwood 

Court). On roll call vote, all voted ‘aye’; motion carried (4-0-2). 

 

2.    Poths General Certified Survey Map. Request to combine three existing properties bearing 

Tax Key Nos. 756 9993 012, 756 9993 016, and 756 9993 021 into a single parcel to 

accommodate the Poths General development located at approximately 7154 South 76th Street. 

 

     Commissioner Leon moved and Commissioner Haley seconded a motion to recommend    

     approval of a Certified Survey Map to combine three existing properties bearing Tax Key 

     Nos. 756 9993 012, 756 9993 016, and 756 9993 021 into a single parcel to accommodate the  

     Poths General development located at approximately 7154 South 76th Street. On voice vote,  

     all voted ‘aye’; motion carried (4-0-2). 

 

3.   Poths General Minor PDD Amendment. Request to amend Planned Development District   

    No. 42 to revise landscaping requirements for the Poths General development located at  

      approximately 7154 South 76th Street (TKNS 756 9993 012, 756 9993 016, and 756 9993  

      021).  

 

Commissioner Leon moved and Alderwoman Day seconded a motion to suspend the rules to  

allow the public to speak. On voice vote, all voted ‘aye’; motion carried (4-0-2). 12 public 

comments. Commissioner Leon moved and Commissioner Hailey seconded a motion to return 

to the rules. On voice vote, all voted ‘aye’; motion carried (4-0-2). 

 



  

    Commissioner Leon moved and Commissioner Haley seconded a motion to determine the                                        

proposed amendment to Planned Development District No. 42 to be a Minor Amendment. On 

voice vote, all voted ‘aye’; motion carried (4-0-2). 

 

Commissioner Leon moved and Commissioner Haley seconded a motion to recommend 

approval of an Ordinance to amend Planned Development District No. 42 as it pertains to 

landscaping requirements for the Poths General development. On voice vote, all voted ‘aye’; 

motion carried (4-0-2). 

 

4.   Poths General Site Plan. Request for approval of a Site Plan for the mixed use Poths General 

development located at approximately 7154 South 76th Street (TKNS 756 9993 012, 756 9993 

016, and 756 9993 021).  

 

Commissioner Leon moved and Commissioner Haley seconded a motion to approve a Site Plan 

for the construction of the mixed use Poths General development located at approximately 7154 

South 76th Street, subject to the conditions in the draft resolution. On voice vote, all voted ‘aye’; 

motion carried (4-0-2). 

 

E.   Adjournment 

Commissioner Leon moved and Commissioner Haley seconded to adjourn the meeting at 8:37 

p.m. On voice vote, all voted ‘aye’; motion carried (4-0-2). 



C I T Y  O F  F R A N K L I N       
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 

 
Meeting of February 8, 2024 

   
Area Exception 

Item C.1. 

RECOMMENDATION: City Development staff recommends approval of this area exception 
request to increase the lot coverage to 27.8%, while the maximum lot coverage as of right is 
25%. 

Project name: Hamed, Area Exception 
Property Owner: Salma Investment, LLC 
Applicant: Hamed, Wasim. Salma Investment, LLC 
Property Address/TKN: 7780 W. Faith Drive / 792 0272 000 
Aldermanic District: District 2 
Zoning District: R-6 – Suburban Single-Family Residence District  
Staff Planner: Régulo Martínez-Montilva, AICP, CNUa, Principal Planner 
Application number: PPZ23-0139 

 
INTRODUCTION: 
Area Exception to allow for a lot coverage of 27.8% (3,599 square feet) for a proposed 
single-family dwelling, exceeding the as of right lot coverage of 25% (3,231.25 square 
feet) in the R-6 zoning district. The area of the subject property is 12,925 square feet.  
 
PROJECT ANALYSIS: 
The process to grant an Area Exception involves review and recommendation of the Plan 
Commission followed by approval by the Board of Zoning and Building Appeals.  

 
Per Section 15-10.0209, Area Exceptions may be granted to increase the maximum lot 
coverage by no more than 20%. Section 15-10.0209.G. of the Unified Development 
Ordinance (UDO) specifically lists Standards to be reviewed to grant or deny an Area 
Exception, which the Plan Commission and Board of Zoning and Building Appeals will 
use to consider the request. 
 
Lot coverage is defined as “the area of a zoning lot occupied by the principal building or 
buildings, accessory structure(s) and accessory building(s)”. For example, structures that 
count towards lot coverage include: principal buildings or dwellings, garages, sheds, 
swimming pools and associated paved surfaces within four feet from the pool, decks, any 
structures with a cover or canopy, etc. This Lot Coverage definition should not be 
confused with Impervious Surface Ratio (ISR) as driveways and walkways count towards 
ISR but not for lot coverage. 
 
 
 



 2 

Maximum lot coverage calculation: 
• The property area is 12,925 square feet (sq. ft).  
• Per UDO Table 15-3.0207, the as of right lot coverage is 25% in the R-6 zoning district 

where the subject property is located. Based on the property area, the as of right lot coverage 
for this property is 3,231.25 sq. ft. 

• The proposed lot coverage is 27.8% (3,599 sq. ft.), specifically dwelling (2,319 sq. ft.), 
attached garage (891 sq. ft.), porch (199 sq. ft.) and deck with stairs (190 sq. ft). 

• With approval of an Area Exception, the maximum lot coverage may be increased up to 20% 
over the as of right lot coverage in this zoning district (25%), resulting in 30% (3,877.5 sq. 
ft). Therefore, this request falls within the allowable increase if the Area Exception is 
granted. 

 
The proposed building footprint is in compliance with the required building setbacks set 
forth in Affidavit of Correction approved by Resolution 2023-7973. 
 
Per the Faithway Reserve subdivision plat, there are no protected natural resources as 
defined in the UDO on the subject lot. 
 
SITE COMPLIANCE 
A site visit was performed as part of the staff report preparation process. The subject lot is vacant 
at this time. 
 

 
View of the subject lot from Faith Drive 
Photo by City Development staff 
 
 
  



3 
 

Engineering Department comments 
“The storm water management plan for this subdivision was design to account for not 
more than 25% impervious surface per lot.  This proposed lot would exceed that at 36.6% 
impervious. The storm water management plan for the subdivision would need to be 
revised to account for 36.6% impervious for this lot”. 
 
The applicant submitted an Authorization for Impervious Surface Use to address the 
comment above, such authorization is from Faith Community Church, owner of adjacent 
property to the north. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
City Development Staff recommends approval of this Area Exception request to increase the lot 
coverage to 27.8%, while the maximum lot coverage as of right is 25%.   



Planning Department 
(414) 425-4024

7780 W. Faith Drive
TKN 792 0272 000

This map shows the approximate relative location of property
boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyor.
This map is provided for informational purposes only
and may not be sufficient or appropriate for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.

R-6 

I-1 

R-7 

R-6 

FW  

FAITH DR

76
TH

    
    

    
    

    
    

   S
T  

N
2021 Aerial Photo

0 150 30075 Feet

Property

 



Planning Department 
(414) 425-4024

7780 W. Faith Drive
TKN 792 0272 000

This map shows the approximate relative location of property
boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyor.
This map is provided for informational purposes only
and may not be sufficient or appropriate for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.

FAITH DR

76
TH

    
    

    
    

    
    

   S
T  

N
2021 Aerial Photo

0 150 30075 Feet

Property

 





















      C I T Y  O F  
F R A N K L I N       

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 

Meeting of February 8, 2024 
 

Site Plan Amendment 

1 
 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Recommended Conditions of Approval are provided in the draft 
Resolution(s).  The Planning Department recommends approval of this site plan amendment, 
subject to the proposed conditions. 

Project name: Croatian Park Pavilion 
Property Owner: Federation of Croatian Societies Inc. 
Applicant: Federation of Croatian Societies Inc.  
Property Address/TKN: 9100-9140 S. 76th Street / 884 9995 000 
Aldermanic District: District 1 
Zoning District: P-1 Park District & C-1 Conservancy District 
Use of Surrounding Properties: Milwaukee County owned land to the north and east, 

vacant land zoned R-8 to the south and single-family 
residential to the west 

Applicant’s Action Requested: Approval of the proposed Site Plan amendment.  
Staff Planner: Marion Ecks, Associate Planner 

 
The Croatian Federation has submitted this Site Plan Amendment application to allow for the 
development of a new pavilion to replace the existing stage, pavilion and other buildings in the 
northwest corner of the park. The proposed open-air pavilion design will include a stage, seating 
area, and a bar.  The project will also include an addition to the existing office buildings and a new 
restroom building with a roof deck.  There will also be amenities added including an additional 
bocce court and a fire pit.   
 
PROJECT ANALYSIS 
The property is zoned P-1 Parkland, and is owned by the nonprofit Croatian Federation.  The 
facility is home to a beer garden, bocce and other recreational facilities, parking, and a number of 
soccer fields. The proposed development area is on the northwest corner of the northern of the two 
lots that make up the park.  
 
Concept Description 
The applicant is proposing an approximately 7,500 square foot covered pavilion and related 
amenities. The single-story structure will seat just under 300 visitors, and includes a stage facing 
north north-east, and a bar. A new restroom will be constructed immediately south of the stage, 
and will include a roof deck.  Additions will be made to nearby buildings to expand office space 
and kitchen areas. The site currently includes roughly 109 parking spaces on gravel. 
 



 2 

Natural Resources and prior NRSE  
The park includes woodlands and wetland areas. The portion of the site where the new pavilion 
will be constructed is within a grove of trees; the structure is designed to minimize impacts to trees 
and does not exceed tree protection standards of Part 4 of the UDO.  As part of a prior request for 
site plan approval for turf soccer fields, the site has previously obtained a Natural Resource Special 
Exception (NRSE) on (June 15, 2021) for wetland buffer and setback impacts related to installation 
of a dry detention stormwater basin to accommodate this facility and the new soccer fields. NRSE 
approvals do not expire.  
 
A conservation easement from that approval must still be approved, which includes mitigation 
areas for the impacts. The applicant has provided a draft of the easement with the Plan Commission 
submittal. 

 
Site Plan 
The Site Plan application must comply with the dimensional requirements of P-1 zoning.  The 
current Unified Development Ordinance does not have specific architectural standards but instead 
requires that a development harmonize with the surrounding area. City Development staff has the 
following comments and concerns about this proposed Site Plan Amendment. Detailed comments 
to the applicant are provided in the Staff Comments memo attached.  It should be noted that the 
project area is limited to the northwest portion of the park. 
Parking  

• The applicant is requesting a parking reduction to 68 parking spaces, a 25% decrease from the 
standard 90. This is permissible under UDO §15-5.0203.B(i); a greater reduction would require 
additional review and Plan Commission approval.  

• Parking facilities must be improved with pavement and stormwater drainage facilities (§15-
5.0202.D).  The applicant must improve parking related to this project (the northwest corner) 
to the standards of the UDO to meet requirements for this application.  

• There are additional areas of parking on this site that pertain to the different uses and purposes 
for the park; parking approvals under this site plan is only for parking related to the pavilion 
improvements.  Future development will necessitate appropriate review of parking facilities. 

• Staff suggest that the Croatian Federation and its partners develop an overall parking plan for 
the full park, that  accounts for the recreational and event uses and other contingencies, to be 
incorporated into future site developments. 

 
Sound 
• The pavilion includes an amplified speaker system for performances.  The applicant has 

provided sound design information as part of this site plan review.  The proposed system is 
capable of exceeding the allowable decibel limit of 55 dBA for Park zoning; the applicant 
intends to mitigate this at the property line by setting a volume maximum in the equipment. 

 
Future Developments 
• The Croatian Soccer Club previously obtained approval for installation of turf soccer fields. 

The proposal was not completed and the approval for the site plan has lapsed. Staff 
anticipates that a new design for the soccer facility will be put forward separately in the 
coming year 

 



 3 

The application otherwise complies with the requirements of the UDO for Site Plans and site 
design. 
 
 
Recommended Conditions of Approval 
Site Plan Amendments require Plan Commission approval. All resolutions are drafted with a 
standard set of condition relating to development timelines and requirements, approvals from other 
jurisdictions and departments, etc.  Staff recommends the following additional conditions based 
on review of the application for compliance with the Unified Development Ordinance: 

 
• Technical Corrections 
• Recording of the related Conservation Easement 
• Pavilion Parking facilities must be improved with pavement and stormwater drainage facilities 

(§15-5.0202.D).   
 
Exhibits: 
 
• Draft Resolution 
• Applicant Exhibits 



STATE OF WISCONSIN             CITY OF FRANKLIN               MILWAUKEE COUNTY 
             PLAN COMMISSION 

[Draft 01/31/24] 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-____ 
 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE SITE PLAN FOR PROPERTIES  
LOCATED AT 9100 SOUTH 76TH STREET TO ALLOW FOR DEVELOPMENT OF A 

NEW PAVILION, AND INSTALLATION OF STORMWATER FACILITIES  
(TAX KEY NOS. 884-9995-000)  

 (FEDERATION OF CROATIAN SOCIETIES INC., APPLICANT) 
              
 
 WHEREAS, the Federation of Croatian Societies Inc. having applied for an 
amendment to the Site Plan for the properties located at 9100 South 76th Street, such Site 
Plan having been previously approved on June 9, 2005, by Resolution No. 2005-0080 and 
amended thereafter by Resolution No. 2010-003, on April 8, 2010, 2017-010, on August 3, 
2017, and 2021-012, on June 3, 2021; and  
 
 WHEREAS, such proposed amendment proposes to replace the existing pavilloin an 
stage with a new pavilion including stage, bar area, fire pit and other amenities, and expand 
several buildings on the lot, and the Plan Commission having reviewed such proposal and 
having found same to be in compliance with and in furtherance of those express standards 
and purposes of a Site Plan review pursuant to Division 15-7.0100 of the Unified 
Development Ordinance. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Plan Commission of the City of 
Franklin, Wisconsin, that the Site Plan Amendment for Federation of Croatian Societies Inc., 
dated January 29, 2024, as submitted by Federation of Croatian Societies Inc., as described 
above, be and the same is hereby approved, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Federation of Croatian Societies Inc., successors and assigns and any developer of the 
Federation of Croatian Societies Inc. pavilion and amenities installation within 
Croatian Park project shall pay to the City of Franklin the amount of all development 
compliance, inspection and review fees incurred by the City of Franklin, including 
fees of consults to the City of Franklin, for the Federation of Croatian Societies Inc. 
artificial turf soccer field installation within Croatian Park project, within 30 days of 
invoice for same.  Any violation of this provision shall be a violation of the Unified 
Development Ordinance, and subject to §15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19 of the 
Municipal Code, the general penalties and remedies provisions, as amended from 
time to time. 

2. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon the City of Franklin and the 



FEDERATION OF CROATIAN SOCIETIES INC. - SITE PLAN AMENDMENT  
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-_____ 
Page 2 
 

Federation of Croatian Societies Inc. artificial turf soccer field installation within 
Croatian Park project for the properties located at 9100 South 76th Street:  (i) being in 
compliance with all applicable governmental laws, statutes, rules, codes, orders and 
ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all other governmental approvals, permits, licenses and 
the like, required for and applicable to the project to be developed and as presented 
for this approval. 

3. The Federation of Croatian Societies Inc. artificial turf soccer field installation within 
Croatian Park project shall be developed in substantial compliance with the plans City 
file-stamped January 29, 2024.  
 

4. DRAFT CONDITIONS The applicant shall provide necessary technical corrections to 
the site plan (§15-7.0103). 
 

5. The Conservation Easement required as a condition of the June 15, 2021 Standards, 
Findings and Decision of the Common Council for impacts to Natural Resources on 
this site must be recorded prior to the issuance of occupancy permits for the Pavilion. 

 
6. Pavilion parking facilities must be improved with pavement and stormwater drainage 

facilities (§15-5.0202.D).   
 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, by the Plan Commission of the City of Franklin, 
Wisconsin, that the Federation of Croatian Societies Inc. pavilion and amenities installation 
within Croatian Park as depicted upon the plans City file-stamped January 29, 2024 attached 
hereto and incorporated herein, shall be developed and constructed within one year from the 
date of adoption of this Resolution, or this Resolution and all rights and approvals granted 
hereunder shall be null and void, without any further action by the City of Franklin; and the 
Site Plan for the properties located at 9100 South 76th Street, as previously approved, is 
amended accordingly. 
 
 Introduced at a regular meeting of the Plan Commission of the City of Franklin this 
_______ day of ____________________, 2024. 
 
 Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Plan Commission of the City of 
Franklin this _______ day of ____________________, 2024. 
 
 
       APPROVED: 
 
 
       _________________________________  
       John R. Nelson, Mayor 



FEDERATION OF CROATIAN SOCIETIES INC. - SITE PLAN AMENDMENT  
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-_____ 
Page 3 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________       
Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk 
 
AYES ______ NOES ______ ABSENT ______ 



Planning Department 
(414) 425-4024

9100 S. 76th Street & 9220 S. 76th Street
TKNs 884 9995 000 & 884 9996 000

This map shows the approximate relative location of property
boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyor.
This map is provided for informational purposes only
and may not be sufficient or appropriate for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.

R-3 

A-1 

R-8 A-1 

PDD 

R-5 

R-3 

B-3 

P-1 

A-1 

I-1 

P-1 

C-1 

A-1 

C-1 

R-8 I-1 M-1 M-1 

R-6 

B-3 M-1 

C-1 

C-1 

C-1 

R-3 

C-1 P-1 

P-1 

I-1 76TH
ST

68
TH

    
    

    
    

    
    

   S
T  

N
2021 Aerial Photo

0 870 1,740435 Feet

Property

 

Properties



Planning Department 
(414) 425-4024

9100 S. 76th Street & 9220 S. 76th Street
TKNs 884 9995 000 & 884 9996 000

This map shows the approximate relative location of property
boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyor.
This map is provided for informational purposes only
and may not be sufficient or appropriate for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.

S  
    

76
TH

    
   S

T 

W                 ELM                   CT

SE
RV

IC
E  

 D
R

S  
    

    
    

77
TH

    
    

    
   S

T

S  
    

    
  7

9T
H 

    
    

 ST

S  
    

    
81

ST
    

    
    

ST

W                    HIGH                      ST

S  
 76

TH
   S

T /
   C

TH
 U

STH 100
STH 100

CIR

S  
   8

0T
H 

   S
T

S  
 76

TH
   S

T

W    RYAN    RD

S  
  6

8T
H 

    
ST

S  
   7

6T
H 

   S
T

W     RYAN    RD

W    RYAN    RD
W     RYAN    RD

W

W         STONEWOOD            DR

CT
H 

U

S  
 68

TH
   S

T

W      BRIARWOOD      DR

STONEWOOD

76TH
ST

68
TH

    
    

    
    

    
    

   S
T  

N
2021 Aerial Photo

0 870 1,740435 Feet

Property

 

Properties





CITY OF FRANKLIN APPLICATION CHECKLIST 
If you have questions about the application materials please contact the planning department. 

BUILDING MOVE APPLICATION MATERIALS 

☐ This application form accurately completed with signatures or authorization letters (see reverse side for more details).

☐ $200 Application fee payable to the City of Franklin.

☐Word Document legal description of the subject property.

☐ Three (3) complete collated sets of application materials to include …

☐ Three (3) project narratives.

☐ Three (3) folded full size, drawn to scale copies (at least 8 ½ “ X 11”) of the plat of survey, showing the proposed building
placement at the new location, indicate setbacks from property lines and locations of driveways and access points. 
NOTE: Single-Family homes require an attached 2-car garage.

☐ Three (3) copies of color photographs of the building’s current elevations.

☐ Other items as may be required for specific applications, per a city planner.

☐ Email or flash drive with all plans / submittal materials.

• Applications for a Building Move are governed by the City of Franklin Municipal Code Chapter 92-2 (A.) and the Wisconsin Uniform Building Code. 

SIGN REVIEW APPLICATION MATERIALS 

☐ This application form accurately completed with signatures or authorization letters (see reverse side for more details).

☐ $40 Application fee payable to the City of Franklin.

☐Word Document legal description of the subject property.

☐ Three (3) complete collated sets of application materials to include …

☐ Three (3) colored copies of the sign elevations, drawn to scale not less than ½” = 1’. Plans shall be folded to a maximum
size of 9” X 12”. The elevations should denote the sign dimension and area. Identify the colors, materials, finishes and lighting 
method (if applicable).

☐ Three (3) scaled copies of the Site Plan, showing the location of the proposed signage relative to (1) any existing or proposed 
structures; (2) parking stalls and/or driveways; (3) proposed landscaping and outdoor lighting; (4) the setback distance from the 
street right-of-way at the proposed location; (5) height of sign above the finished grade; and (6) the vision triangle distances 
described in Section 15-5.0201 of the Unified Development Ordinance.

☐ Email or flash drive with all plans / submittal materials.

• Required for signage in Planned Development Districts (PDD) No. 7 and 18. Additional materials / copies may be required for board/commission meetings. 

• Permits for construction are REQUIRED after approval. Contact Inspection Services (414-425-0084) for permit processes. 

SITE PLAN / SITE PLAN AMENDMENT APPLICATION MATERIALS 

☐ This application form accurately completed with signatures or authorization letters (see reverse side for more details).

☐ Application fee payable to the City of Franklin… [select one of the following]

☐ Tier 1: $2000

☐ Tier 2: $1000 (lot size ≤ 1 acre) 

☐ Tier 3: $500 (≤ 10% increase or decrease in total floor area of all structures with no change to parking: or change to parking only).

☐Word Document legal description of the subject property.

☐ Three (3) complete collated sets of application materials to include …

☐ Three (3) project narratives.

☐ Three (3) folded full size, drawn to scale copies (at least 24” X 36”) of the Site Plan / Site Plan Amendment package. The submittal 
should include only those plans/items as set forth in Section 15-7.0103, 15-7.0301, and 15-0402 of the Unified Development Ordinance that are 
impacted by the development (e.g., Site Plan, Building Elevations, Landscape Plan, Outdoor Lighting Plan, Natural Resource Protection Plan, Natural 
Resource Protection Report, etc.) 

☐ One (1) colored copy of the building elevations on 11” X 17” paper, if applicable.

☐ One (1) copy of the Site Intensity and Capacity Calculations, if applicable (see division 15-3.0500 of the UDO)

☐ Email or flash drive with all plans / submittal materials.

• Some requests may require CDA approval (PDD 18) or EDC approval (PDD 7) in which additional materials / copies may be required. 

TEMPORARY USE APPLICATION MATERIALS 

☐ This application form accurately completed with signatures or authorization letters (see reverse side for more details).

☐ $50 Application fee payable to the City of Franklin.

☐ Three (3) complete collated sets of application materials to include …

☐ Three (3) project narrative

☐ Three (3) folded, scaled copies, of the Site Plan, see section 15-3.0804 of the UDO for information that must be denoted on each respective plan.

☐ Email or flash drive with all plans / submittal materials.

• Some requests may require CDA approval (PDD 18) or EDC approval (PDD 7) in which additional materials / copies may be required. 

• Submittal of Application for review is not a guarantee of approval.  Approval of Temporary Use does not exclude potential requirement for additional 
licenses or permits.  For information on other licenses or permits that may be required, contact the City Clerk's office at (414) 425-7500, the Health 
Department at (414) 425-9101, and Inspection Services at (414) 425-0084. 

Rev. 1/13/2022



Croatian Park Pavilion 

Project Narrative 

January 23, 2024 

 

 

The Croatian Park of Franklin Wisconsin has built a rich history of entertaining pastimes and social 

gathering for over 65 years. As an active cultural hub in a growing community, it has outgrown its 

original shelter. The Croatian Federation is now making a commitment to the next era of the park with a 

new pavilion designed to celebrate its heritage and suit its many community events.  

The new pavilion is an open-air shelter designed to have a capacity of 299 people, featuring light timber 

trusses and a scalloped metal roof that house a stage, seating area, and a large bar. The shelter is fit 

amongst the park’s mature oak-tree grove giving the sense of it being a continuation of the park’s 

canopy. The design takes the shape of a shield that widens in the center and narrows towards the stage 

directing the audience into the performance. To each side are secondary canopies that extend to the 

other buildings in the park resembling a village arrangement.  

The Croatian Federation leadership worked hand in hand with the local architect to develop the design 

toward their liking and make it a part of the park’s storied history.  

The pavilion project is being submitted to the City of Franklin for site plan approval. Building elevations, 

site plan, lighting plan, Natural Resource Protection Plan, grading and erosion control plan, and a storm 

water management plan have been submitted for review and approval. The pavilion will be located 

north of the driveway from South 76th Street, replacing the existing pavilion. There is no plan to change 

any of the gravel parking areas on the north property. Some of the existing gravel areas on the south 

property will be removed so the south property is compliant with current storm water regulations. 

There will be a dry storm water management pond located south of the driveway, in the southwest 

corner of the property. The storm water pond will discharge to the existing wetland along the south 

property line. In 2021, a Natural Resource Special Exception (NRSE) was obtained from the City of 

Franklin for impact to the wetland setback and wetland buffer at the south property line to allow the 

storm water pond to discharge at the lowest elevation possible. The NRSE was part a submittal that the 

Croatian Eagles Soccer Club had for a proposed turf field on the western half of the subject property. 

The turf field project did not move forward at that time but currently there are plans being prepared by 

the Soccer Club for a field on the east side of the subject property. For this submittal of the pavilion 

project, storm water management has been addressed for the pavilion as a standalone project. When 

the turf field project moves forward, the Federation and Soccer Club will coordinate to have an overall 

storm water management plan for the subject property.   

The schedule for the pavilion project is to perform demolition of the existing pavilion during November 

and December 2023 and begin construction of the pavilion when weather allows in spring 2024 (March). 

It is anticipated construction will be complete at end of July, beginning of August 2024.  



Pavilion Project 

Property Legal Description: 

The north 662.25 feet of the West 1/2 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 22, Township 5 North, Range 21 
East, City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin 
 
Address: 9100 South 76th Street, Franklin, WI 
TKN: 8849995000 
 
 



PAVILION PROJECT

ADDRESS: 9100 S 76TH STREET

PARCEL NO: 884-9995-000

11/2/2023

Table 15-3.0505

WORKSHEET FOR THE CALCULATION OF SITE INTENSITY AND CAPACITY FOR NONRESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT

PARCEL 1

CALCULATE MINIMUM REQUIRED LANDSCAPE SURFACE

TAKE BASE SITE AREA : 19.03 ACRES

MULTIPLY BY MINIMUM LANDSCAPE SURFACE RATIO (LSR) : 0.5 (P-1 district)

EQUALS MINIMUM REQUIRED ON-SITE LANDSPACE SURFACE: 9.52 ACRES

CALCULATE NET BUILDABLE SITE AREA

TAKE BASE SITE AREA : 19.03 ACRES

EQUALS NET BUILDABLE SITE AREA: 9.51 ACRES

CALCULATE MAXIMUM NET FLOOR AREA YIELD OF SITE

TAKE NET BUILDABLE SITE AREA  FROM STEP 2: 9.51 ACRES

MULTIPLY BY MAXIMUM NET FLOOR AREA RATIO (NFAR) : 0.57 (P-1 district)

EQUALS MAXIMUM NET FLOOR AREA YIELD OF SITE: 5.42 ACRES

CALCULATE MAXIMUM GROSS FLOOR AREA YIELD OF SITE

TAKE BASE SITE AREA : 19.03 ACRES

MULTIPLY BY MAXIMUM GROSS FLOOR AREA RATIO (GFAR) : 0.31 (P-1 district)

EQUALS MAXIMUM GROSS FLOOR AREA YIELD OF SITE: 5.90 ACRES

DETERMINE MAXIMUM PERMITTED FLOOR AREA OF SITE

TAKE THE LOWEST  OF MAXIMUM NET FLOOR AREA YIELD OF SITE FROM STEP 3

OR MAXIMUM GROSS FLOOR AREA YIELD OF SITE FROM STEP 4: 5.42 ACRES

(MULTIPLY RESULTS BY 43,560 FOR MAXIMUM FLOOR AREA IN SQUARE FEET): 236,095 SQUARE FEET

Total square footage of all existing and proposed buildings 12,166 SQUARE FEET

STEP 1:

STEP 2:

STEP 3:

STEP 4

STEP 5

SUBTRACT TOTAL RESOURCE PROTECTION LAND  OR MINIMUM  REQUIRED 

LANDSCAPE SURFACE  FROM STEP 1, WHICHEVER IS GREATER (9.52 ac > 6.43 ac): 9.52 ACRES



1 

     

 

 

City of Franklin 

Department of City Development 

 

 

 

Date: January 10, 2024 

To: Tony Zanon, Pinnacle Engineering 

From: Department of City Development. Marion Ecks, AICP, Associate Planner. 

RE: Staff Comments, 9100-9140 S. 76th Street / 884 9995 000 

 

 

Please be advised that city staff has reviewed the above application received on November 

9, 2023, for a proposed development on lots located at 9100-9140 S. 76th Street / 884 

9995 000. The following comments are for your review and consideration. 

Site Plan   FEDERATION & PEG RESPONSES 1/23/2024 

The current zoning of the site is P-1 Park District & C-1 Conservancy District.  

1. The application includes a “future bocce court.” Are you requesting that it be included in 

the current approval? Yes. It is an expansion of the existing bocce court. 

2. Please provide an updated site plan that includes information about parking for the 

pavilion, to confirm that adequate parking is provided.  The ratio is based on occupancy 

of the building:  0.3 parking spaces are required per seat  (Table 15-5.0203). In the 

attached civil plans, see the proposed site plan sheet C-300. There are 109 spaces 

available on the gravel parking areas on the north property. The new Pavilion has 

capacity of 299. For “seated public assembly” the required parking is 

299*0.30/person = 90 spaces.  

1. You can request up to a 25% reduction of parking standards without special 

approval.  If greater than 25%, you must provide evidence that standard amount 

of parking is not required and that parking demand will be met.  See §15-5.0203B 

for details. With the submittal to Plan Commission, the owner is requesting a 

25% reduction to the parking standards which would lower the required 

parking stalls from 90 to 68. 

2. Off-Street Parking Area Surfacing. All open, off-street loading and parking spaces 

shall be improved with pavement of either asphalt or concrete and stormwater 

drainage facilities as approved by the City Engineer.  The Federation does not 

want to pave any of the gravel areas. The reason for this is that the park has 

historically had gravel parking areas which adds to the rural feel of the park. 

There is a cost impact to paving these areas that was not part of the Pavilion 

budget. When the soccer field was approved in the west location in 2021, 

there was no requirement to pave any gravel areas on site so this has not 

been an item that was expected. The new Pavilion is replacing the old 

pavilion with no additional parking being proposed. In a scenario where 

new parking is being proposed it is understandable that paving is required 



2 

     

 

 

City of Franklin 

Department of City Development 

 

 

 

but that is not the plan for this project. An example of another park type 

facility with gravel parking would be further north on 76th St at 8885 S 68th 

St where the parking around the baseball fields is gravel. At this point, the 

Federation is requesting approval from Plan Commission to have the gravel 

lots remain as gravel. 

 

3. Sound information 

1. The calculation doesn’t specify the weighting scale, it should be the A-weighting 

scale per UDO. See Croatian Park Pavilion document from Professional Audio 

Designs. 

2. Assuming the calculations are in the A-weighting scale, the sound levels are too 

high at property lines. Per UDO Table 15-3.1107(C), it should be 55 dBA in the P-

1 district. Is the applicant proposing sound mitigation measures? The 

calculations were not in the A-weighting scale (human auditory), but rather 

the dB (actual). However, the sound system will conform to the 55dBA at 

the property lines. We are proposing sound mitigation measures via limits 

set within the equipment. Commissioning of the system will prove the 

actual 55dBA requirement is met. 

Natural Resource Features. This development site contains a wetland complex as well as 

woodlands.   

4. Wetland impacts related to the proposed stormwater pond obtained approval of a 

Natural Resource Special Exception (NRSE) on June 15, 2021. The Natural Resource 

Protection Plan for this development does not indicate any additional impacts to natural 

resources that require further review.  New impacts to wetlands and other natural 

resources beyond the standards of UDO Part 4 will require a Natural Resource Special 

Exception (NRSE). There are no additional impacts proposed. Comment only. No 

change. 

5. The Draft Conservation Easement will be sent forward to Common Council for 

acceptance. Please provide updated boundary for the easement with information about 

the revised mitigation area. Review comments for the easement will be provided 

separately.  The mitigation area has been revised to ensure that it is out of any 

playing area. See the attached updated conservation easement. The updated 

mitigation area is also shown on the civil plans. 

6. Please provide a copy of the WI DNR Artificial Wetland Determination (EXE-SE-2022-41-

00932) indicated on the Site Plan. See attached.  

Engineering Department Comments:  

• Separate engineering and stormwater review submittal is currently under review, review 



3 

     

 

 

City of Franklin 

Department of City Development 

 

 

 

comments will be provided to the applicant Comment only. Will work with staff for 

final staff approval. 

• Coordination with Milwaukee County DOT may be required for access to S. 76th Street 

and/or any work in S. 76th Street ROW There is no change to the access to 76th Street 

and there is no proposed work in the right-of-way of 76th Street so no County 

Highway permit is needed. 

• As has been discussed previously with the City, Pinnacle, Lynch, Federation, and Soccer 

Club - coordination with Soccer Club’s future proposed project on the site, as well 

remediation of the existing unpermitted impervious surfaces that have been added over 

the years will be expected as the projects continue to move forward This is addressed 

on the attached civil plans and SWMP. The SWMP addresses the north property. 

There is gravel and pavement removal proposed on the south property and that is 

shown on sheet C-200. The summary of the removal is also shown on C-200. The 

proposed work will bring both the north and south properties into compliance.  

Health Department Comments: 

FHD will need more information regarding use of each space in regard to food and drink 

preparation to determine what if any plan review/approval may be needed.  No food 

preparation will be allowed in open air areas, including blending of drinks.  There is no food 

preparation in the open-air areas. Food preparation is in the licensed kitchen. 

 

Recommended Conditions of Approval 

All resolutions are drafted with a standard set of condition relating to development timelines and 

requirements, approvals from other jurisdictions and departments, etc.  Staff recommends the 

following additional conditions based on review of these applications for compliance with the 

Unified Development Ordinance: 

Site Plan: 

• Technical corrections. Understood, comment only. 

• Recording of conservation easements. Will record upon the easement being approved. 

• If necessary, approval of parking reduction. See Site Plan 2 above, a parking lot reduction 

is requested for approval. 

• If necessary, sound mitigation features. See Site Plan 3 above, sound mitigation measures 

will be via limits set within the equipment. 



 
 

 

 

 
 

Croatian Park Pavilion 
     

 
 

 

PHONE:  414.476.1011     LOCATION: WAUWATOSA, WI     WEB: PROAUDIODESIGNS.COM 

1 of 2 

 
 

Prepared for: 

 

 
Project 

Croatian Park Pavilion 

 

 

Owner 

Ring & DuChateau 

 

Date 

1/19/2024 

 

 

Weather 

32° / Sunny 

 

 

From 

Ryan Rettig, Professional Audio Designs | TALASKE 

Rrettig@proaudiodesigns.com 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Revision Record 
Rev No Date Revision Comments 

1 01-05-2024 SPL Calculations for Property line 

2 01-19-2024 SPL Calculations for Property line with additional limiter to meet city requirements.  

 

  



Croatian Park Pavilion  

Property Line SPL Calculations Findings 
Revised 1/19/2024 

 
 

 

PHONE:  414.476.1011     LOCATION: WAUWATOSA, WI     WEB: PROAUDIODESIGNS.COM 

2 of 2 

Property Line SPL Calculations Findings  

 

Items noted in this report for reference actual readings may vary pending on installed placements.  

 

Executive Summary: 
 

This study is using actual property lines, all distances are actual based on current speaker placement not estimated.  

 

Pavilion: 
A-1.1. All calculations for this area were done using the JBL Control 67P/T. 

A-1.2. The findings from the calculations show that at the approximated property line this system would be at an 

average of 59.5dB SPL.  

A-1.3. The west side of the pavilion at the assumed property line will be at an approximate 65dB SPL. 

A-1.4. The south side of the pavilion at the assumed property line will be at an approximate 57dB SPL. 

A-1.5. The north side of the pavilion at the assumed property line will be at an approximate 60dB SPL.  

A-1.6. The east side of the pavilion at the assumed property line will be at an approximate 56dB SPL.  

A-1.7. These property line estimates can be brought down to the city requirement of 55dBA SPL by placing a 

limiter in the audio system. Doing this will allow the system to be set not to exceed this level after being 

properly setup and tuned.  

A-1.8. The approximate dB level from a seated position is 99dB SPL inside the pavilion.  

 



HB: 4875-3999-9506.3 1 

CONSERVATION  EASEMENT 

 

CROATIAN PARK 

                                 

 This Conservation Easement is made by and between the City of Franklin, a municipal corporation of the State of 

Wisconsin, hereinafter referred to as “Grantee,” and FEDERATION OF CROATIAN SOCIETIES INC., a Wisconsin non-

stock corporation, hereinafter referred to as “Grantor,” and shall become effective upon the recording of this Grant of 

Conservation Easement, together with the Acceptance following, with the Office of the Register of Deeds for Milwaukee 

County, pursuant to § 700.40(2)(b) of the Wisconsin Statutes. 

 

WITNESSETH 

 

WHEREAS, Grantor is the owner in fee simple of certain real property, located within the City of Franklin, 

Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, described in Exhibit A attached hereto and hereby made a part hereof; 

 

WHEREAS, Grantor desires and intends to protect a portion of its property as set forth herein, and more particularly 

described and depicted on Exhibit B attached hereto and hereby made a part hereof (the “protected property”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Grantor desires and intends that the natural elements and the ecological and aesthetic values of the 

protected property including, without limitation, mature woodlands, wetlands, wetland buffers and wetland setbacks 

mitigation areas as per the Natural Resource Protection Plan prepared by Helianthus LLC, last revised June 8, 2021, which 

Plan is on file in the office of the City of Franklin Department of City Development, be preserved and maintained by the 

continuation of land use that will not interfere with or substantially disrupt the natural elements or the workings of natural 

systems; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Grantee is a “holder”, as contemplated by § 700.40(1)(b)1. of the Wisconsin Statutes, whose purposes 

include, while exercising regulatory authority granted to it, inter alia, under § 62.23 and § 236.45 of the Wisconsin Statutes, 

the conservation of land, natural areas, open space and water areas; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Grantor and Grantee, by the conveyance to the Grantee of the conservation easement on, over and 

across the protected property, desire to conserve the natural values thereof and prevent the use or development of the 

protected property for any purpose or in any manner inconsistent with the terms of this conservation easement; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Grantee is willing to accept this conservation easement subject to the reservations and to the 

covenants, terms, conditions and restrictions set out herein and imposed hereby. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Grantor, for and in consideration of the foregoing recitations and of the mutual covenants, 

terms, conditions, and restrictions subsequently contained, and as an absolute and unconditional dedication, does hereby 

grant and convey unto the Grantee a conservation easement in perpetuity on, over and across the protected property. 

 

Grantee’s rights hereunder shall consist solely of the following: 

1. To view the protected property in its natural, scenic, and open condition; 

2. To enforce by proceeding at law or in equity the covenants subsequently set forth, including, and in addition to all other 

enforcement proceedings, proceedings to obtain all penalties and remedies set forth under Division 15-9.0500 of the 

Unified Development Ordinance of the City of Franklin, as amended from time to time, any violation of the covenants 

subsequently set forth being and constituting a violation of such Unified Development Ordinance, as amended from time 

to time, or such local applicable ordinance as may be later adopted or in effect to enforce such covenants or the purposes 

for which they are made, it being agreed that there shall be no waiver or forfeiture of the Grantee’s right to insure 

compliance with the covenants and conditions of this grant by reason of any prior failure to act; and 

3. To enter the protected property at all reasonable times for the purpose of inspecting the protected property to determine if 

the Grantor is complying with the covenants and conditions of this grant. 

 

And in furtherance of the foregoing affirmative rights of the Grantee, the Grantor makes the following covenants which shall 

run with and bind the protected property in perpetuity, namely, that, on, over or across the protected property, the Grantor, 

without the prior consent of the Grantee, shall not: 

1. Construct or place buildings or any structure; 



HB: 4875-3999-9506.3 2 

2. Construct or make any improvements, unless, notwithstanding Covenant 1. above, the improvement is specifically and 

previously approved by the Common Council of the City of Franklin, upon the advice of such other persons, entities, and 

agencies as it may elect; such improvements as may be so approved being intended to enhance the resource value of the 

protected property to the environment or the public and including, but not limited to animal and bird feeding stations, 

park benches, walking paths, the removal of animal blockage of natural drainage or other occurring blockage of natural 

drainage, and the like; 

3. Excavate, dredge, grade, mine, drill or change the topography of the land or its natural condition in any manner, 

including any cutting or removal of vegetation, except for the removal of dead or diseased trees; 

4. Conduct any filling, dumping, or depositing of any material whatsoever, including, but not limited to soil, yard waste or 

other landscape materials, ashes, garbage, or debris; 

5. Plant any vegetation not native to the protected property or not typical wetland vegetation; 

6. Operate snowmobiles, dune buggies, motorcycles, all-terrain vehicles or any other types of motorized vehicles. 

 

To have and to hold this conservation easement unto the Grantee forever.  Except as expressly limited herein, the Grantor 

reserves all rights as owner of the protected property, including, but not limited to, the right to use the protected property for 

all purposes not inconsistent with this grant.  Grantor shall be responsible for the payment of all general property taxes levied, 

assessed or accruing against the protected property pursuant to law. 

 

The covenants, terms, conditions and restrictions set forth in this grant shall be binding upon the Grantor and the Grantee and 

their respective agents, personal representatives, heirs, successors, and assigns, and shall constitute servitudes running with 

the protected property in perpetuity.  This grant may not be amended, except by a writing executed and delivered by Grantor 

and Grantee or their respective personal representatives, heirs, successors, and assigns.  Notices to the parties shall be 

personally delivered or mailed by U.S. Mail registered mail, return receipt requested, as follows:  

 

To Grantor: 

Federation Of Croatian Societies Inc.  

Attn: Tomislav Z. Kuzmanovic 

PO Box 1548 

West Milwaukee, WI 53234-1548 

To Grantee: 

City of Franklin 

Office of the City Clerk 

9229 West Loomis Road 

Franklin, Wisconsin  53132 

 

In witness whereof, the Grantor has set his handon this date of _________________________, 2024. 

 

 

FEDERATION OF CROATIAN SOCIETIES, INC.  

 

 

By: _______________________________ 

      Tomislav Z. Kuzmanovic, President 

    

STATE OF WISCONSIN  ) 

    ) ss 

_____________  COUNTY  ) 

 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the _______ day of ______________, 2024, by Tomislav Z. Kuzmanovic , 

as President of the Federation of Croatian Societies, Inc. a Wisconsin non-stock corporation, to me known to be the person 

who executed the foregoing conservation easement and acknowledged the same as the voluntary act and deed of said 

corporation. 

 

        _______________________________ 

        Notary Public 

 

      My commission expires _______________________ 

 

 

 

 

 



HB: 4875-3999-9506.3 3 

Acceptance 

 

The undersigned does hereby consent to and accepts the Conservation Easement granted and conveyed to it under and 

pursuant to the foregoing Grant of Conservation Easement.  In consideration of the making of such Grant Of Conservation 

Easement, the undersigned agrees that this acceptance shall be binding upon the undersigned and its successors and assigns 

and that the restrictions imposed upon the protected property may only be released or waived in writing by the Common 

Council of the City of Franklin, as contemplated by § 236.293 of the Wisconsin Statutes. 

 

In witness whereof, the undersigned has executed and delivered this acceptance on the ____ day of ____________, 20___. 

 

 

CITY OF FRANKLIN 

 

     By: _______________________________________ 

      John Nelson, Mayor 

 

     By: _______________________________________ 

      Shirley Roberts, City Clerk 

 

STATE OF WISCONSIN  ) 

    ) ss 

COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE ) 

 

 Personally came before me this _________ day of ___________________, 20__, the above named John Nelson, 

Mayor and Shirley Roberts, City Clerk, of the above named municipal corporation, City of Franklin, to me known to be such 

Mayor and City Clerk of said municipal corporation, and acknowledged that they executed the foregoing instrument as such 

officers as the Deed of said municipal corporation by its authority and pursuant to Resolution No. ________, adopted by its 

Common Council on the ______ day of _________________, 20__. 

 

      _______________________________ 

        Notary Public 

 

      My commission expires _______________________ 

 

 

 

This instrument was drafted by the City of Franklin. 

 

Approved as to contents: 

 

____________________________       ________________________ 

Régulo Martínez-Montilva  Date 

Principal Planner  

Department of City Development 

 

Approved as to form only: 

 

____________________________       ________________________ 

Jesse A. Wesolowski Date 

City Attorney 

 

 

 



HB: 4875-3999-9506.3 4 

 

Exhibit A 

 

Legal Description of Grantor’s Property 

 

The North 662.25 feet of the West 1/2 of the Southwest Quarter (SW 1/4) of Section 22, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, 

City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin. 

 

Address: 9100 South 76th Street 

Parcel Number: 884-9995-000 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



HB: 4875-3999-9506.3 5 

Exhibit B 

 

Legal Description and Depiction of the Protected Property 

 

Legal Description of Conservation Easement Area #1: 

 

All that part of the Northwest 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 22, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, City of Franklin, 

Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, bounded and described as follows: 

Commencing at the northwest corner of said Southwest 1/4; thence South 00°26’01” East along the west line of said Southwest 

1/4, 662.25 feet; thence North 89°17’59” East 60.00 feet to the east right-of-way line of South 76th Street and the place of 

beginning of the land hereinafter to be described (POB #1); thence continuing North 89°17’59” East 539.01 feet; thence North 

00°36’47” West 35.50 feet; thence South 89°55’05” West 329.56 feet; thence South 76°51’14” West 52.11 feet; thence North 

73°50’10” West 32.52 feet; thence South 88°10’03” West 127.39 feet to the east right-of-way line of South 76th Street; thence 

South 00°26’01” East 34.75 feet to the place of beginning. Containing 19,588 square feet (0.4497 acres) of land. 

 

Legal Description of Conservation Easement Area #2: 

 

All that part of the Northwest 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 22, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, City of Franklin, 

Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, bounded and described as follows: 

Commencing at the northwest corner of said Southwest 1/4; thence South 00°26’01” East along the west line of said Southwest 

1/4, 662.25 feet; thence North 89°17’59” East 635.38 feet to the place of beginning of the land hereinafter to be described (POB 

#2); thence continuing North 89°17’59” East 257.00 feet; thence North 24°50’07” East 32.04 feet; thence South 89°09’03” West 

270.53 feet; thence South 35°14’07” West 9.20 feet; thence South 14°33’33” East 21.38 feet to the place of beginning. 

Containing 7,606 square feet (0.1746 acres) of land. 

 

Legal Description of Conservation Easement Area #3: 

 

All that part of the Northwest 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 22, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, City of Franklin, 

Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, bounded and described as follows: 

Commencing at the northwest corner of said Southwest 1/4; thence South 00°26’01” East along the west line of said Southwest 

1/4, 662.25 feet; thence North 89°17’59” East 927.01 feet to the place of beginning of the land hereinafter to be described (POB 

#3); thence continuing North 89°17’59” East 91.78 feet; thence North 54°42’23” West 51.71 feet; thence North 86°07’36” West 

44.54 feet; thence South 40°09’52” West 16.96 feet; thence South 09°11’37” West 11.99 feet; thence South 39°59’53” East 

12.02 feet to the place of beginning. Containing 2,365 square feet (0.0543 acres) of land. 
 

Legal Description of Conservation Easement Area #4: 

 

All that part of the Northwest 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 22, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, City of Franklin, 

Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, bounded and described as follows: 

Commencing at the northwest corner of said Southwest 1/4; thence South 00°26’01” East along the west line of said Southwest 

1/4, 662.25 feet; thence North 89°17’59” East 1201.24 feet to the place of beginning of the land hereinafter to be described 

(POB #4); thence continuing North 89°17’59” East 110.66 feet; thence North 00°24’42” West 214.81 feet; thence South 

89°35’18” West 50.00 feet; thence South 00°24’42” East 128.15 feet; thence South 22°40’46” West 40.21 feet; thence South 

37°11’27” West 55.25 feet; thence South 59°35’53” West 12.91 feet to the place of beginning. Containing 12,812 square feet 

(0.2941 acres) of land. 

 



HB: 4875-3999-9506.3 6 

 

 



State of Wisconsin 
DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES 
1155 Pilgrim Rd. 
Plymouth, WI, 53073 
 

 

 
 

Tony Evers, Governor 
Preston D. Cole, Secretary 

Telephone 608-266-2621 
Toll Free 1-888-936-7463 

TTY Access via relay - 711 

 
 
 

March 24th, 2022  EXE-SE-2022-41-00932 
 
  
 
Federation of Croatian Societies, Inc. 
Tomislav Kuzmanovic                                                                                                                    
P.O. Box 1548 
West Milwaukee, WI 53234-1548 
 
RE:  Artificial Wetland Exemption Determination for an area described as Wetland B and F, located in 
the NW ¼ of the SW ¼ of Section 22, Township 05 North, Range 21 East, City of Franklin, Milwaukee 
County 
 
 
Dear Mr. Kuzmanovic: 
 
This letter is in response to your request for an artificial wetland exemption determination for the above-
mentioned wetlands.    
 
According to 281.36 (4n), State Statutes, a landscape feature where hydrophytic vegetation may be 
present as a result of human modification to the landscape or hydrology and for which no definitive 
evidence exists showing a prior wetland or stream history before August 1, 1991, may be exempt from 
state wetland regulations.  The following types of artificial wetlands cannot be exempted from state 
wetland regulation:  
 

1) a wetland that serves as a fish spawning area or that is passage to a fish spawning area 
 

2) a wetland created as a result of a wetland mitigation requirement.   
 
In addition, DNR must also consider whether the artificial wetland is providing significant flood protection 
to adjacent or downstream properties and infrastructure, and/or significant water quality functions to 
adjacent or downstream water bodies.     
 
The Department reviewed the following materials to aid in our exemption determination:  

 The request narrative  
 Historic Maps, including the Original Land Survey Plat, Bordner Survey, USGS topographic Quad 

maps, and soil mapping.   
 Aerial photographs, including the 1937/8 era photograph, a pre-construction photograph, and a 

post-construction photograph.   
 Site photographs that show different angles and views of the wetland  
 Wetland Delineation report 

 
Below is a summary of our findings:  
 



Request Narrative 
According to the request narrative, Wetland B (0.01 acres), and Wetland F (0.01 acres) are the focus of 
this artificial wetland exemption request. Wetland B is a small emergent marsh wetland with spikerush, 
and tall fescue within a ditch/swale at the edge of a soccer field. Wetland F is a emergent marsh wetland 
strip with creeping bentgrass, and tall fescue along the border of a soccer field. Wetland areas are said to 
form as a result of poor drainage related to the development of soccer fields at the park. A larger natural 
wetland exists on the site, but these two wetlands are isolated, don’t exhibit persistent surface waters, 
and are not anticipated to provide fish spawning habitat. The areas would be developed for a new 
residential development to be constructed on the site. The future development will need to meet other 
state/local stormwater requirements. The applicant demonstrated knowledge of these other stormwater 
management requirements.  
 
Historic Map Review 

 Original Land Survey Plat.  The original land survey indicates there is a wetland on the site, which 
would be closer to wetland C, which was not requested.  

 Bordner Survey.  The Bordner survey is not applicable to Milwaukee County.    
 USGS Topographic Quad map:  The 1892-1950 USGS Topo maps show wetlands are present on 

the parcel. The 1960-2013 USGS Topo maps show the area is a park, there are no wetlands on 
the parcel, but there is a depression that heads to the east.   

 Soil Maps: The 1919 soil map indicates the soils on site are upland soils and are some wetlands 
on the parcel.  The modern NRCS soil maps indicate the area is mapped with Ozaukee Silt Loam, 
2-6 slopes, which is a moderately well drained soil that is predominantly non-hydric. 

 
Aerial Photograph Review 

 1937/38 era aerial photograph.  the review area is a crop field or pasture. There are no wetland 
signatures near wetlands B or F.  A larger wetland does exist on the site in a different location.  

 1951-1956 era aerial photographs: The aerial photos in this timeframe are similar to the 1937 
aerial. The area appears to be cropped at this timeframe, and there appears to be extensive 
tiling/ditching in the area. There are no wetland signatures near wetlands B or F. A larger wetland 
exists on the site in a different location. 

 1963-2000 aerial photos show that there is some development occurring on the site, the area is 
cleared of vegetation and developed into soccer fields. This soccer field development expands 
over the course of many years. It appears some buildings, roads, and parking areas are 
developed on the parcel around this time, and there appears to have been a ditch/swale created 
near wetland B.   

 2000-present day era aerial photos: These aerial photos show the park in its current form. 
Wetlands B and F are small isolated features at the edges of soccer fields. It appears that 
stormwater from the park is directed into these areas.  

 
Site Photographs and LIDAR 
The site photographs show the wetland B and F are depressions with emergent vegetation near the 
edges of soccer fields. The LIDAR maps show that these areas are depressions which appear to be 
within/near man-made features in the surrounding landscape areas. 
 
Conclusion:   

 Based upon the information provided above, the wetlands identified as wetland B and F lacked a 
wetland history prior to August 1, 1991 and fulfills all artificial wetland exemption standards.  
Therefore, Wetlands B and F are exempt from state wetland regulations.  Please see the 
attached figures for reference.  
 



This letter describes DNR’s decision regarding the jurisdictional status of Wetlands B and F and is only 
valid for state jurisdictional purposes.  For decisions regarding the federal jurisdictional status of Wetlands 
B and F, you will need to contact the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers.   
 
If you have any questions about this determination, please contact me at (715) 492-0200 or email 
Ryan.Pappas@wisconsin.gov. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Ryan Pappas 
Wetland Exemption Specialist 
 
cc: U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 
 Consultant 
 



 



 

W
etland areas B

 and F
 

w
e

re d
eterm

in
ed to be 

exem
pt from

 state 
w

etla
nd reg

ulations.  







EX 2" COPPER WM

G
A

T
E

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

M

50"O

15"A

40"O

24"O

15"A

15"M

40"C

12"A

36"O

18"P

24"P

10"P

15"P

15"SP

30"M

15"SP

15"M

24"C

50"O

3"M

30"O

50"O

18"E

12"M

18"M

28"O

60"O

36"O

24"O

12"A

12"MU

18"SN

30"O

18"E

12"A

30"M

8"H
18"M

18"C

2"F

SP

12"A

48"O

15"M

15"C

O

18"A

24"CH

15"C

15"M

18"C

12"E

18"H

15"C

24"CR

40"O

40"O

36"O

18"M

30"O

30"O

50"O

24"O

36"O

6"E

24"O

30"O

18"M

12"C

15"C

15"CR

15"O

30"O

18"C

15"A

15"C

18"C

18"C

24"O

24"O

50"O

40"O

40"O

40"O

10"H

8"O

15"O

12"O

8"O

10"E

15"C

12"H

30"O

36"O

24"M

SPP

12"H

18"M

24"C

18"A

10"CR

24"L

10"CR

20"M

18"M

12"L

ST

3
6
"
 
R

.
C

.
P

2
4
"
 
C

.
M

.
P

.

1
6
"
 
C

.
M

.
P

.

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

(
V

A
R

I
A

B
L

E
 
P

U
B

L
I
C

 
R

.
O

.
W

.
)

GRAVEL

GRAVEL

TREE LINE

50'

5
0
'

5
0
'

BUILDING SETBACK LINE

SIGN

SIGN

S
O

U
T

H
 
7
6
T

H
 
S

T
R

E
E

T

ASPHALT

DRIVE

 
E

D
G

E
 
O

F
 
P

A
V

E
M

E
N

T

EXISTING

BUILDING

EXISTING

BUILDING

EXIST.

STAGE

EXISTING

BUILDING

 ASPHALT

EXISTING

BUILDING

E

X

I

S

T

I

N

G

B

U

I

L

D

I

N

G

GRAVEL

EXISTING

BUILDING

PARCEL 1

829,146 SQ. FT.

19.03 ACRES

C
H

A
I
N

 
L
I
N

K
 
F

E
N

C
E

WIRE FENCE

1
2
3
.
6
'

408.9'

3
6
2
.
4
'

279.0'

213.7'

215.2'

S
0
0
°
2
4
'
4
2
"
E
 
 

6
6
2
.
2
5
'

N89°17'59"E  1252.15'

N
0
0
°
2
6
'
0
1
"
W
 
 

6
6
2
.
2
5
'

S89°17'59"W  
1251.77'

7

5

3

7

5

2

7

5

1

7
5
0

7
4
9

7
4
8

7
4
7

7

4

6

7

4

5

7
4
4

7
4
3

753

7

5

2

7

5

1

7

5

0

749

7

4

8

747

7

4

6

7

4

5

7

4

3

7

4

2

7

4

3

7

4

4

7

4

5

7

4

6

7

4

7

7

4

8

7

4

5

7

4

6

7
4
7

748

749

7
5
0

7

5

1

7

5

2

7

5

3

7

5

4

7

5

7

7

6

0

7

6

1

7

6

4

7

5

4

7

5

3

752

7

5

1

7

5

0

7
4
9

7

5

2

7
5
3

7

5

4

7

5

4

7

5

3

7

5

2

7

5

1

7

5

4

7

5

5

7

5

6

7

5

7

7

5

8

7

5

9

7

6

0

7

6

0

7

6

2

7

6

3
7

6

4

7

6

5

7

6

1

7

6

2

7

6

3

7

6

4

7

6

5

7

6

1

7

6

1

7
6
3

7

6

2

7

6

1

7
6
0

7

5

9

7

5

8

7

5

7

7
5
9

7
6
1

7

6

2

7

5

8

7

5

9

7

6

0

7

6

2

7

6

4

7

6

4

763

7

6

3

EXISTING

BOCCE COURT

EXISTING

BUILDING

E

X

I
S

T
I
N

G

C

O

V

E

R

E

D

B

A

R

3
5
.
9
'

23.9'

EXISTING

BUILDING

EXISTING

CONCRETE

FUTSAL

COURTS

CONC.

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

WET

W
ETWETWET

WET WET

WET

W
ET

WET

WET

W
E

T

WET

WETWET
WET

WETWETWET

W
ET

WET

WET

WET

WET

WET

WET
WET

W

E

T

WET

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W

E

T

WET
W

ET

WET
WET

WET
WET

WET

W

E
T

W
E

T

WET
WET

WET
WET

WET
WET

W

E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W

E

T

WET
WET WET WET

W

E
T

W

E
T

W

E

T

WET

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E
T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W
E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E
T

W

E
T

W

E

T

W

E
T

W

E
T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W
E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W
E

T

WET

WET

W
E

T
W

E
T

W
E

T

WET

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E
T

W

E

T

W

E
T

W

E
T

W

E
T

W
E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W
E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

WET
W

E
T

W

E
T

W

E

T

W

E

T

WET

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T
W

E
T

W
E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T
W

E
T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T
W

E
T

W
E

T
W

E
T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W

E

T

WET
WET

W
ET

W
E

T

W
ET

WET

WET

W
E

T

W

E

T

WET

WET

WET

WET

ROPE NET

ROPE NET

GRAVEL

GRAVEL

GRAVEL

G
A

T
E

C
A

B
L
E

G
A

T
E

G
A

T
E

DRIVE

OPENING

ASPHALT

DRIVE

ASPHALT

DRIVE

 ASPHALT

 ASPHALT

BURIED

12" CULVERT

12" CULVERT

7
5
3

7
5
4

7

5

5

7

6

1

7

6

0

7

5

9

7

5

8

7

5

7

7
5
6

7

5

8

7
5
9

760

761

7

6

2

7

6

3

7

6

4

7
6
5

7

6

1

7

6

2

7
6
3

7
6
2

7
6
1

7
6
1

7
6
2

7
6
3

7

6

5

7
6
6

7

6

6

7

6

6

7

6

7

7

6

8

7

6

8

7

6

7

7

6

6

7

6

5

7

6

6

7
6
5

7

6

4

7

6

3

7
6
2

7
6
1

7
6
0

7
5
9

7
5
8

7
5
7

7

6

4

7

6

3

7
6
2

7
6
1

7

6

0

7

5

9

7

5

8

7

5

6

7

5

5

7
5
4

7

6

0

7
5
8

7
5
6

7

5

5

7

5

4

7
5
3

7
5
2

7
6
4

7
6
3

7
6
3

7
6
4

7
6
2

7
6
4

CONC.

TREE LINE

WOODLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

7

6

2

7

6

3

7

6

4

7

6

5

7

6

6

7
6
6

7

6

5

7

6

5

7

6

5

7

6

4

7

6

3

50' WETLAND

SETBACK

30' WETLAND

BUFFER

S
0
0
°
2
4
'
4
2
"
E
 
 

3
4
8
.
1
0
'

N
0
0
°
2
6
'
0
1
"
W
 
 

3
4
8
.
1
0
'

S89°17'59"W  
1251.90'

PARCEL 2

435,759 SQ. FT.

10.00 ACRES

10"CR

2"F

18"P

SP

SP

18"M

12"M

SP

30"O

18"M

15"M

SP

12"M

SP

8"M

6"M

8"E

36"O

18"O

40"O

10"M

10"M

SP

SP

3"SP

3"F

15"SP

8"M 18"E
4"M

SA

10"W

3"O

6"O

15"O

30"O

36"O

24"M

15"M

24"O

30"O

SA

SA

12"H

15"M

18"

SA

SA

SA

SA

36"M

15"M

36"O

SA

SA

60"O

SA

SA

24"M

12"CR

6"CR

15"A

8"H

24"H

15"O

SA

SA

SA

SA

5

0

'

3

0

'

30' WETLAND

BUFFER

50' WETLAND

SETBACK

ARTIFICIAL WETLAND PER

WDNR (EXE-SE-2022-41-00932)

DATED MARCH 24, 2022.

USACOE NO JURISDICTION

(2022-00384-AJK) DATED

MARCH 28, 2022.

30'

50'

30' WETLAND

BUFFER

50' WETLAND

SETBACK

SIGN

50'

30'

50'50' WETLAND

SETBACK

30' WETLAND

BUFFER

10"MU

60"M

60"M

8"B

44"M

10"B

16"B

40"B

10"B

12"B

16"A

12"MU

24"B

24"B

18"B

8"H

8"H

30"M

18"O

8"B

24"B

8"O

12"B

8"H

12"A

40"B

50"B

8"O

10"H

8"O

8"O

12"O

8"O

10"H

8"B

14"O

8"O

12"O

10"B

10"B

10"M

8"B

14"B

8"H

8"H

8"H

8"H

8"H

10"H

8"H

10"H

10"H

10"H

10"H

14"O

10"H

8"H

16"O

16"A

8"M

10"M

8"M

12"M

8"H

8"H

8"H

8"H

16"O

12"B

10"HW

8"H

8"H

12"O

24"H

14"O

14"CH

12"M

10"H

24"H

22"H

8"E

26"C

10"E

14"CH

8"M

16"M

18"M

10"O

48"M

14"M

8"M

8"M

12"M

10"M

8"M

12"B

12"M

10"B

10"CH

10"A

36"O

8"B

8"B

12"H

8"O

60"M

48"M

60"M

10"M

10"B

22"O

8"H

16"M

8"MU

42"O

8"O

8"O

18"O

10"E

16"E

16"E

20"E

8"O

12"O

72"O

8"O

20"O

8"O

8"O

34"O

14"E

60"O

8"O

8"O

3

0

'

5
0
'

SIGN

W

W

W

W

W

W

WELL

SAN. CO (TYP.)

PRESSURE

TANK

6"=753.08

(PLAN)

6"=759.06

(PLAN)

6"=755.33

(PLAN)

CO EL=760.39

6"=747.21

(PLAN)

CO EL=760.33

6"=748.08

(PLAN)

CO EL=760.79

6"=752.53

(PLAN)

CO EL=759.36

6"=753.45

(PLAN)

CO EL=758.25

6"=754.43

(PLAN)

CO EL =761.86

6"=751.66

(PLAN)

CO EL=764.16

6"=750.81

(PLAN)

ARTIFICIAL WETLAND PER WDNR (EXE-SE-2022-41-00932) DATED MARCH 24, 2022.

USACOE NO JURISDICTION (2022-00384-AJK) DATED MARCH 28, 2022.

EXISTING

PARKING

AREA

EXISTING

PARKING AREA

EXISTING

PARKING

AREA

EXISTING

PARKING

AREA

EXISTING

PARKING

AREA

EX 6" PVC

SANITARY SEWER

4
.
6
'

4
7
.
8
'

ELEC

PED

ELEC

BOX

ELEC

PED

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER PER

PLAN FROM OWNER.  WATER MAIN

PER SKETCH FROM OWNER.

15"M

7

6

6

7
6
6

7

6

5

7
6
4

7

6

0

7

6

1

7

6

3

7

6

5

7

6

4

7

6

4

WETLAND

18"C

©
 
C

O
P

Y
R

I
G

H
T

 
2

0
2

1

REVISIONS SHEET

P
E
G

 
J
O

B
 
N

o
.

P
E
G

 
P
M

D
A
T
E

S
C
A
L
E

PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    

w
w

w
.
p

i
n

n
a

c
l
e

-
e

n
g

r
.
c

o
m

WISCONSIN OFFICE:
20725 WATERTOWN ROAD SUITE 100

BROOKFIELD, WI 53186
(262) 754-8888

ENGINEERING I NATURAL RESOURCES I SURVEYING

PLAN I DESIGN I DELIVER

CHICAGO I MILWAUKEE : NATIONWIDE

w w w . p i n n a c l e - e n g r . c o m

1" = 60'0 120'

 GRAPHICAL SCALE (FEET)

FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

CROATIAN PARK PAVILION

LEGEND OF SYMBOLS & ABBREVIATIONS

HANDICAP STALL

MAIL BOX

TELEPHONE MARKER

CABLE TV RISER/BOX

BUSH

TRAFFIC SIGNAL

GAS MARKER

CONIFER TREE

SPOT ELEVATION

DECIDUOUS TREE

DOWN SPOUT

TELEPHONE MANHOLE/VAULT

ELECTRIC MANHOLE/VAULT

ELECTRIC METER/PEDESTAL

GAS METER

GAS VALVE

GUY WIRE

UTILITY POLE

HYDRANT

CATCH BASIN

STORM INLET

SANITARY MANHOLE

STORM MANHOLE

IRON PIPE

IRON REBAR/ROD

SECTION MONUMENT

MAG NAIL

WATER MAIN

GAS MAIN

CABLE TELEVISION

STORM SEWER

SANITARY SEWER

TELEPHONE LINE

ELECTRIC LINE

OVERHEAD WIRES

WATER VALVE

FLOOD LIGHT

AIR CONDITIONING UNIT

WELL

CROSS CUT

BENCH MARK

CABLE TV MANHOLE/VAULT

CLEANOUT

UNKNOWN PEDESTAL

FIBER OPTIC MANHOLE/VAULT

FIBER OPTIC MARKER

FIBER OPTIC LINE

W W

FLAG POLE

BOLLARD

UNKNOWN MANHOLE

SPRINKLER VALVE

WETLANDS

TRANSFORMER

TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

DUMPSTER

WETLAND SYMBOL

DIRECTIONAL ARROW

BASKETBALL HOOP

SIGN

LIGHT POLE

CL. =CENTERLINE

CONC. =CONCRETE

EL. =ELEVATION

EXT. =EXISTING

INV. =INVERT

MON. =MONUMENT

P.O.B. =POINT OF BEGINNING

P.O.C. =POINT OF COMMENCEMENT

R.O.W =RIGHT OF WAY

SEC. =SECTION

SQ. FT. =SQUARE FEET

W/ =WITH

(R) =RECORDED AS

(D) =DEEDED AS

STANDPIPE

VENT

WATER SHUT OFF

TREE LINE

NO ACCESS

WATER MANHOLE

EXISTING SITE PLAN

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

PARCEL 1 (PROJECT SITE):

The North 662.25 feet of the West 1/2 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 22, Township 5 North,

Range 21 East, City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

Address:  9100 South 76th Street, Franklin, Wisconsin

Parcel No: 884-9995-000

PARCEL 2:

The South 348.10 feet of the North 1010.35 feet of the West 1/2 of the Southwest 1/4 of

Section 22, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

Address: 9220 South 76th Street, Franklin, Wisconsin

Parcel No: 884-9996-000

GENERAL NOTES

1. Boundary and Survey per Plat of Survey by Metropolitan Survey Service, Inc. on September 10,

2015, Survey No. 105938. Existing conditions verified and updated by Pinnacle Engineering on

June 18, 2020.

2. Vertical Datum: National Geodetic Vertical Datum of 1929 (NGVD29).  Contours are shown at a

1' intervals. Reference Benchmark: Concrete monument with brass cap at the northwest corner

of the Southwest 1/4 Section 22, Town 5 North, Range 21 East, Elevation = 763.09.

3. Wetlands delineated by Wetland & Waterways Consulting, LLC on JUNE 10, 2020.

4. Trees Inventory completed by Wetland & Waterways Consulting, LLC on JUNE 22, 2020.

A= ASH

B= BOX ELDER

C= COTTONWOOD

CH= CHERRY

CR= CRAB

E= ELM

F= FIR

H= HICKORY

HW= HAWTHORN

L= LOCUST

M= MAPLE

MU= MULBERRY

O= OAK

P= PINE

SA= SAPLING

SN= SNAG

SP= SPRUCE

ST= STUMP

W= WALNUT

C-100

1
"
=

6
0

'

0
4

/
1

9
/
2

0
2

2

A
S

Z

2
0

6
3

.
0

0
B

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
 
S

I
T
E
 
P

L
A

N

NORTH

1   ADDENDUM #1   5/9/2022

2   CITY COMMENTS   11/2/2023

3   CITY COMMENTS   1/23/2024

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
THESE PLANS AND DESIGNS ARE COPYRIGHT PROTECTED AND MAY NOT BE USED IN WHOLE OR IN PART WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
?

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
TF

AutoCAD SHX Text
w

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
S



EX 2" COPPER WM

G
A

T
E

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

M

50"O

15"A

40"O

24"O

15"A

15"M

40"C

12"A

36"O

18"P

24"P

10"P

15"P

15"SP

30"M

15"SP

15"M

24"C

50"O

3"M

30"O

50"O

18"E

12"M

18"M

28"O

60"O

36"O

24"O

12"A

12"MU

18"SN

30"O

18"E

12"A

30"M

8"H
18"M

18"C

2"F

SP

12"A

48"O

15"M

15"C

O

18"A

24"CH

15"C

15"M

18"C

12"E

18"H

15"C

24"CR

40"O

40"O

36"O

18"M

30"O

30"O

50"O

24"O

36"O

6"E

24"O

30"O

18"M

12"C

15"C

15"CR

15"O

30"O

18"C

15"A

15"C

18"C

18"C

24"O

24"O

50"O

40"O

40"O

40"O

10"H

8"O

15"O

12"O

8"O

10"E

15"C

12"H

30"O

36"O

24"M

SPP

12"H

18"M

24"C

18"A

10"CR

24"L

10"CR

20"M

18"M

12"L

ST

3
6
"
 
R

.
C

.
P

2
4
"
 
C

.
M

.
P

.

1
6
"
 
C

.
M

.
P

.

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

(
V

A
R

I
A

B
L

E
 
P

U
B

L
I
C

 
R

.
O

.
W

.
)

GRAVEL

GRAVEL

TREE LINE

SIGN

SIGN

S
O

U
T

H
 
7
6
T

H
 
S

T
R

E
E

T

ASPHALT

DRIVE

 
E

D
G

E
 
O

F
 
P

A
V

E
M

E
N

T

EXISTING

BUILDING

EXISTING

BUILDING

EXIST.

STAGE

EXISTING

BUILDING

 ASPHALT

EXISTING

BUILDING

E

X

I

S

T

I

N

G

B

U

I

L

D

I

N

G

GRAVEL

EXISTING

BUILDING

PARCEL 1

829,146 SQ. FT.

19.03 ACRES

C
H

A
I
N

 
L
I
N

K
 
F

E
N

C
E

WIRE FENCE

EXISTING

BOCCE COURT

EXISTING

BUILDING

E

X

I
S

T
I
N

G

C

O

V

E

R

E

D

B

A

R

3
5

.
9

'

23.9'

EXISTING

BUILDING

EXISTING

CONCRETE

FUTSAL

COURTS

CONC.

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

WET

W
ETWETW

ET

WET WET

WET

W
ET

WET

W
ET

W

E
T

WET

WETWET

WET
WET

WET
WET

W
E

T

W
ET

WET

WET

WET

WET

WET WET

W

E

T

WET

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W

E

T

WET
WET

W
ET

WET
WET

WET

WET

W

E
T

W
E

T

WET
WET

WET
WET

WET
WET

W

E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T
W

E
T

W
E

T

W

E

T

WET
WET WET WET W

E
T

W

E
T

W

E

T

WET

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E
T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W
E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E
T

W

E
T

W

E

T

W

E
T

W

E
T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W
E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W
E

T

WET

WET

W
E

T
W

E
T

W
E

T

WET

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E
T

W

E

T

W

E
T

W

E
T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W
E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

WET
W

E
T

W

E
T

W

E

T

W

E

T

WET

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T
W

E
T

W
E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T
W

E
T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T
W

E
T

W
E

T
W

E
T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W

E

T

WET
WET

WET

W
E

T

W
E

T

WET

WET

W
E

T

W

E

T

W
ET

WET

WET

WET

ROPE NET

ROPE NET

GRAVEL

GRAVEL

GRAVEL

G
A

T
E

C
A

B
L
E

G
A

T
E

G
A

T
E

DRIVE

OPENING

ASPHALT

DRIVE

ASPHALT

DRIVE

 ASPHALT

 ASPHALT

BURIED

12" CULVERT

12" CULVERT

CONC.

TREE LINE

WOODLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

PARCEL 2

435,759 SQ. FT.

10.00 ACRES

10"CR

2"F

18"P

SP
SP

18"M

12"M

SP

30"O

18"M

15"M

SP

12"M

SP

8"M

6"M

8"E

36"O

18"O

40"O

10"M

10"M

SP

SP

3"SP

3"F

15"SP

8"M 18"E
4"M

SA

10"W

3"O

6"O

15"O

30"O

36"O

24"M

15"M

24"O

30"O

SA

SA

12"H

15"M

18"

SA

SA

SA

SA

36"M

15"M

36"O

SA

SA

60"O

SA

SA

24"M

12"CR

6"CR

15"A

8"H

24"H

15"O

SA

SA

SA

SA

SIGN

10"MU

60"M

60"M

8"B

44"M

10"B

16"B

40"B

10"B

12"B

16"A

12"MU

24"B

24"B

18"B

8"H

8"H

30"M

18"O

8"B

24"B

8"O

12"B

8"H

12"A

40"B

50"B

8"O

10"H

8"O

8"O

12"O

8"O

10"H

8"B

14"O

8"O

12"O

10"B

10"B

10"M

8"B

14"B

8"H

8"H

8"H

8"H

8"H

10"H

8"H

10"H

10"H

10"H

10"H

14"O

10"H

8"H

16"O

16"A

8"M

10"M

8"M

12"M

8"H

8"H

8"H

8"H

16"O

12"B

10"HW

8"H

8"H

12"O

24"H

14"O

14"CH

12"M

10"H

24"H

22"H

8"E

26"C

10"E

14"CH

8"M

16"M

18"M

10"O

48"M

14"M

8"M

8"M

12"M

10"M

8"M

12"B

12"M

10"B

10"CH

10"A

36"O

8"B

8"B

12"H

8"O

60"M

48"M

60"M

10"M

10"B

22"O

8"H

16"M

8"MU

42"O

8"O

8"O

18"O

10"E

16"E

16"E

20"E

8"O

12"O

72"O

8"O

20"O

8"O

8"O

34"O

14"E

60"O

8"O

8"O

SIGN

W

W

W

W

W

W

WELL

SAN. CO (TYP.)

PRESSURE

TANK

6"=753.08

(PLAN)

6"=759.06

(PLAN)

6"=755.33

(PLAN)

CO EL=760.39

6"=747.21

(PLAN)

CO EL=760.33

6"=748.08

(PLAN)

CO EL=760.79

6"=752.53

(PLAN)

CO EL=759.36

6"=753.45

(PLAN)

CO EL=758.25

6"=754.43

(PLAN)

CO EL =761.86

6"=751.66

(PLAN)

CO EL=764.16

6"=750.81

(PLAN)

EXISTING

PARKING

AREA

EXISTING

PARKING AREA

EXISTING

PARKING

AREA

EXISTING

PARKING

AREA

EXISTING

PARKING

AREA

EX 6" PVC

SANITARY SEWER

ELEC

PED

ELEC

BOX

ELEC

PED

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER PER

PLAN FROM OWNER.  WATER MAIN

PER SKETCH FROM OWNER.

15"M

WETLAND

18"C

REMOVE TREES

SAWCUT AND REMOVE ASPHALT.

REPLACE TO MATCH EXISTING

DRIVEWAY SECTION.

SAWCUT AND REMOVE ASPHALT

TO INSTALL STORM SEWER.

MATCH EXISTING DRIVEWAY

SECTION WHEN RESTORING.

REMOVE

TREES (TYP.)

REMOVE

ASPHALT

REMOVE

ASPHALT

COORDINATE WITH UTILITY TO

REMOVE SERVICE TO BUILDING.

REMOVE PEDESTAL.

RELOCATE FENCE

NOTE: TREE CONTRACTOR TO MEET WITH OWNER PRIOR

TO ANY CONSTRUCTION ON SITE TO REVIEW WORK

LIMITS AND EXISTING TREES IN AND ADJACENT TO WORK

LIMITS TO VERIFY WHICH TREES ARE TO BE REMOVED.

PROTECT ALL TREES THAT WILL REMAIN.

REMOVE MASONRY

STRUCTURE AND

FOUNDATION

REMOVE EXISTING PAVILION

STRUCTURE AND BAR

REMOVE WOOD STAGE,

FOUNDATION AND

CONCRETE SLAB

SAWCUT AND

REMOVE ASPHALT.

REMOVE

REMOVE

REMOVE

ASPHALT

REMOVE 4,067 SF OF

CONCRETE AND ASPHALT

ON PARCEL 2. COVER WITH

MIN. 4" THICK TOPSOIL,

SEED AND STABILIZE WITH

EROSION MAT

(WIS DOT CLASS I, TYPE B)

COVER 20,836 SF OF EXISTING GRAVEL ON

PARCEL 2 WITH MIN. 4" THICK TOPSOIL,

SEED AND STABILIZE WITH EROSION MAT

(WIS DOT CLASS I, TYPE B)

COVER 2,977 SF OF EXISTING GRAVEL ON

PARCEL 1 WITH MIN. 4" THICK TOPSOIL,

SEED AND STABILIZE WITH EROSION MAT

(WIS DOT CLASS I, TYPE B)

INSTALL DOUBLE ROW OF SILT FENCE

AND A SINGLE LINE OF FOUR-FOOT

ORANGE CONSTRUCTION FENCE (TYP.)

ESTIMATED DISTURBED

= 27,880 SF (0.64 AC)

©
 
C

O
P

Y
R

I
G

H
T

 
2

0
2

1

REVISIONS

P
E
G

 
J
O

B
 
N

o
.

P
E
G

 
P
M

D
A
T
E

S
C
A
L
E

PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    

w
w

w
.
p

i
n

n
a

c
l
e

-
e

n
g

r
.
c

o
m

WISCONSIN OFFICE:
20725 WATERTOWN ROAD SUITE 100

BROOKFIELD, WI 53186
(262) 754-8888

ENGINEERING I NATURAL RESOURCES I SURVEYING

PLAN I DESIGN I DELIVER

CHICAGO I MILWAUKEE : NATIONWIDE

w w w . p i n n a c l e - e n g r . c o m

FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

CROATIAN PARK PAVILION

LEGEND OF SYMBOLS & ABBREVIATIONS

HANDICAP STALL

MAIL BOX

TELEPHONE MARKER

CABLE TV RISER/BOX

BUSH

TRAFFIC SIGNAL

GAS MARKER

CONIFER TREE

SPOT ELEVATION

DECIDUOUS TREE

DOWN SPOUT

TELEPHONE MANHOLE/VAULT

ELECTRIC MANHOLE/VAULT

ELECTRIC METER/PEDESTAL

GAS METER

GAS VALVE

GUY WIRE

UTILITY POLE

HYDRANT

CATCH BASIN

STORM INLET

SANITARY MANHOLE

STORM MANHOLE

IRON PIPE

IRON REBAR/ROD

SECTION MONUMENT

MAG NAIL

WATER MAIN

GAS MAIN

CABLE TELEVISION

STORM SEWER

SANITARY SEWER

TELEPHONE LINE

ELECTRIC LINE

OVERHEAD WIRES

WATER VALVE

FLOOD LIGHT

AIR CONDITIONING UNIT

WELL

CROSS CUT

BENCH MARK

CABLE TV MANHOLE/VAULT

CLEANOUT

UNKNOWN PEDESTAL

FIBER OPTIC MANHOLE/VAULT

FIBER OPTIC MARKER

FIBER OPTIC LINE

W W

FLAG POLE

BOLLARD

UNKNOWN MANHOLE

SPRINKLER VALVE

WETLANDS

TRANSFORMER

TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

DUMPSTER

WETLAND SYMBOL

DIRECTIONAL ARROW

BASKETBALL HOOP

SIGN

LIGHT POLE

CL. =CENTERLINE

CONC. =CONCRETE

EL. =ELEVATION

EXT. =EXISTING

INV. =INVERT

MON. =MONUMENT

P.O.B. =POINT OF BEGINNING

P.O.C. =POINT OF COMMENCEMENT

R.O.W =RIGHT OF WAY

SEC. =SECTION

SQ. FT. =SQUARE FEET

W/ =WITH

(R) =RECORDED AS

(D) =DEEDED AS

STANDPIPE

VENT

WATER SHUT OFF

TREE LINE

NO ACCESS

WATER MANHOLE

DEMOLITION PLAN

1
"
=

6
0

'

0
4

/
1

9
/
2

0
2

2

A
S

Z

2
0

6
3

.
0

0
B

D
E
M

O
L
I
T
I
O

N
 
P

L
A

N

NORTH

SHEET

C-200

1   ADDENDUM #1   5/9/2022

2   CITY COMMENTS   11/2/2023

1" = 60'0 120'

 GRAPHICAL SCALE (FEET)

PARCEL 2:

2001 IMPERVIOUS = 16,516 SF
2023 IMPERVOUS = 42,505 SF
NET INCREASE = 25,989 SF

ALLOWABLE INCREASE WITHOUT STORM WATER REQUIREMENTS = 4,999 SF
AMOUNT OF IMPERVIOUS NEEDED TO BE REDUCED ON PARCEL 2 = 25,989 SF - 4,999 SF = 20,990 SF
PROPOSED REMOVAL = 4,067 SF + 20,836 SF = 24,903 SF

3   CITY COMMENTS   1/23/2024

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
THESE PLANS AND DESIGNS ARE COPYRIGHT PROTECTED AND MAY NOT BE USED IN WHOLE OR IN PART WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
?

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
TF

AutoCAD SHX Text
w

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
S



EX 2" COPPER WM

G
A

T
E

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

3
6
"
 
R

.
C

.
P

2
4
"
 
C

.
M

.
P

.

1
6
"
 
C

.
M

.
P

.

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

(
V

A
R

I
A

B
L

E
 
P

U
B

L
I
C

 
R

.
O

.
W

.
)

GRAVEL

GRAVEL

50'

5
0
'

5
0
'

BUILDING SETBACK LINE

SIGN

SIGN

S
O

U
T

H
 
7
6
T

H
 
S

T
R

E
E

T

ASPHALT

DRIVE

 
E

D
G

E
 
O

F
 
P

A
V

E
M

E
N

T

EXISTING

BUILDING

EXISTING

BUILDING

 ASPHALT

EXISTING

BUILDING

E

X

I

S

T

I

N

G

B

U

I

L

D

I

N

G

GRAVEL

EXISTING

BUILDING

PARCEL 1

829,146 SQ. FT.

19.03 ACRES

C
H

A
I
N

 
L
I
N

K
 
F

E
N

C
E

WIRE FENCE

1
2
3
.
6
'

408.9'

S
0
0
°
2
4
'
4
2
"
E
 
 

6
6
2
.
2
5
'

N89°17'59"E  1252.15'

N
0
0
°
2
6
'
0
1
"
W
 
 

6
6
2
.
2
5
'

S89°17'59"W  
1251.77'

EXISTING

BOCCE COURT

EXISTING

BUILDING

3
5
.
9
'

23.9'

EXISTING

BUILDING

EXISTING

CONCRETE

FUTSAL

COURTS

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

WET

W
ETWETWET

WET WET

WET

W
ET

WET

WET

W
E

T

WET

WETWET
WET

WETWETWET

W
ET

WET

WET

WET

WET

WET

WET
WET

W

E

T

WET

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W

E

T

WET
W

ET

WET
WET

WET
WET

WET

W

E
T

W
E

T

WET
WET

WET
WET

WET
WET

W

E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W

E

T

WET
WET WET WET

W

E
T

W

E
T

W

E

T

WET

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E
T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W
E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E
T

W

E
T

W

E

T

W

E
T

W

E
T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W
E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W
E

T

WET

WET

W
E

T
W

E
T

W
E

T

WET

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E
T

W

E

T

W

E
T

W

E
T

W

E
T

W
E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W
E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

WET
W

E
T

W

E
T

W

E

T

W

E

T

WET

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T
W

E
T

W
E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T
W

E
T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T
W

E
T

W
E

T
W

E
T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W

E

T

WET
WET

W
ET

W
E

T

W
ET

WET

WET

W
E

T

W

E

T

WET

WET

WET

WET

ROPE NET

ROPE NET

GRAVEL

GRAVEL

GRAVEL

G
A

T
E

C
A

B
L
E

G
A

T
E

G
A

T
E

DRIVE

OPENING

ASPHALT

DRIVE

ASPHALT

DRIVE

 ASPHALT

BURIED

12" CULVERT

12" CULVERT

CONC.

WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

50' WETLAND

SETBACK

30' WETLAND

BUFFER

S
0
0
°
2
4
'
4
2
"
E
 
 

3
4
8
.
1
0
'

N
0
0
°
2
6
'
0
1
"
W
 
 

3
4
8
.
1
0
'

S89°17'59"W  
1251.90'

PARCEL 2

435,759 SQ. FT.

10.00 ACRES

5

0

'

3

0

'

30' WETLAND

BUFFER

50' WETLAND

SETBACK

ARTIFICIAL WETLAND PER

WDNR (EXE-SE-2022-41-00932)

DATED MARCH 24, 2022.

USACOE NO JURISDICTION

(2022-00384-AJK) DATED

MARCH 28, 2022.

30'

50'

30' WETLAND

BUFFER

50' WETLAND

SETBACK

SIGN

50'

30'

50'50' WETLAND

SETBACK

30' WETLAND

BUFFER

3

0

'

5
0
'

SIGN

W

W

W

W

W

W

WELL

SAN. CO (TYP.)

PRESSURE

TANK

6"=753.08

(PLAN)

6"=759.06

(PLAN)

6"=755.33

(PLAN)

CO EL=760.39

6"=747.21

(PLAN)

CO EL=760.33

6"=748.08

(PLAN)

CO EL=760.79

6"=752.53

(PLAN)

CO EL=759.36

6"=753.45

(PLAN)

CO EL=758.25

6"=754.43

(PLAN)

CO EL =761.86

6"=751.66

(PLAN)

CO EL=764.16

6"=750.81

(PLAN)

ARTIFICIAL WETLAND PER WDNR (EXE-SE-2022-41-00932) DATED MARCH 24, 2022.

USACOE NO JURISDICTION (2022-00384-AJK) DATED MARCH 28, 2022.

EXISTING

PARKING

AREA

EXISTING

PARKING AREA

EXISTING

PARKING

AREA

EXISTING

PARKING

AREA

EXISTING

PARKING

AREA

EX 6" PVC

SANITARY SEWER

ELEC

PED

ELEC

BOX

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER PER

PLAN FROM OWNER.  WATER MAIN

PER SKETCH FROM OWNER.

WETLAND

F
U

T
U

R
E

 B
O

C
C

E

C
O

U
R

T

M

I

T

I

G

A

T

I

O

N

A

R

E

A

 

(

0

.

0

9

 

A

C

)

POND AREA FROM ELEVATION 757

TO POND BOTTOM ELEVATION 755.2

TO BE SEEDED WITH AGRECOL

STORMWATER/BIOINFILTRATION

SEED MIX (SEE SHEET C-600).

PROPOSED CONSERVATION

EASEMENT AREA #4

PROPOSED CONSERVATION

EASEMENT AREA #2

PROPOSED CONSERVATION

EASEMENT AREA #1

5
8
.
6
'

294.2'

PROP.

ASPHALT

281.1'

2
0
'

80'

215.2'

PROPOSED CONSERVATION

EASEMENT AREA #3

5
0
'

PROPOSED

BUILDING

ADDITION

1
8
'

2
1
.
5
'

32.2'

PROPOSED

PAVILION

PROPOSED

CONCRETE

PROPOSED FENCE TO CONNECT TO EXISTING

FENCE (SAME MATERIAL AS EXISTING)

4
7
.
8
'

4.6'

3
8
6
.
5
'

NRSE APPROVED AT CITY OF

FRANKLIN COMMON COUNCIL

ON JUNE 15, 2021.

6

0

'

2

0

'

POSSIBLE FUTURE

BUILDING EXPANSION

3
0
'

30'

PROPOSED

BRICK FIRE

PIT AREA

PROPOSED 30"

MOUNTABLE

CURB AND

GUTTER

41.6'

7

6

0

7

6

0

7
6

0

7
6
0

759

7
5
7

7
5

9

7
5

8

7
5

7

7
5

6

7
5
6

7
5
7

7
5
8

7
5
9

7
6
0

7
6
0

7
6
4

764

7
6
5

7
6
4

7

6

4

7
6
4

7

6

5

7
6
5

7

6

5

7
6
5

7

6

5

7
6
5

7
6
4

7

6

3

7

6

2

7
6
1

7
6
4

7
6
3 7

6
2

7

6

5

7

6

5

7

5

9

7

5

9

MITIGATION AREA NOTE: REMOVE EXISTING SOD AND PLACE 4 INCHES

OF TOPSOIL OVER THE AREA TO BE PLANTED.  INCORPORATE THE NEW

TOPSOIL INTO THE TOP TWO INCHES OF THE SUBSOIL.  SEED THE AREA

AND COVER WITH A LIGHT STRAW MULCH AND WATER UNTIL THE

SEEDLINGS ARE ESTABLISHED.  THE MITIGATION AREA SHALL CONSIST

OF PLANTINGS OF NATIVE GRASSES USING THE FOLLOWING MIX OF THE

NATIVE GRASSES : BOUTELOVA CURTIPENDULA (2 LBS/AC), CLYMUS

CANADENSIS (6 LBS/AC) AND SCHIZACHYRIUM SCOPARIUM (4 LBS/AC).

NOTE: STORM WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN FOR THE

PAVILION INCLUDED THE FUTURE BOCCE COURT WORK

AND THE POSSIBLE FUTURE 20' BUILDING EXPANSION.

PROPOSED

STEPS

PROPOSED

BUILDING

7

6

0

7

5

5

26

34

36

13

2

4

'

20'

9
'

(TYP.)

15'

24'

24'

1

3

'

©
 
C

O
P

Y
R

I
G

H
T

 
2

0
2

1

REVISIONS

P
E
G

 
J
O

B
 
N

o
.

P
E
G

 
P
M

D
A
T
E

S
C
A
L
E

PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    

w
w

w
.
p

i
n

n
a

c
l
e

-
e

n
g

r
.
c

o
m

WISCONSIN OFFICE:
20725 WATERTOWN ROAD SUITE 100

BROOKFIELD, WI 53186
(262) 754-8888

ENGINEERING I NATURAL RESOURCES I SURVEYING

PLAN I DESIGN I DELIVER

CHICAGO I MILWAUKEE : NATIONWIDE

w w w . p i n n a c l e - e n g r . c o m

1" = 60'0 120'

 GRAPHICAL SCALE (FEET)

FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

CROATIAN PARK PAVILION

LEGEND OF SYMBOLS & ABBREVIATIONS

HANDICAP STALL

MAIL BOX

TELEPHONE MARKER

CABLE TV RISER/BOX

BUSH

TRAFFIC SIGNAL

GAS MARKER

CONIFER TREE

SPOT ELEVATION

DECIDUOUS TREE

DOWN SPOUT

TELEPHONE MANHOLE/VAULT

ELECTRIC MANHOLE/VAULT

ELECTRIC METER/PEDESTAL

GAS METER

GAS VALVE

GUY WIRE

UTILITY POLE

HYDRANT

CATCH BASIN

STORM INLET

SANITARY MANHOLE

STORM MANHOLE

IRON PIPE

IRON REBAR/ROD

SECTION MONUMENT

MAG NAIL

WATER MAIN

GAS MAIN

CABLE TELEVISION

STORM SEWER

SANITARY SEWER

TELEPHONE LINE

ELECTRIC LINE

OVERHEAD WIRES

WATER VALVE

FLOOD LIGHT

AIR CONDITIONING UNIT

WELL

CROSS CUT

BENCH MARK

CABLE TV MANHOLE/VAULT

CLEANOUT

UNKNOWN PEDESTAL

FIBER OPTIC MANHOLE/VAULT

FIBER OPTIC MARKER

FIBER OPTIC LINE

W W

FLAG POLE

BOLLARD

UNKNOWN MANHOLE

SPRINKLER VALVE

WETLANDS

TRANSFORMER

TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

DUMPSTER

WETLAND SYMBOL

DIRECTIONAL ARROW

BASKETBALL HOOP

SIGN

LIGHT POLE

CL. =CENTERLINE

CONC. =CONCRETE

EL. =ELEVATION

EXT. =EXISTING

INV. =INVERT

MON. =MONUMENT

P.O.B. =POINT OF BEGINNING

P.O.C. =POINT OF COMMENCEMENT

R.O.W =RIGHT OF WAY

SEC. =SECTION

SQ. FT. =SQUARE FEET

W/ =WITH

(R) =RECORDED AS

(D) =DEEDED AS

STANDPIPE

VENT

WATER SHUT OFF

TREE LINE

NO ACCESS

WATER MANHOLE

PROPOSED SITE PLAN

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

PARCEL 1 (PROJECT SITE):

The North 662.25 feet of the West 1/2 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 22, Township 5 North,

Range 21 East, City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

Address:  9100 South 76th Street, Franklin, Wisconsin

Parcel No: 884-9995-000

PARCEL 2:

The South 348.10 feet of the North 1010.35 feet of the West 1/2 of the Southwest 1/4 of

Section 22, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

Address: 9220 South 76th Street, Franklin, Wisconsin

Parcel No: 884-9996-000

GENERAL NOTES

1. Boundary and Survey per Plat of Survey by Metropolitan Survey Service, Inc. on September 10, 2015, Survey No. 105938. Existing

conditions verified and updated by Pinnacle Engineering on June 18, 2020.

2. Vertical Datum: National Geodetic Vertical Datum of 1929 (NGVD29).  Contours are shown at a 1' intervals. Reference Benchmark: Concrete

monument with brass cap at the northwest corner of the Southwest 1/4 Section 22, Town 5 North, Range 21 East, Elevation = 763.09.

3. Wetlands delineated by Wetland & Waterways Consulting, LLC on JUNE 10, 2020.

4. Trees Inventory completed by Wetland & Waterways Consulting, LLC on JUNE 22, 2020.

A= ASH E= ELM M= MAPLE SN= SNAG

B= BOX ELDER F= FIR MU= MULBERRY SP= SPRUCE

C= COTTONWOOD H= HICKORY O= OAK ST= STUMP

CH= CHERRY HW= HAWTHORN P= PINE W= WALNUT

CR= CRAB L= LOCUST SA= SAPLING

5. Assuming 9'x18' parking stalls the gravel parking areas hold approximately 190 cars.

1
"
=

6
0

'

A
S

Z

2
0

6
3

.
0

0
B

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
S

I
T
E
 
P

L
A

N

NORTH

SITE DATA TABLE

Existing impervious in 2001:
Parcel 1 property = 1.60 acres

Existing impervious in 2023 prior to the proposed work on this plan set:
Parcel 1 property = 2.38 acres

Proposed impervious after removals, pavilion, fire pit, bocce court, and possible
building expansion:
Parcel 1 property = 2.47 acres

PROJECT AREAS

Estimated Disturbed area for current project (pavilion and pond) = 1.76 acres

SHEET

0
4

/
1

9
/
2

0
2

2

C-300

1   ADDENDUM #1   5/9/2022

2   CITY COMMENTS   11/2/2023

3   CITY COMMENTS   1/23/2024

PARKING NOTE:

THE PARKING LINES IN RED ARE TO SHOW HOW MANY PARKING STALLS ARE AVAILABLE

ON THE GRAVEL AREAS WITHIN THE NORTH PROPERTY OF THE PARK.  STALLS SHOWN

ARE 9' X 20'.  THERE ARE 109 STALLS AVAILABLE WITHIN THE EXISTING GRAVEL AREAS.

PAVILION = 299 PERSON CAPACITY

PER FRANKLIN UDO 1 SPACE PER 0.25/PERSON NOT SEATED PLACES OR 0.30/PERSON

FOR SEATED FOR PUBLIC ASSEMBLY

299 X 0.25 = 75 SPACES OR 299 X 0.30 = 90 SPACES REQUIRED.  

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
THESE PLANS AND DESIGNS ARE COPYRIGHT PROTECTED AND MAY NOT BE USED IN WHOLE OR IN PART WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
?

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
TF

AutoCAD SHX Text
w

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
S



M

50"O

15"A

40"O

24"O

15"A

15"M

40"C

12"A

36"O

18"P

24"P

10"P

15"P

15"SP

30"M

15"SP

24"C

50"O

3"M

30"O

50"O

18"E

12"M

18"M

28"O

60"O

36"O

24"O

12"A

12"MU

18"SN

30"O

18"E

12"A

30"M

8"H
18"M

18"C

2"F

SP

12"A

48"O

18"A

24"CH

15"C

15"M

12"E

18"H

24"CR

40"O

36"O

18"M

30"O

30"O

50"O

24"O

36"O

6"E

24"O

30"O

18"M

12"C

15"C

15"CR

15"O

30"O

15"C

18"C

18"C

24"O

24"O

50"O

40"O

40"O

40"O

10"H

8"O

15"O

12"O

8"O

10"E

15"C

12"H

30"O

36"O

24"M

SPP

12"H

18"M

24"C

18"A

10"CR

24"L

10"CR

20"M

18"M

12"L

ST

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

(
V

A
R

I
A

B
L
E

 
P

U
B

L
I
C

 
R

.
O

.
W

.
)

GRAVEL

S
O

U
T

H
 
7
6
T

H
 
S

T
R

E
E

T

ASPHALT

DRIVE

 
E

D
G

E
 
O

F
 
P

A
V

E
M

E
N

T

EXISTING

BUILDING

EXISTING

BUILDING

 ASPHALT

EXISTING

BUILDING

E

X

I

S

T

I

N

G

B

U

I

L

D

I

N

G

7

5

4

7

5

4

7

5

3

7

5

4

7

5

5

7

5

6

7

5

7

7

5

8

7

5

9

7

6

0

7

6

0

7

6

2

7

6

3

7

6

4

7

6

5

7

6

1

7

6

2

7

6

3

7

6

4

7

6

5

7

6

1

7

6

1

7
6
3

7

6

2

7

6

1

7
6
0

7

5

9

7

5

8

7

6

4

7

6

4

763

7

6

3

EXISTING

BOCCE COURT

EXISTING

BUILDING

WET
WETWETWET

W
ET

W
ET

WET

WET
WET

W
E

T

W
E

T

W

E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

WET

WETW
ET

WET

WET
WET

WET

WET
WET

WET

WET

W

E
T

W
E

T

W
E

T

WET
WET

WET
WET

WET
WET

WET
WET

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T
W

E
T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W

E

T

WET
WET

WET WET WET
WET

W

E
T

W

E
T

W

E

T

W

E

T

WET

WET

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E
T

W

E
T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W
E

T

WET

WET

WET

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T
W

E
T

W
E

T
W

E
T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T
W

E
T

W
E

T
W

E
T

W
E

T
W

E
T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W

E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

WET
WET

W
ET

WET

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
ET

WET

WET

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W

E

T W
ET

WET
WET

WET

WET

W

E
T

DRIVE

OPENING

ASPHALT

DRIVE

7

6

1

7

6

2

WOODLAND

7

6

2

7

6

3

7

6

4

7

6

5

7

6

6

7
6
6

7

6

5

10"CR

2"F

18"P

SP
SP

18"M

12"M

SP

30"O

18"M

15"M

SP

12"M

SP

8"M

6"M

8"E

36"O

18"O

40"O

10"M

10"M

SP

SP

3"SP

3"F

15"SP

8"M 18"E
4"M

SA

10"W

3"O

6"O

15"O

30"O

36"O

24"M

15"M

24"O

30"O

SA

SA

12"H

15"M

18"

36"M

SA

SA

SA

24"M

8"H
SA

SA

SA

SA

8"O

10"H

8"B

8"B

14"B

8"H

8"H

8"H

8"H

10"H

8"H

10"H

10"H

10"H

10"H

14"O

10"H

8"H

16"O

16"A

8"M

10"M

8"M

12"M

8"H

8"H

8"H

16"O

12"B

10"HW

8"H

8"H

12"O

24"H

14"O

14"CH

12"M

10"H

22"H

8"E

26"C

10"E

14"CH

8"M

16"M

18"M

10"O

48"M

14"M

8"M

8"M

12"M

10"M

8"M

12"B

12"M

10"B

10"CH

10"A

36"O

8"B

8"B

12"H

8"O

60"M

48"M

10"M

10"B

22"O

8"H

16"M

8"MU

60"O

8"O

8"O

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

EXISTING

PARKING

AREA

EXISTING

PARKING

AREA

EXISTING

PARKING

AREA

15"M

7

6

6

7
6
6

7

6

5

7
6
4

7

6

0

7

6

1

7

6

3

7

6

5

7

6

4

7

6

4

18"C

X

760.78

X

760.80

INSTALL DOUBLE ROW OF SILT FENCE

AND A SINGLE LINE OF FOUR-FOOT

ORANGE CONSTRUCTION FENCE

X

754.7
2 M

A
T

C
H

X

760.52

INSTALL TURF

REINFORCEMENT MAT

MEDIUM RIPRAP

OVER GEOTEXTILE

FABRIC

POND AREA TO BE TOPSOILED

(MIN 4" THICK) AND SEEDED WITH

AGRECOL

STORMWATER/BIOINFILTRATION

SEED MIX AND STABILIZED (SEE

NATIVE SEEDING IN PROPOSED

POND NOTES).

MEDIUM RIPRAP

OVER GEOTEXTILE

FABRIC

1

0

'

PROPOSED POND

4:1

PEAK ELEVATIONS

1 YR = 756.63

2 YR = 756.86

10 YR = 757.40

100 YR = 758.66

ALL DISTURBED AREAS OTHER THAN

THE PROPOSED POND TO BE

TOPSOILED (MIN 4" THICK) SEEDED

AND STABILIZED WITH EROSION MAT

(WIS DOT CLASS I, TYPE B)

PROPOSED

PAVILION

ESTIMATED DISTURBED

= 75,021 SF (1.72 AC)

PROPOSED

CONTOUR (TYP.)

PROPOSED

BUILDING

ADDITION

PROPOSED

BUILDING

PROPOSED

CONCRETE

PROPOSED

ASPHALT

PROPOSED

FENCE

F
U

T
U

R
E

 B
O

C
C

E
 C

O
U

R
T

ALL DISTURBED AREAS TO BE

TOPSOILED

(MIN 4" THICK) SEEDED AND

STABILIZED WITH EROSION MAT

(WIS DOT CLASS I, TYPE B)

PROP. FIRE

PIT AREA

X

7
6
0
.8

8

M
A

T
C

H

X

7
6
0
.8

0

M
A

T
C

H

X
7

6

0

.

4

5

M

A

T

C

H

X

7
6
0
.
6
3

M
A

T
C

H

X

7
6
0
.
7
7

M
A

T
C

H

X

7
6
0
.
5
3

X

7
6
0
.
2
0

X

7
6
0
.
5
3

M
A

T
C

H

X

7
6
1
.
4
9

M
A

T
C

H

X

7
6
0
.
8
2

X

7
6
0
.
8
0

X

7
6
0
.
3
5

X

7
6
1
.
3
8

M
A

T
C

H

X

7
6
0
.
8
2

M
A

T
C

H

X

7
6
0
.
4
0

X

7
6
1
.
2
5

X

7
6
0
.
2
5

W

W

W

W

W

X

760.8
0

X

760.8
0

X

7

6

0

.

8

0

X

7
6
0
.
1
5

X7
6
0
.
8
0

P

O

S

S

I

B

L

E

 

F

U

T

U

R

E

B

U

I

L

D

I

N

G

 

E

X

P

A

N

S

I

O

N

7

6

0

7

6

0

7
6

0

7
6
0

759

7
5
7

7
5

9

7
5

8

7
5

7

7
5

6

7
5
6

7
5
7

7
5

8

7
5
9

7
6
0

7
6

0

7
6
4

764

7
6
5

7
6
4

7

6

4

7
6
4

7

6

5

7
6
5

7

6

5

7
6
5

7

6

5

7
6
5

7
6
4

7

6

3

7

6

2

7
6
1

7
6
4

7
6
3

7
6
2

7

6

5

7

6

5

7

5

9

7

5

9

NOTE:

SEE PROPOSED SITE PLAN (C-300) FOR GRADING

AND RESTORATION OF THE MITIGATION AREA AS

PART OF THE NATURAL RESOURCE SPECIAL

EXCEPTION APPROVAL (NRSE).

TYPE B INLET

PROTECTION

TYPE C INLET

PROTECTION

TYPE C INLET

PROTECTION

TYPE B INLET

PROTECTION

T

Y

P

E

 

B

 

I

N

L

E

T

P

R

O

T

E

C

T

I

O

N

GRATE=764.50

GRATE=760.30

GRATE=759.80

GRATE=760.07

GRATE=760.12

GRATE=758.70

12" INV=755.10

15" INV=756.40

15" INV=756.46

MATCH EXISTING GRAVEL

PARKING ELEVATIONS.

SHAPE GRAVEL AS

NEEDED TO DRAIN TO

THE CURB LINE.

ADDENDUM #1

NEW OR REPLACEMENT

ASPHALT SHALL BE 4" ASPHALT

ON 10" AGGREGATE BASE.

ADDENDUM #1

NEW OR

REPLACEMENT

ASPHALT SHALL BE

4" ASPHALT ON 10"

AGGREGATE BASE.

TRACKING PAD

(50'x14')

TRACKING PAD

(50'x14')

CONCRETE

WASHOUT

AREA (20'x20')

STOOP

=762.40

PROPOSED STORM WATER

ACCESS EASEMENT

X

761.36

X

760.3
0

7

6

0

FINAL GRADE CERTIFICATION OF THE POND

BY DESIGN ENGINEER AND APPROVED BY

THE CITY OF FRANKLIN IS REQUIRED FOR

FINAL APPROVAL OF THE POND.

754.9
 

7

5

5

X

INSTALL STRAW

WATTLE (TYP.)

INSTALL DOUBLE ROW OF SILT FENCE

AND A SINGLE LINE OF FOUR-FOOT

ORANGE CONSTRUCTION FENCE

INSTALL DOUBLE ROW OF SILT

FENCE AND A SINGLE LINE OF

FOUR-FOOT ORANGE

CONSTRUCTION FENCE

INSTALL A SINGLE

LINE OF FOUR-FOOT

ORANGE

CONSTRUCTION

FENCE

INSTALL A SINGLE

LINE OF FOUR-FOOT

ORANGE

CONSTRUCTION

FENCE

SEE SHEET C-200 FOR STABILIZATION AND

EROSION CONTROL FOR PARCEL 2.

INSTALL DOUBLE ROW OF SILT FENCE

AND A SINGLE LINE OF FOUR-FOOT

ORANGE CONSTRUCTION FENCE

INSTALL SINGLE ROW OF STRAW WATTLE

AND A SINGLE LINE OF FOUR-FOOT

ORANGE CONSTRUCTION FENCE

10' WIDE EMERGENCY

SPILLWAY ELEV=759.0

X
760.8

0

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

7

6

4

7

6

5

7

6

3

7

6

4

7

6

5

7

6

3

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

7

6

6

7
6
6

7

6

5

7
6
4

7

6

0

7

6

1

7

6

3

7

6

5

7

6

4

7

6

4

X

763.6
6

X

764.1
6

X

X

763.6
6

M
ATCH

764.1
6

M
ATC

H

MATCH EXISTING EDGE

OF BOCCE COURT

GRATE=764.50

X

765.50

X

X

X

X

765.50

765.20

765.20

765.40

X

763.1
4

M
ATC

H

X

7

6

2

.
8

6

M

A

T

C

H

X

764.73

X

7

6

4

.

6

7

X

7

6

4

.

5

7

X

7

6

4

.
3

0

X

7
6
4
.
4
0

X

7

6

5

.

2

0

X

7

6

5

.
5

5

X

7

6

5

.

4

0

X

7
6
5
.
6
8

X

7
6
5
.
6
8

X

7
6
5
.
7
4

X

7
6
5
.
7
4

X

766.00

X

X

765.90

X

765.78

X

7
6
5
.
8
5

X

X

765.91

X

7
6
5
.
8
2

X

7

6

5

.

8

5

X

7

6

5

.
8

2

X

7

6

5

.
8

5

X

7

6

5

.
8

3

X

7
6
5
.
8
0

X

7

6

5

.

8

3

X

7

6

5

.

8

7

X

7
6
5
.
9
0

X
7
6
5
.
7
8

E
X

IS
T.

D
O

O
R

765.92

X

766.00

X

X

7
6
5
.
8
7

X

765.93

M
ATC

H

X

765.90

X
765.90

X

766.00

X

7

6

5

.
8

6

X

7

6

5

.
8

2

X

7
6
5
.
7
9

X

7

6

5

.

8

2

X

7

6

5

.

8

5

X

X

7

6

5

.

8

1

7

6

5

.

8

5

X

765.91

X

766.00

X

X

7
6
5
.
8
4

7
6
5
.
8
1

X

766.00

X

766.00

X

X

X

X

766.00

766.00

X

766.00

X

765.90

X

X
X

765.90

766.00

X

7
6
5
.
8
6

X

765.78

X

7
6
5
.
6
8

X

7
6
5
.
9
6

X

7
6
6
.
0
0

E
X

IS
T.

D
O

O
R

765.40

X

765.29

M
A

TC
H

P
R

O
P

.

D
O

O
R

764.73

X

X
7
6
4
.
6
7

X

X

7
6
5
.
9
0

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

7
6
4

764

7
6
5

7
6
4

7

6

4

7
6
4

7

6

5

7
6
5

7

6

5

7
6
5

7

6

5

7
6
5

7
6
4

7

6

3

7

6

2

7
6
1

7
6
4

7
6
3

7
6
2

7

6

5

7

6

5

BU
ILD

IN
G

 FFE=766.00

STAG
E=768.00

FU
TU

R
E B

O
C

C
E C

O
U

R
T.

G
R

AD
IN

G
 IN

 C
LO

U
D

 IS

FU
TU

R
E

 G
R

A
D

IN
G

 F
O

R

B
O

C
C

E
 C

O
U

R
T W

O
R

K
.

W

W

W

W

©
 
C

O
P

Y
R

I
G

H
T

 
2

0
2

1

REVISIONS

P
E
G

 
J
O

B
 
N

o
.

P
E
G

 
P
M

D
A
T
E

S
C
A
L
E

PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    

w
w

w
.
p

i
n

n
a

c
l
e

-
e

n
g

r
.
c

o
m

WISCONSIN OFFICE:
20725 WATERTOWN ROAD SUITE 100

BROOKFIELD, WI 53186
(262) 754-8888

ENGINEERING I NATURAL RESOURCES I SURVEYING

PLAN I DESIGN I DELIVER

CHICAGO I MILWAUKEE : NATIONWIDE

w w w . p i n n a c l e - e n g r . c o m

FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

CROATIAN PARK PAVILION
GRADING & EROSION

CONTROL PLAN

1
"
=

4
0

'
/
1

"
=

2
0

'

0
4

/
1

9
/
2

0
2

2

A
S

Z

2
0

6
3

.
0

0
B

G
R

A
D

I
N

G
 
&

 
E
R

O
S

I
O

N
 
C

O
N

T
R

O
L
 
P

L
A

N

NOTE:

SEE DETAILS AND NOTES ON SHEETS  C-600 AND C-601.

SHEET

C-400

1" = 40'0 80'

 GRAPHICAL SCALE (FEET)

NORTH

1" = 20'0 40'

 GRAPHICAL SCALE (FEET)

NORTH

PAVILION DETAIL:

1   ADDENDUM #1   5/9/2022

2   CITY COMMENTS   11/2/2023

3   CITY COMMENTS   1/23/2024

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
THESE PLANS AND DESIGNS ARE COPYRIGHT PROTECTED AND MAY NOT BE USED IN WHOLE OR IN PART WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC



1
5
"
P

1
5
"
S

P

3
0
"
M

1
5
"
S

P

2
4
"
C

3
0
"
M

8
"
H

1
8

"
M

1
8
"
C

2
"
F

S
P

4
8
"
O

1
8
"
A

2
4
"
C

H

1
5
"
C

1
5
"
M

1
2
"
E

1
8
"
H

2
4
"
C

R

4
0

"
O

3
6
"
O

1
8

"
M

3
0

"
O

3
0
"
O

5
0
"
O

2
4

"
O

3
6
"
O

6
"
E

2
4
"
O

3
0

"
O

1
8
"
M

1
2

"
C

1
5
"
C

1
5
"
C

R

1
5
"
O

3
0
"
O

1
5
"
C

1
8

"
C

1
8

"
C

2
4
"
O

2
4
"
O

5
0

"
O

4
0
"
O

4
0
"
O

4
0

"
O

1
0
"
H

8
"
O

1
5
"
O

1
2
"
O

8
"
O

1
0

"
E

1
5
"
C

1
2

"
H

3
0
"
O

3
6

"
O

2
4
"
M

S
P

P

1
2
"
H

1
8
"
M

2
4
"
C

1
8

"
A

1
0

"
C

R

2
4

"
L

1
0
"
C

R

2
0

"
M

1
8
"
M

1
2
"
L

S
T

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T
W

E
T

W
E

T
W

E
T

W
E

T
W

E
T

W
E

T
W

E
T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W

E
T

W

E
T

W

E
T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T
W

E
T

W
E

T
W

E
T

W
E

T
W

E
T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T
W

E
T

W
E

T
W

E
T

W
E

T
W

E
T

W
E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W
E

T
W

E
T

W
E

T
W

E
T

W
E

T
W

E
T

W
E

T
W

E
T

W
E

T
W

E
T

W
E

T
W

E
T

W
E

T

W

E
T

W

E
T

W

E
T

W

E
T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T
W

E
T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W

E
T

W

E
T

W
E

T
W

E
T

W
E

T
W

E
T

W
E

T
W

E
T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T
W

E
T

W
E

T
W

E
T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

1
0
"
C

R

2
"
F

S
P

S
P

1
8
"
M

1
2
"
M

S
P

3
0
"
O

1
8
"
M

1
5
"
M

S
P

1
2
"
M

S
P

8
"
M

6
"
M

8
"
E

3
6
"
O

1
8

"
O

4
0
"
O

1
0
"
M

1
0

"
M

S
P

S
P

3
"
S

P

3
"
F

1
5
"
S

P

8
"
M

1
8
"
E

4
"
M

S
A

1
0
"
W

3
"
O

6
"
O

1
5

"
O

3
0
"
O

3
6
"
O

S
A

S
A

S
A

1
2
"
M

8
"
H

1
6
"
O

1
2
"
B

1
0
"
H

W

8
"
H

8
"
H

1
2
"
O

2
4
"
H

1
4
"
O

1
4

"
C

H

1
2

"
M

1
0

"
H

2
2
"
H

8
"
E

2
6
"
C

1
0

"
E

1
6
"
M

1
8

"
M

1
0

"
O

4
8

"
M

1
4
"
M

1
0
"
M

1
0

"
B

2
2

"
O

8
"
H

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

1
8

"
C

METAL ES #25

12" INV=755.10

102'-12" ADS

N-12 @ 0.10%

POND OCS #24

(24" DIA CB)

GRATE =758.70

12" INV =755.20

2.0" ORIFICE =755.20

5.0" ORIFICE =756.90

2.7'-8" PVC @ 1.11%

RD #1

90° VERT BEND

8" INV=762.75

PROPOSED

PAVILION

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

B
U

ILD
IN

G

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

PROPOSED

BUILDING

F
U

T
U

R
E

 
B

O
C

C
E

 
C

O
U

R
T

PROP. FIRE

PIT AREA

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

B
U

ILD
IN

G

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
 
B

O
C

C
E

 
C

O
U

R
T

CO EL=760.39

6"=747.21

(PLAN)

CO EL=760.33

6"=748.08

(PLAN)

CO EL=764.16

6"=750.81

(PLAN)

CO EL=761.86

6"=751.66

(PLAN)

EXIST. 2" COPPER WM

EXIST. 6" PVC

SANITARY SEWER

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER PER

PLAN FROM OWNER.  WATER MAIN

PER SKETCH FROM OWNER.

SAN. CO (TYP.)

45° BEND #2

8" INV=762.72

32.5'-8" PVC @ 1.05%

8" X 8" WYE #3

8" INV=762.38

2.6'-8" PVC @ 1.15%

RD #4

90° VERT BEND

8" INV=762.41

10.0'-8" PVC

@ 3.80%

45° BEND #5

8" INV=762.00

57.9'-8" PVC @ 1.97%

CB #6

GRATE=764.50

8" NE INV=760.86

8" S INV=760.86
108.0'-8" PVC @ 1.03%8" X 8" WYE #7

8" INV=759.75

17.3'-8" PVC @ 2.89%

8" X 8" TEE 14

8" INV=759.25

71.1'-8" PVC @ 2.30%

CB #18

GRATE=760.30

8" N INV=757.61

15" W INV=757.03

142.4'-15"

ADS N-12 @

0.26%

CB #19

GRATE=759.80

15" E INV=756.66

15" S INV=756.66

100.0'-15" ADS

N-12 @ 0.26%

METAL ES #20

15" INV=756.40

CB #21

GRATE=760.12

15" S INV=757.33

185.0'-15" ADS

N-12 @ 0.26%

CB #22

GRATE=760.07

15" N INV=756.85

15" S INV=756.85

150.0'-15" ADS

N-12 @ 0.26%

METAL ES #23

15" INV=756.46

RD #8

90° VERT BEND

8" INV=762.67

21.6'-8" PVC

@ 1.06%

45° BEND #9

8" INV=762.44

22.1'-8" PVC

@ 1.04%

8" X 8" TEE #10

8" INV=762.21

14.0'-8" PVC @ 11.29%

45° BEND #13

8" INV=760.63

31.5'-8" PVC

@ 2.79%

13.0'-8" PVC

@ 1.08%

45° BEND #12

8" INV=762.35

5.0'-8" PVC

@ 1.00%

RD #11

90° VERT BEND

8" INV=762.40

42.6'-8" PVC

@ 5.28%

8" X 8" TEE #16

8" INV=761.50

2.9'-8" PVC @ 1.03%

RD #17

90° VERT BEND

8" INV=761.53

24.0'-8" PVC

@ 1.04%

RD #15

90° VERT BEND

8" INV=761.75

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

2'

8

'

5

'

2
3
'

2
0
'

1

0

'

1

3

'

71'

69'

45° BEND

4" INV=758.85

45° BEND

4" INV=759.43

CLEANOUT & 45° BEND

CLEANOUT=763.0

4" INV=757.20

45° BEND

4" INV=756.27

COORDINATE

EXACT LOCATION

& ELEVATION

WITH INTERIOR

PLUMBER

4" INV=759.57

CONNECT TO EXIST.

6" SAN SEWER (WYE)

EXIST. 6" INV=751.07±

PROP. 4" INV=751.32±

PROPOSED 115 LF

SANITARY LATERAL

@ 7.17% 4" PVC

ASTM SDR 35

5
1
'

20'

COORDINATE EXACT

LOCATION & ELEVATION

WITH INTERIOR PLUMBER

2" INV=759.50

2" INV=759.10

2" INV=757.70

2" INV=757.40
2" INV=757.40

PROPOSED 106 LF

2" COPPER WATER LATERAL

PROP. 2" X 2" TEE

EXPOSE EXIST. 2" COPPER LINE TO VERIFY

EXACT LOCATION AND DEPTH.  EXIST.

WATER LOCATION SHOWN PER OWNER

RECORDS.  COORDINATE WITH OWNER TO

SHUT DOWN EXIST. WATER IN ORDER TO

INSTALL THE TEE.  INSTALL A CURB STOP &

SERVICE BOX ON LATERAL SOUTH OF TEE.

EXIST. 2" COPPER WATER LATERAL

TO BE DISCONNECTED, REMOVED

FROM THE BUILDING.  CRIMP END.

REMOVE FENCE TO

INSTALL STORM

SEWER AND

REPLACE IN KIND

©
 
C

O
P

Y
R

I
G

H
T

 
2

0
2

1

REVISIONS

P
E
G

 
J
O

B
 
N

o
.

P
E
G

 
P
M

D
A
T
E

S
C
A
L
E

PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    

w
w

w
.
p

i
n

n
a

c
l
e

-
e

n
g

r
.
c

o
m

WISCONSIN OFFICE:
20725 WATERTOWN ROAD SUITE 100

BROOKFIELD, WI 53186
(262) 754-8888

ENGINEERING I NATURAL RESOURCES I SURVEYING

PLAN I DESIGN I DELIVER

CHICAGO I MILWAUKEE : NATIONWIDE

w w w . p i n n a c l e - e n g r . c o m

FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

CROATIAN PARK PAVILION

UTILITY PLAN

1
"
=

2
0

'

0
4

/
1

9
/
2

0
2

2

A
S

Z

2
0

6
3

.
0

0
B

U
T
I
L
I
T
Y

 
P

L
A

N

NOTES:

1. SEE DETAILS AND NOTES ON SHEETS  C-600 AND C-601.

2. FOR RD 1, 4, 8, 11, 15 AND 17 DRAIN 6" DOWNSPOUTS INTO 8" VERTICAL DOWNSPOUT COLLECTOR.

SHEET

C-500

1" = 20'0 40'

 GRAPHICAL SCALE (FEET)

N
O

R
T
H

UTILITY NOTES
GENERAL:
1. WORK PERFORMED AND MATERIALS SUPPLIED SHALL CONFORM TO THE LATEST EDITION OF THE

STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR SEWER AND WATER CONSTRUCTION IN WISCONSIN (STANDARD
SPECIFICATIONS) AND THE WISCONSIN ADMINISTRATIVE CODE SPS 382.

2. CONTACT DIGGERS HOTLINE 3 DAYS PRIOR TO BEGINNING WORK. COORDINATE ALL UTILITY WORK
WITH THE OWNER PRIOR TO BEGINNING WORK. UTILITY CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR LEVELING
ALL TRENCH SPOIL UNLESS OTHERWISE DIRECTED BY OWNER.

3. BEDDING MATERIAL SHALL BE CRUSHED STONE CHIPS PER STANDARD SPEC SECTION 8.43.2(A).
BACKFILL UNDER, AND WITHIN 5 FEET OF CONCRETE AND PAVED AREAS SHALL BE CRUSHED ROAD
GRAVEL PER TABLE 39 SECTION 8.43.7. IN AREAS FIVE FEET OUTSIDE OF PAVED AREAS, SPOIL
BACKFILL MEETING SECTION 8.43.5 CAN BE USED.

4. THE SANITARY SEWER LATERAL, WATER LATERAL AND STORM SEWER SHALL BE INSTALLED WITH A
TRACER WIRE CONSISTING OF AN INSULATED AWS #12 COPPER SOLID CORE WIRE TAPED TO THE
LATERAL/MAIN. THIS IS IN ACCORDANCE WITH SPS382.30 11(H). LATERALS SHALL HAVE A TRACER
WIRE ATTACHED FROM THE MAINLINE TO A POINT FIVE FEET AWAY FROM THE BUILDING. THE
TRACER WIRE SHALL BE DAYLIGHTED AT THIS POINT USING A VALVCO CATHODIC PROTECTION TEST
STATION MODEL NO. 253TM301800.1PT.

5. SANITARY SEWER PIPE MATERIALS SHALL BE PVC ASTM D-3034 SDR35. JOINTS SHALL BE MADE BY THE
USE OF AN ELASTOMERIC SEAL CONFORMING TO ASTM D3212.

6. WATER LATERAL SHALL BE TYPE K COPPER.

7. STORM SEWER SHALL BE ADS N-12 WITH WT JOINTS OR PVC ASTM D-3034 SDR35. PVC JOINTS SHALL BE
MADE BY THE USE OF AN ELASTOMERIC SEAL CONFORMING TO ASTM D3212. PIPE MATERIAL IS NOTED
ON THE PLANS.

8. STORM SEWER CATCH BASINS SHALL BE A MINIMUM 48” DIAMETER PRECAST CONCRETE.  24" SUMPS.

9. ALL END SECTIONS SHALL BE METAL END SECTION FOR ADS PIPE.

10. THE UTILITY CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL INLET PROTECTION ON ALL CATCH BASINS PER THE
DETAILS ON THE PLANS.  THE PROTECTION SHALL BE REMOVED AND DISPOSED OF BY THE UTILITY
CONTRACTOR UPON THE SITE BEING STABILIZED AND AT THE DIRECTION OF THE OWNER.

1   ADDENDUM #1   5/9/2022

2   CITY COMMENTS   11/2/2023

3   CITY COMMENTS   1/23/2024

AutoCAD SHX Text
THESE PLANS AND DESIGNS ARE COPYRIGHT PROTECTED AND MAY NOT BE USED IN WHOLE OR IN PART WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC



5
0
"
O

2
4
"
O

1
5
"
A

1
5
"
M

4
0
"
C

3
6
"
O

1
8
"
P

2
4
"
P

1
0
"
P

1
5
"
P

1
5
"
S

P

3
0
"
M

1
5
"
S

P

2
4
"
C

5
0
"
O

3
"
M

3
0
"
O

5
0
"
O

1
8
"
E

1
2
"
M

1
8
"
M

2
8
"
O

6
0
"
O

3
6
"
O

2
4
"
O

1
2
"
A

1
2
"
M

U

1
8
"
S

N

3
0
"
O

1
8
"
E

1
2
"
A

3
0
"
M

8
"
H

1
8
"
M

1
8
"
C

2
"
F

S
P

1
2
"
A

4
8
"
O

1
8
"
A

2
4
"
C

H

1
5
"
C

1
5
"
M

1
2
"
E

1
8
"
H

2
4
"
C

R

4
0
"
O

3
6
"
O

1
8
"
M

3
0
"
O

3
0
"
O

3
6
"
O

3
0
"
O

1
8
"
M

1
2
"
C

1
5
"
C

1
5
"
C

1
8
"
C

1
8
"
C

2
4
"
O

1
5
"
C

1
2
"
H

3
0
"
O

3
6
"
O

2
4
"
M

S
P

P

1
2
"
H

S
T

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W

E

T

W

E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T
W

E
T

W
E

T
W

E
T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W
E

T

W

E

T

W

E
T

W

E

T

2
"
F

1
8
"
P

2
4
"
M

1
5
"
M

2
4
"
O

3
0
"
O

S
A

S
A

1
2
"
H

1
5
"
M

S
A

S
A

S
A

S
A

S
A

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

1
5
"
M

1
8
"
C

2.7'-8" PVC @ 1.11%

RD #1

90° VERT BEND

8" INV=762.75

PROPOSED

PAVILION

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

B
U

ILD
IN

G

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

PROPOSED

BUILDING

F
U

T
U

R
E

 
B

O
C

C
E

 
C

O
U

R
T

PROP. FIRE

PIT AREA

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

B
U

ILD
IN

G

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
 
B

O
C

C
E

 
C

O
U

R
T

CO EL=764.16

6"=750.81

(PLAN)

CO EL=761.86

6"=751.66

(PLAN)

EXIST. 2" COPPER WM

EXIST. 6" PVC

SANITARY SEWER

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER PER

PLAN FROM OWNER.  WATER MAIN

PER SKETCH FROM OWNER.

45° BEND #2

8" INV=762.72

32.5'-8" PVC @ 1.05%

8" X 8" WYE #3

8" INV=762.38

2.6'-8" PVC @ 1.15%

RD #4

90° VERT BEND

8" INV=762.41

10.0'-8" PVC

@ 3.80%

45° BEND #5

8" INV=762.00

57.9'-8" PVC @ 1.97%

CB #6

GRATE=764.50

8" NE INV=760.86

8" S INV=760.86
108.0'-8" PVC @ 1.03%8" X 8" WYE #7

8" INV=759.75

17.3'-8" PVC @ 2.89%

8" X 8" TEE 14

8" INV=759.25

71.1'-8" PVC @ 2.30%

CB #18

GRATE=760.30

8" N INV=757.61

15" W INV=757.03

RD #8

90° VERT BEND

8" INV=762.67

21.6'-8" PVC

@ 1.06%

45° BEND #9

8" INV=762.44

22.1'-8" PVC

@ 1.04%

8" X 8" TEE #10

8" INV=762.21

14.0'-8" PVC @ 11.29%

45° BEND #13

8" INV=760.63

31.5'-8" PVC

@ 2.79%

13.0'-8" PVC

@ 1.08%

45° BEND #12

8" INV=762.35

5.0'-8" PVC

@ 1.00%

RD #11

90° VERT BEND

8" INV=762.40

42.6'-8" PVC

@ 5.28%

8" X 8" TEE #16

8" INV=761.50

2.9'-8" PVC @ 1.03%

RD #17

90° VERT BEND

8" INV=761.53

24.0'-8" PVC

@ 1.04%

RD #15

90° VERT BEND

8" INV=761.75

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

P

O

S

S

I

B

L

E

 

F

U

T

U

R

E

B

U

I

L

D

I

N

G

 

A

D

D

I

T

I

O

N

2'

8

'

5

'

2
3
'

2
0
'

1

0

'

1

3

'

71'

69'

45° BEND

4" INV=758.85

45° BEND

4" INV=759.43

CLEANOUT & 45° BEND

CLEANOUT=763.0

4" INV=757.20

45° BEND

4" INV=756.27

COORDINATE

EXACT LOCATION

& ELEVATION

WITH INTERIOR

PLUMBER

4" INV=759.57

CONNECT TO EXIST.

6" SAN SEWER (WYE)

EXIST. 6" INV=751.07±

PROP. 4" INV=751.32±

PROPOSED 115 LF

SANITARY LATERAL

@ 7.17% 4" PVC

ASTM SDR 35

5
1
'

20'

COORDINATE EXACT

LOCATION & ELEVATION

WITH INTERIOR PLUMBER

2" INV=759.50

2" INV=759.10

2" INV=757.70

2" INV=757.40
2" INV=757.40

PROPOSED 106 LF

2" COPPER WATER LATERAL

PROP. 2" X 2" TEE

EXPOSE EXIST. 2" COPPER LINE TO VERIFY

EXACT LOCATION AND DEPTH.  EXIST.

WATER LOCATION SHOWN PER OWNER

RECORDS.  COORDINATE WITH OWNER TO

SHUT DOWN EXIST. WATER IN ORDER TO

INSTALL THE TEE.  INSTALL A CURB STOP &

SERVICE BOX ON LATERAL SOUTH OF TEE.

EXIST. 2" COPPER WATER LATERAL

TO BE DISCONNECTED, REMOVED

FROM THE BUILDING.  CRIMP END.

REMOVE FENCE TO

INSTALL STORM

SEWER AND

REPLACE IN KIND

4

0

'

1

1

'

3

5

'

7

'

E
X

IS
T

IN

G

 B
U

IL
D

IN

G

(
B

A
K

E
R

Y
)

COORDINATE EXACT

LOCATION & ELEVATION

WITH INTERIOR PLUMBER

1 

1

4

" INV=756.8

1 

1

4

" INV=756.7

PROPOSED 42 LF

1 

1

4

" COPPER

WATER LATERAL

PROP. 2" X 1 

1

4

" TEE

EXPOSE EXIST. 2" COPPER LINE TO VERIFY

EXACT LOCATION AND DEPTH.  EXIST.

WATER LOCATION SHOWN PER OWNER

RECORDS.  COORDINATE WITH OWNER TO

SHUT DOWN EXIST. WATER IN ORDER TO

INSTALL THE TEE.  INSTALL A CURB STOP &

SERVICE BOX ON LATERAL SOUTH OF TEE.

CONNECT TO EXIST.

6" SAN SEWER (WYE)

EXIST. 6" INV=752.30±

PROP. 4" INV=752.55±

PROPOSED 51 LF

SANITARY LATERAL

@ 6.76% 4" PVC

ASTM SDR 35

45° BEND

4" INV=754.98

COORDINATE

EXACT LOCATION

& ELEVATION

WITH INTERIOR

PLUMBER

4" INV=756.00

W

W

W

W

CO EL=760.79

6"=752.53

(PLAN)

©
 
C

O
P

Y
R

I
G

H
T

 
2

0
2

1

REVISIONS

P
E
G

 
J
O

B
 
N

o
.

P
E
G

 
P
M

D
A
T
E

S
C
A
L
E

PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    

w
w

w
.
p

i
n

n
a

c
l
e

-
e

n
g

r
.
c

o
m

WISCONSIN OFFICE:
20725 WATERTOWN ROAD SUITE 100

BROOKFIELD, WI 53186
(262) 754-8888

ENGINEERING I NATURAL RESOURCES I SURVEYING

PLAN I DESIGN I DELIVER

CHICAGO I MILWAUKEE : NATIONWIDE

w w w . p i n n a c l e - e n g r . c o m

FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

CROATIAN PARK PAVILION

UTILITY PLAN

1
"
=

2
0

'

0
4

/
1

9
/
2

0
2

2

A
S

Z

2
0

6
3

.
0

0
B

U
T
I
L
I
T
Y

 
P

L
A

N

NOTES:

1. SEE DETAILS AND NOTES ON SHEETS  C-600 AND C-601.

2. FOR RD 1, 4, 8, 11, 15 AND 17 DRAIN 6" DOWNSPOUTS INTO 8" VERTICAL DOWNSPOUT COLLECTOR.

SHEET

C-501

1" = 20'0 40'

 GRAPHICAL SCALE (FEET)

N
O

R
T
H

UTILITY NOTES
GENERAL:
1. WORK PERFORMED AND MATERIALS SUPPLIED SHALL CONFORM TO THE LATEST EDITION OF THE

STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR SEWER AND WATER CONSTRUCTION IN WISCONSIN (STANDARD
SPECIFICATIONS) AND THE WISCONSIN ADMINISTRATIVE CODE SPS 382.

2. CONTACT DIGGERS HOTLINE 3 DAYS PRIOR TO BEGINNING WORK. COORDINATE ALL UTILITY WORK
WITH THE OWNER PRIOR TO BEGINNING WORK. UTILITY CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR LEVELING
ALL TRENCH SPOIL UNLESS OTHERWISE DIRECTED BY OWNER.

3. BEDDING MATERIAL SHALL BE CRUSHED STONE CHIPS PER STANDARD SPEC SECTION 8.43.2(A).
BACKFILL UNDER, AND WITHIN 5 FEET OF CONCRETE AND PAVED AREAS SHALL BE CRUSHED ROAD
GRAVEL PER TABLE 39 SECTION 8.43.7. IN AREAS FIVE FEET OUTSIDE OF PAVED AREAS, SPOIL
BACKFILL MEETING SECTION 8.43.5 CAN BE USED.

4. THE SANITARY SEWER LATERAL, WATER LATERAL AND STORM SEWER SHALL BE INSTALLED WITH A
TRACER WIRE CONSISTING OF AN INSULATED AWS #12 COPPER SOLID CORE WIRE TAPED TO THE
LATERAL/MAIN. THIS IS IN ACCORDANCE WITH SPS382.30 11(H). LATERALS SHALL HAVE A TRACER
WIRE ATTACHED FROM THE MAINLINE TO A POINT FIVE FEET AWAY FROM THE BUILDING. THE
TRACER WIRE SHALL BE DAYLIGHTED AT THIS POINT USING A VALVCO CATHODIC PROTECTION TEST
STATION MODEL NO. 253TM301800.1PT.

5. SANITARY SEWER PIPE MATERIALS SHALL BE PVC ASTM D-3034 SDR35. JOINTS SHALL BE MADE BY THE
USE OF AN ELASTOMERIC SEAL CONFORMING TO ASTM D3212.

6. WATER LATERAL SHALL BE TYPE K COPPER.

7. STORM SEWER SHALL BE ADS N-12 WITH WT JOINTS OR PVC ASTM D-3034 SDR35. PVC JOINTS SHALL BE
MADE BY THE USE OF AN ELASTOMERIC SEAL CONFORMING TO ASTM D3212. PIPE MATERIAL IS NOTED
ON THE PLANS.

8. STORM SEWER CATCH BASINS SHALL BE A MINIMUM 48” DIAMETER PRECAST CONCRETE.  24" SUMPS.

9. ALL END SECTIONS SHALL BE METAL END SECTION FOR ADS PIPE.

10. THE UTILITY CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL INLET PROTECTION ON ALL CATCH BASINS PER THE
DETAILS ON THE PLANS.  THE PROTECTION SHALL BE REMOVED AND DISPOSED OF BY THE UTILITY
CONTRACTOR UPON THE SITE BEING STABILIZED AND AT THE DIRECTION OF THE OWNER.

1   ADDENDUM #1   5/9/2022

2   CITY COMMENTS   11/2/2023

3   CITY COMMENTS   1/23/2024

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
THESE PLANS AND DESIGNS ARE COPYRIGHT PROTECTED AND MAY NOT BE USED IN WHOLE OR IN PART WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC



©
 
C

O
P

Y
R

I
G

H
T

 
2

0
2

1

REVISIONS

P
E
G

 
J
O

B
 
N

o
.

P
E
G

 
P
M

D
A
T
E

S
C
A
L
E

PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    

w
w

w
.
p

i
n

n
a

c
l
e

-
e

n
g

r
.
c

o
m

WISCONSIN OFFICE:
20725 WATERTOWN ROAD SUITE 100

BROOKFIELD, WI 53186
(262) 754-8888

ENGINEERING I NATURAL RESOURCES I SURVEYING

PLAN I DESIGN I DELIVER

CHICAGO I MILWAUKEE : NATIONWIDE

w w w . p i n n a c l e - e n g r . c o m

FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

CROATIAN PARK PAVILION

CONSTRUCTION

DETAILS

N
.
T
.
S

.

0
4

/
1

9
/
2

0
2

2

A
S

Z

2
0

6
3

.
0

0
B

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
I
O

N
 
D

E
T
A

I
L
S

CONSTRUCTION SEQUENCE:

1. Install tracking pad by pond, straw wattle, silt fence and construction fence on Parcel 1.  Continuous inspections throughout the
project.  The City inspector (at developer's expense) as well as the general contractor shall inspect erosion and sediment control
practices weekly, and within 24 hours after every rain event that produces 0.5 inches of rain or more in a 24 hour period.
Written documentation of each inspection shall be maintained at the construction site and shall include the time, date and
location of inspection, the phase of land disturbance at the construction site, person conducting the inspection, assessment of
control practices, and description of any erosion or sediment control measure installation or maintenance performed in
response to the inspection.  Use Wisconsin DNR report forms.

2. Remove trees, existing structures noted on the demolition plan, sawcut and remove asphalt, install tracking pad by pavilion and
strip topsoil.

3. Rough grade pavilion area, begin building construction and storm water pond.
4. Install utilities.
5. Install stone base, concrete, concrete curb & gutter and asphalt.
6. Install silt fence and construction fence on Parcel 2, remove concrete and asphalt on Parcel 2, and finish grade disturbed areas

on Parcel 1.
7. Topsoil, seed and stabilize any remaining disturbed areas with erosion mat on both parcels.
8. Contractor to remove and dispose of all temporary erosion control measures once the site is 95% stabilized.

Estimated Start Date: April 2024
Estimated Completion Date: July 2024
Estimated Disturbed Area = 102,901 S.F. (2.36 acres).

GRADING & EROSION CONTROL NOTES:
A.All construction practices shall comply with the City of Franklin and the Wisconsin DNR Technical Standards.
B.All disturbed areas shall be topsoiled (4” thick), seeded and stabilized with Wisconsin DOT Class I, Type B erosion mat per

Wisconsin DNR Technical Standard 1052.  September 15th is the deadline for permanent seed.  Any areas exposed after
September 15th and before October 15th shall be temporarily seeded with winter wheat at the rate of 50 lbs/acre.  This
temporary cover shall be fertilized at the same rate and mixture as permanent seed.  Any disturbed areas not stabilized by
October 15th should be stabilized by placing topsoil, dormant seed and Wisconsin DOT Class I, type B erosion mat or seeded
with dormant seed, covered with straw and staked biodegradable netting.  Temporary stabilization is required for any area that
will not be worked for 14 days or more.

C.  Any stockpile or area left inactive for more than seven days shall be seeded and mulched using agricultural rye with a seeding
rate of 3lbs/1000 square feet.  Any stockpiles placed after October 15 shall be seeded with dormant seed and either stabilized
with Wisconsin DOT Class I, type B erosion mat or seeded with dormant seed, covered with straw and staked biodegradable
netting.

D.Trees shall only be removed as noted on the plans.  No other trees are to be removed.  Coordinate tree removal with owner
prior to any tree removal.

E. All construction traffic is to enter/exit the site from S. 76th Street over the existing asphalt drive.  No tracking pad proposed as
construction vehicles will be loaded from existing asphalt.  All private driveways and public streets to be kept clean at all
times.

F. The permanent seed mixture in the dry pond shall be Agrecol Stormwater/Bioinfiltration seed mix (See Native Seeding in
Proposed Pond notes). For all other disturbed areas the permanent seed mixture shall be Wisconsin DOT seed mixture No. 40
and sown at a rate of 4 lbs/1000 square feet.  Seed mixture No. 40 consists of 35% kentucky bluegrass, 20% red fescue, 20%
hard fescue and 25% improved fine perennial ryegrass.

G.Fertilize soil with 10 lbs/1000 square feet of 20-0-10 fertilizer.  The fertilizer used for restoration shall be free of any
phosphorous.

H.Any dewatering that maybe required due to building construction shall be completed so that the water is pumped into a type II
geotextile bag.  Follow DNR Technical Standard 1061.

I. All building and waste material shall be disposed of off site to prevent runoff of material.
J. Dust control should be addressed per Wisconsin DNR Technical Standard 1068.

STRAW WATTLE

#137  06/01/15

12" WATTLE

STAKE WITHIN 2'

OF END OF WATTLE

2
"

M
A

X
.

4'

2
4
"
 
M

I
N

.

12" WOOD STAKE

STRAW WATTLES

WOOD STAKE,

SEE DETAIL

STRAW

 WATTLES

WOOD

STAKE

SLOPE

SURFACE

TRENCH

2
4
"
 
M

I
N

.

NOTES

1. CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL GRADES, ENSURE ALL AREAS DRAIN PROPERLY AND REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP PRIOR

TO THE START OF ANY CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES.

2. ALL EXISTING CONTOURS REPRESENT EXISTING SURFACE GRADES UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. ALL PROPOSED GRADES SHOWN ARE FINISH SURFACE GRADES

UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

3. SPOT ELEVATIONS REPRESENT THE GRADE ALONG THE EDGE OF PAVEMENT UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

4. ALL EXCAVATIONS AND MATERIAL PLACEMENT SHALL BE COMPLETED TO DESIGN ELEVATIONS AS DEPICTED IN THE PLANS.

CONTRACTOR SHALL ASSUME SOLE RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE COMPUTATION(S) OF ALL GRADING QUANTITIES.  WHILE PEG ATTEMPTS TO PROVIDE A COST

EFFECTIVE APPROACH TO BALANCE EARTHWORK, GRADING DESIGN IS BASED ON MANY FACTORS, INCLUDING SAFETY, AESTHETICS, AND COMMON

ENGINEERING STANDARD OF CARE, THEREFORE NO GUARANTEE CAN BE MADE FOR A BALANCED SITE.

THE CONTRACTOR MAY SOLICIT APPROVAL FROM ENGINEER/OWNER TO ADJUST FINAL GRADES FROM DESIGN GRADES TO PROVIDE AN OVERALL SITE BALANCE

AS A RESULT OF FIELD CONDITIONS.

5. GRADING ACTIVITIES SHALL BE IN A MANNER TO ALLOW POSITIVE DRAINAGE ACROSS DISTURBED SOILS, WHICH MAY INCLUDE EXCAVATION OF TEMPORARY

DITCHES TO PREVENT PONDING, AND IF NECESSARY PUMPING TO ALLEVIATE PONDING.  CONTRACTOR SHALL PREVENT SURFACE WATER FROM ENTERING INTO

EXCAVATIONS. IN NO WAY SHALL OWNER BE RESPONSIBLE FOR REMEDIATION OF UNSUITABLE SOILS CREATED/ORIGINATED AS A RESULT OF IMPROPER SITE

GRADING OR SEQUENCING. CONTRACTOR SHALL SEQUENCE GRADING ACTIVITIES TO LIMIT EXPOSURE OF DISTURBED SOILS DUE TO WEATHER.

6. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR MEETING MINIMUM COMPACTION STANDARDS. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY ENGINEER/OWNER IF PROPER

COMPACTION CANNOT BE OBTAINED. THE PROJECT'S GEOTECHNICAL CONSULTANT SHALL DETERMINE WHICH IN-SITU SOILS ARE TO BE CONSIDERED

UNSUITABLE SOILS. THE ENGINEER/OWNER AND GEOTECHNICAL TESTING CONSULTANT WILL DETERMINE IF REMEDIAL MEASURES WILL BE NECESSARY.

7. IN THE EVENT THAT ANY MOISTURE-DENSITY TEST(S) FAIL TO MEET SPECIFICATION REQUIREMENTS, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PERFORM CORRECTIVE WORK AS

NECESSARY TO BRING THE MATERIAL INTO COMPLIANCE AND RETEST THE FAILED AREA AT NO COST TO THE OWNER.

8. WITH THE AUTHORIZATION OF THE ENGINEER/OWNER, MATERIAL THAT IS TOO WET TO PERMIT PROPER COMPACTION MAY BE SPREAD ON FILL AREAS IN AN

EFFORT TO DRY. CONTRACTOR SHALL CLEARLY FIELD MARK THE EXTERIOR LIMITS OF SPREAD MATERIAL WITH PAINTED LATH AND SUBMIT A PLAN TO THE

ENGINEER/OWNER THAT IDENTIFIES THE LIMITS. UNDER NO CONDITION SHALL THE SPREAD MATERIAL DEPTH EXCEED THE MOST RESTRICTIVE OF: THE

EFFECTIVE TREATMENT DEPTH OF MACHINERY THAT WILL BE USED TO TURNOVER THE SPREAD MATERIAL; OR THE MAXIMUM COMPACTION LIFT DEPTH.

9. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY ENGINEER/OWNER IF GROUNDWATER IS ENCOUNTERED DURING EXCAVATION.

10. CONTRACTOR IS SOLELY RESPONSIBLE FOR THE DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION OF ADEQUATE AND SAFE TEMPORARY SHORING, BRACING, RETENTION

STRUCTURES, AND EXCAVATIONS.

11. THE SITE SHALL BE COMPLETED TO WITHIN 0.10-FT (+/-) OF THE PROPOSED GRADES AS INDICATED WITHIN THE PLANS PRIOR TO PLACEMENT OF TOPSOIL OR

STONE. CONTRACTOR IS ENCOURAGED TO SEQUENCE CONSTRUCTION SUCH THAT THE SITE IS DIVIDED INTO SMALLER AREAS TO ALLOW STABILIZATION OF

DISTURBED SOILS IMMEDIATELY UPON COMPLETION OF INDIVIDUAL SMALLER AREAS.

12. CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT "DIGGER'S HOTLINE" FOR LOCATIONS OF ALL EXISTING UTILITIES PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF ANY CONSTRUCTION

ACTIVITIES AND SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR PROTECTING SAID UTILITIES FROM ANY DAMAGE DURING CONSTRUCTION.

13. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROTECT INLETS AND ADJACENT PROPERTIES WITH STRAW WATTLE OR APPROVED EROSION CONTROL METHODS UNTIL CONSTRUCTION IS

COMPLETED. CONTRACTOR SHALL PLACE STRAW WATTLE AT DOWN SLOPE SIDE OF GRADING LIMITS.

14. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR DAMAGE TO ANY EXISTING FACILITIES OR UTILITIES.  ANY DAMAGE SHALL BE REPAIRED TO THE OWNER’S

SATISFACTION AT THE EXPENSE OF THE CONTRACTOR.

15. WORK WITHIN ANY ROADWAY RIGHT-OF-WAY SHALL BE COORDINATED WITH THE APPROPRIATE MUNICIPAL OFFICIAL PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF ANY

CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES.  CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR OBTAINING ALL NECESSARY PERMITS AND FEES. GRADING WITHIN RIGHT-OF-WAY IS

SUBJECT TO APPROVAL BY SAID OFFICIALS.  RESTORATION OF RIGHT-OF-WAY IS CONSIDERED INCIDENTAL AND SHALL BE INCLUDED IN THE COST OF

GRADING.  RESTORATION SHALL INCLUDE ALL ITEMS NECESSARY TO RESTORE RIGHT-OF-WAY IN-KIND INCLUDING LANDSCAPING.

16. CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL CITY OF FRANKLIN AND MILWAUKEE COUNTY CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS/ORDINANCES.

17. LANDSCAPE AND TURF AREAS SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM OF 4-INCH TOPSOIL REPLACEMENT.

18. TOPSOIL BERMING SHALL ACHIEVE 90% STANDARD PROCTOR DENSITY AT 3%(±) OPTIMUM MOISTURE CONTENT.

19. SURVEY BENCHMARKS AND MAPPING HAS BEEN PROVIDED BY PEG. IN NO WAY DOES PEG WARRANT THE BASEMAP IS ALL INCLUSIVE OR REPRESENTATIVE OF

ACTUAL CONDITIONS. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE CHECKS AS NECESSARY TO VERIFY THE BASEMAP CONTENT AND ACCURACY.

SHEET

C-600

NATIVE PLANTINGS:

WEED SUPPRESSION MEASURES:

1st YEAR - PERFORM SPOT SPRAY WITH HERBICIDE TO SUPPRESS WEEDS. THIS SHOULD OCCUR APPROXIMATELY EVERY

MONTH OF THE GROWING SEASON AFTER NATIVE PLANTINGS HAVE BEEN ROUGH GRADED.

2nd YEAR - IN  MAY/JUNE MOW NATIVE PLANTINGS AT 6" HEIGHT TO SUPPRESS THE WEEDS. PERFORM SPOT SPRAY WITH

HERBICIDE TO SUPPRESS WEEDS.  HAVE PROFESSIONAL ASSESS PLANTINGS.  REPEAT MOWING NATIVE PLANTINGS AND

SPOT-SPRAY IN EARLY JULY.

3rd YEAR - IN  MAY/JUNE MOW NATIVE PLANTINGS AT 8" HEIGHT TO SUPPRESS THE WEEDS. PERFORM SPOT SPRAY WITH

HERBICIDE TO SUPPRESS WEEDS.

4th YEAR - IN  MAY PERFORM A PRESCRIBED BURN.  IN JUNE HAVE A QUALIFIED PROFESSIONAL ASSESS PLANTINGS.  IF A

PRESCRIBED BURN CAN NOT BE UTILIZED, NATIVE PLANTINGS SHALL BE CUT TO THE GROUND AND ALL CUT MATERIAL

SHALL BE REMOVED AND DISPOSED OF OFF SITE.

NATIVE SEEDING IN PROPOSED POND
(FROM ELEVATION 757 TO POND BOTTOM ELEVATION 755.2)

ESTABLISHMENT OF A VIABLE VEGETATION COMMUNITY WITHIN THE PROPOSED POND WILL BE COMPLETED BY

HAND-BROADCASTING OF PRE-DESIGNED SEED MIXES.

PRIOR TO SEEDING:

A. ALL WEEDS AND EXISTING VEGETATION SHALL BE REMOVED.  EXISTING VEGETATION SHALL BE TREATED WITH

GLYPHOPHATE OR SIMILAR HERBICIDE BY A LICENSED PROFESSIONAL.  TREATMENT SHALL OCCUR A MINIMUM

OF 10 DAYS PRIOR TO SEEDING/PLANTING.  VEGETATION STILL ALIVE AFTER INITIAL HERBICIDE TREATMENT

SHALL BE TREATED A SECOND TIME PRIOR TO TILLING INTO THE SOIL.TREATED VEGETATION SHALL BE TILLED

INTO THE SOIL NO EARLIER THAN 1 DAY PRIOR TO SEEDING.

B. PREPARATION OF SOIL PRIOR TO SEEDING

1. ALL FOREIGN MATERIALS LARGER THAN 1-INCH SHALL BE REMOVED FROM THE SOIL PRIOR TO SEEDING

OR PLANTING.

2. AREA SHOULD BE FREE FROM UNSIGHTLY VARIATIONS, RIDGES, AND DEPRESSIONS.

3. AVOID DRIVING OVER THE SPECIFIED AREA WITH MACHINERY.

SPECIFICATIONS FOR HAND BROADCASTING:

SEEDING SHALL BE CONDUCTED IN LATE FALL (SEPTEMBER 1- SOIL FREEZE) SO THAT SEEDS MAY LIE DORMANT

DURING THE WINTER, ALLOWING FOR STRATIFICATION, OR SPRING (MARCH 1-JUNE 1) TO ALLOW A COMPLETE

GROWING SEASON TO BECOME ESTABLISHED.

A. COVER CROP

1. ANNUAL RYE SHALL BE SPREAD AT A DENSITY OF 20 POUNDS PER ACRE DURING THE PLANTING OR

SEEDING OF THE NATIVE PLANT SPECIES TO STABILIZE THE SOIL AND REDUCE THE GROWTH OF

UNWANTED VEGETATION.  THIS ANNUAL GRASS GROWS RAPIDLY WITHOUT COMPETING WITH THE

WILDFLOWERS AND GRASSES THAT ARE PLANTED IN THE TARGET AREAS.

2. WINTER WHEAT OR PERENNIAL RYE SHALL NOT BE USED AS A COVER CROP.  THESE GRASSES MAY OUT

COMPETE PRAIRIE SEEDLINGS, LEADING TO A REDUCTION IN THE SUCCESS OF THE PLANTINGS.

#104   04-24-13

INLET PROTECTION

INLET PROTECTION - TYPE "B"

(WITHOUT CURB BOX)

INLET PROTECTION, TYPE "C"

(WITH CURB BOX)

INLET PROTECTION - TYPE "A"

2' ABOVE

GROUND

VARIES

NOTES:

1. ALL INLET PROTECTION MATERIALS AND INSTALLATION SHALL BE IN CONFORMANCE

WITH WI DNR TECHNICAL STANDARD 1060.

2. GEOTEXTILE FABRIC SHALL MEET THE REQUIREMENTS OF MATERIAL SPECIFICATION

592 GEOTEXTILE TABLE 1 OR 2, CLASS I, WITH AN EOS OF AT LEAST 30 FOR NONWOVEN

AND 50 FOR WOVEN.

3. WHEN REMOVING OR MAINTAINING INLET PROTECTION, CARE SHALL BE TAKEN SO

THAT THE SEDIMENT TRAPPED ON THE GEOTEXTILE FABRIC DOES NOT FALL INTO THE

INLET. ANY MATERIAL FALLING INTO THE INLET SHALL BE REMOVED IMMEDIATELY.

1 FINISHED SIZE, INCLUDING FLAP POCKET WHERE REQUIRED, SHALL EXTEND A MINIMUM

OF 10 INCHES AROUND THE PERIMETER TO FACILITATE MAINTENANCE OR REMOVAL.

2 FOR INLET PROTECTION, TYPE "C" (WITH CURB BOX), AN ADDITIONAL 18 INCHES OF

FABRIC IS WRAPPED AROUND THE WOOD AND SECURED WITH STAPLES. THE WOOD

SHALL NOT BLOCK THE ENTIRE HEIGHT OF THE CURB BOX OPENING.

3 FLAP POCKETS SHALL BE LARGE ENOUGH TO ACCEPT WOOD 2x4.

TYPE "B" & "C" INSTALLATION NOTES

TRIM EXCESS FABRIC IN THE FLOW LINE TO WITHIN 3

INCHES OF THE GRATE.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL DEMONSTRATE A METHOD OF

MAINTENANCE, USING A SEWN FLAP, HAND HOLDS OR

OTHER METHODS TO PREVENT ACCUMULATED SEDIMENT

FROM ENTERING THE INLET.

GEOTEXTILE FABRIC,

TYPE FF

WOOD 2"x4" STAKES

AND  CROSS BRACING

2.0'4.0'

GRATED INLET

BURIED FABRIC

MIN. 6" DEPTH

DIRECTION OF

RUNOFF WATER

FLOW

GEOTEXTILE

FABRIC

WOOD 2"x4" EXTENDS 10" BEYOND GRATE

WIDTH ON BOTH SIDES, LENGTH VARIES,

SECURE TO GRATE WITH WIRE OR

PLASTIC TIES.

GEOTEXTILE

FABRIC

FABRIC SHALL BE BURIED

IN TRENCH TO PREVENT

UNDERMINING OF THE

INLET PROTECTION

GEOTEXTILE FABRIC SHALL

BE SECURED TO THE STAKES

AND  CROSS BRACING. FABRIC

SHALL COMPLETELY

SURROUND INLET TO

PREVENT SEDIMENT LADEN

RUNOFF FROM ENTERING

INTO THE INLET

WOOD 2"x4" STAKES

AND CROSS BRACING

VARIES

1

2

3

1

#107-WI  10-02-12

CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE

1

4

.

0

'
 

M

I

N

.

1.0' MIN.

5

0

.

0

'

 

M

I

N

.

 

L

E

N

G

T

H

NOTES:

1. ALL TRACKING PAD MATERIALS AND INSTALLATION SHALL BE IN CONFORMANCE WITH WI DNR TECHNICAL STANDARD 1057.

2. TRACKING PADS SHALL BE INSTALLED PRIOR TO ANY TRAFFIC LEAVING THE SITE. CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY LOCATION

WITH OWNER.

3. THE AGGREGATE FOR TRACKING PADS SHALL BE 3 TO 6 INCH CLEAR OR WASHED STONE. ALL MATERIALS TO BE RETAINED ON

A 3-INCH SIEVE

4. THE AGGREGATE SHALL BE PLACED IN A LAYER AT LEAST 12-INCHES THICK. ON SITES WHERE SATURATED CONDITIONS ARE

EXPECTED DURING THE LIFE OF THE PAD, THE PAD SHALL BE UNDERLAIN WITH GEOTEXTILE FABRIC WHICH MEETS MATERIAL

SPECIFICATION 592 GEOTEXTILE, TABLE 1 OR 2, CLASS I, II OR IV, TO PREVENT MIGRATION OF UNDERLYING SOILS INTO THE

STONE LAYER.

5. THE TRACKING PAD SHALL BE THE FULL WIDTH OF THE EGRESS POINT. MINIMUM WIDTH IS 14 FEET FOR ONE-WAY TRAFFIC

AND 20 FEET FOR TWO-WAY TRAFFIC, WITH AN ADDITIONAL INCREASE OF 4 FEET FOR TRAILER TRAFFIC. THE TRACKING PAD

SHALL BE A MINIMUM 50-FEET LONG.

6. ANY SEDIMENT TRACKED ONTO A PUBLIC OR PRIVATE ROAD SHOULD BE REMOVED BY STREET CLEANING, NOT FLUSHING, AT

THE END OF EACH WORKING DAY.

7. TRACKING PADS SHALL, AT A MINIMUM, BE INSPECTED WEEKLY AND WITHIN 24-HOURS AFTER EVERY PRECIPITATION EVENT

THAT PRODUCES 0.5-INCHES OF RAIN OR MORE DURING A 24-HOUR PERIOD.

8. THE TRACKING PAD PERFORMANCE SHALL BE MAINTAINED BY SCRAPING OR TOP-DRESSING WITH ADDITIONAL AGGREGATE.

AGGREGATE OVER

GEOTEXTILE FABRIC

E

X

I

S

T

I

N

G

 

R

O

A

D

20.0' 10.0' 20.0'

0.50'

EXISTING PAVEMENTPROFILE VIEW

SLOPE

SLOPE

3'' TO 6'' WASHED

OR CLEAR STONE

CONCRETE WASHOUT AREA

#130  12/26/12

AA

ORANGE CONSTRUCTION FENCE

AROUND WASHOUT STRUCTURE

SILT FENCE

STRAW WATTLE

SIGN TO INDICATE THE  LOCATION

OF THE CONCRETE WASHOUT AREA

20'x20' MIN. OR AS REQUIRED

TO CONTAIN CONCRETE WASTE

3H: 1V

SIDE SLOPES

GROUND SURFACE

20.0' MIN

PLAN VIEW 

SECTION VIEW 

NOTES:

1. CONCRETE WASHOUT AREA SHALL BE INSTALLED PRIOR TO ANY CONCRETE PLACEMENT OF SITE.

2. VEHICLE TRACKING CONTROL IS REQUIRED AT CONCRETE WASHOUT ENTRANCE IF ACCESS TO CONCRETE WASHOUT AREA IS

OFF PAVEMENT.

3. THE CONCRETE WASHOUT AREA SHALL BE REPAIRED AND/OR ENLARGED AS NECESSARY TO MAINTAIN CAPACITY FOR WASTE

CONCRETE.

4. WASTE MATERIAL FROM CONCRETE WASHOUT OPERATIONS MUST BE REMOVED AND LEGALLY DISPOSED OF WHEN IT HAS

ACCUMULATED TWO-THIRDS OF THE WET STORAGE CAPACITY OF THE STRUCTURE.

5. AT THE END OF CONSTRUCTION, ALL CONCRETE SHALL BE REMOVED FROM THE SITE AND LEGALLY DISPOSED OF AT AN

APPROVED SITE.

6. WHEN THE CONCRETE WASHOUT AREA IS REMOVED, THE DISTURBED AREA SHALL BE SEEDED AND MULCHED OR OTHERWISE

STABILIZED.

ORANGE CONSTRUCTION

FENCE

FILTER FABRIC

2
0
.
0
'
 
M

I
N

1   ADDENDUM #1   5/9/2022

2   CITY COMMENTS   11/2/2023

B. SEED MIX:

1. MIX ALL NATIVE SEED WITH VERMICULITE ACCORDING TO AGRECOL RECOMMENDATIONS AND INSTALLATION

GUIDELINES.

2. BROADCAST HALF THE SEED OVER THE ENTIRE SITE OR TARGET AREA.

3. BROADCAST THE OTHER HALF OF SEED PERPENDICULAR TO THE DIRECTION THAT THE FIRST HALF OF THE

SEED WAS BROADCAST.

4. COVER SEED WITH -INCH TO -INCH OF SOIL (USE ANY EXCESS SOIL FROM THE SITE) WITH RAKE OR DRAG.

5. ROLL SITE TO ENSURE FIRM SEED-TO-GROUND CONTACT.

6. KEEP SEED CONSTANTLY WET THROUGH GERMINATION PERIOD. GENERALLY 3 WEEKS.

ALL SEEDING SHALL BE COVERED WITH 1-INCH OF CLEAN, NON-INVASIVE STRAW (NO MARSH HAY, OR REED CANARY

GRASS) WITHOUT SEEDS, WITHIN SEVEN DAYS.  WHEAT, RYE, OATS, OR BARLEY ARE ACCEPTABLE FORMS OF STRAW.

THOSE AREAS OF SLOPES STEEPER THAN 8:1 (EIGHT FEET HORIZONTAL TO ONE FOOT VERTICAL) SHALL BE PLANTED NO

LATER THAN OCTOBER 1 AND STAKED WITH AN EROSION CONTROL BLANKET TO PREVENT EROSION.

3   CITY COMMENTS   1/23/2024

AutoCAD SHX Text
THESE PLANS AND DESIGNS ARE COPYRIGHT PROTECTED AND MAY NOT BE USED IN WHOLE OR IN PART WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASHOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
¼-INCH TO ½-INCH OF SOIL (USE ANY EXCESS SOIL FROM THE SITE) WITH RAKE OR DRAG. ½-INCH OF SOIL (USE ANY EXCESS SOIL FROM THE SITE) WITH RAKE OR DRAG. 



©
 
C

O
P

Y
R

I
G

H
T

 
2

0
2

1

REVISIONS

P
E
G

 
J
O

B
 
N

o
.

P
E
G

 
P
M

D
A
T
E

S
C
A
L
E

PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    

w
w

w
.
p

i
n

n
a

c
l
e

-
e

n
g

r
.
c

o
m

WISCONSIN OFFICE:
20725 WATERTOWN ROAD SUITE 100

BROOKFIELD, WI 53186
(262) 754-8888

ENGINEERING I NATURAL RESOURCES I SURVEYING

PLAN I DESIGN I DELIVER

CHICAGO I MILWAUKEE : NATIONWIDE

w w w . p i n n a c l e - e n g r . c o m

FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

CROATIAN PARK PAVILION

CONSTRUCTION

DETAILS

N
.
T
.
S

.

0
4

/
1

9
/
2

0
2

2

A
S

Z

2
0

6
3

.
0

0
B

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
I
O

N
 
D

E
T
A

I
L
S

STORMWATER POND CROSS SECTION

GENERAL NOTE:

POND BOTTOM, ELEV. = 755.20'

COMPACTED NATIVE

SOIL (TYP)

PROPOSED FINISH SURFACE

TOP OF BERM ELEV. = 760.00'

10FT MIN 20FT MIN

FLOW

102 LF OF 12" ADS N-12

AT 0.10% SLOPE

FLOW

4' X 4' ANTI-SEEP COLLARS (TYP)

(AGRI DRAIN ANTI-SEEP COLLAR OR EQUAL)

12" METAL END SECTION

IE=755.10

TOP OF BERM

10' WIDE

SPOIL BACKFILL

SPILLWAY  ELEV. = 759.00'

10 YEAR WATER ELEV. = 757.40'

2 YEAR WATER ELEV. = 756.86'

1 YEAR WATER ELEV. = 756.63'

TOPSOIL SHALL BE A

MINIMUM OF 4" THICK

POND OUTLET STRUCTURE (OCS #24)

1

4

TOP OF MANHOLE

RIM ELEVATION= 758.70

INSTALL PREFABRICATED

BMP TRASH RACK

2.0" I.D. RESTRICTOR PIPE (PVC)

GROUTED FIRMLY THROUGH  WALL

POND BOTTOM

STONE BASE MATERIAL

FOR PROPOSED PIPE

COMPACTED EARTH

INV= 755.20

2.0' DIA. PRECAST

CONC. STRUCTURE

A

A

SECTION A-A

4
.
0
0
'

2.0" I.D. RESTRICTOR

PIPE (PVC) GROUTED

FIRMLY THROUGH

WALL

IE=755.20

TOP OF MANHOLE

RIM ELEVATION= 758.70

102 LF OF 12" ADS N-12

AT 0.10% SLOPE

INV= 756.90

5.0" I.D. RESTRICTOR

PIPE (PVC) GROUTED

FIRMLY THROUGH WALL

IE=756.90

5.0" I.D. RESTRICTOR PIPE (PVC)

GROUTED FIRMLY THROUGH WALL

OUTLET STRUCTURE (OCS #24)

(SEE DETAIL)

1% MINIMUM SLOPE

100 YEAR WATER ELEV. = 758.66'

INSTALL REMOVABLE BAR GRATE

USE #5 BARS 6" O.C. BOTH DIRECTIONS

EMERGENCY SPILLWAY

NOTES:

1.    EXTEND MATTING 2' BELOW THE ELEVATION OF THE EMERGENCY

SPILLWAY ON THE INSIDE OF THE POND.

2.   EXTEND MATTING TO TOE OF SLOPE ON THE OUTSIDE OF THE POND.

3.   MATTING SHALL BE INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH WDNR TECH STANDARD 1052.

5

%

5

%

EMERGENCY SPILLWAY

ELEV. = 759.00

TOP OF BERM

ELEV. = 760.00

TURF REINFORCEMENT

MATTING NORTH AMERICAN

GREEN C350 OR EQUAL

WIDTH=10'

CATCH BASIN

#302  10-04-12

NOTES:

1. EASY STICK, RUBBER GASKET OR APPROVED EQUIVALENT SHALL BE PLACED AT ALL JOINTS

BETWEEN ADJUSTING RINGS FOR STORM CATCH BASINS.

2. THE FLAT TOP MAY BE USED IN LIEU OF THE TAPERED TOP WHEN FIELD CONDITIONS PROHIBIT USE

OF A TAPERED TOP.

3. STRUCTURE TO BE 4.0' DIA. OR AS INDICATED ON THE PLANS.

CEMENT MORTAR

6" PRECAST, REINF'D

CONC. TOP

INSTALL STEPS @ 16'' O.C. WHEN

STRUCTURE IS OVER 5 FEET

DEEP. (ALIGN WITH OPENING)

SEE PLAN FOR SEWER

SIZE AND INVERT ELEV.

GRADE

ADD ADJUSTING RINGS

IF NEEDED

5" PRECAST

CONC. WALLS

REINF'D CONCRETE FOUNDATION

W/ #5 RE-BAR @ 12'' EA. WAY.

8
"
 
M

I
N

.

2.0'

4.0'

2
.
0
0
'
 
M

I
N

S
U

M
P

NEENAH FOUNDRY R-3501-R (FOR

CATCH BASINS IN CURB LINE)

NEENAH FOUNDRY R-2501, TYPE G

GRATE, (FOR GRASS AREAS)

SHEET

C-601

SEED WITH AGRECOL

STORMWATER/BIOINFILTRATION SEED MIX AND

STABILIZED FROM ELEVATION 757 TO POND

BOTTOM ELEVATION 755.2 (SEE NATIVE SEEDING

IN PROPOSED POND NOTES ON SHEET C-600 FOR

MORE INFORMATION)

6"

ALL DISTURBED AREAS

OTHER THAN POND BOTTOM:

SEED (WIS DOT No. 40) AND

STABILIZE WITH EROSION MAT

(WIS DOT CLASS I, TYPE B)

NOTE: END SECTION FOR ADS N-12 PIPE TO

BE METAL END SECTION FOR ADS PIPE

1   ADDENDUM #1   5/9/2022

2   CITY COMMENTS   11/2/2023

1. ALL WORK TO BE CONDUCTED IN CONFORMANCE WITH THE STORM WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN FOR

THE PROJECT SITE AS APPROVED BY THE REGULATORY ENGINEER OF RECORD.

2. FINAL GRADE CERTICATION OF THE POND BY DESIGN ENGINEER AND APPROVED BY THE CITY OF

FRANKLIN IS REQUIRED FOR FINAL APPROVAL OF THE POND.

3   CITY COMMENTS   1/23/2024

#612 2/20/15

30" MOUNTABLE CURB & GUTTER

12" 12" 18"

30"

8
"

1
.
5
"

1
.
5
"

8
"

1
1
.
5
"

EXISTING GRAVEL

STABILIZED SUBGRADE

MINIMUM 5

1

2

" TB

COMPACTED BASE

COURSE UNDER

CURB

COMPACTED C
RUSHED

AGGREGATE B
ASE C

OURSE

NOTES:

1. CONTRACTOR JOINT 10.0' O.C., JOINT SHALL BE 0.25" WIDE.

2. A 0.75" TO 1" EXPANSION JOINT (FELT) SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED NOT MORE THAN 300 FEET

APART, AT P.C. POINTS AND 5.0' EITHER SIDE OF INLET STRUCTURES.

3. WHERE NEW CONCRETE MEETS WITH EXISTING CONCRETE 0.75" EXPANSION JOINT (FELT)

SHALL SEPARATE THE TWO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THESE PLANS AND DESIGNS ARE COPYRIGHT PROTECTED AND MAY NOT BE USED IN WHOLE OR IN PART WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
C



GROUND LEVEL
100' - 0"

ROOF CLEAR
109' - 0"

A-301
2

F G H J KIEDBA C

ROOF RIDGE
121' - 8 5/8"

4
A-311

A-400
7

3
A-301

PROVIDE DOWNSPOUT OUT TO NORTH 

1' - 0"APX. 4' - 0"

MATCH EXISTING 
OVERHANG LENGHT

NOTE: ADDITION TO BE 8" LOWER 
THAN EXISTING BUILDING

GUTTER

RF-1 RF-1

RF-2
RF-1

FASTEN METAL HANDRAIL TO WALL
BAR

T.O. BEARING
110' - 6"

L

T.O. PIERS
103' - 6"

FILL WITH CMU BLOCK 
AND FINISH TO MATCH 

WALL BELOW 

GROUND LEVEL
100' - 0"

ROOF CLEAR
109' - 0"

A-301
2

FGHJK I E D B AC

ROOF RIDGE
121' - 8 5/8"

4
A-311

3
A-301

MECHANICAL UNIT

RF-1

RF-1RF-1
RE-2

T.O. BEARING
110' - 6"

L

T.O. PIERS
103' - 6"

FILL WITH CMU BLOCK 
AND FINISH TO MATCH 
WALL BELOW 

GROUND LEVEL
100' - 0"

ROOF CLEAR
109' - 0"

A-301
1

12345611 10 9 8 7

2
A-310

ROOF RIDGE
121' - 8 5/8"

T.O. BEARING
110' - 6"

T.O. PIERS
103' - 6"

GROUND LEVEL
100' - 0"

ROOF CLEAR
109' - 0"

A-301
1

1 2 3 4 5 6 1110987

1
A-310 2

A-310
ROOF RIDGE
121' - 8 5/8"

METAL STAIR AND RAMP, FILL 
BELOW STRINGER WITH 

METAL PANEL. FINISH PT-6 

T.O. BEARING
110' - 6"

T.O. PIERS
103' - 6"

6

Welcome to Croatian Park

FUTURE SIGNAGE (BY OWNER)

DOWNSPOUT GUTTER VERIFY 
COLOR WITH ARCHITECT

A-402
4

A-402
9

4' - 0"4' - 0"

A-402
6

GROUND LEVEL
100' - 0"

ROOF CLEAR
109' - 0"

NEW WINDOW

EXISTING    NEW

WD-1

NOTE: ADDITION TO BE 8" LOWER 
THAN EXISTING BUILDING

RECESSED KNOXBOX, SEE 
PRODUCT FOR DIMENSIONS

SEE SECTION FOR ROOF BEARING POINTS

T.O. BEARING
110' - 6"

T.O. PIERS
103' - 6"

GROUND LEVEL
100' - 0"

ROOF CLEAR
109' - 0"

6
3

A-311

A-402
4

WING WALLS

HSS TUBE TRELLIS 
FINISH PT-6

T.O. BEARING
110' - 6"

T.O. PIERS
103' - 6"

4
A-311

METAL STAIR
FINISH PT-6

HSS TUBE TRELLIS 
FINISH PT-6
WOOD SLATS FINISH S-2

MECHANICAL LOUVER 
SHEET

SHEET TITLE

Copyright 2021 Barrientos Design

This drawing and/or content is not to be reproduced, 
changed, copied or assigned to any third party in any 
form or manner without first obtaining the expressed 
written consent of Barrientos Design.  The user 
agrees to indemnify and hold the Architect harmless 
from any damages, liability, or cost, including 
attorney's fees and costs of defense resulting from 
any changes or modifications made by anyone other 
than the Architect.  The Owner or owner's agent shall 
also hold harmless the Architect from any reuse of 
the drawings or data without the securing written 
consent of the Architect.

BARRIENTOS DESIGN PROJECT NUMBER

SET TYPE

DATE

205 West Highland Avenue, Suite 303
Milwaukee, WI 53203
office: 414-271-1812

www. barrientosdesign .com

PROJECT TITLE AND LOCATION

CONSULTANT

X 
REVISIO
NS

C
ro
at
ia
n 
Pa
rk
 P
av
ili
on

91
00
 S
. 7
6t
h 
St
re
et

Fr
an
kl
in
, W
I 5
31
32

Construction Documents

1.4.2024

50881

BUILDING ELEVATIONS

A-200

 1/8"   1'-0"A-110 A-200
1 East

 1/8"   1'-0"A-110 A-200
2 West

 1/8"   1'-0"A-110 A-200
3 North

 1/8"   1'-0"A-110 A-200
4 South

 1/8"   1'-0"A-120 A-200
5 North - Restroom Building

 1/8"   1'-0"A-110 A-200
6 North - Storage Building

 1/8"   1'-0"A-120 A-200
7 South - Restroom Building

 1/8"   1'-0"A-120 A-200
8 East - Restroom Building

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION



OS

OS

OS

OS

OS

OS

OS

OS

OS

L
L

O
S

OS

OS

OS

F G H J KIEDBA C

1

2

3

4

5

6

11

10

9

8

7

L

ETR

ETR

CT
B/1-30

CT
B/1-30

CT
B/1-30

CT
B/1-30

ON
R-1

ON
R-1

ON
R-1

SA
NL-2

SA
NL-2

SA
NL-2

SA
NL-2

OD
R-2

OD
R-2

OC
R-7

OC
R-7

ON
R-1

ON
R-1

OB
R-8

OB
R-8

OB
R-8

OB
R-8

OD
R-2

OD
R-2

OD
R-2

OD
R-2

OD
R-2

OD
R-2

OD
R-2

OD
R-2

OD
R-2

OD
R-2

OD
R-2

OD
R-2

OM
R-3

OM
R-3

OM
R-3

OM
R-3

OM
R-3

OM
R-3

OM
R-3

OM
R-3

OB
R-6

OB
R-6

OB
R-6

OB
R-6

OB
R-6

OB
R-6

OB
R-4

OB
R-4

OB
R-4

OB
R-4

OC
R-4

OC
R-4

OC
R-4

OT
R-5

OT
R-5

a b

PA
B/1-30a

PA
B/1-30a

WA
B/1-30b

FC
B/1-30b

FC
B/1-30b

FC
B/1-30a

ab

OA
B/1-30t

OA
B/1-30t

OA
B/1-30t

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

8

9

9

10

11

1.01

1.02

SA
NL-2

SA
NL-2

FC1
NL-2

FC1
NL-2

SA
NL-2

SA
NL-2

FC1
NL-2

FC1
NL-2

FC1
NL-2

FC1
NL-2

K

G

G

G

G

G

G

J

G

J

J

J

3

4

3

F
t

OM
R-3

OM
R-3

OM
R-3

OM
R-3

OB
R-6

OB
R-6

OB
R-6

OB
R-6

OB
R-6

OB
R-6

14

15

FC
B/1-30a

12 13

OFE
R-7

OFE
R-7

OFE
R-7

OFE
R-7

OM
R-3

OM
R-3

OM
R-3

OM
R-3

OM
R-3

OM
R-3

OM
R-3

OM
R-3

OM
R-3

OM
R-3

OM
R-3

OM
R-3

SHEET

SHEET TITLE

Copyright 2021 Barrientos Design

This drawing and/or content is not to be reproduced, 
changed, copied or assigned to any third party in any 
form or manner without first obtaining the expressed 
written consent of Barrientos Design.  The user 
agrees to indemnify and hold the Architect harmless 
from any damages, liability, or cost, including 
attorney's fees and costs of defense resulting from 
any changes or modifications made by anyone other 
than the Architect.  The Owner or owner's agent shall 
also hold harmless the Architect from any reuse of 
the drawings or data without the securing written 
consent of the Architect.

BARRIENTOS DESIGN PROJECT NUMBER

SET TYPE

DATE

205 West Highland Avenue, Suite 303

Milwaukee, WI 53203

office: 414-271-1812

www. barrientosdesign .com

PROJECT TITLE AND LOCATION

CONSULTANT

X

C
ro

a
ti
a

n
 P

a
rk

 P
a
v
ili

o
n

E
n

te
r 

a
d

d
re

s
s
 h

e
re

Construction Documents

12.22.2023

50881

GROUND LEVEL LIGHTING
PLAN

E-200

17400 West Capitol Drive - Brookfield, WI 53045
301 South Blount Street, Suite 101 - Madison, WI 53703
Phone: 414.778.1700 / Fax: 414.778.2360 
r-d@ringdu.com
RD Project Number: 221270.00

1/8" = 1'-0"E-200

1 GROUND LEVEL LIGHTING PLAN

KEYED NOTES - ??

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

SUSPEND CYLINDERS, TYPE OB, FROM CEILING OF 
PAVILION. FIELD CUT AND THREAD RIGID STEM TO ACHIEVE 
6 INCH TALL STEM. RUN CONDUIT ALONG TRUSS 
STRUCTURE TO REDUCE VISUAL CLUTTER. PAINT EXPOSED 
CONDUIT AND BOXES TO MATCH PT-7 AS SHOWN ON 
ARCHIECTURAL FINISH SCHEDULE. ARCHITECT TO VERIFY. 
TYPICAL.

MOUNT WALLPACK, TYPE OM, INDIRECTLY SO THAT 
LUMINAIRE AIMS UP AT ROOF. MOUNT TO SIDES OF TRUSS, 
PARALLEL TO ANGLE OF TRUSS, APPROXIMATELY 1 FOOT 
ABOVE BOTTOM EDGE OF TRUSS. RUN CONDUIT ALONG 
STRUSS STRUCTURE TO REDUCE VISUAL CLUTTER. PAINT 
EXPOSED CONDUIT AND BOXES TO MATCH PT-7 AS SHOWN 
ON ARCHIECTURAL FINISH SCHEDULE. ARCHITECT TO 
VERIFY. VERIFY AIMING ANGLE OF FIXTURE WITH A/E 
ONSITE. TYPICAL. 

WALL MOUNT CYLINDER, TYPE OC, TO UPPER WALL 
STRUCTURE SO THAT BOTTOM OF FIXTURE IS EVEN WITH 
BOTTOM OF WALL. APPROXIMATELY 8'-0" AFF. TYPICAL.

WALL MOUNT DECORATIVE SCONCE, TYPE OD, AT 6'-6" AFF 
TO CENTER OF FIXTURE. TYPICAL. 

SUSPEND PENDANT, TYPE PA, TO 7'-0" TO BOTTOM OF 
FIXTURE. TYPICAL.

WALL MOUNT VANITY LIGHT 6 INCHES ABOVE MIRROR TO 
CENTER OF FIXTURE. CENTER OVER MIRROR.

SURFACE MOUNT LINEAR FIXTURE, TYPE OT, TO 
UNDERSIDE OF BAR TOP. REFER TO ARCHITECTURAL 
DETAIL 8/A401. TYPICAL.

WALL MOUNT CYLINDER AT 8'-9" TO MIDDLE OF FIXTURE. 

WALL MOUNT LINEAR FIXTURE AT 9'-6" TO MIDDLE OF 
FIXTURE. PROVIDE BLOCKING AND GASKETING AS 
NECESSARY FOR FIXTURE TO MOUNT FLUSH TO WALL AND 
LEVEL TO GROUND AND MAINTAIN WET LISTING. AIM 
FIXTURE TO GRAZE WALL. FIELD VERIFY AIMING ANGLE 
ONSITE WITH A/E.

WALL MOUNT LINEAR FIXTURE AT 8'-0" TO MIDDLE OF 
FIXTURE. PROVIDE BLOCKING AND GASKETING AS 
NECESSARY FOR FIXTURE TO MOUNT FLUSH TO WALL AND 
LEVEL TO GROUND. MOUNT END TO END SO FIXTURES 
APPEAR CONTINOUS.  AIM FIXTURE TO GRAZE WALL. FIELD 
VERIFY AIMING ANGLE ONSITE WITH A/E.

AIM HOUSING SUCH THAT DISTRIBUTION OF DOWNLIGHT 
AIMS DIRECTLY AT GROUND. AIMING ANGLE TO MATCH ON 
ALL THREE TYPE OA DOWNLIGHTS.

THEATRICAL LIGHTING  EQUIPMENT EXIST IN THIS 
AREA/ROOM. ALL RELATED INFRASTRUCTURE (CONDUIT, 
BACK BOXES, CABLE, POWER, ETC.) ARE DETAILED IN THE 
THEATRICAL LIGHTING PLANS AND ARE "IN ADDITION" TO 
THE DEVICE SYMBOLS SHOWN ON THIS SHEET.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COUNT DEVICES SYMBOLS ON 
BOTH PLAN SETS TO ARRIVE AT THE TOTAL QUANTITIES OF 
DEVICES REQUIRED FOR THEIR ESTIMATING PURPOSES.

POWER SHALL BE PROVIDED TO THEATRICAL LIGHTING 
EQUIPMENT AS FOLLOWS:
PB-1: CIRCUIT A/1- 4
PB-2: CIRCUITS A/1- 6

LIGHTING INTEGRAL TO EQUIPMENT IN THIS AREA.

WALL MOUNT FIXTURE, TYPE OFE, AT 8'-0" AFF TO CENTER 
OF FIXTURE. REMOTE MOUNT EMERGENCY BATTERY  IN 
JANITORY'S CLOSET ON WALL. TYPICAL.

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

SHEET NOTES -
REFER TO ARCHITECTURAL PLANS, ELEVATIONS, AND 
DETAILS FOR EXACT LOCATION OF ALL ELECTRICAL 
DEVICES PRIOR TO COMMENCING INSTALLATION

CIRCUIT NUMBERS INDICATED DO NOT REFLECT THE 
ACTUAL POSITION OF THE CIRCUIT BREAKERS IN THE 
PANEL; RATHER, THE NUMBERS INDICATE WHICH DEVICES 
ARE CONNECTED TO A COMMON CIRCUIT. 

SERVE ALL 208/120 VOLT, NORMAL BRANCH CIRCUITS "NL"  
FROM PANEL '' A/1 '', UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

“R” AS IN “R-**” INDICATES A RELAY CONTROL CIRCUIT FED 
FROM LIGHTING CONTROL PANEL LCP/1 UNLESS 
OTHERWISE NOTED. REFER TO LIGHTING CONTROL PANEL 
SCHEDULE FOR CIRCUIT AND CONTROL INFORMATION.

WIRE ALL EMERGENCY BATTERY UNIT (EBU) LIGHTS TO 
UNSWITCHED LIGHTING CIRCUIT SERVING THE AREA 
WHERE EBU IS LOCATED.

REFERENCE THE RESPONSIBILITY MATRIX, AND THE 
THEATRICAL LIGHTING CONTRACTOR SCOPE OF WORK 
WILL BE PROVIDED BY THE OWNER, EC IS RESPONSIBLE 
FOR RESPECTIVE SCOPE OF WORK.

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION



SHEET

SHEET TITLE

Copyright 2021 Barrientos Design

This drawing and/or content is not to be reproduced, 
changed, copied or assigned to any third party in any 
form or manner without first obtaining the expressed 
written consent of Barrientos Design.  The user 
agrees to indemnify and hold the Architect harmless 
from any damages, liability, or cost, including 
attorney's fees and costs of defense resulting from 
any changes or modifications made by anyone other 
than the Architect.  The Owner or owner's agent shall 
also hold harmless the Architect from any reuse of 
the drawings or data without the securing written 
consent of the Architect.

BARRIENTOS DESIGN PROJECT NUMBER

SET TYPE

DATE

205 West Highland Avenue, Suite 303

Milwaukee, WI 53203

office: 414-271-1812

www. barrientosdesign .com

PROJECT TITLE AND LOCATION

CONSULTANT

X

C
ro

a
ti
a

n
 P

a
rk

 P
a
v
ili

o
n

E
n

te
r 

a
d

d
re

s
s
 h

e
re

Construction Documents

12.22.2023

50881

AUDIO VISUAL - GROUND
LEVEL PLAN

E-324

17400 West Capitol Drive - Brookfield, WI 53045
301 South Blount Street, Suite 101 - Madison, WI 53703
Phone: 414.778.1700 / Fax: 414.778.2360 
r-d@ringdu.com
RD Project Number: 221270.00

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION



C I T Y  O F  F R A N K L I N       
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 

 
Meeting of February 8, 2024 

 
Rural and Urban Areas Map Update 

Item D.2. 

RECOMMENDATION: City Development Staff recommends approval of the proposed update 
to the map entitled “Rural and Urban Areas of the City of Franklin”. 

Project Name: Rural and Urban Areas Map Update. 
Location : Citywide 
Applicant: City of Franklin, Department of City Development 
Planner: Régulo Martínez-Montilva, AICP, CNUa 
 
INTRODUCTION: 
The “Rural and Urban Areas of the City of Franklin” map has not been updated for over 30 
years, the last revision was in 1986. Below is a brief timeline since the adoption of the original 
map: 
 

1985 - Adoption of the “Rural and Urban Areas of the City of Franklin” map (Ord. 85-
860) . 

 1986 - Map revision (Resolution 86-2680). 
1990 - Sanitary Sewer Service Area map for the City of Franklin prepared by SEWRPC 
(Southeastern Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission). 

 1998 - Adoption of the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO). 
 2004 - Proposed Rural and Urban Areas map revision, not approved. 
 2009 - Adoption of the 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan. 
 
The Rural and Urban Areas map is used to regulate parking of trucks and equipment as well as 
raising and keeping animals per Municipal Code Section 183-68, these activities may be 
permitted in rural areas subject to the provisions in this section. This map should be confused 
with an urban growth boundary map or a sanitary sewer service area map. 
 
Why does the Urban and Rural Areas map need an update? 

• According to Municipal Code Section 183-68, “this map may be revised from time to 
time, by resolution passed by the City Council, to redefine the rural and urban areas as 
it becomes necessary”. 

• The 1986 version is out of date, for example the Velo Village Apartments 
development is still considered “rural” per current map. 

• Owners/lessees may obtain a permit to raise animals in neighborhoods that have now 
an urban or suburban character but are still considered “rural” per current map, for 
example Stonewood, Ryanwood Manor and other subdivisions. 

• This map update is listed as part of the Top 20 changes to development regulations 
suggested by City Development staff in 2015. 

 
 



 2 

How are the proposed boundaries defined? 
According to the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO), an urban area is “a delineated sanitary 
sewer service area in conformance with an adopted areawide water quality management plan”. 
Therefore, City Development staff is proposing the following: 
  

Add to urban areas: 
• Areas served or close to public sanitary sewer and public water service. 
• New residential subdivisions and Planned Development Districts. 

Keep as rural areas: 
• Areas not served by public sanitary sewer and public water service. 
• Rural oriented districts or with urban development constraints, specifically: A-1 

Agricultural district, A-2 Prime agricultural district, C-1 Conservancy district, FC 
Floodplain conservancy district, FFO Floodplain fringe overlay district, FW Floodway 
district, P-1 Park district, RC-1 Conservation residence district. 

 
Legal non-conforming uses 
An animal permit is required before raising and keeping animal in rural areas per Municipal 
Code § 183-68C(2)(a), the Department of City Development reviews and issues animal permits, 
such permits must be renewed annually. In 2023, the department issued one animal permit for a 
legal non-conforming use in the urban area, this map update won’t affect this use since the parcel 
is already located in the urban area per the 1986 map. 
 
Notice of change 
Pursuant to Municipal Code § 183-68C(2)(c), “upon the Council's change of an area from rural 
to urban, the City Clerk shall cause to be published a Class 2 notice stating the change and that a 
permit is required for those persons wishing to keep their animals”. 
 
Attachments 

• Draft resolution redefining the rural and urban areas with proposed map as Exhibit A. 
• Map depicting the current urban areas, the proposed update as well as public water and 

sewer lines for reference, this map is not part of the draft resolution. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
City Development Staff recommends approval of the proposed update to the map entitled “Rural 
and Urban Areas of the City of Franklin”. 



STATE OF WISCONSIN              CITY OF FRANKLIN              MILWAUKEE COUNTY 
[Draft 01-10-24] 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-____ 
 

RESOLUTION REDEFINING THE RURAL AND URBAN AREAS 
AS PROVIDED IN ORDINANCE NO. 85-860 REGULATING TRUCK PARKING 

AND RAISING ANIMALS 
__________________________________________________________________________ 
 

WHEREAS, Section 13.19(2) of Ordinance 85-860 provides that the defined rural 
and urban areas can from time to time be altered by resolution as the circumstances change;  
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Common Council adopted Resolution 86-2680, redefining the rural 
and urban areas on October 19, 1986; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Franklin Plan Commission having reviewed the proposed map on 
_____________, 2024, incorporated herein as Exhibit A, and thereafter having 
recommended approval of such amendment; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Common Council has determined that it would be in the best 

interests of the City to revise the map defining the rural and urban areas of the City as 
defined in the attached map. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Common Council of the 

City of Franklin that the rural and urban areas shall be redefined per the attached map as 
provided for in Ordinance 85-860, Section 13.19(2). 

 
Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this 

_______ day of ____________________, 2024. 
 
 Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of 
Franklin this _______ day of ____________________, 2024. 
 

APPROVED: 
 
       _________________________________  
       John R. Nelson, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________       
Shirley Roberts, City Clerk 
 
AYES ______ NOES ______ ABSENT ______  



RURAL AND URBAN AREAS OF THE 
CITY OF FRANKLIN
MILWAUKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN

DATED:              5-21-1985
REVISED:           2-19-1986
                          __-__-20__1:50,000

0 0.5 1 1.5 20.25
miles

URBAN

RURAL

URBAN

DRAFT

rmartinez
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A



RURAL AND URBAN AREAS OF THE 
CITY OF FRANKLIN
MILWAUKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN

1:50,000
0 0.5 1 1.5 20.25

miles

URBAN (1986)

RURAL

Ryan 
Meadows

DRAFT

URBAN 
(2024)

Cape
Crossing

Velo Village

Ryanwood 
Manor

Franklin 
Business Park

Mixed Use
Business Park

Park Circle

Riverview 
Pointe

Stonewood

Shadwell

Prairie Grass 
Preserve

Legend

Urban areas (1986) Resolution 89-2680 

Urban areas (2024) Proposed update 

Parcels within 100 feet of a sanitary gravity main







  
City of Franklin 

Department of City Development 
 
 
January 18, 2024 

To: Plan Commission 

From: Department of City Development 
 Régulo Martínez-Montilva, AICP, CNUa, Principal Planner 

RE: Amendment to the Plan Commission Administrative Procedures and Regulations, 
specifically the meeting frequency to once a month instead of twice a month 

 
 

City Development staff is presenting this amendment to change the meeting frequency to once a 
month instead of twice a month, and asking for direction to select either the first or third Thursday 
of each month. Below is Article V, Section 1 to be amended: 
 

 
 
The purpose of this change is to reduce staff hours devoted to compiling packets, meeting 
preparation and attending meetings, as well as efficient use of commissioners’ time. For example, 
the Plan Commission held 21 meetings in 2023 and 11 of them had two or less items. Staff 
anticipates that this amendment would result in fewer but longer meetings. In case of a high 
volume of applications, the Mayor may call special meetings (Article V, Section 3). 
 
Pursuant to Article X, this amendment requires “a majority vote of the entire membership of the 
Commission”, Common Council approval is not required for this amendment. The Plan 
Commission Administrative Procedures and Regulations are attached to this packet. 
 
Wisconsin Statutes §62.23(2) authorizes municipal plan commissions to establish their own rules 
for conducting meetings. 
 

Item D.3 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 THE CITY PLAN COMMISSION 
 
 OF THE CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES 
 
 AND REGULATIONS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 July 11, 1996 Adopted by the Plan Commission  
 April 23, 1998 Revised  
 June 9, 2005 Revised  
________, 2024   Revised 



PAGE 1 

 
 
 ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES AND REGULATIONS 
 
 
ARTICLE I. Name of Commission 
 
 The name of this operation shall be "The City Plan Commission of the City of 

Franklin, Wisconsin" hereinafter referred to as the "Commission". 
 
ARTICLE II. Authorization 
 
 The authorization for the establishment of this Commission is set forth in Section 

1.06(4) of the Municipal Code of Franklin, Wisconsin, as amended.  
 
ARTICLE III. Membership 
 
Section 1. The Plan Commission shall consist of the Mayor who shall be its presiding 

officer, an alderman appointed by the Mayor and confirmed by the City Council 
who shall serve for one (1) year unless office becomes vacant, the City Engineer 
and three (3) citizens appointed for 3-year terms and one (1) citizen appointed for 
a 1-year term.  

 
Section 2. Each member of the Commission shall be entitled to one (1) vote. Voting by 

proxy is not permitted.  
 
Section 3. All members shall serve without compensation.  
 
Section 4. The Mayor (chair) shall preside at all meetings and hearings of the Commission, 

and shall have the duties normally conferred by parliamentary usage to such 
office.  

 
Section 5. The Mayor, with the assistance of such staff assigned to the Commission by the 

City Administrator, shall be responsible for keeping the official MINUTES and 
records of the Commission and shall prepare agendas for regular and special 
meetings and reports of Commission action, provide notice to all Commission 
members, arrange proper and legal notice of hearings, attend to correspondence of 
the Commission, as approved by same, and have such other duties as may, from 
time to time, be assigned by the Commission.  

 
Section 6. The Alderman member shall preside at all Commission functions in the absence 

of the Mayor, and shall have the duties normally conferred by parliamentary 
usage to such office, including the signing of approved Commission reports and 
all other documents requiring the Commission signature pursuant to state and 
local law. In the absence of the Mayor and Alderman member, the Mayor shall 
pre-designate the citizen Commission member who shall preside.  

 



PAGE 2 

ARTICLE IV.  Subcommittees 
 
 The Mayor may establish such Commission subcommittees as deemed 

appropriate and appoint members thereto. 
 
ARTICLE V. Meetings 
 
Section 1. The regular monthly meeting of the Commission will be held on the Thursday 

following the regular Common Council meeting date of the first and third 
Tuesday of each month.  In the event of a conflict with holidays or other events, a 
majority vote at any Commission meeting may change the date of such regular 
monthly meeting.  

 
Section 2. A quorum shall be four (4) members, but all actions shall require approval of a 

majority of the full Commission, except a motion to adjourn. A record of all 
Commission votes shall be kept as a part of its MINUTES.  

 
Section 3. Special meetings may be called by the Mayor.  It shall be the duty of the Mayor to 

call a special meeting when requested to do so by a majority of the members of 
the Commission.  Special meetings may be held at such times and places as shall 
be determined by the Commission.  

 
Section 4. All meetings of the Commission shall be open to the general public in accordance 

with the Statutes of Wisconsin (Open Meetings Act).  
 
Section 5. Unless otherwise specified, Robert's Rules of Order newly revised, shall govern 

the proceedings at the meetings of the Commission.  
 
ARTICLE VI. Order of Business  
 
Section 1. The order of business at regular monthly meetings and administrative sessions of 

the Commission shall be:   
 
 a. Roll Call  
 
 b. Approval of MINUTES of previous meeting(s).  
 
 c. Hearings  
 
 d. Business  
 
 e. Adjournment  
 
Section 2. Agendas and other documents for all meetings shall, whenever possible, be 

delivered to the members of the Commission no later than the Monday preceding 
the regular meeting.  In general, order of business shall follow the printed 
agendas. 

 
Policy direction from the Plan 
Commission to select either 
the first or third Thursday. 



PAGE 3 

 
ARTICLE V11. Public Meetings Special Meetings Workshops 
 
 The Commission may from time to time hold public meetings, workshops and 

policy sessions which are required pursuant to state and local law, or which the 
Commission deems to be in the public interest. 

 
ARTICLE VIII.  Staff 
 
 The Department of Planning of the City of Franklin, hereinafter referred to as the 

"Department", shall serve as the staff of the Commission, and shall assist the 
Mayor in the preparation and distribution of Commission MINUTES, reports, 
agendas, and other materials. 

 
ARTICLE IX. Procedure for Commission Review 
 
Section 1. The Commission shall review and consider all development proposals upon which 

they are required to take action or to make recommendations to the Mayor and 
City Council pursuant to applicable state and local law. Such proposals shall be 
referred to as "DEVELOPMENT CASES" and shall be placed on the 
 Commission's agenda for consideration subject to the provisions of 
Section 3 of this Article.  The following types of Development Cases shall be 
reviewed by the Commission: 

 
 a. Subdivisions, pursuant to the City Subdivision Regulations. 
 
 b. Zoning text amendments, pursuant to the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
 c. Planned Development Districts, pursuant to the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
 d. Rezonings, Zoning Ordinance. 
 
 e. Special Uses, pursuant to the Zoning Ordinance 
 
 f  Certified Survey Maps, pursuant to the City Subdivision Regulations. 
 
 g. Concept Review to discuss on item on a preliminary level, workshop or 

policy session. 
 
 h. All other Development Cases which the Commission is required to 

consider pursuant to state and local law. 
 
Section 2. The Department shall be responsible for screening all Development Cases 

included under Section 1 of this Article, and for placing on the Commission's 
agenda only those cases which comply to the provisions of Sections 3, 4 and 5 
below. 

 
  



PAGE 4 

Section 3. All new Development Cases included under Section 1 of this Article must be 
submitted to the Department no later than 30 days prior to the regular 
Commission meeting, except if a shorter time frame is permitted in state or local 
law.  

 
 In preparing the Commission's agenda for a particular meeting, the Department 

will accept Development Cases, in accordance with the provisions set forth in this 
Section, on a first come, first served basis.  Acceptable Development Cases which 
cannot appear on the Commission's agenda due to lack of available time or 
incompleteness will receive priority consideration with respect to placement on 
the Commission's next agenda, or when the Development Case is complete.  

 
 At all Commission meetings, the Commission reserves the right to terminate 

deliberation and testimony thereon at 11:00 p.m.  The matter will be heard at next 
meeting.  

 
Section 4. Development Cases which fail to meet the time schedule set forth in Article IX, 

Section 3 above, or which are unacceptable for lack of completeness in 
accordance with City Codes and Department Policies, shall not appear on the 
Commission's regular meeting agenda until the following meeting assuming a 
complete and acceptable application is submitted.   

 
Section 5. All continuations or follow-up meetings with respect to Development Cases, as 

well as any other matter of a non-development nature, must be brought to the 
attention of the Department, and all supporting documentation related thereto 
received by the Department, in complete form and in full accord with applicable 
laws and regulations, no later than 12:00 noon on the Tuesday of the week 
preceding a Commission meeting in order to appear on the agenda for said 
meeting.  

 
Section 6. After acceptance and scheduling of a Development Case in accordance with 

Section 3 of this Article or any agenda matter pursuant to Section 5 of said 
Article, a petitioner or other individual may be granted a postponement by the 
Department for good cause provided that such request for postponement is 
received by said Department no later than 9:00 a.m. on the Friday preceding the 
meeting in order to allow sufficient time for notification.  Any requests for 
postponements received after the above deadline may be only granted by an 
affirmative vote of the Commission upon showing of adequate and good cause.  A 
second such postponement shall only be granted under the most extreme 
circumstances.  The Commission may postpone a review of a Development Case 
during a regular or special meeting, if, in the view of a majority of Commission 
members, filing of the Development Case to the Department is incomplete in 
regards to City Codes and Regulations.  All postponements, if granted by the 
Commission, shall be scheduled for the next available date following the meeting 
at which such postponement is granted, or an announced future date at the general 
agreement of the Commission and petitioner.  Applicants may request up to one 
60-day postponement.  

 
Section 7. Development Cases shall normally be considered by the Commission during their 

regular meetings.  
  
 



PAGE 5 

Section 8. The order of procedure for any Development Case brought before the 
Commission shall be as follows for a public hearing or other development cases 
not requiring a public hearing: 

 
 a. The Mayor shall state the nature of the case. 
 
 b. Department reads Official Notice and briefly introduces Development 

Case. 
 
 c. The applicant shall make a presentation. 
 
 d. Commission members may questions the applicant about the case. 
 
 e. Department may question the applicant about the case. 
 
 f. Public comments. 
 
 g. Applicant response to comments. 
 
 h. Commission discussion, direction and motion. 
 
  i. If Public Hearing where all reviews and analysis by City staff have 

been completed, City staff and the applicant have provided all 
needed information and records to the Plan Commission and the 
Public Hearing has not identified any matters requiring further 
consideration, the Plan Commission may take action as appropriate 
to the case on the night of the Public Hearing.   

 
  ii. If Public Hearing where the Plan Commission considers the matter 

not ready for action, the case may be referred to staff for such 
further activity as is considered appropriate to the case and be 
returned to the Plan Commission when the case is ready for action 
or further direction from the Plan Commission is needed.   

 
  iii. If a non-Public Hearing Development Case, a motion to 

recommend approval, recommend denial or continue discussion to 
a future meeting; or in event of a case not needing Council action, 
approval, denial or continuation.  

 



PAGE 6 

 
 
Section 9. The order of procedure for any Development Case brought before the 

Commission where a Public Hearing was previously held shall be as follows: 
 
 a. Review of Department report and recommendation, and reports and 

recommendation of other City Staff or City Boards and Commissioners, as 
necessary for a particular Development Case. 

 
 b. Commission questions and discussion.  
 
 c. Commission motion to recommend approval, denial, or continue 

discussion to a future meeting. 
 
 
Section 10. In reviewing and voting upon a Development Case, the Commission shall 

consider the standards of the Zoning Ordinance for the particular subject matter, 
the Comprehensive Master Plan, all applicable state and local laws, and good 
planning principles.  The Commission may conditionally approve or recommend 
conditional approve to further support the public health, safety and welfare.   

 
Section 11. In the event the Development Case is a Final Plat of Subdivision, with no other 

action, there shall not be any public input.  Therefore, Article IX, Section 8, 
Paragraphs (f) and (g) shall not apply during the review of a Final Plat of 
Subdivision. 

 
ARTICLE X.  Amendments 
 
 These Administrative Procedures and Regulations, with the exception of Articles 

I, II, III;  Section 1, 2, 3 and 4, and Article V, Section 2 may be amended by a 
majority vote of the entire membership of the Commission. The aforementioned 
Articles can only be amended through revision of the City Code by the Mayor and 
Common Council. 

 
 
  



 
 

1 

 CITY OF FRANKLIN  
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 

 

Meeting of February 8, 2024 
 

Site Plan 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  City Development Staff recommends approval of the Site Plan for the Franklin 
Public Schools building addition and site modifications. 

Project Name:  Franklin Public Schools Site Plan 
Project Address/Tax Key: 8225, 8255, 8429, and 8459 West Forest Hill Avenue / 838 9978 

001 
Property Owner: Franklin Public Schools 
Applicant: Andrew Chromy, Franklin Public Schools 
Aldermanic District: District 2 
Zoning District: I-1 Institutional District 
Staff Planner: Nick Fuchs, Planning Associate 
 

Introduction  
Please note: 

• Recommendations are underlined, in italics and are included in the draft resolution. 
• Suggestions are only underlined and are not included in the draft resolution. 

 
The applicant has filed a Site Plan Application on behalf of Franklin Public Schools for a building 
addition, new parking lot, multiple youth soccer fields, chain-link and aluminum fencing, a new 
playground, a new storage building, walkways, and other associated site changes upon property located 
at 8225, 8255, 8429, and 8459 West Forest Hill Avenue.  
 
The plans provided include several potential alternative design options as well as potential future 
improvements. Final design decisions by the School District will be made based upon the bids 
received. Note that for all bid options, staff recommends that detailed plans of any alternative bid 
options selected by the applicant, as shown on the plans City-stamped January 17, 2024, shall require 
final review and approval by the Planning Department. 
 
Other future improvements that may be included are subject to separate review and approval as noted 
on the plans. These are primarily additional walking paths and boardwalks through wetland areas. Staff 
recommends that no improvements shall be located or constructed within protected natural resource 
features including but not limited to mature and young woodlands, wetlands, wetland buffers, and 
wetland setbacks without prior approval of a Natural Resource Special Exception.  
 
Project Description/Analysis 

Site Plan 
The total site has an area of approximately 54.24 acres. The proposed site plan impacts about 7-acres 
of the property. According to the applicant, about 75% of the property will remain greenspace.  
 

Item D.4. 



 
 

2 

Staff suggests that the 6’ black vinyl chain-link fence with slats be replaced with a decorative 
aluminum fence matching the fencing around the playground area. Staff is not objecting to the fence 
height of six feet. 
 
Building Addition 
The building addition is for a Community education and recreation addition to the existing district 
office building at 8255 W. Forest Hill Avenue. The addition is located on the west side of the existing 
building. It has an area of 13,976 square feet. A potential alternate addition is also shown, which has an 
area of 1,662 square feet. If included, the total new building area will be 15,638 square feet. 
 
The building materials include brick, split face concrete masonry unit (CMU), and metal wall panels. 
 
Proposed Parking Lot 
The new parking lot, located to the west of the addition, contains 122 parking stalls. Based upon the 
size of the addition and the soccer fields, the Standard Parking Ratio of the UDO suggests an 
additional 110 parking spaces.  
 
Considering this is a public school district use, and that the above suggested quantity does not consider 
the playground and walking trails, staff does not object to the proposed quantity of parking provided.  
 
All drive aisle widths and parking space dimensions meet UDO minimum standards.  
 
Natural Resource Protection Plan 
A Natural Resource Protection Plan was completed by the applicant, and an overall NRPP map 
provided within the Plan Commission packets. The site contains mature and young woodlands, 
wetlands, and associated wetland buffers and setbacks.  
 
The applicant is proposing to eliminate 30% of mature woodlands and 50% of young woodlands 
onsite, which is the maximum allowed disturbance per the UDO.  
 
In 2017, at the time the school on the property was developed, Franklin Public Schools recorded a 
Conservation Easement. As part of this project, the natural resources were delineated on the properties 
more recently acquired by the school as well as re-delineated within the current project area.  
 
The 2017 NRPP showed a wetland adjacent to the administration building; however, that wetland no 
longer exists on the property. Note that this was reviewed by a Wisconsin Department of Natural 
Resources Assured Delineator. As such, a revised Conservation Easement shall be reviewed and 
approved by the Common Council and recorded with the Milwaukee County Register of Deeds, prior 
to any land disturbing activities.  
 
Landscaping 
The required number of plantings is based upon the proposed parking, plus a 20% increase as there are 
adjacent residential uses. The applicant has provided a table on the Landscape Plan that accurately 
summarizes the quantity of plantings required. This is being met by providing both new plantings as 
well as requesting credit of existing plantings.  
 
The applicant has focused plantings along the west property line to provide a buffer between the soccer 
fields and the abutting single-family uses. Plantings have also been included in front of the proposed 
chain-link fencing to screen the fence and storage building. A row of plantings is also included along 
Forest Hill Avenue in front of the proposed addition.   



 
 

3 

 
Lighting 
There are 15 light poles included within and around the perimeter of the new parking lot. These lights 
have a peak height of 25-feet and match the existing light poles at the school. Light levels are less than 
one footcandle at the property line. Building lights are mounted at a height of 12-feet. There is a light 
on the storage building as well. The parking lot and building lights are not dimmable. Note the soccer 
fields are not illuminated.  
 
It should be considered that there are abutting single family uses, including across the street. The 
applicant has noted that the lights are full cut-off similar to the existing middle school. Staff did have a 
concern with the visibility of the light source from residential properties, particularly the light pole 
nearest Forest Hill Avenue along the entrance drive. However, as the lighting is consistent with the 
existing light poles onsite and finding no lighting complaints on file, staff does not object to the 
Lighting Plan as proposed.  
 
Staff did express this concern and the applicant forwarded the response below from their light 
designer, which provides some additional details on the light design.  
 

In lighting design, we use a BUG (Backlight – Uplight – Glare) rating to classify the optical 
quality of the luminaire. The Glare rating portion of this classification ranges from 0-5, with 0 
representing a luminaire that has no calculated glare and 5 representing high glare. It’s very 
rare to find an area light with a glare rating of zero due to the lumen packages, distributions, 
and mounting height they must be provided in these luminaires. The area lights used at 
Franklin have a Glare rating of 1, so I do not have any concerns about Glare being an issue for 
the neighboring properties, especially since the majority of our luminaires do not face or direct 
light in the direction of the residential properties. We are also providing backlight shields on 
the (2) area lights closest to the neighboring residential properties to help further cut off/block 
any light that would try to spill in that direction.  
 
Additionally, the Franklin Exterior Lighting Ordinance requires that the luminaires be total 
cutoff if they are not shielded. This means that there is no illumination above 90 degrees from 
Nadir and that the number of lumens at or above 80 degrees does not exceed 10% of the total 
lamp lumens. The luminaires we have on the Franklin project meet this requirement. Pretty 
much this means that we are controlling the light so that it is entirely directed at the ground 
and there is minimal to no contribution to sky glow. Since our luminaires meet this total cut off 
requirement, the only other Franklin Exterior Lighting Ordinance codes we are required to 
follow are providing <4 foot-candles of illumination (we are calculating 2 foot-candles 
maximum) and a maximum permitted luminaire height of 50 feet (our poles are 25ft). We did 
consider lowering the pole height to 20ft however in doing so would require us to increase the 
quantity of area pole lights on the site and we were then having difficulty meeting the <4 foot-
candle maximum illumination.  
 
The Franklin Exterior Lighting Ordinance also has a maximum foot-candle level at the 
property line at the property line of <4 foot-candles. Even with the additional 45ft of ROW we 
have a light level of 1 foot-candle maximum.  
 
The area lights being provided at Franklin will match the area lights provided at the middle 
school a few years back. The wall packs different from the schools, only reason being so that 
they can better match the architecture of the new CERC building and we do not require the 
high lumen packages at the CERC.  



 
 

4 

 
Playground 
The playground is located adjacent to Forest Hill Avenue, between the new parking lot and smaller 
soccer fields. It includes a poured rubber surface and is enclosed by a 4’ aluminum fence. 
 
Note there is an alternative bid to replace the playground with another soccer field.  
 
Soccer Fields 
There are multiple soccer fields proposed at different sizes and configurations. Again, these soccer 
fields are not illuminated. A field does directly abut residential uses.  
 
The applicant has noted that the soccer fields will be irrigated with use of a nearby fire hydrant. Staff 
recommends Engineering Department approval be granted, prior to the use of that fire hydrant to 
irrigate the soccer fields. 
 
Storage Building 
The proposed storage building is 26’ x 50’ (1,300 square feet) and located adjacent to W. Forest Hill 
Avenue within the side yard of the property. The building is setback about 52-feet from the front 
property line.  
 
Staff suggested that the storage building be located to the south of the soccer fields, opposed to the 
closer proximity to the road.  
 
The applicant indicated the proposed location is preferred per their response to staff comments below. 
 

“The school district prefers the storage building to be located on the north side of the soccer 
fields for the following reasons: 
 

(1) Central access to fields & proximity to irrigation hydrant. 
(2) Paved access to storage building from the parking lot, even if alternates are not 
approved. 
(3) Building light at door entry will face away from neighbors/street. 
(4) Located 52 feet away from street and will have obscured view from the street due to 
the proposed privacy slat fence and landscaping. 
(5) Obstructed by mature landscape buffer to the west.” 

 
Staff also suggested that metal not be utilized as a primary building material if located adjacent to 
Forest Hill Avenue. The applicant’s response to that comment is also below. 
 

The architect has added a separate color wainscotting for the base of the wall (still maintaining 
all metal panel). Additionally, note that a landscape buffer/screen and a slatted privacy fence 
are proposed along W. Forest Hill Avenue. Additionally, an existing mature landscape buffer is 
located west of the proposed building location. These elements will heavily obscure view of the 
proposed storage building from the street. This storage building is planned to be a simple 
prefabricated metal structure to help mitigate budget concerns. 

 
Storm water Management 



 
 

5 

Staff recommends that final approval of grading, erosion control, storm water management, and 
utilities, as may be applicable, be granted by the Engineering Department prior to any land 
disturbance activities. 
 
Staff Recommendation 
City Development Staff recommends approval of the Site Plan application, subject to the conditions 
contained within the attached draft resolution. 



STATE OF WISCONSIN        CITY OF FRANKLIN      MILWAUKEE COUNTY                     
PLAN COMMISSION            Draft 1/31/2024 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-  

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A SITE PLAN FOR THE 
CONSTRUCTION OF A BUILDING ADDITION, SOCCER FIELDS, 

PLAYGROUND, DETACHED STORAGE BUILDING, PARKING 
LOT, LANDSCAPING, AND LIGHTING UPON PROPERTY 

LOCATED AT 8225, 8255, 8429, and 8459 WEST FOREST HILL 
AVENUE 

(BY FRANKLIN PUBLIC SCHOOLS, 
APPLICANT/PROPERTY OWNER) 

 
 

WHEREAS, Franklin Public Schools, having petitioned the City of Franklin for the 
approval of a Site Plan for the construction of a building addition, soccer fields, playground, 
detached storage building, parking lot, landscaping, and lighting, upon property located at 
8225, 8255, 8429, and 8459 West Forest Hill Avenue, zoned I-1 Institutional District. The 
property which is the subject of the application bears Tax Key No. 838 9978 001. 

 
WHEREAS, the development proposes a building addition, soccer fields, playground,  

detached storage building, parking lot, landscaping, and lighting, and the Plan Commission 
having reviewed such proposal and having found same to be in compliance with the applicable 
terms and provisions of §15-3.0312 I-1 Institutional District of the Unified Development 
Ordinance and in furtherance of those express standards and purposes of a site plan review 
pursuant to Division 15-7.0100 of the Unified Development Ordinance. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Plan Commission of the City of 

Franklin, Wisconsin, that the Site Plan for Franklin Public Schools dated January 17, 2024, 
as submitted by Franklin Public Schools, as described above, be and the same is hereby 
approved, subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. Franklin Public Schools, successors and assigns and any developer of the Franklin 

Public Schools project shall pay to the City of Franklin the amount of all development 
compliance, inspection and review fees incurred by the City of Franklin, including fees 
of consults to the City of Franklin, for the Franklin Public Schools project, within 30 
days of invoice for same. Any violation of this provision shall be a violation of the 
Unified Development Ordinance, and subject to §15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19 of the 
Municipal Code, the general penalties and remedies provisions, as amended from 
time to time. 

2. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon Franklin Public Schools and the 
Franklin Public Schools project for the property located at 8225, 8255, 8429, and 8459 
West Forest Hill Avenue: (i) being in compliance with all applicable governmental 
laws, statutes, rules, codes, orders and ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all other 
governmental approvals, permits, licenses and the like, required for and applicable to  

 



FRANKLIN PUBLIC SCHOOLS - SITE PLAN  
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-  
Page 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

the project to be developed and as presented for this approval. 

3. The Franklin Public Schools project shall be developed in substantial compliance with 
the plans dated January 17, 2024. 

4. Detailed plans of any alternative bid options selected by the applicant, as shown on the 
plans City-stamped January 17, 2024, shall require final review and approval by the 
Planning Department. 

5. No improvements shall be located or constructed within protected natural resource 
features including but not limited to mature and young woodlands, wetlands, wetland 
buffers, and wetland setbacks without prior approval of a Natural Resource Special 
Exception. 

6. A revised Conservation Easement shall be reviewed and approved by the Common 
Council and recorded with the Milwaukee County Register of Deeds, prior to any land 
disturbing activities. 

7. Engineering Department approval shall be granted, prior to the use of the fire hydrant 
to irrigate soccer fields. 

8. Final approval of grading, erosion control, storm water management, and utilities, as 
may be applicable, shall be granted by the Engineering Department prior to any land 
disturbance activities. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, by the Plan Commission of the City of Franklin, 
Wisconsin, that the Master-Halco, Inc. development as depicted upon the plans dated January 
17, 2024, attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein, shall be developed and 
constructed within one year from the date of adoption of this Resolution, or this Resolution 
and all rights and approvals granted hereunder shall be null and void, without any further 
action by the City of Franklin; and the Site Plan for the property located at 8225, 8255, 8429, 
and 8459 West Forest Hill Avenue, as previously approved, is amended accordingly.   

 
Introduced at a regular meeting of the Plan Commission of the City of 

Franklin this 8th day of February, 2024. 
 

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Plan Commission of the City of Franklin 
this 8th day of February, 2024. 

 
APPROVED: 

 
 
 
 

John R. Nelson, Mayor 
 
 

ATTEST: 

 



FRANKLIN PUBLIC SCHOOLS - SITE PLAN  
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-  
Page 3 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk 
 

 
AYES  NOES  ABSENT   
 
 

 



FRANKLIN PUBLIC SCHOOLS - SITE PLAN  
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-  
Page 4 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
PLANS DATED ______________ 

 
ATTACHED HERETO 

 
 



Planning Department 
(414) 425-4024

8429, 8459, 8225 & 8255 W. Forest Hill Ave.
TKN: 838 9978 001

This map shows the approximate relative location of property
boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyor.
This map is provided for informational purposes only
and may not be sufficient or appropriate for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.

I-1 

R-6 

R-6 

R-7 

R-6 C-1 

PDD 

R-5 

R-7 

C-1 

FOREST HILL                    AVE  

N
2021 Aerial Photo

0 380 760190 Feet

Property

 

Property

Property

Property



Planning Department 
(414) 425-4024

8429, 8459, 8225 & 8255 W. Forest Hill Ave.
TKN: 838 9978 001

This map shows the approximate relative location of property
boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyor.
This map is provided for informational purposes only
and may not be sufficient or appropriate for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.

FOREST HILL                    AVE  

LAKE POINTE DR

N
2021 Aerial Photo

0 380 760190 Feet

Property

 

Property

Property

Property



 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Franklin Public School  

Community Education and Recreation Center  

11/1/2023 

 

Project Description: 

 

Legal Description:  Being a part of the Northeast ¼ of the Southwest ¼ and all of the Northwest ¼ of the Southeast ¼ of 

Section 16, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, described as follows: 

 

Commencing at the West ¼ corner of Section 16, Township 5 North, Range 21 East; Thence N 88°27’55”E along the North 

line of the Southwest ¼ of said Section 16, 2324.22 feet to the point of beginning (POB) of the parcel to be described; 

Thence continuing N 88°27’55”E along said North line, 330.00 feet to the Center ¼ corner of said Section 16; Thence N 

88°41’25”E along the North line of the Southeast ¼ of said Section 16, 1328.67 feet to the Northeast corner of the 

Northwest ¼ of the Southeast ¼ of said Section 16; Thence S 00°32’07”E along the East line of the Northwest ¼ of the 

Southeast ¼ of said Section 16, 1321.89 feet to the Southeast corner thereof; Thence S 88°33’02”W along the South line of 

the Northwest ¼ of the Southeast ¼ of said Section 16, 1328.90 feet to the Southwest corner thereof; Thence S 88°29’03”W 

along the South line of the Northeast ¼ of the Southwest ¼ of said Section 16, 330.00 feet to the Southeast corner of Parcel 

2 of Certified Survey Map No. 5979; Thence N 00°31’39”W along the East line of said Parcel 2, 689.00 feet to the Southeast 

corner of Parcel 1 of said Certified Survey Map No. 5979; Thence S 88°29’03”W along the South line of said Parcel 1, 330.00 

feet to the Southwest corner thereof; Thence N 00°31’38”W along the West line of said Parcel 1, 465.89 feet; Thence N 

88°27’55”E along the West line of said Parcel 1, 225.00 feet; Thence N 00°31’39”W along the West line of said Parcel 1, 

125.02 feet to the Northwest corner of said Parcel 1, said point also being the South right-of-way line of West Forest Hill 

Avenue; Thence N 88°27’55”E along the North line of said Parcel 1 and said South right-of-way line, 105.00 feet to the 

Northeast corner of said Parcel 1; Thence N 00°31’39”W, 45.01 feet to a point on the North line of the Southwest ¼ of said 

Section 16; Thence N 88°27’55”E along said North line, 330.00 feet to the point of beginning. 

 

Narrative:  The proposed construction project consists of constructing a community education and recreation addition to 

the existing district office building, located at 8255 W Forest Hill Ave, Franklin, WI 53132.  Additionally, the area west of the 

addition will be redeveloped into youth soccer fields, a new playground will be installed, a new storage building is 

proposed, and a new walking path will be added with a wetland boardwalk. Sewer and water services will also be installed 

to serve the proposed building addition. Stormwater management will be provided via a proposed bioretention (rain 

garden) practice. The proposed project will disturb approximately 7 acres of land. Additionally, please note that neighboring 

residents have requested that no parking signs be added adjacent to the proposed project, along the south side of West 

Forest Hill Ave.  These signs have been located on the proposed site plan for City consideration. 

 

Site Statistics: 

 

• Existing Zoning: I-1 

• Proposed Zoning: I-1 

• Current Land Use:  Institutional 

• Proposed Land Use:  Institutional 

• Building Materials: See architectural elevations. 

 

Construction Timeline:  March 2024 – March 2025 

 

Construction Budget:  $8.6 million 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: December 19, 2023 

To: Department of City Development 
Nick Fuchs, Planning Associate 

From: Jesse Becker, P.E. (Point of Beginning, Inc.) 

RE:  Staff comments for Site Plan Amendment, Franklin Public Schools 
TKN 838 9978 001 

 
See comments below in blue, in response to the City of Franklin staff review comments, originally 
dated 12/4/2023 regarding this project’s construction plans.  
 
1) Site Plan 

a) As previously discussed regarding the boardwalk and natural resource impacts, please 
eliminate or label any future improvements as such and note that they are subject to 
separate review and approval. 
The proposed wetland boardwalk has been labeled “subject to separate review and 
approval”. If contractor pricing comes back favorably and the school district would like to 
proceed with the boardwalk, a separate review process will be initiated. 

2) Landscaping 
a) Evergreens located within bufferyard areas shall have a minimum planting size of six feet. 

Addressed. 
b) It is recommended to provide irrigation in accordance with 15-5.0303D. 

Two hose bibbs are proposed as part of the proposed addition. All shrubs/ornamentals are 
located within 150’ of these hose bibbs, and the school district has indicated that they are 
willing to utilize 150’ hoses as needed to water these areas, as needed. Therefore, the 
proposed development aligns with the spirit and intent of the law, providing appropriate 
irrigation for the planting bed areas. 
 
Notably, the proposed soccer fields are designed to be irrigated by water wheel. An 
appropriately located fire hydrant is provided to serve this need. A temporary water meter 
will be used when irrigation is needed in the summer. 

c) Staff recommends providing a minimum 2-year plant replacement guaranty for all 
landscaping provided. 
Project specifications have been updated to address this concern. 

d) Staff recommends that bufferyard plantings shall be maintained in perpetuity. 
The school district shall maintain the bufferyard plantings, as required by City Ordinance  
15-5.0303G1. 
 



 

 

Page 2 of 3 

3) Lighting 
a) Please confirm that the soccer fields will not be illuminated. 

The soccer fields will not be illuminated. 
4) Natural Resources 

a) It is recommended to provide a separate Natural Resource Protection Plan map that 
illustrates the site and all protected natural resources as well as proposed impacts. Site data 
should be included, such as the total acreage of any resources onsite and the total amount 
impacted. 
Attached please find a stand-alone copy of the Natural Resource Protection Plan map, 
showing the protected natural resources and proposed impacts. 

b) A separate written Conservation Easement document is required and must be approved by 
the Common Council. This document must be recorded with the Milwaukee County Register 
of Deeds prior to issuance of a Building Permit. A Conservation Easement template is 
attached for your review. 
A conservation easement will be provided per City ordinance. We are currently working with 
the school district to finalize a proposal outlining the limits of a potential easement area. 
Once this area is approved by school district staff, we will submit it to the city for review. In 
the meantime, we suggest that the Plan Commission approve the site plan contingent on 
recording of the final conservation easement. 

5) Accessory Storage Building 
a) Please label the height of the storage building on the elevations. Note the maximum height is 

25-feet.   
Addressed. 

b) It is recommended that the storage building be located on the south side of the soccer fields, 
opposed to adjacent to the street.   
The school district prefers the storage building to be located on the north side of the soccer 
fields for the following reasons: 

(1) Central access to fields & proximity to irrigation hydrant. 
(2) Paved access to storage building from the parking lot, even if alternates are not 

approved. 
(3) Building light at door entry will face away from neighbors/street. 
(4) Located 52 feet away from street and will have obscured view from the street due to 

the proposed privacy slat fence and landscaping. 
(5) Obstructed by mature landscape buffer to the west. 

c) It is also recommended that windows and other architectural features be added to the 
storage building, and that metal not be utilized as the primary building material, particularly 
if located adjacent to W. Forest Hill Avenue. 
The architect has added a separate color wainscotting for the base of the wall (still 
maintaining all metal panel). Additionally, note that a landscape buffer/screen and a slatted 
privacy fence are proposed along W. Forest Hill Avenue. Additionally, an existing mature 
landscape buffer is located west of the proposed building location. These elements will 
heavily obscure view of the proposed storage building from the street. This storage building 
is planned to be a simple prefabricated metal structure to help mitigate budget concerns. 

  



 

 

Page 3 of 3 

6) Signage 
a) Note that all signage must comply with the City’s sign regulations and are subject to separate 

review and approval of a Sign Permit. 
Noted. 

7) Additional Comments 
a) It is recommended that a snow storage plan in compliance with 15-5.0210 of the UDO be 

provided. Note snow storage areas should not interfere with landscaping. 
The proposed snow storage areas has been added to sheet C2.0. Snow will be plowed 
straight south. 

b) Note that site plan amendment approval will be conditioned upon final utility, grading, 
erosion control, and storm water management plans being reviewed and approved by the 
Engineering Department. 
Noted. 



PARCEL 2
CSM #5979
BY OTHERS

PARCEL 1
CSM #5979

PARCEL 2
CSM #5126
BY OTHERS

PARCEL 1
CSM #5126
BY OTHERS

PARCEL 3
CSM #5337
BY OTHERS

PARCEL 1
CSM #5911
BY OTHERS

PARCEL 1
CSM #4567

PARCEL 2
CSM #4567 FOREST MEADOWS ADDITION

45
'

40
'

40
'

40
'

80
'

BENCHMARK #1
ELEV=787.92

PARCEL 2
CSM #5979

30' WETLAND BUFFER

50' WETLAND SETBACK

30' WETLAND BUFFER

30
' W

ET
LA

ND B
UF

FE
R

30' WETLAND
 BUFFER

30' W
ETLAND BUFFER

50' WETLAND SETBACK

30' WETLAND BUFFER

50' WETLAND SETBACK

30' W
ETLAND BUFFER

50' W
ETLAND SETBAC

K

WETLAND

50
' W

ET
LA

ND SE
TB

ACK

WETLAND

WETLAND
WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

50' W
ETLAND SETBACK

10' WIDE UTILITY
EASEMENT PER
DOC. NO. 6383171

C
ivi

l E
ng

in
ee

rin
g

La
nd

 S
ur

ve
yin

g
La

nd
sc

ap
e 

Ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
e

49
41

 K
irs

ch
lin

g 
C

ou
rt

St
ev

en
s P

oi
nt

, W
I 5

44
81

71
5.

34
4.

99
99

(P
h)

  7
15

.3
44

.9
92

2(
FX

)
Po

in
t
Be

gi
nn

in
g

of

PL
UN

KE
TT

 RA
YS

ICH
AR

CH
ITE

CT
S, 

LLP

209
 so

uth
 wa

ter
 str

eet
, m

ilw
auk

ee,
 wi

sco
nsi

n  5
320

4
 23

10 
cro

ssr
oad

s d
rive

, su
ite 

200
0, m

adi
son

, w
isc

ons
in  

537
18

 19
70 

ma
in s

tre
et, 

sui
te 2

01,
 sa

ras
ota

, flo
rida

  34
236

311
 ca

nyo
n w

ren
 dr

ive
, bu

da,
 tex

as 
 78

610

t 41
4 3

59 
306

0
 t 6

08 
240

 99
00

 t 9
41 

444
 88

45
t 51

2 6
49 

562
7

SHEET NO:

JOB NO:

DATE:

REVISIONS:

8/7
/20

23
 2:

18
:51

 P
M

23.070

CO
MM

UN
ITY

 ED
UC

AT
ION

 AN
D R

EC
RE

AT
ION

 CE
NT

ER
825

5 W
 Fo

res
t H

ill A
ve,

 Fr
ank

lin,
 W

I 53
132

DR
AW

N B
Y: 

 JH
B

1/17/2024

Fra
nkl

in P
ubl

ic S
cho

ols
© 2

024
 PL

UN
KE

TT
 RA

YS
ICH

 AR
CH

ITE
CT

S, 
LLP

CITY REVIEW

GENERAL NOTES:

KEYNOTES:

DEMOLITION HATCH PATTERNS:

CIVIL SHEET INDEX:
C1.0 DEMOLITION PLAN
C2.0 LAYOUT PLAN
C3.0 GRADING PLAN - NORTH
C3.1 GRADING PLAN - SOUTH
C4.0 EROSION CONTROL PLAN
C5.0 UTILITY PLAN
C6.0 DETAILS
C6.1 DETAILS
C6.2 DETAILS
C6.3 BOARDWALK DETAILS
L1.0 LANDSCAPE PLAN

C1.0

DE
MO

LIT
IO

N 
PL

ANUTILITY DISCLAIMER:BENCHMARK:

BENCHMARK #1

BENCHMARK #2

BENCHMARK #3

0' 40' 80'

1" = 40'



45
'

40
'

40
'

40
'

80
'

BENCHMARK #1
ELEV=787.92

PROPOSED BUILDING
ADDITION

F.F.E = 787.66 (CIVIL)
F.F.E. = 100'-0" (ARCH)

U6/U8 SOCCER
(15yd x 25yd)

U10 SOCCER
(35yd x55yd)

EXISTING
STORMWATER

BASIN

EXISTING
STORMWATER

BASIN

NEW PARKING LOT
122 STALLS

x

SOCCER
(70yd x90yd)

30' WETLAND BUFFER

50' WETLAND SETBACK

30' WETLAND BUFFER

30
' W

ET
LA

ND B
UF

FE
R

30' WETLAND
 BUFFER

30' W
ETLAND BUFFER

50' WETLAND SETBACK

30' WETLAND BUFFER

50' WETLAND SETBACK

30' W
ETLAND BUFFER

50' W
ETLAND SETBAC

K

WETLAND

50
' W

ET
LA

ND SE
TB

ACK

WETLAND

WETLAND
WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

50' W
ETLAND SETBACK

U10 SOCCER
(35yd x55yd)

U12  SOCCER
(45yd x70yd)

HS SOCCER
(100yd x 70yd)

(300' x 210')

U12  SOCCER
(45yd x70yd)

HS LA CROSSE
(110yd x 60yd)

(300' x 210')

U6/U8 SOCCER
(15yd x 25yd)

PROPOSED
STORAGE
BUILDING
FFE 788.09

(100'-0"
ARCH)

10' WIDE UTILITY
EASEMENT PER
DOC. NO. 6383171

ALTERNATE
ADDITION

C
ivi

l E
ng

in
ee

rin
g

La
nd

 S
ur

ve
yin

g
La

nd
sc

ap
e 

Ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
e

49
41

 K
irs

ch
lin

g 
C

ou
rt

St
ev

en
s P

oi
nt

, W
I 5

44
81

71
5.

34
4.

99
99

(P
h)

  7
15

.3
44

.9
92

2(
FX

)
Po

in
t
Be

gi
nn

in
g

of

PL
UN

KE
TT

 RA
YS

ICH
AR

CH
ITE

CT
S, 

LLP

209
 so

uth
 wa

ter
 str

eet
, m

ilw
auk

ee,
 wi

sco
nsi

n  5
320

4
 23

10 
cro

ssr
oad

s d
rive

, su
ite 

200
0, m

adi
son

, w
isc

ons
in  

537
18

 19
70 

ma
in s

tre
et, 

sui
te 2

01,
 sa

ras
ota

, flo
rida

  34
236

311
 ca

nyo
n w

ren
 dr

ive
, bu

da,
 tex

as 
 78

610

t 41
4 3

59 
306

0
 t 6

08 
240

 99
00

 t 9
41 

444
 88

45
t 51

2 6
49 

562
7

SHEET NO:

JOB NO:

DATE:

REVISIONS:

8/7
/20

23
 2:

18
:51

 P
M

23.070

CO
MM

UN
ITY

 ED
UC

AT
ION

 AN
D R

EC
RE

AT
ION

 CE
NT

ER
825

5 W
 Fo

res
t H

ill A
ve,

 Fr
ank

lin,
 W

I 53
132

DR
AW

N B
Y: 

 JH
B

1/17/2024

Fra
nkl

in P
ubl

ic S
cho

ols
© 2

024
 PL

UN
KE

TT
 RA

YS
ICH

 AR
CH

ITE
CT

S, 
LLP

CITY REVIEW

UTILITY DISCLAIMER:BENCHMARK:

BENCHMARK #1

BENCHMARK #2

BENCHMARK #3

0' 40' 80'

1" = 40'

C2.0

LA
YO

UT
 P

LA
N

KEYNOTES:

PAVEMENT HATCH PATTERNS:

GENERAL NOTES:

SITE PARKING:SITE STATISTICS:



45
'

40
'

40
'

40
'

PROPOSED BUILDING
ADDITION

F.F.E = 787.66 (CIVIL)
F.F.E. = 100'-0" (ARCH)

x

30' WETLAND BUFFER

50' WETLAND SETBACK

30' WETLAND BUFFER

30' WETLAND
 BUFFER

30' W
ETLAND BUFFER

50' WETLAND SETBACK

WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

50' W
ETLAND SETBACK

PROPOSED
STORAGE
BUILDING
FFE 788.09

(100'-0"
ARCH)

ALTERNATE
ADDITION

C
ivi

l E
ng

in
ee

rin
g

La
nd

 S
ur

ve
yin

g
La

nd
sc

ap
e 

Ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
e

49
41

 K
irs

ch
lin

g 
C

ou
rt

St
ev

en
s P

oi
nt

, W
I 5

44
81

71
5.

34
4.

99
99

(P
h)

  7
15

.3
44

.9
92

2(
FX

)
Po

in
t
Be

gi
nn

in
g

of

PL
UN

KE
TT

 RA
YS

ICH
AR

CH
ITE

CT
S, 

LLP

209
 so

uth
 wa

ter
 str

eet
, m

ilw
auk

ee,
 wi

sco
nsi

n  5
320

4
 23

10 
cro

ssr
oad

s d
rive

, su
ite 

200
0, m

adi
son

, w
isc

ons
in  

537
18

 19
70 

ma
in s

tre
et, 

sui
te 2

01,
 sa

ras
ota

, flo
rida

  34
236

311
 ca

nyo
n w

ren
 dr

ive
, bu

da,
 tex

as 
 78

610

t 41
4 3

59 
306

0
 t 6

08 
240

 99
00

 t 9
41 

444
 88

45
t 51

2 6
49 

562
7

SHEET NO:

JOB NO:

DATE:

REVISIONS:

8/7
/20

23
 2:

18
:51

 P
M

23.070

CO
MM

UN
ITY

 ED
UC

AT
ION

 AN
D R

EC
RE

AT
ION

 CE
NT

ER
825

5 W
 Fo

res
t H

ill A
ve,

 Fr
ank

lin,
 W

I 53
132

DR
AW

N B
Y: 

 JH
B

1/17/2024

Fra
nkl

in P
ubl

ic S
cho

ols
© 2

024
 PL

UN
KE

TT
 RA

YS
ICH

 AR
CH

ITE
CT

S, 
LLP

CITY REVIEW

0' 30' 60'

1" = 30'

C3.0

GR
AD

IN
G 

PL
AN

 - N
OR

TH

GENERAL NOTES:

GRADING LEGEND:

UTILITY DISCLAIMER:BENCHMARK:

BENCHMARK #1

BENCHMARK #2

BENCHMARK #3



30' WETLAND BUFFER

50' WETLAND SETBACK

30' WETLAND BUFFER

30
' W

ET
LA

ND B
UF

FE
R

30' WETLAND BUFFER

50' WETLAND SETBACK

50' WETLAND SETBACK

30' W
ETLAND BUFFER

50' W
ETLAND SETBAC

K

WETLAND

50
' W

ET
LA

ND SE
TB

ACK

WETLAND
WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

10' WIDE UTILITY
EASEMENT PER
DOC. NO. 6383171

0' 30' 60'

1" = 30'

C3.1

GR
AD

IN
G 

PL
AN

 - S
OU

TH

C
ivi

l E
ng

in
ee

rin
g

La
nd

 S
ur

ve
yin

g
La

nd
sc

ap
e 

Ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
e

49
41

 K
irs

ch
lin

g 
C

ou
rt

St
ev

en
s P

oi
nt

, W
I 5

44
81

71
5.

34
4.

99
99

(P
h)

  7
15

.3
44

.9
92

2(
FX

)
Po

in
t
Be

gi
nn

in
g

of

PL
UN

KE
TT

 RA
YS

ICH
AR

CH
ITE

CT
S, 

LLP

209
 so

uth
 wa

ter
 str

eet
, m

ilw
auk

ee,
 wi

sco
nsi

n  5
320

4
 23

10 
cro

ssr
oad

s d
rive

, su
ite 

200
0, m

adi
son

, w
isc

ons
in  

537
18

 19
70 

ma
in s

tre
et, 

sui
te 2

01,
 sa

ras
ota

, flo
rida

  34
236

311
 ca

nyo
n w

ren
 dr

ive
, bu

da,
 tex

as 
 78

610

t 41
4 3

59 
306

0
 t 6

08 
240

 99
00

 t 9
41 

444
 88

45
t 51

2 6
49 

562
7

SHEET NO:

JOB NO:

DATE:

REVISIONS:

8/7
/20

23
 2:

18
:51

 P
M

23.070

CO
MM

UN
ITY

 ED
UC

AT
ION

 AN
D R

EC
RE

AT
ION

 CE
NT

ER
825

5 W
 Fo

res
t H

ill A
ve,

 Fr
ank

lin,
 W

I 53
132

DR
AW

N B
Y: 

 JH
B

1/17/2024

Fra
nkl

in P
ubl

ic S
cho

ols
© 2

024
 PL

UN
KE

TT
 RA

YS
ICH

 AR
CH

ITE
CT

S, 
LLP

CITY REVIEW

UTILITY DISCLAIMER:BENCHMARK:

BENCHMARK #1

BENCHMARK #2

BENCHMARK #3

GENERAL NOTES:

GRADING LEGEND:



10' WIDE UTILITY
EASEMENT PER
DOC. NO. 4900543

45
'

40
'

40
'

40
'

80
'

BENCHMARK #1
ELEV=787.92

PROPOSED BUILDING
ADDITION

F.F.E = 787.66 (CIVIL)
F.F.E. = 100'-0" (ARCH)

x

30' WETLAND BUFFER

50' WETLAND SETBACK

30' WETLAND BUFFER

30
' W

ET
LA

ND B
UF

FE
R

30' WETLAND
 BUFFER

30' W
ETLAND BUFFER

50' WETLAND SETBACK

30' WETLAND BUFFER

50' WETLAND SETBACK

30' W
ETLAND BUFFER

50' W
ETLAND SETBAC

K

WETLAND

50
' W

ET
LA

ND SE
TB

ACK

WETLAND

WETLAND
WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

50' W
ETLAND SETBACK

PROPOSED
STORAGE
BUILDING
FFE 788.09

(100'-0"
ARCH)

10' WIDE UTILITY
EASEMENT PER
DOC. NO. 6383171

ALTERNATE
ADDITION

30' WETLAND BUFFER

30' W
ETLAND BUFFER

WETLAND

50' W
ETLAND SETBACK

ALTERNATE
ADDITION

C
ivi

l E
ng

in
ee

rin
g

La
nd

 S
ur

ve
yin

g
La

nd
sc

ap
e 

Ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
e

49
41

 K
irs

ch
lin

g 
C

ou
rt

St
ev

en
s P

oi
nt

, W
I 5

44
81

71
5.

34
4.

99
99

(P
h)

  7
15

.3
44

.9
92

2(
FX

)
Po

in
t
Be

gi
nn

in
g

of

PL
UN

KE
TT

 RA
YS

ICH
AR

CH
ITE

CT
S, 

LLP

209
 so

uth
 wa

ter
 str

eet
, m

ilw
auk

ee,
 wi

sco
nsi

n  5
320

4
 23

10 
cro

ssr
oad

s d
rive

, su
ite 

200
0, m

adi
son

, w
isc

ons
in  

537
18

 19
70 

ma
in s

tre
et, 

sui
te 2

01,
 sa

ras
ota

, flo
rida

  34
236

311
 ca

nyo
n w

ren
 dr

ive
, bu

da,
 tex

as 
 78

610

t 41
4 3

59 
306

0
 t 6

08 
240

 99
00

 t 9
41 

444
 88

45
t 51

2 6
49 

562
7

SHEET NO:

JOB NO:

DATE:

REVISIONS:

8/7
/20

23
 2:

18
:51

 P
M

23.070

CO
MM

UN
ITY

 ED
UC

AT
ION

 AN
D R

EC
RE

AT
ION

 CE
NT

ER
825

5 W
 Fo

res
t H

ill A
ve,

 Fr
ank

lin,
 W

I 53
132

DR
AW

N B
Y: 

 JH
B

1/17/2024

Fra
nkl

in P
ubl

ic S
cho

ols
© 2

024
 PL

UN
KE

TT
 RA

YS
ICH

 AR
CH

ITE
CT

S, 
LLP

CITY REVIEW

GENERAL NOTES:

C4.0

ER
OS

IO
N 

CO
NT

RO
L P

LA
N

EROSION CONTROL LEGEND:

0' 40' 80'

1" = 40'

EROSION CONTROL SEQUENCING:

UTILITY DISCLAIMER:BENCHMARK:

BENCHMARK #1

BENCHMARK #2

BENCHMARK #3

EROSION CONTROL KEYNOTES

0' 40' 80'

1" = 40'
SEDIMENT TRAP



45
'

40
'

40
'

40
'

80
'

BENCHMARK #1
ELEV=787.92

PROPOSED BUILDING
ADDITION

F.F.E = 787.66 (CIVIL)
F.F.E. = 100'-0" (ARCH)

x

30' WETLAND BUFFER

50' WETLAND SETBACK

30' WETLAND BUFFER

30
' W

ET
LA

ND B
UF

FE
R

30' WETLAND
 BUFFER

30' W
ETLAND BUFFER

50' WETLAND SETBACK

30' WETLAND BUFFER

50' WETLAND SETBACK

30' W
ETLAND BUFFER

50' W
ETLAND SETBAC

K

WETLAND

50
' W

ET
LA

ND SE
TB

ACK

WETLAND

WETLAND
WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

50' W
ETLAND SETBACK

PROPOSED
STORAGE
BUILDING
FFE 788.09

(100'-0"
ARCH)

10' WIDE UTILITY
EASEMENT PER
DOC. NO. 6383171

ALTERNATE
ADDITION

ST#8

ST#12
ST#17

ST#6 ST#7

ST#3
ST#2

ST#5ST#4

ST#1

ST#9

ST#10

ST#11

ST#15

ST#14

ST#13

EW#2

ST#16

EW#3

ST#18

EW#4

CO#1

CO#2

ST#20

Structure - (57)
Structure - (58)

ST#19

C
ivi

l E
ng

in
ee

rin
g

La
nd

 S
ur

ve
yin

g
La

nd
sc

ap
e 

Ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
e

49
41

 K
irs

ch
lin

g 
C

ou
rt

St
ev

en
s P

oi
nt

, W
I 5

44
81

71
5.

34
4.

99
99

(P
h)

  7
15

.3
44

.9
92

2(
FX

)
Po

in
t
Be

gi
nn

in
g

of

PL
UN

KE
TT

 RA
YS

ICH
AR

CH
ITE

CT
S, 

LLP

209
 so

uth
 wa

ter
 str

eet
, m

ilw
auk

ee,
 wi

sco
nsi

n  5
320

4
 23

10 
cro

ssr
oad

s d
rive

, su
ite 

200
0, m

adi
son

, w
isc

ons
in  

537
18

 19
70 

ma
in s

tre
et, 

sui
te 2

01,
 sa

ras
ota

, flo
rida

  34
236

311
 ca

nyo
n w

ren
 dr

ive
, bu

da,
 tex

as 
 78

610

t 41
4 3

59 
306

0
 t 6

08 
240

 99
00

 t 9
41 

444
 88

45
t 51

2 6
49 

562
7

SHEET NO:

JOB NO:

DATE:

REVISIONS:

8/7
/20

23
 2:

18
:51

 P
M

23.070

CO
MM

UN
ITY

 ED
UC

AT
ION

 AN
D R

EC
RE

AT
ION

 CE
NT

ER
825

5 W
 Fo

res
t H

ill A
ve,

 Fr
ank

lin,
 W

I 53
132

DR
AW

N B
Y: 

 JH
B

1/17/2024

Fra
nkl

in P
ubl

ic S
cho

ols
© 2

024
 PL

UN
KE

TT
 RA

YS
ICH

 AR
CH

ITE
CT

S, 
LLP

CITY REVIEW

C5.0

UT
ILI

TY
 P

LA
N

UTILITY LEGEND:

GENERAL NOTES:

0' 40' 80'

1" = 40'

UTILITY DISCLAIMER:BENCHMARK:

BENCHMARK #1

BENCHMARK #2

BENCHMARK #3

STORM MANHOLE SCHEDULE



C
ivi

l E
ng

in
ee

rin
g

La
nd

 S
ur

ve
yin

g
La

nd
sc

ap
e 

Ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
e

49
41

 K
irs

ch
lin

g 
C

ou
rt

St
ev

en
s P

oi
nt

, W
I 5

44
81

71
5.

34
4.

99
99

(P
h)

  7
15

.3
44

.9
92

2(
FX

)
Po

in
t
Be

gi
nn

in
g

of

PL
UN

KE
TT

 RA
YS

ICH
AR

CH
ITE

CT
S, 

LLP

209
 so

uth
 wa

ter
 str

eet
, m

ilw
auk

ee,
 wi

sco
nsi

n  5
320

4
 23

10 
cro

ssr
oad

s d
rive

, su
ite 

200
0, m

adi
son

, w
isc

ons
in  

537
18

 19
70 

ma
in s

tre
et, 

sui
te 2

01,
 sa

ras
ota

, flo
rida

  34
236

311
 ca

nyo
n w

ren
 dr

ive
, bu

da,
 tex

as 
 78

610

t 41
4 3

59 
306

0
 t 6

08 
240

 99
00

 t 9
41 

444
 88

45
t 51

2 6
49 

562
7

SHEET NO:

JOB NO:

DATE:

REVISIONS:

8/7
/20

23
 2:

18
:51

 P
M

23.070

CO
MM

UN
ITY

 ED
UC

AT
ION

 AN
D R

EC
RE

AT
ION

 CE
NT

ER
825

5 W
 Fo

res
t H

ill A
ve,

 Fr
ank

lin,
 W

I 53
132

DR
AW

N B
Y: 

 JH
B

1/17/2024

Fra
nkl

in P
ubl

ic S
cho

ols
© 2

024
 PL

UN
KE

TT
 RA

YS
ICH

 AR
CH

ITE
CT

S, 
LLP

CITY REVIEW

C6.0

DE
TA

ILS

ACCESSIBLE PARKING STALL

ACCESSIBLE PARKING SIGN STANDARD CURB RAMP BIKE RACK

18" CURB AND GUTTER

ASPHALT PAVEMENT CONCRETE SIDEWALK POURED RUBBER PLAY AREA

END-OF-WALK CURB RAMP

FENCE POST - FOUNDATION FENCE POST - DRIVEN

STANDARD REJECT
ROLL CURB & GUTTER

24" ROLL CURB AND GUTTER



C
ivi

l E
ng

in
ee

rin
g

La
nd

 S
ur

ve
yin

g
La

nd
sc

ap
e 

Ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
e

49
41

 K
irs

ch
lin

g 
C

ou
rt

St
ev

en
s P

oi
nt

, W
I 5

44
81

71
5.

34
4.

99
99

(P
h)

  7
15

.3
44

.9
92

2(
FX

)
Po

in
t
Be

gi
nn

in
g

of

PL
UN

KE
TT

 RA
YS

ICH
AR

CH
ITE

CT
S, 

LLP

209
 so

uth
 wa

ter
 str

eet
, m

ilw
auk

ee,
 wi

sco
nsi

n  5
320

4
 23

10 
cro

ssr
oad

s d
rive

, su
ite 

200
0, m

adi
son

, w
isc

ons
in  

537
18

 19
70 

ma
in s

tre
et, 

sui
te 2

01,
 sa

ras
ota

, flo
rida

  34
236

311
 ca

nyo
n w

ren
 dr

ive
, bu

da,
 tex

as 
 78

610

t 41
4 3

59 
306

0
 t 6

08 
240

 99
00

 t 9
41 

444
 88

45
t 51

2 6
49 

562
7

SHEET NO:

JOB NO:

DATE:

REVISIONS:

8/7
/20

23
 2:

18
:51

 P
M

23.070

CO
MM

UN
ITY

 ED
UC

AT
ION

 AN
D R

EC
RE

AT
ION

 CE
NT

ER
825

5 W
 Fo

res
t H

ill A
ve,

 Fr
ank

lin,
 W

I 53
132

DR
AW

N B
Y: 

 JH
B

1/17/2024

Fra
nkl

in P
ubl

ic S
cho

ols
© 2

024
 PL

UN
KE

TT
 RA

YS
ICH

 AR
CH

ITE
CT

S, 
LLP

CITY REVIEW

C6.1

DE
TA

ILS

CROSSWALK

INLET PROTECTION EROSION BLANKET - SLOPE

ROCK CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE TEMPORARY DITCH CHECK

PROPOSED SILT FENCE

FLOW DIRECTION

 3.

FLO
W DIRECTIO

N

3' MAX
3' MAX

3' MAX
3' MAX

FENCE TO BE WRAPPED
AROUND FENCE POST &
STAPLED OR NAILED

EROSION BLANKET - CHANNEL

CONCRETE WASHOUT AREA



C
ivi

l E
ng

in
ee

rin
g

La
nd

 S
ur

ve
yin

g
La

nd
sc

ap
e 

Ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
e

49
41

 K
irs

ch
lin

g 
C

ou
rt

St
ev

en
s P

oi
nt

, W
I 5

44
81

71
5.

34
4.

99
99

(P
h)

  7
15

.3
44

.9
92

2(
FX

)
Po

in
t
Be

gi
nn

in
g

of

PL
UN

KE
TT

 RA
YS

ICH
AR

CH
ITE

CT
S, 

LLP

209
 so

uth
 wa

ter
 str

eet
, m

ilw
auk

ee,
 wi

sco
nsi

n  5
320

4
 23

10 
cro

ssr
oad

s d
rive

, su
ite 

200
0, m

adi
son

, w
isc

ons
in  

537
18

 19
70 

ma
in s

tre
et, 

sui
te 2

01,
 sa

ras
ota

, flo
rida

  34
236

311
 ca

nyo
n w

ren
 dr

ive
, bu

da,
 tex

as 
 78

610

t 41
4 3

59 
306

0
 t 6

08 
240

 99
00

 t 9
41 

444
 88

45
t 51

2 6
49 

562
7

SHEET NO:

JOB NO:

DATE:

REVISIONS:

8/7
/20

23
 2:

18
:51

 P
M

23.070

CO
MM

UN
ITY

 ED
UC

AT
ION

 AN
D R

EC
RE

AT
ION

 CE
NT

ER
825

5 W
 Fo

res
t H

ill A
ve,

 Fr
ank

lin,
 W

I 53
132

DR
AW

N B
Y: 

 JH
B

1/17/2024

Fra
nkl

in P
ubl

ic S
cho

ols
© 2

024
 PL

UN
KE

TT
 RA

YS
ICH

 AR
CH

ITE
CT

S, 
LLP

CITY REVIEW

CURB INLET

GATE VALVE

ENDWALL STRUCTURE STORM SEWER MANHOLE

MODULAR INLET CLEANOUT BIORETENTION BASIN

SEWER MAIN CONNECTION
C6.2

DE
TA

ILS



C
ivi

l E
ng

in
ee

rin
g

La
nd

 S
ur

ve
yin

g
La

nd
sc

ap
e 

Ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
e

49
41

 K
irs

ch
lin

g 
C

ou
rt

St
ev

en
s P

oi
nt

, W
I 5

44
81

71
5.

34
4.

99
99

(P
h)

  7
15

.3
44

.9
92

2(
FX

)
Po

in
t
Be

gi
nn

in
g

of

PL
UN

KE
TT

 RA
YS

ICH
AR

CH
ITE

CT
S, 

LLP

209
 so

uth
 wa

ter
 str

eet
, m

ilw
auk

ee,
 wi

sco
nsi

n  5
320

4
 23

10 
cro

ssr
oad

s d
rive

, su
ite 

200
0, m

adi
son

, w
isc

ons
in  

537
18

 19
70 

ma
in s

tre
et, 

sui
te 2

01,
 sa

ras
ota

, flo
rida

  34
236

311
 ca

nyo
n w

ren
 dr

ive
, bu

da,
 tex

as 
 78

610

t 41
4 3

59 
306

0
 t 6

08 
240

 99
00

 t 9
41 

444
 88

45
t 51

2 6
49 

562
7

SHEET NO:

JOB NO:

DATE:

REVISIONS:

8/7
/20

23
 2:

18
:51

 P
M

23.070

CO
MM

UN
ITY

 ED
UC

AT
ION

 AN
D R

EC
RE

AT
ION

 CE
NT

ER
825

5 W
 Fo

res
t H

ill A
ve,

 Fr
ank

lin,
 W

I 53
132

DR
AW

N B
Y: 

 JH
B

1/17/2024

Fra
nkl

in P
ubl

ic S
cho

ols
© 2

024
 PL

UN
KE

TT
 RA

YS
ICH

 AR
CH

ITE
CT

S, 
LLP

CITY REVIEW

BOARDWALK - PLAN VIEWBOARDWALK - PROFILE VIEW

BOARDWALK - SECTION VIEW

C6.3

BO
AR

DW
AL

K 
DE

TA
ILS



C
ivi

l E
ng

in
ee

rin
g

La
nd

 S
ur

ve
yin

g
La

nd
sc

ap
e 

Ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
e

49
41

 K
irs

ch
lin

g 
C

ou
rt

St
ev

en
s P

oi
nt

, W
I 5

44
81

71
5.

34
4.

99
99

(P
h)

  7
15

.3
44

.9
92

2(
FX

)
Po

in
t
Be

gi
nn

in
g

of

PL
UN

KE
TT

 RA
YS

ICH
AR

CH
ITE

CT
S, 

LLP

209
 so

uth
 wa

ter
 str

eet
, m

ilw
auk

ee,
 wi

sco
nsi

n  5
320

4
 23

10 
cro

ssr
oad

s d
rive

, su
ite 

200
0, m

adi
son

, w
isc

ons
in  

537
18

 19
70 

ma
in s

tre
et, 

sui
te 2

01,
 sa

ras
ota

, flo
rida

  34
236

311
 ca

nyo
n w

ren
 dr

ive
, bu

da,
 tex

as 
 78

610

t 41
4 3

59 
306

0
 t 6

08 
240

 99
00

 t 9
41 

444
 88

45
t 51

2 6
49 

562
7

SHEET NO:

JOB NO:

DATE:

REVISIONS:

8/7
/20

23
 2:

18
:51

 P
M

23.070

CO
MM

UN
ITY

 ED
UC

AT
ION

 AN
D R

EC
RE

AT
ION

 CE
NT

ER
825

5 W
 Fo

res
t H

ill A
ve,

 Fr
ank

lin,
 W

I 53
132

DR
AW

N B
Y: 

 JH
B

1/17/2024

Fra
nkl

in P
ubl

ic S
cho

ols
© 2

024
 PL

UN
KE

TT
 RA

YS
ICH

 AR
CH

ITE
CT

S, 
LLP

CITY REVIEW

WATER LINE BACKFILL

SANITARY SEWER BACKFILL

C6.4

FR
AN

KL
IN

 S
TA

ND
AR

D 
DE

TA
ILS

SANITARY SEWER AND RISERSTANDARD HYDRANT SETTING

UTILITIES VERTICAL SEPARATION



45
'

40
'

40
'

40
'

80
'

BENCHMARK #1
ELEV=787.92

PROPOSED BUILDING
ADDITION

F.F.E = 787.66 (CIVIL)
F.F.E. = 100'-0" (ARCH)

x

30' WETLAND BUFFER

50' WETLAND SETBACK

30' WETLAND BUFFER

30
' W

ET
LA

ND BU
FF

ER

30' WETLAND
 BUFFER

30' W
ETLAND BUFFER

50' WETLAND SETBACK

50
' W

ET
LA

ND SE
TB

ACK

WETLAND

WETLAND
WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

50' W
ETLAND SETBACK

PROPOSED
STORAGE
BUILDING
FFE 788.09

(100'-0"
ARCH)

PROPOSED BUILDING
ADDITION

F.F.E = 787.66 (CIVIL)
F.F.E. = 100'-0" (ARCH)

30' W
ETLAND BUFFER

50' WETLAND SETBACK

WETLAND

50' W
ETLAND SETBACK

ALTERNATE
ADDITION

C
ivi

l E
ng

in
ee

rin
g

La
nd

 S
ur

ve
yin

g
La

nd
sc

ap
e 

Ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
e

49
41

 K
irs

ch
lin

g 
C

ou
rt

St
ev

en
s P

oi
nt

, W
I 5

44
81

71
5.

34
4.

99
99

(P
h)

  7
15

.3
44

.9
92

2(
FX

)
Po

in
t
Be

gi
nn

in
g

of

PL
UN

KE
TT

 RA
YS

ICH
AR

CH
ITE

CT
S, 

LLP

209
 so

uth
 wa

ter
 str

eet
, m

ilw
auk

ee,
 wi

sco
nsi

n  5
320

4
 23

10 
cro

ssr
oad

s d
rive

, su
ite 

200
0, m

adi
son

, w
isc

ons
in  

537
18

 19
70 

ma
in s

tre
et, 

sui
te 2

01,
 sa

ras
ota

, flo
rida

  34
236

311
 ca

nyo
n w

ren
 dr

ive
, bu

da,
 tex

as 
 78

610

t 41
4 3

59 
306

0
 t 6

08 
240

 99
00

 t 9
41 

444
 88

45
t 51

2 6
49 

562
7

SHEET NO:

JOB NO:

DATE:

REVISIONS:

8/7
/20

23
 2:

18
:51

 P
M

23.070

CO
MM

UN
ITY

 ED
UC

AT
ION

 AN
D R

EC
RE

AT
ION

 CE
NT

ER
825

5 W
 Fo

res
t H

ill A
ve,

 Fr
ank

lin,
 W

I 53
132

DR
AW

N B
Y: 

 JH
B

1/17/2024

Fra
nkl

in P
ubl

ic S
cho

ols
© 2

024
 PL

UN
KE

TT
 RA

YS
ICH

 AR
CH

ITE
CT

S, 
LLP

CITY REVIEW

UTILITY DISCLAIMER:BENCHMARK:

BENCHMARK #1

BENCHMARK #2

BENCHMARK #3

L1.0

LA
ND

SC
AP

E 
PL

AN0' 40' 80'

1" = 40'

GENERAL NOTES:

PLANTING SCHEDULE:

LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS:

LANDSCAPE HATCH PATTERNS:

KEYNOTES

MOW STRIP

ALTERNATE ADDITION



DDDDDDDDDDDDD

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

DDDDDDDD
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D D D D D

D
D

D
D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D

DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDD

SEWRPC, Maxar, Microsoft

0 200 400100

Feet

Franklin Public Schools
Post Construction Natural Resources Map 

8255 W Forest Hill Avenue
City of Franklin

Milwaukee County, WI
Project: MIL23-031-63

/
Legend
D

D

D Site Boundary

30' Wetland Buffer

Wetland Line

Wetland

Post Construction Mature Forest

Conservation Easement Areas



x

WEST FOREST HILL AVENUE

C.O.

ST

t

SS SSSS
SS

GM

FO

G

ET

EMEBEBEBEB

EB

EB

4
0
'

4
0
'

8
0
'

{LE1}

Calculation Summary

Label Units Avg Max Min Avg/Min Max/Min

Main Entry Canopy Fc 9.26 17.4 1.5 6.17 11.60

Maintenace Building Entry Fc 0.98 1.6 0.1 9.80 16.00

Parking Lot Fc 1.15 2.0 0.2 5.75 10.00

Pathways Fc 0.76 1.7 0.0 N.A. N.A.

Property Boundary Line Fc 0.00 0.0 0.0 N.A. N.A.

Luminaire Schedule

Label Tag Luminaire

Lumens

Luminaire

Watts

BUG Rating LCS UL LCS UH Mounting

Height

Ligman Leeds Small Wallpack, T4

Distribution

S1 607 7.6 N.A. N.A. N.A. 12

CREE OSQ Series, Type 3M

Distribution

S2 3800 26 B1-U0-G1 0.0 0.0 25

Alphabet NU4 Downlight F4 803 8.5 N.A. N.A. N.A. 9.5

Cree OSQ Series, Type 5M

Distribution

S2A 9000 55 B3-U0-G1 0.0 0.0 25

Cree OSQ Series, Type 2B

Distribution

S2B 2620 26 B1-U0-G1 0.0 0.0 25

1.5 5.9 5.5 5.6 5.7

3.0 16.7 16.2 15.2 14.0

2.9 17.2

2.9 17.4

0.1 0.5 1.2 1.6 1.5

0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5

0.6 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6

0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6

0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.7

0.8 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.8

0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9

1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1

1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2

1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.6 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3

1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.6 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.6 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3

1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.6 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.6 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3

1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.5 1.6 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2

1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1

1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0

0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9

0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9

0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8

0.9 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.8

0.9 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.8

0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8

0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9

0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9

1.0 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0

1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.1

1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3

1.4 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.6 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.6 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4

1.4 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.4 1.7 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.7 1.4 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4

1.4 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.4 1.6 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.7 1.4 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4

1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3

1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2

1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1

1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0

0.9 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9

0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9

0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.0 0.9

0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9

1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 0.9

1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0

1.1 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1

1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2

1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.6 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4

1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.4 1.7 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.7 1.4 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4

1.4 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.4 1.7 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.7 1.4 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4

1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.6 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.6 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4

1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2

1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1

1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0

0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9

0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9

0.9 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9

0.9 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9

0.9 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9

0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9

0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9

1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0

1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1

1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2

1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.3 1.6 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.4 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3

1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.3 1.6 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.4

1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.3 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3

1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2

1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1

1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9

0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8

0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7

1.6 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1

1.6 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.1

1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 1.2 1.4 1.4 1.2

1.2 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.7 1.2 1.4 1.4 1.2

1.2 1.4 1.4 1.3

1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3

1.1 1.2 1.2 1.1

1.0 1.1 1.0 1.0

1.0 1.1 1.1 1.0

0.9 1.1 1.1 1.0

0.8 1.0 1.0 0.9

0.7 0.9 0.8 0.7

0.6 0.7 0.7 0.5

0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4

0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3

0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2

0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.4 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.4 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.3

0.4 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3

0.4 0.5 0.4

0.5 0.5 0.4

0.5 0.6 0.5

0.6 0.7 0.6

0.7 0.8 0.7

0.8 0.9 0.8

1.0 1.1 1.0

1.3 1.3 1.3

1.5 1.4 1.6

1.6 1.4 1.6

1.5 1.4 1.5

1.2 1.2 1.1

1.0 1.0 0.9

0.8 0.9 0.8

0.8 0.8 0.7

0.7 0.8 0.7

0.7 0.8 0.6

0.7 0.8 0.6

0.7 0.8 0.6

0.7 0.8 0.7

0.8 0.8 0.7

0.8 0.9 0.7

0.9 1.0 0.8

1.1 1.2 1.1

1.4 1.4 1.4

1.6 1.5 1.6

1.6 1.5 1.7

1.5 1.5 1.5

1.2 1.2 1.2

1.0 1.1 0.9

0.9 0.9 0.8

0.8 0.9 0.8

0.8 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.8 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.5 0.3 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.8 0.8 0.7

0.8 0.8 0.7

0.8 0.9 0.8

0.9 1.0 0.8

1.0 1.1 0.9

1.2 1.3 1.2

1.5 1.5 1.5

1.6 1.5 1.7

1.6 1.5 1.6

1.4 1.4 1.4

1.1 1.1 1.1

0.9 1.0 0.9

0.8 0.9 0.8

0.8 0.8 0.7

0.7 0.8 0.7

0.7 0.8 0.7

0.7 0.8 0.7

0.7 0.8 0.7

0.7 0.8 0.7

0.8 0.9 0.7

0.9 0.9 0.8

1.0 1.1 1.0

1.3 1.3 1.3

1.5 1.5 1.6

1.6 1.5 1.6

1.5 1.4 1.5

1.2 1.2 1.2 1.6

1.0 1.0 0.9 1.2

0.8 0.8 0.7 0.6

0.8 0.7 0.6 0.1

0.8 0.6 0.5 1.3 0.0

0.7 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 1.0 1.5 1.6 1.3 0.7

0.6 0.9 0.8 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.9 1.3 1.6 1.3 1.1 0.6 0.3 0.5 0.9 1.3 1.3 1.0 0.6 0.5 0.8 1.2 1.3 1.1 0.6

0.5 0.4 0.3

0.4 0.4 0.3

0.3 0.3 0.2

0.2 0.3 0.2

0.2 0.2 0.2

0.1 0.2 0.1

0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.1 0.1

0.0 0.1 0.1

0.0 0.1 0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

S2BS2B

S2S2

S2S2

S2S2

S2S2

S2S2

S2AS2A

S2AS2A

S2AS2A

S2AS2A S2S2

S2S2

S2S2

S2S2

S2BS2B

S1S1

S1S1
S1S1 S1S1S1S1

S1S1

S1S1

S1S1

F4F4

(TYP. OF 5)

A B

ALT 1

P
L

U
N

K
E

T
T

 
R

A
Y

S
IC

H
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

, 
L

L
P

2
0

9
 s

o
u
th

 w
a
te

r 
s
tr

e
e
t,

 m
il
w

a
u
k
e

e
, 

w
is

c
o
n

s
in

  
5

3
2

0
4

2
3

1
0

 c
ro

s
s
ro

a
d
s
 d

ri
v
e

, 
s
u
it
e

 2
0

0
0

, 
m

a
d
is

o
n
, 

w
is

c
o
n

s
in

  
5

3
7

1
8

1
9
7

0
 m

a
in

 s
tr

e
e

t,
 s

u
it
e

 2
0
1

, 
s
a
ra

s
o
ta

, 
fl
o

ri
d

a
  
3

4
2

3
6

3
1
1

 c
a
n

y
o
n

 w
re

n
 d

ri
v
e

, 
b

u
d

a
, 

te
x
a

s
  
7

8
6

1
0

t 
4

1
4

 3
5

9
 3

0
6
0

t 
6

0
8

 2
4

0
 9

9
0
0

t 
9

4
1

 4
4

4
 8

8
4
5

t 
5

1
2

 6
4

9
 5

6
2
7

SHEET NO:

N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

JOB NO:

DATE:

REVISIONS:

BID PACKAGE:

1
0
/3

1
/2

0
2
3
 4

:0
0
:5

7
 P

M

220292-01

E200L

C
om

m
un

ity
 E

du
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

R
ec

re
at

io
n 

C
en

te
r A

dd
iti

on

82
55

 W
es

t F
or

es
t H

ill
 A

ve
, F

ra
nk

lin
, W

I 5
31

32

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:  

A
ut

ho
r

S
IT

E
 L

IG
H

T
IN

G
 S

U
B

M
IT

T
A

L

11/02/2023

Fr
an

kl
in

 P
ub

lic
 S

ch
oo

ls

©
 2

02
3 

P
LU

N
K

E
TT

 R
A

Y
S

IC
H

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
TS

, L
LP

DESIGN DEVELOPMENT

2
3
1
0
 C

R
O

S
S

R
O

A
D

S
 D

R
S

U
IT

E
 3

0
0
0

M
A

D
IS

O
N

, 
W

I 
5
3
7
1
8

P
: 

6
0
8
.2

2
3
.9

6
0
0
  

F
: 

6
0
8
.2

2
3
.9

6
0
1

w
w
w
.im
e
g
c
o
rp
.c
o
m

IM
E

G
 C

O
R

P
. 

R
E

S
E

R
V

E
S

 P
R

O
P

R
IE

T
A

R
Y

 R
IG

H
T

S
, 

IN
C

L
U

D
IN

G
 C

O
P

Y
R

IG
H

T
S

, 
T

O
 T

H
IS

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

 A
N

D
 T

H
E

 D
A

T
A

 S
H

O
W

N
 T

H
E

R
E

O
N

. 
 S

A
ID

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

 
A

N
D

/O
R

 D
A

T
A

 A
R

E
 T

H
E

 E
X

C
L
U

S
IV

E
 P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 O

F
 I
M

E
G

 C
O

R
P

. 
A

N
D

 
S

H
A

L
L
 N

O
T

 B
E

 U
S

E
D

 O
R

 R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 F
O

R
 A

N
Y

 O
T

H
E

R
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
W

IT
H

O
U

T
 T

H
E

 E
X

P
R

E
S

S
 W

R
IT

T
E

N
 A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L
 A

N
D

 P
A

R
T

IC
IP

A
T

IO
N

 O
F

 
IM

E
G

 C
O

R
P

. 
  

©
2
0
2
3
 I
M

E
G

 C
O

R
P

.

R
E

F
. 

S
C

A
L

E
 I
N

 I
N

C
H

E
S

0
1

2
3

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 #
2
3
0
0
3
6
5
1
.0

0

N
O R

HT

1" = 30'-0"

  SITE LIGHTING PLAN
1

PL
UN

KE
TT

 RA
YS

ICH
AR

CH
ITE

CT
S, 

LLP



EXTERIOR FINISH PATTERNS

BRICK

SPLIT FACE CONCRETE MASONRY 
UNIT (CMU)

METAL WALL PANEL

WOOD LOOK - METAL WALL PANEL

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS GENERAL NOTES

A. PAINT ALL EXPOSED STEEL LINTELS TO MATCH ADJACENT MASONRY COLOR

B. REFER TO SHEET             FOR WINDOW FRAME ELEVATIONS

C. SEALANT COLORS TO MATCH ADJACENT FINISHED SURFACES.

D. PROVIDE CONTROL JOINTS AS SHOWN ON ELEVATIONS AND AT ALL INSIDE CORNERS.

E. MAIN RECREATION/ CLINIC ADDITION: ARCH 100'-0" = CIVIL 787.66'

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS SYMBOLS LEGEND

SECTION REFERENCE

ELEVATION NOTE

DETAIL REFERENCE

WINDOW TYPE

CONSTRUCTION KEYNOTE

AL01

1
A101

1
A101

A891

X

.X

A B

ALT 1
C2

C1

D2

D1
D3

B2

B1

C2

FIRST FLOOR
100'-0"

EXTG DECK BRG - WAREHOUSE
115'-0"

DECK BRG - HIGH
122'-0"

A1
A500

FR:4

ABCDEFGHJKL

CJ CJ

G2

G2

407
G2

FIRST FLOOR
100'-0"

EXTG DECK BRG - WAREHOUSE
115'-0"

DECK BRG - HIGH
122'-0"

DECK BRG - LOW
111'-4"

C1
A500

D1
A500

B1
A500

FR:8
FR:8 FR:8

FR:4

FR:8 FR:8 FR:8

FR:10

12344.1567891011 10.1

CJ CJ CJ CJ CJ CJ

CJ
CJ

EXISTING NEW

EQEQ EQEQ

G2

G2

G2G4

G4

G4

407

FR:4

FR:8FR:8FR:8

FR:4

G1G2

G1

FIRST FLOOR
100'-0"

EXTG DECK BRG - WAREHOUSE
115'-0"

DECK BRG - HIGH
122'-0"

DECK BRG - LOW
111'-4"

C1
A500

D1
A500

B1
A500

FR:6
FR:9

FR:8 FR:8 FR:8 FR:8 FR:8 FR:8

FR:10

1 2 3 4 4.1 5 6 7 8 9 10 1110.1

CJ CJCJ

302G2

G2

G2

G4

406

EXISTINGNEW

G4

C3
A600

G1

G1

FIRST FLOOR
100'-0"

EXTG DECK BRG - WAREHOUSE
115'-0"

DECK BRG - HIGH
122'-0"

DECK BRG - LOW
111'-4"

A1
A500

FR:8 FR:8 FR:8

FR:7 FR:7 FR:7 FR:7 FR:7 FR:7

FR:11

FR:5

400

405

A B C D E F G H J K L

CJ CJCJ

CJ CJ

CJ

401

G2

G2

G4 G4

407

1'-0"

406

402

G1

G1

FIRST FLOOR
100'-0"

EXTG DECK BRG - WAREHOUSE
115'-0"

DECK BRG - HIGH
122'-0"

FR:8A FR:8AFR:8A

L.7NP

CJ

G2

407

O

FIRST FLOOR
100'-0"

EXTG DECK BRG - WAREHOUSE
115'-0"

DECK BRG - HIGH
122'-0"

DECK BRG - LOW
111'-4"

C1
A500

B1
A500

FR:8A FR:8A FR:8A

1 3 4 4.13.4 3.93.52.1

CJ

G2

406

407

FR:4A

G1

DECORATIVE, 
FROSTED FILM

FIRST FLOOR
100'-0"

EXTG DECK BRG - WAREHOUSE
115'-0"

DECK BRG - LOW
111'-4"

FR:5

FR:8A FR:8A FR:8AFR:8A FR:8A

403

J K L L.7 N P

CJ CJ

401

G2
G4

EQ EQ

407

406

404

1'
-0

"
1'

-6
"

2'-0"

G1

O

3'
-0

"

14
'-4

"

10
'-0

"

3'
-0

"

PRE-MANUFACTURED NON-INSULATED STORAGE 
BUILDING WITH METAL WALLS AND ROOF, TYP.

COLOR TO BE WHITE WITH GRAY BASE - TO BE 
SELECTED FROM MANUFACTURER'S STANDARD 
PREMANUFACTURED FINISHES.

FOUNDATION DESIGN BY MANUFACTURER, TYP.

14
'-4

"

10
'-0

"

STORAGE BUILDING
*ARCH 100'-0" = CIVIL 788.09'

3'
-0

"

3'
-0

"

P
L
U
N
K
E
T
T
 R
A
Y
S
IC
H

A
R
C
H
IT
E
C
T
S
, L
L
P

2
0
9
 s
o
u
th
 w

a
te
r 
st
re
e
t,
 m

ilw
a
u
k
e
e
, w

is
co

n
si
n
  5
3
2
0
4

2
3
1
0
 c
ro
ss
ro
a
d
s 
d
ri
v
e
, s
u
it
e
 2
0
0
0
, m

a
d
is
o
n
, w

is
co

n
si
n
  5
3
7
1
8

1
9
7
0
 m

a
in
 s
tr
e
e
t,
 s
u
it
e
 2
0
1
, s
a
ra
so

ta
, f
lo
ri
d
a
  3
4
2
3
6

3
1
1
 c
a
n
y
o
n
 w

re
n
 d
ri
v
e
, b

u
d
a
, t
e
x
a
s 
 7
8
6
1
0

t 
4
1
4
 3
5
9
 3
0
6
0

t 
6
0
8
 2
4
0
 9
9
0
0

t 
9
4
1
 4
4
4
 8
8
4
5

t 
5
1
2
 6
4
9
 5
6
2
7

SHEET NO:

N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

JOB NO:

DATE:

REVISIONS:

1
2
/1

5
/2

0
2
3
 2

:1
2
:1

5
 P

M

220292-01

A400

C
om

m
un

ity
 E

du
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

R
ec

re
at

io
n 

C
en

te
r A

dd
iti

on

84
29

 W
es

t F
or

es
t H

ill
 A

ve
, F

ra
nk

lin
, W

I 5
31

32

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:  

P
E

S

E
X

T
E

R
IO

R
 E

LE
V

A
T

IO
N

S

12/08/2023

Fr
an

kl
in

 P
ub

lic
 S

ch
oo

ls

©
 2

02
3 

P
LU

N
K

E
TT

 R
A

Y
S

IC
H

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
TS

, L
LP

PROGRESS SET

EXTERIOR ELEVATION NOTES

MARK DESCRIPTION

400 1" D x 6"H PIN-MOUNTED ANODIZED ALUMINUM SIGNAGE (DARK BRONZE). FONT TO BE 'SEGOE UI'.

401 1" D x 6"H PIN-MOUNTED ANODIZED ALUMINUM SIGNAGE (CLEAR ANODIZED). FONT TO BE 'SEGOE UI'.

402 2" D x 8"H PIN-MOUNTED ANODIZED ALUMINUM SIGNAGE (DARK BRONZE). FONT TO BE 'SEGOE UI BLACK'.

403 1" D x 8"H PIN-MOUNTED ANODIZED ALUMINUM SIGNAGE (CLEAR ANODIZED). FONT TO BE 'SEGOE IU BLACK'.

404 1" D x 10"H PIN-MOUNTED ANODIZED ALUMINUM SIGNAGE (CLEAR ANODIZED). FONT TO BE 'SEGOE IU'.

405 CAST STONE DATE STONE. SEE DETAIL A1/A600.

406 CONCRETE BASE. SEE DETAIL C2/A600.

407 RTU TO HAVE INTEGRAL SCREEN - COLOR TO MATCH METAL WALL PANEL.

1/8" = 1'-0"
C2

EAST ELEVATION

1/8" = 1'-0"
B1

NORTH ELEVATION

1/8" = 1'-0"
C1

SOUTH ELEVATION

1/8" = 1'-0"
B2

WEST ELEVATION

1/8" = 1'-0"
D3

EAST ELEVATION - ALTERNATE 1

1/8" = 1'-0"
D2

SOUTH ELEVATION - ALTERNATE 1

1/8" = 1'-0"
D1

WEST ELEVATION - ALTERNATE 1

1/8" = 1'-0"
A2

STORAGE BUILDING - EAST ELEVATION

1/8" = 1'-0"
A3

STORAGE BUILDING - NORTH ELEVATION

1/8" = 1'-0"
A1

STORAGE BUILDING - SOUTH ELEVATION

1/8" = 1'-0"
A4

STORAGE BUILDING - WEST ELEVATION



P
L
U
N
K
E
T
T
 R
A
Y
S
IC
H

A
R
C
H
IT
E
C
T
S
, L
L
P

2
0
9
 s
o
u
th
 w

a
te
r 
st
re
e
t,
 m

ilw
a
u
k
e
e
, w

is
co

n
si
n
  5
3
2
0
4

2
3
1
0
 c
ro
ss
ro
a
d
s 
d
ri
v
e
, s
u
it
e
 2
0
0
0
, m

a
d
is
o
n
, w

is
co

n
si
n
  5
3
7
1
8

1
9
7
0
 m

a
in
 s
tr
e
e
t,
 s
u
it
e
 2
0
1
, s
a
ra
so

ta
, f
lo
ri
d
a
  3
4
2
3
6

3
1
1
 c
a
n
y
o
n
 w

re
n
 d
ri
v
e
, b

u
d
a
, t
e
x
a
s 
 7
8
6
1
0

t 
4
1
4
 3
5
9
 3
0
6
0

t 
6
0
8
 2
4
0
 9
9
0
0

t 
9
4
1
 4
4
4
 8
8
4
5

t 
5
1
2
 6
4
9
 5
6
2
7

SHEET NO:

N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

JOB NO:

DATE:

REVISIONS:

BID PACKAGE:

1
0
/3

1
/2

0
2
3
 6

:1
6
:2

4
 P

M

220292-01

C
om

m
un

ity
 E

du
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

R
ec

re
at

io
n 

C
en

te
r A

dd
iti

on

84
29

 W
es

t F
or

es
t H

ill
 A

ve
, F

ra
nk

lin
, W

I 5
31

32

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:  

P
E

S

E
X

T
E

R
IO

R
 

11/02/2023

Fr
an

kl
in

 P
ub

lic
 S

ch
oo

ls

©
 2

02
3 

P
LU

N
K

E
TT

 R
A

Y
S

IC
H

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
TS

, L
LP

CITY SUBMISSION

A401

RE
ND

ER
IN

GS

MAIN ENTRY VIEW - WITHOUT ALTERNATE CLINIC

MAIN ENTRY VIEW - WITH ALTERNATE CLINIC



 
 

1 

 CITY OF FRANKLIN  

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 

Meeting of February 8, 2024 
 

CONDOMINIUM PLAT 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  City Development staff recommends approval of the Forest Home 
Commercial Condominium Plat, subject to the conditions set forth in the attached resolution. 
 

Property Owner: Forest Home Commercial Condominium 
Applicant: ACG Acquisitions #10 LLC  
Property Address/Tax Key Number: 11217 W. Forest Home Avenue / 748 9961 001 
Aldermanic District: District 6 
Agent: Stephen Anderson, Anderson Commercial GRP 
Zoning District:  M-1 Limited Industrial District 
Use of Surrounding Properties: M-1 zoned property to the north and south, Woodland Prairie 

Condominiums to the east and B-3 zoned property and single-
family residential to the west 

Proposal: 5-unit commercial condominium 
Staff Planner: Nick Fuchs, Planning Associate 

 
Project Description/Analysis 
 
The applicant has filed a Condominium Plat Application to create a 5-unit commercial condominium 
upon property located at 11217 W. Forest Home Avenue. This property has an area of approximately 
3.77-acres and consists of an existing multi-tenant commercial building and associated drives and 
parking. The site also has a wireless communication tower and two maintenance buildings.  
 
The proposed plat creates the Forest Home Commercial Condominium, which includes five separate 
units and establishes common and limited common elements. According to the applicant, the intent is to 
sell the separate units. 
 
Note that no building or site changes are proposed as part of this request.  
 
According to WDNR mapping, the site contains wetlands along the rear of the property and extending 
along the north and south property lines. In review of the Condominium Plat, staff recommended 
completion of a Natural Resource Protection Plan and submittal of a Conservation Easement. 
  
Section 15-7.0601 requires that provisions pertaining to a final plat shall apply to a condominium plat 
as they may be applicable. Note final plats require that natural resources and their associated setbacks 
be shown on the plat and protected within a conservation easement. The applicant is requesting that a 
NRPP not be required or considered applicable at this time as the condominium plat does not include 
any site improvements or changes.  
  

Item D.5. 



 
 

2 

It can be noted that if development is proposed in the future, a NRPP would be required at that time as 
part of a Site Plan Amendment Application.  
 
Staff does not object to requiring a NRPP and conservation easement in the future when development 
or site improvements are proposed. However, in certain areas the parking lot is within close proximity 
to the wetland. As such, staff anticipates recommending that a NRPP be completed with any 
modifications of the parking lot or site within those areas, even if minor or only maintenance is being 
performed. At that time, the City should consider the removal of any encroachments as may be 
practicable. 
 
Pursuant to UDO Section 15-7.0603.D, the City Attorney reviewed and provided comments regarding 
the condominium declarations. The applicant has addressed those comments. 
 
Staff Recommendation 
A motion to recommend approval of the Forest Home Commercial Condominium Plat, subject to the 
conditions set forth in the attached resolution. 



STATE OF WISCONSIN             CITY OF FRANKLIN               MILWAUKEE COUNTY 
                   Draft 1-29-24 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-_____ 
 

A RESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY APPROVING A CONDOMINIUM PLAT FOR 
FOREST HOME COMMERCIAL CONDOMINIUM, A CONDOMINIUM AT 11217 

WEST FOREST HOME AVENUE 
(ACG ACQUISITIONS #10 LLC (D/B/A ANDERSON COMMERCIAL GRP), 

PROPERTY OWNER) 
              
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, having received an application for 
approval of a condominium plat for Forest Home Commercial Condominium, a 
Condominium at 11217 West Forest Home Avenue, such plat being Parcel 1 of Certified 
Survey Map No. 4982, recorded on July 21, 1987, on Reel 2121, Images 1575 to 1577 
inclusive, as Document No. 6086366, being a part of the Northwest 1/4 and the Northeast 1/4 
of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 6, Town 5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of Franklin, 
County of Milwaukee, State of Wisconsin, property located at 11217 West Forest Home 
Avenue, bearing Tax Key No. 748 9961 001, ACG Acquisitions #10 LLC, applicant; said 
Condominium Plat having been reviewed by the City Plan Commission following the 
reviews and recommendations or reports of the Department of City Development and the 
City Engineering Department, and the Plan Commission having recommended approval 
thereof at its meeting on February 8, 2024, pursuant to certain conditions; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Common Council having reviewed such application and Plan 
Commission recommendation and the Common Council having determined that such 
proposed condominium plat is appropriate for approval pursuant to law upon certain 
conditions and is consistent with the 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan of the City of 
Franklin, Wisconsin, and will serve to further orderly growth and development and promote 
the health, safety and welfare of the Community. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of 
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the Condominium Plat for Forest Home Commercial 
Condominium, a Condominium at 11217 West Forest Home Avenue, as submitted by ACG 
Acquisitions #10 LLC, as described above, be and the same is hereby approved, subject to 
the following conditions: 
 

1. That any and all objections made and corrections required by the City of Franklin, by 
Milwaukee County, and by any and all reviewing agencies, shall be satisfied and 
made by the applicant, and that all minor technical deficiencies within the 
Condominium Plat be rectified, all prior to the recording of the Condominium Plat. 
 

2. ACG Acquisitions #10 LLC, successors and assigns, shall pay to the City of Franklin 
the amount of all development compliance, inspection and review fees incurred by the  



A RESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY APPROVING A CONDOMINIUM PLAT FOR 
FOREST HOME COMMERCIAL CONDOMINIUM  
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-_____ 
Page 2 

 

City of Franklin, including fees of consults to the City of Franklin, for the Forest 
Home Commercial Condominium, within 30 days of invoice for same.  Any violation 
of this provision shall be a violation of the Unified Development Ordinance, and 
subject to §15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19 of the Municipal Code, the general penalties 
and remedies provisions, as amended from time to time. 

3. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon ACG Acquisitions #10 LLC, 
applicant, a Condominium for the property located at 11217 West Forest Home 
Avenue: (i) being in compliance with all applicable governmental laws, statutes, 
rules, codes, orders and ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all other governmental 
approvals, permits, licenses and the like, required for and applicable to the project to 
be developed and as presented for this approval. 

4. The Forest Home Commercial Condominium shall be developed in substantial 
compliance with the terms and provisions of this Resolution. 

5. Following the recording of the plat, the applicant shall provide a copy of the 
recording information and final condominium plat to the Engineering Department and 
Department of City Development. 

  
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Condominium Plat for Forest Home 
Commercial Condominium, be and the same is hereby rejected without final approval and 
without any further action of the Common Council, if any one, or more than one of the above 
conditions is or are not met and satisfied within 12 months from the date of adoption of this 
Resolution. 
 
 BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that upon the satisfaction of the above conditions 
within 12 months of the date of adoption of this Resolution, same constituting final approval, 
and pursuant to all applicable statutes and ordinances and lawful requirements and 
procedures for the recording of a condominium plat, the City Clerk is hereby directed to 
obtain the recording of the Condominium Plat for Forest Home Commercial Condominium 
with the Office of the Register of Deeds for Milwaukee County. 
 

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin 
this_______ day of ____________________, 2024. 
 
 Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of 
Franklin this _______ day of ____________________, 2024. 
 
 



A RESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY APPROVING A CONDOMINIUM PLAT FOR 
FOREST HOME COMMERCIAL CONDOMINIUM  
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-_____ 
Page 3  
   
       APPROVED: 
 
 
  
       _________________________________  
       John R. Nelson, Mayor 
        
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________       
Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk 
 
AYES ______ NOES ______ ABSENT ______ 



Planning Department 
(414) 425-4024

11217 W. Forest Home Ave.
TKN: 748 9961 001

This map shows the approximate relative location of property
boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyor.
This map is provided for informational purposes only
and may not be sufficient or appropriate for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.

M-1 

R-3 

R-3 

B-2 

M-1 

R-8 

R-7 

R-8 
B-2 

C-1 

R-3 

R-4 

R-5 

FO
RE

ST
HO

ME
AV

E

SE
RV

ICE
  D

R

NO
RT

H C
AP

E  
    

    
    

    
   R

D  

11
2T

H 
    

    
    

    
    

    
 ST

   

11
1T

H 
    

    
    

    
    

    
 ST

   

N
2021 Aerial Photo

0 310 620155 Feet

Property

 



Planning Department 
(414) 425-4024

11217 W. Forest Home Ave.
TKN: 748 9961 001

This map shows the approximate relative location of property
boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyor.
This map is provided for informational purposes only
and may not be sufficient or appropriate for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.

FO
RE

ST
HO

ME
AV

E

SE
RV

ICE
  D

R

NO
RT

H C
AP

E  
    

    
    

    
   R

D  

11
2T

H 
    

    
    

    
    

    
 ST

   

11
1T

H 
    

    
    

    
    

    
 ST

   

N
2021 Aerial Photo

0 310 620155 Feet

Property

 



PROJECT NARRATIVE 
 
ACG Acquisitions #10, LLC, a Wisconsin limited liability company (“Developer”), submits the 
attached Application for Condominium (Final) Plat for the purpose of converting the existing 
building located at 11217 West Forest Home Avenue, Franklin, Wisconsin, from a multi-tenant 
commercial building into a 5-unit commercial condominium building.  The layout of the site, 
footprint of the building, and boundaries between the units, all as shown on the proposed 
condominium Plat, reflect the current state of the land and building at the site.  Developer desires 
to convert the building into a condominium to enable Developer to sell each unit separately.       











Document Number 

  

 
Name and Return Address 
 
Adam A. Bardosy 
Mallery s.c. 
731 North Jackson Street, Suite 900 
Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202 

 
DECLARATION OF 

CONDOMINIUM FOR 
FOREST HOME 
COMMERCIAL 

CONDOMINIUM 

 
 

 
748-9961-001   
Parcel Identification Number (PIN) 

 
 

 
Recording Area 

 

 1 

 
THIS DECLARATION is made as of February _____, 2024 by ACG ACQUISITIONS 

#10, LLC, a Wisconsin limited liability company (“Declarant”). 
 

Declarant, as the owner of the Property described below, subjects the Property to this 
Declaration and to the condominium form of ownership under the Wisconsin Condominium 
Ownership Act (the “Act”).  This Declaration shall run with the land and shall bind and benefit 
Declarant, its successors and assigns, and all persons now or in the future having any interest in 
the Property. 
 
 ARTICLE 1 
 NAME AND ADDRESS; SMALL CONDOMINIUM ELECTION 
 

The Property shall be known as Forest Home Commercial Condominium (the 
“Condominium”).  The address of the Condominium is 11217 West Forest Home Avenue, Franklin, 
Wisconsin 53132.  The Condominium shall be a “small condominium” as defined in Section 
703.02(14m) of the Act.  Sections 703.365(2)(c), 2(e), 4, and 8 of the Act shall apply to the 
Condominium. 
 
 ARTICLE 2 
 PROPERTY 
 

A description of the land on which the Condominium is located is set forth on Exhibit A to 
this Declaration.  Such land, together with all buildings and other improvements located on such 
land or to be constructed on such land in the future, is referred to in this Declaration as the 
“Property.”  The Property is divided into the Units and the Common Elements (including the 
Limited Common Elements), as described below.   
 
 



 

 2 

 ARTICLE 3 
 UNITS 
 

3.1 Number and Identification.  The Condominium shall consist of five (5) units 
(individually a “Unit” and collectively the “Units”) located in the building (“Building”) identified 
on the condominium plat attached hereto as Exhibit B (the “Plat”), together with the Common 
Elements as described in Article 4 (including those depicted on the Plat), whether constructed or 
not yet constructed. The Plat shows floor plans for each Unit, including the layout, boundaries, 
and dimensions of each Unit. The Units shall be identified as Units 1 through 6, inclusive, as 
numbered on the Plat. 
 

3.2 Boundaries of Units. The boundaries of each Unit shall be as follows: 
 

(a) Upper Boundary.  The upper boundary of the Unit shall be the interior lower 
surface of the supporting members of the roof above the highest level of interior space of the Unit, 
extended to an intersection with the perimetrical boundaries. 

 
(b) Lower Boundary.  The lower boundary of the Unit shall be the upper surface 

of the unfinished floor of the lowest level of the Unit extended to an intersection with the 
perimetrical boundaries. 

 
(c) Perimetrical Boundary.  The perimetrical boundaries of the Unit shall be 

vertical planes of the inside surface of the studs supporting the interior walls, in either case 
extending to intersections with each other and with the upper and lower boundaries. 

 
It is intended that the surface of each plane described above (be it drywall, tiles, wallpaper, 

paneling, carpeting, or otherwise covered) is included as part of each defined Unit. 
 
3.3 Additional Items Included as Part of Unit. The Unit shall also include each of the 

following items that serve such Unit exclusively, whether or not located within the boundaries 
described in Section 3.2: 

 
(a) Windows, doors, and garage and dock doors (with all opening, closing, and 

locking mechanisms and all hardware) that provide direct access to or within the Unit. 
 
(b) Interior lights and light fixtures. 
 
(c) Cabinets. 
 
(d) Floor, wall, baseboard, or ceiling electrical outlets and switches and the 

junction boxes serving them. 
 
(e) Telephone, fax, cable television, computer, internet, stereo, or other sound 

systems, if any, including outlets, switches, hardware, and other appurtenances serving them. 
 



 

 3 

(f) Plumbing fixtures, hot water heaters, fire sprinklers, if any, water softeners, 
if any, and the piping, valves, and other connecting and controlling mechanisms and devices lying 
between the fixture and water or sewage lines serving the Unit. 

 
(g) The heating, ventilating, and air conditioning system, including the furnaces, 

air conditioning equipment, the control mechanisms, all vents from the Unit to the exterior of the 
Condominium, and condensers and all connections thereto serving the Unit. 

 
Specifically not included as part of a Unit are those structural components of the Building 

and any portion of the plumbing, electrical, or mechanical systems of the Building serving more 
than one (1) Unit or another Unit, even if located within the Unit.  Any structural components and 
all plumbing, electrical, mechanical, and public or private utility lines running through a Unit that 
serve more than one Unit or another Unit are Common Elements (or Limited Common Elements 
as may be identified on the Plat). 
 

3.4 Changes by Declarant.  Declarant reserves the right to change the layout, location, 
dimensions and construction details of the Building, Units, Common Elements and Limited 
Common Elements shown on the Plat that are not yet fully constructed, provided that such changes 
shall not substantially alter the nature and quality of the Building.  For this purpose, Declarant 
shall have the exclusive right, without a vote of any other Unit Owners, to amend this Declaration 
and the Plat for the purpose of describing and depicting the layout, location, Unit numbers and 
dimensions of the building(s) and Units as finally located and erected. 
 

3.5 Title.  Each Unit Owner’s interest in its Unit must be held in fee simple.  (For the 
avoidance of doubt, a vendee’s interest in a Unit under a land contract shall be deemed under this 
Declaration to be a fee-simple interest.) 
 

3.6 Unit Owners’ Rights and Duties.  Each owner of a Unit (each a “Unit Owner,” and 
collectively “Unit Owners”) shall be subject to all the rights and duties assigned to Unit Owners 
under the terms of this Declaration and the Plat (together, the “Condominium Instruments”) and 
the bylaws of the Association (the “Bylaws”).  When there are unsold Units in the Condominium, 
Declarant also enjoys the same rights and assumes the same duties as they relate to each individual 
unsold Unit. 
 

3.7 Right of Ingress and Egress.  Each Unit Owner has an unrestricted right of ingress 
and egress to its Unit.  This right shall be perpetual and shall pass with the Unit as transfers of 
ownership of the Unit occur.  
 
 ARTICLE 4 
 COMMON ELEMENTS 
 

4.1 Description.  The Common Elements shall consist of all of the Property except the 
Units, including, without limitation, the land on which the improvements are located; all common 
parking areas, driveways, walkways, courtyards and other open areas, as shown on the Plat and all 
amendments to the Plat; water systems and other private utility lines; public utility lines;  private 
wells; master television cable or antenna and lines, if any; the landscaping done or to be done on 



 

 4 

the Property; bearing walls, floors and ceilings (except the interior surfaces of such elements that 
form the outer boundaries of each Unit); roofs, foundations, entrances and exits, pipes, ducts, 
electrical wiring, sewer laterals, common rooms, outside walls, girders, beams and support and 
structural parts of the Building; common signage pylons and monuments.  Each Unit Owner shall 
have an undivided interest in all of the Common Elements.  The term “Common Elements” as used 
in this Declaration includes Limited Common Elements as defined below, unless otherwise stated 
in some particular provision of this Declaration.   
 

4.2 Limited Common Elements.  Portions of the Common Elements are designated as 
“Limited Common Elements.”  Each Limited Common Element is reserved for the exclusive use 
of the owner(s) of the Unit(s) to which it is appurtenant, to the exclusion of all other Unit Owners.  
The Limited Common Elements include, without limitation, the areas labeled as “L.C.E.” on the 
Plat and all amendments to the Plat.  In addition, fixtures designed to serve a single Unit and 
located contiguous to the Unit’s boundaries are Limited Common Elements appurtenant to that 
Unit exclusively. 
 

4.3 Use.  The Common Elements may be used only for the purposes for which they 
were intended and, except as provided in the Condominium Instruments, the Bylaws, and the Rules, 
the Common Elements are subject to mutual rights of support, access, use and enjoyment by all 
Unit Owners.  However, any portion of the Common Elements designated as Limited Common 
Elements may be used only by the Unit Owner(s) of the Unit(s) to which their use is limited. 

 
4.4 Signage.  Each Unit Owner shall have the right, at such Unit Owner’s expense, to 

install on the Property’s common signage monument one double-sided, panel sign identifying the 
Unit Owner or its tenant.  Such Unit Owner shall maintain its panel sign in good order and 
condition, repair any damage it causes to the signage monument, and, upon vacating or transferring 
its Unit, remove its panel sign, all at such Unit Owner’s expense.       
 
 ARTICLE 5 
 PERCENTAGE INTERESTS 
 
 Every Unit Owner owns an undivided percentage interest in the Common Elements (the 
“Percentage Interests”).  The undivided percentage interest in the Common Elements allocated to 
each Unit is set forth on the attached Exhibit C.  Except as provided in the Act, all Common 
Elements shall remain undivided.  Except as provided in the Act, no Unit Owner, nor any other 
person, may bring a suit for partition of the Common Elements.  Any instrument, matter, 
circumstance, action, occurrence or proceeding in any manner affecting a Unit also shall affect, in 
like manner, the Percentage Interest appurtenant to the Unit, and any conveyance, encumbrance, 
judicial sale, or other transfer (voluntary or involuntary) of any Percentage Interest will be void 
unless the Unit to which that Percentage Interest is allocated is also transferred.   
 
 ARTICLE 6 
 ASSOCIATION OF UNIT OWNERS 
 

6.1 Establishment.  Following the conveyance of the first Unit to any person other than 
Declarant, all Unit Owners shall be entitled and required to be a member of an association of Unit 



 

 5 

Owners known as the “Forest Home Commercial Condominium Association” (the “Association”), 
which shall be responsible for carrying out the purposes of this Declaration, including exclusive 
management and control of the Common Elements and facilities of the Condominium, which may 
include the appointment and delegation of duties and responsibilities hereunder to a committee or 
subcommittee commissioned by the Association for that purpose. The Association shall be 
incorporated as a nonprofit corporation under the laws of the State of Wisconsin. 

 
The powers and duties of the Association shall include those set forth in the Association’s 

articles of incorporation (the “Articles”) and Bylaws, the Act, this Declaration, and Chapter 181 
of the Wisconsin Statutes.  All Unit Owners, tenants of Units, and all other persons and entities 
that in any manner use the Property or any part thereof shall abide by and be subject to all 
provisions of all rules and regulations of the Association (collectively, the “Rules”), this 
Declaration, the Articles, and the Bylaws.  The Association shall have the exclusive right to 
promulgate, and to delegate the right to promulgate, the Rules from time to time and shall distribute 
to each Unit Owner the updated version of such Rules upon any amendment or modification to the 
Rules. Any new rule or regulation or any revision to an existing rule and regulation shall become 
effective immediately upon distribution to the Unit Owners.  All such Rules shall be commercially 
reasonable.  

 
6.2 Declarant Control.  Notwithstanding any contrary provision in the Condominium 

Instruments, the Bylaws, or the Rules, Declarant, except as provided in Section 6.3, below, shall 
have the sole authority to appoint and remove the officers of the Association and to exercise the 
powers and responsibilities otherwise assigned by this Declaration or the Act to the Association 
or its officers, until the earlier to occur of the following:  (a) three (3) years from the date the period 
of Declarant control begins; (b) thirty (30) days after the conveyance of seventy-five percent  (75%) 
of the Common Element interest to purchasers; or (c) thirty (30) days after Declarant’s written 
election to waive its right of control.  The period of Declarant control begins on the date that the 
first Unit is conveyed by Declarant to any person or entity other than Declarant.  Declarant may 
exercise any rights granted to, or perform any obligations imposed on, Declarant under this 
Declaration through its duly authorized agent.  If there is any Unit Owner other than Declarant, 
this Declaration may not be amended to increase the scope or the period of Declarant control or 
change the Percentage Interests (without written consent of each Unit Owner whose Percentage 
Interest is changed and its first mortgagee).  Not later than forty-five (45) days after the expiration 
of the period of Declarant control, the Association shall hold a meeting and the Unit Owners shall 
elect an executive board of at least three (3) directors and officers of the Association.  The directors 
and officers shall take office upon election. 

 
6.3 Board of Directors.  The affairs of the Association shall be governed by a Board of 

Directors. Within thirty (30) days after the conveyance of twenty-five percent (25%) of the 
Common Element interest of the Condominium to purchasers, the Association shall hold a meeting, 
and the Unit Owners other than Declarant shall elect at least twenty-five percent (25%) of the 
directors on the Board of Directors.  The Declarant shall elect the remaining Board of Directors. 
Within thirty (30) days after the conveyance of fifty percent (50%) of the Common Element 
interest of the Condominium to purchasers, the Association shall hold a meeting, and the Unit 
Owners other than Declarant shall elect at least thirty-three and one-third percent (33 1/3%) of the 
directors on the Board of Directors.  The Declarant shall elect the remaining Board of Directors.  



 

 6 

Within forty-five (45) days after the expiration of the period of Declarant control, the Association 
shall hold a meeting, and the Unit Owners shall elect all of the directors on the Board of Directors 
and officers of the Association.  For purposes of calculating the percentages set forth in Section 
6.2 and this Section 6.3, the percentage of Common Element interest conveyed shall be calculated 
by dividing the number of Units conveyed by the maximum number of Units permitted under 
Section 3.1. 

 
6.4 Management Services. The Association shall have the right to enter into a 

management contract with a manager selected by the Association (the “Manager”) under which 
property-management services may be provided to the Condominium.  All amounts payable by 
the Association to the Manager under the management contract shall be chargeable to the Unit 
Owners as a Common Expense. The management contract shall be subject to termination by the 
Association under Section 703.35 of the Act. 

 
6.5 Voting.  Pursuant to Section 703.365(2)(c) of the Act, each Unit Owner shall have 

one (1) vote at meetings of the Association.   
 

6.6 Association Property.  No Unit Owner may have any right, title or interest in any 
property owned by the Association other than as holder of a Percentage Interest appurtenant to 
such Unit Owner’s Unit. 

 
 
 ARTICLE 7 
 COMMON EXPENSES AND COMMON SURPLUSES 
 

7.1 Disposition of Common Surpluses.  All common surpluses of the Association shall 
be credited to the Unit Owners’ assessments for common expenses in proportion to their 
Percentage Interests or shall be used for any other purpose as the Association decides. 
 

7.2 Assessments for Common Expenses.  Funds for the payment of common expenses 
and for the creation of reserves for the payment of future common expenses shall be obtained by 
assessments against the Unit Owners in the manner set forth in the Bylaws.  Except as otherwise 
provided in this Declaration, the Unit Owners’ respective shares of common expenses shall be 
their respective Percentage Interests.  Assessments against all Units will begin as of the date of the 
first transfer of title of any Unit by Declarant. 
 
 ARTICLE 8 
 UNPAID ASSESSMENTS 
 

In this Article, “assessments” means regular and special assessments for common expenses 
and charges, fines, or assessments against specific Units or Unit Owners for damages to the 
Condominium or for penalties for violations of this Declaration, the Bylaws, or the Rules. 
 

8.1 Liability for Assessments.  A Unit Owner shall be liable for all assessments, or 
installments thereof, coming due while owning a Unit, including any assessments coming due 
during the pendency of any claim by the Unit Owner against the Association or during any period 



 

 7 

in which the Unit is not occupied by the Unit Owner or is leased or rented to any other person or 
entity.  In a voluntary grant of a Unit, the grantee shall be jointly and severally liable with the 
grantor for all unpaid assessments against the grantor for its share of the common expenses up to 
the time of the voluntary grant for which a statement of condominium lien is recorded, without 
prejudice to the rights of the grantee to recover from the grantor the amounts paid by the grantee 
for such assessments.  By acceptance of a conveyance of its Unit, each Unit Owner assumes this 
joint and several liability.  Liability for assessments may not be avoided by waiver of the use or 
enjoyment of any Common Element or by abandonment of the Unit for which the assessments are 
made. 
 

8.2 Lien.  Subject to the applicable terms and conditions of the Act, all assessments, 
until paid, together with interest on them and actual costs of collection (including attorneys’ fees), 
constitute a lien on the Units on which they are assessed.  The lien shall be subordinate to a first 
mortgage on the Unit, if the mortgage was recorded before the delinquent assessment was due.  A 
lien may be enforced and foreclosed by the Association or any other person specified in the Bylaws, 
in the same manner, and subject to the same requirements, as a foreclosure of mortgages on real 
property in this state.  The Association may recover costs and actual attorneys’ fees.  The 
Association may bid on the Unit at foreclosure sale and acquire, hold, lease, mortgage and convey 
the Unit.  The lien will not be affected by the sale or transfer of the Unit, unless a foreclosure of a 
first mortgage is involved, in which case the foreclosure will extinguish the lien for any 
assessments that were payable before the foreclosure sale, but will not relieve any subsequent Unit 
Owner from paying further assessments. 
 

8.3 Interest.  Any assessment, or installment thereof, not paid when due shall bear 
interest, at the option of the Association, from the date when due until paid at a rate not exceeding 
the highest rate permitted by law as stated in the Bylaws. 
 
 ARTICLE 9 
 USE RESTRICTIONS 
 

9.1 Units.  The Condominium buildings and the Units are intended for and restricted to 
commercial uses, provided such uses are permitted by applicable local, state, and federal laws, 
ordinances, codes and regulations, as further restricted by this Declaration, the Bylaws, and the 
Rules. 
 

9.2 Common Elements. 
 

(a) The Common Elements may be used only for the purposes for which they 
were intended and, except as provided in the Condominium Instruments, the Bylaws, and the Rules, 
the Common Elements are subject to mutual rights of support, access, use and enjoyment by all 
Unit Owners.  However, any portion of the Common Elements designated as Limited Common 
Elements may be used only by the Unit Owner(s) of the Unit(s) to which their use is limited. 

 
(b) Unit Owners shall not obstruct or place anything in the Common Elements 

(not including the Limited Common Elements appurtenant to their respective Units), provided that 
Declarant may display “for sale” and other marketing signs on the Common Elements (not 



 

 8 

including the Limited Common Elements appurtenant to Units not owned by Declarant) until all 
Units have been sold. 
 

9.3 Leases.  All persons or entities occupying Units who are not the Unit Owner(s) shall 
be considered tenants for purposes of this Section.  Unit Owners may allow occupancy of their 
Units by tenants, but only in compliance with the following requirements: 

 
(a) Every agreement for tenant occupancy of a Unit (each a “lease”) shall be in 

writing. 
 
(b) Before a tenant signs a lease, the Unit Owner shall provide the tenant with 

copies of this Declaration as amended, the Bylaws as amended, and the Rules as amended. 
 
(c) Every lease shall contain a statement to the effect that the tenant 

acknowledges receiving copies of those documents and agrees to comply with the Act and those 
documents. 

 
(d) Within five (5) business days after entering into or renewing a lease, the 

Unit Owner shall provide a copy of the lease to the Association.  The Association shall keep a 
copy of any lease on file while the lease is in effect. 

 
Additional restrictions on Unit leases may be set forth in the Rules.  However, no such 

restrictions shall limit the term of any lease or be commercially unreasonable. 
 
9.4 Nuisances. No nuisances shall be allowed on the Property, nor any use or practice 

that is unlawful or interferes with the peaceful possession and proper use of the Condominium by 
the Unit Owners or that would cause an increase in the premiums for insurance required to be 
maintained by the Association under this Declaration.  All parts of the Condominium shall be kept 
in a clean and sanitary condition, and no fire or other hazard shall be allowed to exist. No Unit 
Owner shall permit any use of its Unit or of the Common Elements that increases the cost of 
insuring the Condominium. 

 
9.5 Garbage and Refuse Disposal. No Unit shall be used or maintained as a dumping 

ground for rubbish, trash, garbage, or waste. All clippings, rocks, or earth must be in containers. 
 
9.6. Storage. Outdoor storage of disabled vehicles or personal property shall not be 

permitted at the Property. 
 
 ARTICLE 10 
 MAINTENANCE, REPAIRS, AND REPLACEMENTS 
 

10.1 By Unit Owners. 
 

(a) Each Unit Owner shall at its expense keep its Unit and all of its equipment, 
fixtures and appurtenances in good order, condition, and repair and in compliance with applicable 
law.  Without limiting the foregoing obligations, each Unit Owner shall be responsible for 



 

 9 

maintaining, repairing, and replacing exterior windows and doors, overhead garage or dock doors, 
interior and exterior lighting fixtures, refrigerators, air conditioning equipment, furnaces and 
heating equipment , plumbing fixtures, ceiling fans, hot water heaters, and other equipment that 
may be in or connected with its Unit that exclusively serves such Unit.  All repairs and 
replacements shall be in quality and class at least equal to the original work and shall comply with 
all applicable laws. 
 

(b) Each Unit Owner shall keep the Limited Common Elements appurtenant to 
its Unit in good order, condition, and repair and in compliance with applicable law.  For any 
Limited Common Elements shared by multiple Units, the Unit Owners of such Units shall equally 
share all costs required to achieve the maintenance standard set forth in this Subsection (b).   
 

(c) If any Unit Owner fails to properly perform any of its obligations under this 
Article, the Association may give the Unit Owner written notice of the maintenance, repair, or 
replacement the Association deems necessary.  If the Unit Owner fails to properly perform the 
maintenance, repair, or replacement within thirty (30) days after such notice, the Association may, 
without waiving or releasing the Unit Owner from any such obligations, perform the obligations 
and specially assess the Unit Owner for the cost of doing so. 

 
10.2 By Association.   
 

(a) Except for the Unit Owners’ responsibilities for Limited Common Elements 
under the preceding section, the Association shall keep the Common Elements in good order, 
condition, and repair and in compliance with applicable law.  Without limiting the foregoing 
obligations, the Association shall be responsible for maintaining, repairing, and replacing all 
parking areas, driveways, and walkways (including snow removal) and all landscaped areas 
(including grass cutting and leaf raking).  The Association shall maintain the exterior of the 
Building in good order, condition, and repair and in compliance with applicable law.  All exterior 
paint, brick, cultured stone, siding, trim, roofing, and the like shall be maintained, cleaned, 
replaced or painted or otherwise cared for, as the case may be, and shall be kept in pristine 
condition, by the Association.  The Association may temporarily close off Common Elements or 
entries to the Property, the Building, or any Unit or temporarily suspend services or amenities to 
facilitate such work. 

 
(b) All costs of such work shall be common expenses of the Association, 

provided that if any maintenance, repair, or replacement of any of Common Elements (including 
Limited Common Elements) is necessitated by reason of misuse by, or negligence of, a Unit Owner 
or occupant, or of a tenant, guest or agent of a Unit Owner, the Association may specially assess 
the reasonable cost of the maintenance, repair, or replacement to the responsible Unit Owner 
(unless the same is otherwise covered by insurance maintained by the Association). 
 
 10.3 City Enforcement of Common Elements Maintenance.  In the event that the 
Association fails to maintain the Common Elements as required hereunder, the Common Council 
of the City of Franklin may serve written notice upon the Association and/or upon the owners of 
the Property subject to this Declaration, setting forth the manner in which the Association has 
failed to maintain the Common Elements as required, and demanding that such deficiencies be 



 

 10 

remedied within thirty (30) days thereof.  The notice shall specify a date and place for hearing 
thereon, to be held within fourteen (14) days of the notice date.  At such hearing the Common 
Council may modify the terms of the original notice as to the deficiencies and may give an 
extension of time within which they shall be remedied.  If the deficiencies set forth in the original 
notice or in any modification thereof, shall not be remedied as required, the City, in order to 
preserve taxable values in the area and to prevent the Common Elements from becoming a public 
nuisance, may enter upon said Common Elements and maintain the same for a period not to exceed 
one year.  Said entry and maintenance shall not vest in the public any rights to use the Common 
Elements except in the event same is voluntarily dedicated to the public.  If the Common Council 
shall determine that the Association is ready and able to maintain said Common Elements as 
required hereunder, the City shall then cease to maintain said Common Elements and give notice 
thereof to the Association and/or Property owners.  If the Common Council shall determine that 
the Association is not ready or willing or able to maintain said Common Elements as required 
hereunder, the Common Council may, in its discretion, continue to maintain said Common 
Elements subject to a similar hearing and determination in the next succeeding year and in each 
year thereafter.  The cost of such maintenance by the City shall be assessed ratably against the 
Lots subject to this Declaration and shall become a tax lien on said Lots, which may be enforced 
and collected by all methods available under the laws of the State of Wisconsin pertaining to such 
liens.  The City at the time of entry upon said Common Elements for the purpose of maintenance, 
shall file a notice of lien against the Lots in the office of the Milwaukee County Register of Deeds 
and/or the Milwaukee County Clerk of Circuit Court, as may be required.  Nothing contained 
herein nor any act or omission of the City of Franklin hereunder, shall be construed to create any 
obligation or liability on the part of the City of Franklin, its agents or designees, whatsoever. 
 
 ARTICLE 11 
 ARCHITECTURAL CONTROLS 
 

11.1 Alterations to Common Elements and Unit Exteriors.    The Association shall have 
absolute control over all additions, improvements and other alterations to the Common Elements, 
including all building exteriors, and no Unit Owner may undertake any such work without the 
Association’s prior written consent.  All exterior items (including windows, doors, overhead 
garage and dock doors, lighting fixtures, brick, cultured stone, siding, trim, roofing, and the like) 
that are replaced shall be replaced with items of the same brand, product, style, and color as the 
original items, if possible.  If the original item is no longer available, substitutions may be made 
only with the Association’s prior written consent, not to be unreasonably withheld.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Unit Owner may improve, including the enclosure of, the 
Limited Common Elements appurtenant exclusively to that Unit Owner’s Unit if all of the 
conditions set forth in Section 703.13(5m) of the Act are satisfied. 

 
11.2 Alterations Within Units.  A Unit Owner may make any improvements or 

alterations within its Unit that do not impair the structural integrity or lessen the support of any 
portion of the Condominium and that do not create a nuisance substantially affecting the use and 
enjoyment of other Units or the Common Elements.  A Unit Owner may not change the exterior 
appearance of a Unit or of any other portion of the Condominium not part of the Unit without 
permission of the Board of Directors of the Association. 
 



 

 11 

11.3 Alterations Between Adjoining Units.  A Unit Owner acquiring an adjoining or 
adjoining part of an adjoining Unit may, in accordance with this Section, remove all or any part of 
any intervening partition or create doorways or other apertures in the partition, if those acts do not 
impair the structural integrity or lessen the support of any portion of the Condominium.  The 
creation of doorways or other apertures is not deemed an alteration of boundaries. 

 
(a) If the Unit Owner acquiring the adjoining Unit or adjoining part of an 

adjoining Unit desires to remove all or any part of any intervening partition or create doorways or 
other apertures in the partition, the Unit Owner, after 30 days’ written notice to all other Unit 
Owners, shall prepare and execute appropriate instruments under this Section.  An amendment to 
this Declaration shall depict the alteration to the partition.  The amendment shall be adopted either 
under the provisions for amendment contained in this Declaration or by the written consent of the 
Unit Owner acquiring the adjoining Unit or adjoining part of an adjoining Unit, the mortgagees, if 
any, of the affected Units, and the Board of Directors of the Association. 

 
(b) Plats and plans showing the alteration to the partition shall be prepared.  The 

plats and plans shall be certified as to their accuracy and compliance with this subsection by a civil 
engineer, architect, or licensed land surveyor authorized to practice in this state. 

 
(c) After appropriate instruments have been prepared and executed, they shall 

be delivered promptly to the Unit Owner of the affected Units upon payment by the Unit Owner 
of all reasonable costs for their preparation.  Those instruments are effective when executed by the 
Unit Owner of the affected Units and recorded in the office of the Milwaukee County Register of 
Deeds. 

 
11.4 Relocation of Boundaries.  Boundaries between adjoining Units may not be 

relocated.  
 

11.5 Separation of Units.  Unit 1 may be separated into two or more units in accordance 
with Section 703.13(7) of the Act.  Units 2-5 may not be separated, except that two or more of 
Units 2-5 that merge (as permitted under Section 11.6, below) may be subsequently separated to 
their original dimensions pursuant to Section 703.13(7) of the Act. 
 

11.6 Merger of Units.  Two or more Units may be merged into a single unit in accordance 
with Section 703.13(8) of the Act.  
 
 ARTICLE 12 
 INSURANCE 
 

12.1 Maintenance of Insurance. 
 
  (a) The Association shall obtain and maintain the following insurance: (i) 
insurance against loss or damage by fire and other hazards on an all-risk basis for the Common 
Elements, the Units as constructed as of the date of this Declaration, and the Association’s service 
equipment, supplies, and personal property, all for not less than their full replacement values; and 
(ii) a commercial general liability policy in the amount of at least $1,000,000 combined single 



 

 12 

limit and $2,000,000 in the aggregate.  Such insurance coverage shall be written on the Property 
insured in the name of the Association as trustee for each of the Unit Owners in their Percentage 
Interests.  Premiums for such insurance shall be common expenses.  Provisions for such insurance 
shall be without prejudice to the right of each Unit Owner to insure its own Unit for its benefit. 
 

(b) Each Unit Owner shall obtain and maintain, at such Unit Owner’s expense, 
insurance against loss or damage by fire and other hazards on an all-risk basis for all improvements 
to the Unit made after the date of this Declaration and for all personal property located within the 
Unit, all for not less than their full replacement values. 
 

12.2 Use of Proceeds.  Casualty insurance proceeds for the casualty insurance coverage 
maintained by the Association shall first be disbursed by the Association for the repair or 
restoration of the damaged Property insured and the Unit Owners and mortgagees shall not be 
entitled to receive payment of any portion of the insurance proceeds unless the Association has 
determined not to rebuild, or a court has ordered partition of the Property, or there is a surplus of 
insurance proceeds after the Common Elements have been completely repaired or restored. 

 
12.3 Mutual Waiver of Subrogation.  Nothing in this Declaration shall be construed to 

authorize or permit any insurer of the Association or a Unit Owner to be subrogated to any right 
of the Association or a Unit Owner arising under this Declaration. The Association and each Unit 
Owner hereby release each other to the extent of any perils to be insured against by either of such 
parties under the terms of this Declaration or the Bylaws, whether or not such insurance has 
actually been secured, and to the extent of their respective insurance coverage for any loss or 
damage caused by any such casualty, even if such incidents shall be brought about by the fault or 
negligence of either party for whose acts, omissions, or negligence the other party is responsible. 
All insurance policies to be provided under this Article by either the Association or a Unit Owner 
shall contain a provision that they are not invalidated by the foregoing waiver. Such waiver shall, 
however, cease to be effective if the existence thereof precludes either the Association or a Unit 
Owner from obtaining such policy. 
 
 ARTICLE 13 
 DAMAGE OR DESTRUCTION 
 

13.1 Association Representation.  The Association shall represent the Unit Owners in 
any proceedings, negotiations, settlements, or agreements related to damage or destruction 
affecting the Common Elements.  By acceptance of a conveyance of its Unit, each Unit Owner 
appoints the Association as an attorney-in-fact for this purpose.  Any proceeds from a settlement 
shall be payable to the Association for the benefit of the Unit Owners and their mortgage holders. 
 

13.2 Repair or Reconstruction.  In the event of damage to or destruction of the Common 
Elements, the Association shall promptly undertake to repair or reconstruct it to a condition 
compatible with the remainder of the Condominium.  All cost of the repair or reconstruction in 
excess of available insurance proceeds shall be a common expense payable by the Unit Owners in 
proportion to their respective Percentage Interests. 
 



 

 13 

13.3 Insufficient Insurance Proceeds.  However, if the Condominium is damaged to an 
extent more than the available insurance proceeds, the Condominium shall be subject to an action 
for partition upon obtaining the written consent of Unit Owners (and the Eligible Mortgage 
Holders of their Units) having 75% or more of the votes.  In the case of partition, the net proceeds 
of sale together with any net proceeds of insurance shall be considered as one fund and shall be 
divided among all Unit Owners in proportion to their respective Percentage Interests, and shall be 
distributed in accordance with the priority of interests in each Unit. 
 
 ARTICLE 14 
 EMINENT DOMAIN 
 

14.1 Association Representation.  The Association shall represent the Unit Owners in 
any eminent domain proceedings, negotiations, settlements, or agreements affecting the Common 
Elements.  By acceptance of a conveyance of its Unit, each Unit Owner appoints the Association 
as an attorney-in-fact for this purpose.  Any proceeds from a settlement shall be payable to the 
Association for the benefit of the Unit Owners and their mortgage holders. 
 

14.2 Allocation of Damages.  Any damages for a taking of all or part of the 
Condominium shall be awarded as follows: 
 

(a)  Every Unit Owner is entitled to the entire award for the taking of all or part 
of their respective Unit and for consequential damages to their Unit. 
 

(b) Any award for the taking of Limited Common Elements shall be allocated 
to the Unit Owners of the Units to which the use of those Limited Common Elements is restricted 
in proportion to their respective Percentage Interests. 
 

(c) In the event no reconstruction is undertaken, any award for the taking of 
Common Elements shall be allocated to all Unit Owners in proportion to their respective 
Percentage Interests. 
 

14.3 Restoration.  Following the taking of all or a part of the Common Elements, the 
Association shall promptly undertake to restore the improvements of the Common Elements to an 
architectural whole compatible with the existing structure.  Any costs of such restoration in excess 
of the condemnation award shall be a common expense payable by the Unit Owners in proportion 
to their respective Percentage Interests.  However, if the taking under the power of eminent domain 
is to the extent where the remaining Condominium portion has been diminished to the extent that 
reconstruction or restoration is not practical, a Condominium shall be subject to an action for 
partition upon obtaining the written consent of Unit Owners (and the Eligible Mortgage Holders 
of their Units) having 75% or more of the votes.  In the case of partition, the net proceeds of sale, 
together with any net proceeds of the award for taking, shall be considered as one fund and shall 
be divided among all Unit Owners in proportion to their Percentage Interests and shall be 
distributed in accordance with the priority of interests in each Unit. 
 



 

 14 

14.4 Percentage Interests and Votes.  A taking of all or part of a Unit may not include 
any of the Percentage Interest or vote appurtenant to the Unit.  Instead, the following provisions 
shall apply: 

 
(a) Following the taking of a part but less than all of any Unit, the vote 

appurtenant to that Unit shall be appurtenant to the remainder of that Unit, and the Percentage 
Interests appurtenant to the Units shall be adjusted based upon the remaining areas of the Units, as 
determined by a Wisconsin-licensed architect engaged by the Association. 
 

(b) Following the taking of all of any Unit, the following adjustments shall be 
made: 

 
(1) The Percentage Interest appurtenant to the Unit shall be eliminated 

and the right to vote appurtenant to the Unit shall terminate. 
 
(2) The Percentage Interests appurtenant to the remaining Units shall be 

adjusted based upon the areas of the remaining Units, as determined by a Wisconsin-licensed 
architect engaged by the Association. 
 

(c) In either case, the Association shall promptly prepare and record an 
amendment to this Declaration reflecting the new Percentage Interests (if applicable) appurtenant 
to the Units. 
 

14.5 Priority of Distribution of Damages for Units.  All damages for each Unit shall be 
distributed in accordance with the priority of interests at law or in equity in each respective Unit. 
 

14.6 Conveyances in Lieu of Condemnation.  In this Article, “taking under the power of 
eminent domain” includes any sale in settlement of any pending or threatened condemnation 
proceeding. 
 
 ARTICLE 15 
 EASEMENTS AND ENCROACHMENTS 
 

15.1 Presumption as to Existing Physical Boundaries.  Any existing physical boundaries 
of any Unit or Common Elements constructed or reconstructed in substantial conformity with the 
Plat shall be conclusively presumed to be its boundaries, regardless of the shifting, settlement or 
lateral movement of any building and regardless of minor variations between the physical 
boundaries as described in this Declaration or shown on the Plat and the existing physical 
boundaries of any such Unit or Common Element.  This presumption applies only to 
encroachments within the Condominium. 
 

15.2  Encroachments as Result of Authorized Work.  If any portion of any Common 
Element encroaches on any Unit or if any portion of a Unit encroaches on any Common Element, 
as a result of the duly authorized construction, reconstruction or repair of the Building, a valid 
easement for the encroachment and for the maintenance of the same shall exist so long as the 
Building stands. 



 

 15 

 
15.3 Easements.  The Association and, as long as Declarant owns any Unit, Declarant, 

shall have and may grant permits, licenses, and easements over the Common Elements for utilities, 
roads, completion or repair of improvements to the Property, and other purposes necessary for the 
proper operation of the Condominium. 

 
15.4 Right of Entry.  The Association and, as long as Declarant owns any Unit, Declarant, 

shall have an irrevocable right and an easement to enter Units to complete or make repairs to 
Common Elements when reasonably necessary for public safety or to prevent damage to other 
portions of the Condominium, and to remedy the Unit Owner’s failure to perform its maintenance, 
repair, or replacement obligations as described above.  Except in cases involving manifest danger 
to public safety or property, the Association or Declarant shall make a reasonable effort to give 
notice to the owner of any Unit to be entered for any such purpose.  No entry by the Association 
or Declarant for the purposes specified in this Section may be considered a trespass. 
 

15.5 Easements Included in Grants of Units.  A grant or other disposition of a Unit shall 
include and be subject to any easement arising under the provisions of this Section without specific 
or particular reference to the easement. 
 
 ARTICLE 16 
 RIGHTS OF MORTGAGE HOLDERS 
 

16.1 Notice.  The holder, insurer or guarantor of any first mortgage or land contract on 
a Unit, upon written request to the Association at the address specified in the Bylaws stating the 
name and address of the Mortgagee along with the Unit number or Unit address on which it has a 
mortgage, insurance policy or guaranty (each such party sending such notice being an “Eligible 
Mortgage Holder”), shall be entitled to receive timely written notice from the Association of the 
following events: 
 

(a) Any condemnation or casualty loss that affects either a material portion of 
the Condominium or the unit securing its mortgage. 

 
(b) Any 60-day delinquency in the payment of assessments or charges owed by 

the Unit Owner of any Unit on which it holds the mortgage. 
 
(c) A lapse, cancellation, or material modification of any insurance policy 

maintained by the Association; and 
 

(d) Any proposed action that requires the consent of a specified percentage of 
Eligible Mortgage Holders. 

 
16.2 Approval of Removal from Act.  Except as provided above in connection with 

damage to or destruction of the Property or eminent domain, any action to remove all or any part 
of the Property from the Act must be agreed to by Eligible Mortgage Holders that represent at least 
75% of the votes of the mortgaged Units.  However, implied approval will be assumed when an 
Eligible Mortgage Holder fails to submit a response to any written proposal for an amendment 



 

 16 

within 30 days after it receives proper notice of the proposal, provided the notice was delivered by 
certified or registered mail, with a “return receipt” requested. 
 
 ARTICLE 17 
 AMENDMENTS 
 

17.1 Unit Owner Consent.  Except as provided below with respect to amendments in 
connection with the assignment of Declarant’s rights, this Declaration may be amended only with 
the written consent of at least 75% of the Unit Owners.  Any amendment made while Declarant 
owns any Unit shall require Declarant’s consent.  An amendment becomes effective when it is 
recorded in the same manner as this Declaration.  A Unit Owner’s written consent is not effective 
unless it is approved in writing by the first mortgagee of the Unit, if any.   Approval from the first 
mortgage lender or equivalent security interest holder on a Unit, or the person servicing the first 
mortgage loan or its equivalent, constitutes approval of the first mortgagee or equivalent security 
interest holder under this Section. 

 
17.2 Compensation.  If an amendment to this Declaration has the effect of reducing the 

value of any Unit Owner’s interest in any Common Element, including any Limited Common 
Element, and/or increases the value of Declarant’s or any other Unit Owner’s interest in the 
Common Element or Limited Common Element, then Declarant or other Unit Owner shall 
compensate the Unit Owner the value of whose interest is reduced in the amount of the reduction 
in value, either in cash or by other consideration acceptable to the Unit Owner.  A Unit Owner 
may waive the right to obtain this compensation in writing. 

 
17.3 Assignment of Declarant’s Rights.  Declarant may assign its rights and obligations 

as Declarant of the Condominium under the Act, this Declaration, and the Bylaws by recording an 
amendment to the Declaration that includes the assignment and an acceptance of the assignment 
that is signed by the assignee and acknowledged.  Declarant may not assign less than all of its 
rights and obligations as Declarant. 
 
 ARTICLE 18 
 SERVICE OF PROCESS 
 

The person to receive service of process for the Condominium in the cases provided in the 
Act (the “Registered Agent”) and his address are as follows: 
 

Stephen M. Anderson 
ACG Acquisitions #10, LLC 
5000 South Towne Drive, Suite 100 
New Berlin, Wisconsin 53151 

 
Declarant shall file the name and address of the Registered Agent with the Wisconsin 

Department of Financial Institutions.  The name or address of the Registered Agent may be 
changed by Declarant or the Association in the same manner and to the same extent that names 
and addresses of Registered Agents may be changed by corporations.  The registered agent for the 
Association shall be the Registered Agent for the Condominium. 



 

 17 

 
 ARTICLE 19 
 RULES OF CONSTRUCTION 
 

19.1 Liberal Construction.  The provisions of the Condominium Instruments shall be 
liberally construed to facilitate the creation and operation of the Condominium. 
 

19.2 Severability.  All provisions of the Condominium Instruments are severable and the 
invalidity of one provision does not affect the validity of any other provision. 
 

19.3 Conflicts.  If there is any conflict between any provisions of this Declaration and 
any provisions of the Plat, the Bylaws, or the Rules, the provisions of this Declaration shall control.  
If there is any conflict between any provisions of any of the Condominium Instruments and any 
provisions of the Bylaws or the Rules, the provisions of the Condominium Instruments shall 
control.  If there is any conflict between any provisions of any of the Condominium Instruments 
and any provisions of the Act, the provisions of the Act shall control. 
 

19.4 Incorporation.  The Condominium Instruments shall be construed together and are 
determined to incorporate one another to the extent that any requirement of the Act applying to 
one instrument is satisfied if the deficiency can be corrected by reference to any of the others. 
 

[Signature page follows.] 
 
 



 

 18 

 Dated as of the date first written above. 
 
 
ACG ACQUISITIONS #10, LLC 
 
 
By:        

Stephen M. Anderson, Sole Member 
 
 
 ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
STATE OF WISCONSIN        ) 

) ss 
COUNTY OF WAUKESHA  ) 
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on February _____, 2024, by Stephen M. 
Anderson, as Sole Member of ACG Acquisitions #10, LLC. 
 
 

  
Name:   
Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 
My commission       

 
 



 

 19 

 CONSENT OF MORTGAGEE 
 

Citizens Bank, mortgagee of the Property described in the foregoing Declaration, consents 
to the execution and recording of this Declaration and agrees that the lien of its mortgage shall be 
subject and subordinate to the rights created under this Declaration other than the lien rights created 
under the Declaration. 

 
Dated February _____, 2024. 

 
CITIZENS BANK 
 
 
By:        

Ryan M. Lilly, First Vice President 
 

 
 ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
STATE OF WISCONSIN       ) 

) ss 
COUNTY OF _________________ ) 
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on February _____, 2024 by Ryan M. Lilly, 
as First Vice President of Citizens Bank. 
 
 

  
Name:   
Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 
My commission   

 
 
EXHIBITS 
A. Legal Description of Property 
B. Condominium Plat 
C. Percentage Interests 
 
 
Drafted by Adam A. Bardosy 
Mallery s.c. 
731 North Jackson Street, Suite 900 
Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202 
Telephone:  414-271-2424 
Facsimile:  414-271-8678 



 

 

 EXHIBIT A 
 
 
 LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 
 
 
Parcel 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 4982, recorded on July 21, 1987, on Reel 2121, Images 
1575 to 1577 inclusive, as Document No. 6086366, being a part of the Northwest 1/4 and the 
Northeast 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 6, Town 5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of 
Franklin, County of Milwaukee, State of Wisconsin.



 

 

 EXHIBIT B 
 
 
 CONDOMINIUM PLAT 
 







 

 

EXHIBIT C 
 
 
 PERCENTAGE INTERESTS 
 
 
 
 

Unit Number: Percentage Interest: 
 

1 50.00% 
2 12.50% 
3 12.50% 
4 12.50% 
5 12.50% 

 
 
 



 BYLAWS OF 
 
 FOREST HOME COMMERCIAL CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION, INC. 
 
 
 ARTICLE I 
 
 NAME AND ADDRESS 
 

1.01. Name; Purpose. The name of the corporation shall be Forest Home Commercial 
Condominium Association, Inc. (the “Association”). The Association is incorporated as a 
nonstock, nonprofit corporation under the provisions of the Wisconsin Nonstock Corporation Law, 
Wis. Stat. ch. 181. 
 

1.02. Address. The principal office of the Association shall be located at 5000 South 
Towne Drive, Suite 100, New Berlin, Wisconsin 53151. This address shall also be the mailing 
address of the Association. 
 

1.03. Binding Effect. These Bylaws (the “Bylaws”) shall be binding upon the Unit 
Owners, their heirs, successors, and assigns and shall govern the use, occupancy, operation, and 
administration of the Condominium. 
 

1.04. Capitalized Terms. Capitalized terms not defined in these Bylaws shall have the 
definitions given to such terms in the Declaration of Condominium for Forest Home Commercial 
Condominium executed by ACG Acquisitions #10, LLC  (the “Declarant”) and recorded in the 
office of the Milwaukee County Register of Deeds (the “Declaration”). 

 
1.05. Nonprofit Status. No part of the net earnings of the Association may inure (other 

than by acquiring, constructing, or providing management, maintenance, and care of Association 
property, and other than by a rebate of excess membership dues, fees, or assessments) to the benefit 
of any member or individual. Following the Association’s winding up of its affairs and upon its 
liquidation, no member of the Association shall receive any distribution of assets of the 
Association greater than the amount originally paid to the Association with respect to such 
member’s membership interest. Furthermore, following the wind-up of the Association’s affairs, 
any excess assets of the Association (other than a rebate of excess membership dues, fees, or 
assessments) following the wind-up of its affairs shall, at the time of the Association’s liquidation, 
be distributed to a religious, scientific, educational, benevolent, or other corporation or association 
that is organized and conducted not for pecuniary profit.  For the avoidance of doubt, the 
Association is not qualified, and does not intend to qualify, as a 501(c)(3) nonprofit organization. 
 
 ARTICLE II 
 
 MEMBERSHIP 
 

2.01. Membership. The membership of the Association shall at all times consist 
exclusively of all Unit Owners of the Condominium. Land contract vendees but not land contract 



vendors shall be members of the Association. Persons who hold an interest in a Unit merely as 
security for the performance of an obligation (including Mortgagees) are not members of the 
Association. 
 

2.02. Commencement and Termination. Membership shall immediately commence upon 
acquisition of an ownership interest in a Unit of the Condominium and shall immediately terminate 
upon conveyance of such ownership interest. If a Unit Owner’s ownership interest passes to its 
personal representative or to a trustee, or other heir or beneficiary, upon the Unit Owner’s death, 
such personal representative or trustee, or such other successor, shall be a member of the 
Association. 
 

2.03. Withdrawal or Expulsion. No Unit Owner may voluntarily withdraw from 
membership in the Association nor may any Unit Owner be expelled from such membership. 
 

2.04. Membership Certificates. Membership certificates shall not be issued. 
 

2.05. Membership List. The Association shall maintain a current membership list listing 
all Unit Owners of each Unit, the current mailing address for each Unit Owner to which notice of 
meetings of the Association shall be sent, all Mortgagees of the Unit, if any, and, in the case of 
multiple owners of a Unit, the Unit Owner, if any, designated to cast any or all votes pertaining to 
such Unit in accordance with the Declaration. Each Unit Owner shall promptly provide written 
notice to the Association of any transfer of its Unit as provided in Section 2.06 and of any change 
in such Unit Owner’s name or current mailing address. No Unit Owner may vote at meetings of 
the Association until the name and current mailing address of such Unit Owner has been provided 
to and received by the secretary of the Association. Any Unit Owner that mortgages its Unit or 
any interest therein or enters into a land contract with respect to its Unit shall notify the secretary 
of the name and mailing address of its Mortgagee and shall also notify the secretary when such 
mortgage has been released or such land contract has been fulfilled, and the secretary shall make 
appropriate changes to the membership list effective as of the date of the mortgage, release, land 
contract, or fulfillment, as the case may be. 
 

2.06. Transfer of Membership. Each membership shall be appurtenant to the Unit upon 
which it is based and shall be transferred automatically upon conveyance with the transfer of a 
Unit. As soon as possible following the transfer of a Unit, the new Unit Owners shall give written 
notice to the secretary of the Association of such transfer identifying the Unit and setting forth the 
names and mailing addresses of the new Unit Owners, the date of the transfer, the names and 
addresses of each Mortgagee, if any, and in the case of a Unit owned by multiple Unit Owners, the 
name of the person designated to vote, if any. The Association shall make appropriate changes to 
the membership list described in Section 2.05 effective as of the date of transfer. 
 

2.07. Effect of Condominium Lien. No Unit Owner may vote on any matter submitted to 
a vote of the Unit Owners if the Association has recorded a statement of condominium lien on the 
Unit owned by such Unit Owner and the amount necessary to release the lien has not been paid at 
the time of the voting. 
 



2.08. Quorum. Unit Owners holding fifty-one percent (51%) of the total votes of the 
Association as set forth in the Declaration, present in person or represented by proxy, shall 
constitute a quorum at all meetings of the Unit Owners for the transaction of business. 
 

2.09. Vote Required to Transact Business. When a quorum is present in person or 
represented by proxy at any meeting, a majority of votes cast shall decide any question brought 
before the meeting unless the question requires a different vote by express provision in the 
Declaration, Articles of Incorporation of the Association (the “Articles”), Wisconsin 
Condominium Ownership Act, Wisconsin Nonstock Corporation Law, or these Bylaws, in which 
case such express provision shall apply. 
 

2.10. Proxies. All proxies shall be in writing, signed by the Unit Owner giving such proxy, 
and filed with the secretary of the Association before or at the time of the meeting. No proxy shall 
be valid after one hundred eighty (180) days from its date of issuance, unless granted to a 
Mortgagee or tenant of a Unit. 
 

2.11. Voting Designations of Multiple Unit Owners. If there are multiple Unit Owners 
of any single Unit, then each vote appurtenant to such Unit may be cast proportionately among the 
multiple Unit Owners in accordance with their respective percentages of ownership of the Unit, 
unless (a) the multiple Unit Owners have designated a single Unit Owner to exercise any or all 
votes appertaining to their Unit and have filed written notice of such designation signed by all such 
multiple Unit Owners with the secretary of the Association, in which case such votes cast by a 
Unit Owner so designated shall be deemed to be the unanimous act of the multiple Unit Owners, 
or (b) only one of multiple Unit Owners of a Unit is present in person or by proxy at a meeting of 
the Association, in which event the Unit Owner present (whether or not such Unit Owner or any 
other Unit Owner has been designated to cast votes pursuant to item (a) of this Section 2.11) is 
entitled to cast all votes allocated to the Unit and the same shall be deemed to be the unanimous 
act of the multiple Unit Owners. No designation of a single Unit Owner to cast any vote 
appertaining to any Unit owned by multiple Unit Owners shall be effective until written notice of 
such designation signed by all Unit Owners of such Unit has been received by the secretary of the 
Association before casting such vote. If any Unit Owner is so designated, then except as provided 
in the Declaration or in these Bylaws, only that Unit Owner shall be entitled to cast such vote in 
person or by proxy. A voting designation may be limited in time or may be changed by notice in 
writing to the secretary of the Association signed by all Unit Owners. 
 
 ARTICLE III 
 
 MEETINGS OF MEMBERS 
 

3.01. Place. All meetings of the Unit Owners shall be held at a place that shall be stated in 
the notice of the meeting, which place shall be within a 30-mile radius of the Condominium. 
 

3.02. Annual Meetings. The first annual meeting of the Unit Owners shall be held on the 
second Monday of the first December after the Declarant has ceased to control the Association as 
provided in Section 6.2 of the Declaration. Thereafter, regular annual meetings of the Unit Owners 
shall be held on the second Monday of December of each succeeding year. 



 
3.03. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Unit Owners may be called at any time by 

the president of the Association and shall be called upon the written request of Unit Owners 
holding at least twenty-five percent (25%) of the votes. Business transacted at special meetings 
shall be limited to the objects stated in the notice of such meeting. 
 

3.04. Notice of Meetings. No annual or special meeting of the Unit Owners may be held 
except upon at least ten (10) days’ (but not more than 60 days’) written notice delivered or mailed 
to each Unit Owner at the address shown on the Association’s current membership list. Such notice 
shall specify the place, day, and hour of the meetings and, in the case of a special meeting, the 
purpose of the meeting. Prior notice of a meeting is not required to any Unit Owner that signs a 
waiver of notice of such meeting. 
 

3.05. Adjourned Meetings. If a quorum shall not be present in person or represented by 
proxy at any meeting, the Unit Owners present shall have the power to adjourn the meeting from 
time to time, without notice other than announcement at the meeting, until a quorum shall be 
present or represented by proxy. At such adjourned meeting at which a quorum shall be present or 
represented by proxy, any business may be transacted that might have been transacted at the 
meeting originally called. 
 

3.06. Duties of Officers at Meetings. The president of the Association shall preside at all 
meetings of the Unit Owners, and in his or her absence, the vice president shall preside. The 
secretary shall take the minutes of the meeting and keep such minutes in the Association’s minute 
book. Votes at all meetings shall be counted by the secretary. 
 

3.07. Order of Business. The order of business at all meetings of the Unit Owners shall be 
as follows: 
 

(a) Calling the meeting to order; 
(b) Calling the roll of Unit Owners and certifying the proxies; 
(c) Proof of notice of meeting or waiver of notice; 
(d) Reading and disposal of any unapproved minutes; 
(e) Reports of officers; 
(f) Reports of committees (if appropriate); 
(g) Election of directors (if appropriate); 
(h) Unfinished business; 
(i) New business; and 
(j) Adjournment. 

 
3.08. Action Without a Meeting by Written Consent. Any action required or permitted 

by any provision of the Wisconsin Condominium Ownership Act, the Wisconsin Nonstock 
Corporation Law, the Declaration, the Articles, or these Bylaws to be taken by the vote of the Unit 
Owners may be taken without a meeting if a written consent, setting forth the action so taken, is 
signed and dated by all Unit Owners that would have been entitled to vote on the action at such 
meeting and that hold a number of votes equal to fifty-one percent (51%) of the total number of 
votes in the Association. 



 
3.09. Action Without a Meeting by Written Ballot. Any action required or permitted by 

any provision of the Wisconsin Condominium Ownership Act, the Wisconsin Nonstock 
Corporation Law, the Declaration, the Articles, or these Bylaws to be taken by the vote of the Unit 
Owners may be taken without a meeting if the Association delivers a written ballot to every Unit 
Owner entitled to vote on the matter. The written ballot shall set forth each proposed action, shall 
provide an opportunity to vote for or against each proposed action, and shall be accompanied by a 
notice stating the number of responses needed to meet the quorum requirements, the percentage of 
approvals necessary to approve each matter other than election of directors, and the time by which 
the ballot must be received by the secretary of the Association in order to be counted. Approval of 
any action by written ballot shall be valid only when the number of votes cast by ballot equals or 
exceeds the quorum required at a meeting authorizing the action and the number of approvals 
equals or exceeds the number of votes that would be required to approve the matter at a meeting 
at which the total number of votes cast was the same as the number of votes cast by ballot. Once 
received by the secretary of the Association, a written ballot may not be revoked. 
 
 ARTICLE IV 
 
 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

4.01. Number and Membership in Association. The affairs of the Association shall be 
managed initially by a Board of Directors composed of three (3) directors selected by the 
Declarant. No more than one director at any given time may be a person who is not also a Unit 
Owner; provided, however, that during the period of Declarant control as provided in Section 6.2 
of the Declaration, any person named by the Declarant to the Board of Directors shall be deemed 
to be a “Unit Owner” for purposes of this requirement only and provided further, that in the case 
of a Unit that is owned by an entity rather than an individual, any person who is an officer, member, 
partner, director, employee, or designee of such entity shall be deemed to be a “Unit Owner” for 
purposes of this requirement only. 
 

4.02. Term of Office. The initial Board of Directors shall serve until the Declarant has 
conveyed twenty-five percent (25%) of the Percentage Interest to purchasers. Within thirty (30) 
days after the conveyance of twenty-five percent (25%) of the Percentage Interest in the Common 
Elements to purchasers, the Unit Owners other than the Declarant shall elect one director to serve 
on the Board of Directors. The Declarant shall elect the remaining two directors. Such Board of 
Directors shall serve until the Declarant has conveyed fifty percent (50%) of the Percentage 
Interest in the Common Elements to purchasers. Within thirty (30) days after the conveyance of 
fifty percent (50%) of the Percentage Interest in the Common Elements to purchasers, the Unit 
Owners other than the Declarant shall elect one director to serve on the Board of Directors. The 
Declarant shall elect the remaining two directors. Such Board of Directors shall serve until the 
next election upon expiration of the period of Declarant control as provided in Section 6.2 of the 
Declaration. Not later than forty-five (45) days after the expiration of the period of Declarant 
control, a special meeting of the Unit Owners shall be called, and the Unit Owners shall elect all 
three (3) directors to serve on the Board of Directors. Such directors shall take office upon such 
election and shall serve until the first annual meeting of the Unit Owners as provided in Section 



3.02. Thereafter, each director shall take office at the annual meeting and shall serve for a term of 
one (1) year or until his or her successor shall be elected. 
 

4.03. Election of Directors. One (1) month before each annual meeting of the Unit 
Owners, the secretary of the Association shall mail to all Unit Owners a notice setting a deadline 
for nomination of persons to serve as directors on the Board of Directors. All nominations shall be 
mailed to the secretary. Unit Owners must obtain the prior consent of any person they nominate 
and may nominate themselves. Only Unit Owners entitled to vote on the election of any director 
may nominate a person to serve as a director. If the number of nominees equals the number of 
directors to be elected, the nominees shall automatically become the new directors to take office 
at the annual meeting. If the number of nominees is fewer than the number of directors to be 
elected, the secretary shall solicit further nominees by mail. If the number of nominees exceeds 
the number of directors to be elected, the secretary shall conduct an election by written ballot in 
accordance with Section 3.09 with all written ballots due before the deadline set by the secretary. 
Each Unit shall have the number of votes provided in the Declaration. The persons receiving the 
largest number of votes shall be elected as directors and shall take office at the annual meeting. 
 

4.04. Vacancy and Replacement. If the office of any director becomes vacant because of 
death, resignation, disqualification, or removal from office, such vacancy shall be filled by vote of 
a majority of the remaining directors at a special meeting of the Board of Directors held for that 
purpose promptly after the occurrence of such vacancy, even though the directors present may 
constitute less than a quorum, and each person so elected shall be a member of the Board of 
Directors for the remainder of the term of the director who left office or until a successor is elected 
in accordance with these Bylaws. Notwithstanding the foregoing, during the period of Declarant 
control as described in Section 6.2 of the Declaration, only the Declarant shall have the right to 
replace any director elected by Declarant. 
 

4.05. Removal. Before the expiration of the period of Declarant control as described in 
Section 6.2 of the Declaration, only the Declarant shall have the right to remove a director from 
the Board of Directors. Thereafter, any director may be removed from the Board of Directors, with 
or without cause, by a majority vote of the Unit Owners. 
 

4.06. Compensation. No director shall receive any compensation for his or her services as 
a director of the Association other than reimbursement for reasonable out-of-pocket expenses 
incurred in the performance of directors’ duties. 

 
 ARTICLE V 
 
 MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

5.01. Regular Meetings. Until the expiration of Declarant control as described in Section 
6.2 of the Declaration, the regular meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held annually on the 
second Monday of December at the time and place designated in the notice of such meeting. 
Thereafter, regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held annually without notice 
following the annual meeting of the Unit Owners at the same place as the Unit Owners’ meeting 
or at such place as the Board of Directors may vote to hold the meeting. 



 
5.02. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called at any 

time by the president and shall be called by the president or secretary at the request of any director 
on the Board of Directors. Business transacted at all special meetings shall be limited to the objects 
stated in the notice of such meeting. 
 

5.03. Notice of Special Meetings. No special meeting of the Board of Directors may be 
held except upon at least three (3) days’ prior written notice delivered or mailed by the secretary 
to each member of the Board of Directors. Such notice shall specify the place, day, and hour of 
the meeting of the Board of Directors and the purpose of the meeting. Attendance by any director 
at any meeting of the Board of Directors shall be deemed a waiver of such notice. 
 

5.04. Quorum. A majority of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of 
business. Except as otherwise expressly provided in the Wisconsin Condominium Ownership Act, 
the Wisconsin Nonstock Corporation Law, the Declaration, the Articles, or these Bylaws, every 
act of a majority of directors present at any meeting at which there is a quorum shall be the act of 
the Board of Directors. If a quorum is not present at the meeting, the directors then present may 
adjourn the meeting until such time as a quorum is present, and at such later meeting at which a 
quorum is present, may transact any business that might have been transacted at the meeting 
originally called. 
 

5.05. Order of Business. The order of business at all meetings of the Board of Directors 
shall be as follows: 
 

(a) Calling the meeting to order; 
(b) Proof of notice of meeting or waiver of notice; 
(c) Reading and disposal of any unapproved minutes; 
(d) Reports of officers; 
(e) Reports of committees (if appropriate); 
(f) Election of officers (if appropriate); 
(g) Unfinished business; 
(h) New business; and 
(i) Adjournment. 

 
5.06. Action Without a Meeting by Written Consent. Any action required or permitted 

by the Articles or these Bylaws to be taken by the Board of Directors may be taken without a 
meeting if a written consent, setting forth the action so taken, is signed by two-thirds (2/3) of the 
directors then in office. 
 

ARTICLE VI 
 

POWERS AND DUTIES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

6.01. Powers and Duties. All powers and duties of the Association under the Declaration, 
the Articles, these Bylaws, the Wisconsin Condominium Ownership Act, and the Wisconsin 
Nonstock Corporation Law shall be exercised by the Board of Directors except those powers and 



duties specifically given to or required of any committees of the Association or the Unit Owners. 
The powers and duties of the Board of Directors include, without limitation, the power or duty to: 
 

(a) Adopt budgets for revenues, expenditures, and reserves; 
 

(b) Levy and collect General Assessments and Special Assessments and disburse funds in 
payment of the Association’s expenses; 
 

(c) Manage, maintain, repair, replace, improve, operate, and regulate the Common 
Elements, Limited Common Elements, and any property owned or leased by the Association; 
 

(d) Grant easements, licenses, and rights-of-way through or over the Common Elements; 
 

(e) Hire and supervise any property manager or agent, security manager or agent, other 
manager or agent, employee, attorney, accountant, or any other independent contractor whose 
services the Board of Directors determines are necessary or appropriate; 
 

(f) Sue on behalf of all Unit Owners; 
 

(g) Make contracts and incur liabilities; 
 

(h) Purchase, take, receive, rent, or otherwise acquire and hold any interest in real or 
personal property, including any Unit of the Condominium; 
 

(i) Sell, convey, mortgage, encumber, lease, exchange, transfer, or otherwise dispose of 
any interest in real or personal property, including any Unit of the Condominium; 
 

(j) Receive any income derived from payments, fees or charges for the use, rental, or 
operation of the Common Elements and any property owned or leased by the Association; 
 

(k) Adopt, amend, and repeal rules and regulations governing the operation, maintenance, 
and use of any portion of the Condominium and the personal conduct of any person on or with 
regard to Condominium property, including the imposition of charges for the use of Common 
Elements and penalties for infractions of the rules and regulations of the Association. Such rules 
and regulations may also be adopted, amended, and repealed by the Unit Owners having seventy-
five percent (75%) or more of the votes of the Association. Notwithstanding anything in these 
Bylaws to the contrary, (i) rules and regulations that are adopted, amended or repealed by the Unit 
Owners may not thereafter be amended, repealed, or readopted by the Board of Directors; and (ii) 
the Declarant and its successors and assigns shall not be subject to or bound by any rule, regulation, 
or amendment to a rule or regulation that is adopted without the written consent of the Declarant 
and its successors and assigns to the specific rule, regulation, or amendment; 
 

(l) Insure the Condominium property and property owned or leased by the Association 
against loss by fire and other casualty and the Association and Unit Owners against public liability 
as provided in the Declaration and purchase such other insurance as the Board of Directors may 
deem advisable; 



 
(m) Keep all books and records and prepare accurate reports of all transactions of the 

Association; 
 

(n) Appoint committees to carry out any tasks that the Board of Directors deems necessary 
or appropriate; 
 

(o) Designate depositories and establish accounts for the funds of the Association and 
determine which officers or agents shall be authorized to withdraw and transfer funds deposited in 
such accounts; 
 

(p) Maintain such reserve funds for the operation, maintenance, repair, and replacement of 
Common Elements, Limited Common Elements, and any property owned or leased by the 
Association, for contingencies and for making up any deficit in the Common Expenses for any 
prior year as the Board of Directors may deem proper or as may be required by law; and 
 

(q) Delegate any or part of the powers and duties of the Board of Directors or Association 
officers to committees of the Association or to a manager or managing agent. 
 

6.02. Manager. The Board of Directors may hire a manager or managing agent at a 
compensation rate established by the board to perform such duties and services as the Board of 
Directors shall authorize, including, without limitation, the duties enumerated in Sections 6.01 and 
7.07. 
 
 ARTICLE VII 
 
 OFFICERS AND THEIR DUTIES 
 

7.01. Officers. The principal officers of the Association shall be the president, vice 
president, secretary, and treasurer, all of whom shall be elected by the Board of Directors. All 
officers shall be Unit Owners, provided, however, that during the period of Declarant control as 
provided in Section 6.2 of the Declaration, any person named by the Declarant to the Board of 
Directors or as an officer shall be deemed to be a “Unit Owner” for purposes of this requirement 
only and provided further, that in the case of a Unit that is owned by an entity rather than an 
individual, any person who is an officer, member, partner, director, employee, or designee of such 
entity shall be deemed to be a “Unit Owner” for purposes of this requirement only. The same 
individual may simultaneously hold more than one office in the Association. 
 

7.02. Election of Officers. The first election of officers shall take place at the first meeting 
of the initial Board of Directors. Thereafter, the officers shall be elected annually by the Board of 
Directors at its regular meeting. 
 

7.03. Term. Each officer of the Association shall hold office for a term of one (1) year or 
until his or her successor shall be elected. 
 



7.04. Special Appointments. The Board of Directors may elect such other officers as the 
affairs of the Association may require, each of whom shall hold office for a period specified by 
the Board of Directors which shall not exceed three (3) years, and have such authority and perform 
such duties as the Board of Directors may from time to time determine. 
 

7.05. Resignation and Removal. Any officer may be removed from office by the Board 
of Directors whenever in its judgment the best interests of the Association will be served thereby. 
Any officer may at any time resign by giving written notice to the president or the secretary. Such 
resignation shall take effect on the date of receipt of such notice by the president or the secretary 
or at any later time specified in the notice. Unless otherwise specified in the notice, the acceptance 
of the resignation described in the notice shall not be necessary for its effectiveness. 
 

7.06. Vacancies. A vacancy in any office may be filled by appointment by the Board of 
Directors. The officer appointed to fill such vacancy shall serve for the remainder of the term of 
the officer replaced. 
 

7.07. Duties. Unless otherwise indicated by the Board of Directors or delegated to a 
manager or managing agent pursuant to Article VI, the duties of the officers are as follows: 
 

(a) President. The president shall preside at all meetings of the members of the Association 
and of the Board of Directors; oversee the implementation of the Board of Directors’ orders and 
resolutions; sign all leases, mortgages, deeds, contracts, checks, promissory notes, and other 
written instruments on behalf of the Association; generally manage the business of the Association; 
supervise and direct all other officers of the Association; and perform such other duties incident to 
the office of president as may be required under the Wisconsin Condominium Ownership Act, the 
Wisconsin Nonstock Corporation Law, the Declaration, the Articles, or these Bylaws, or by the 
Board of Directors. 
 

(b) Vice President. The vice president shall act in the place of the president in the event of 
the president’s absence or inability or refusal to act and shall exercise and discharge such other 
duties as may be required by the Board of Directors. 
 

(c) Secretary. The secretary shall record the votes and keep the minutes of all meetings and 
proceedings of the Board of Directors and of the Unit Owners; serve notices of the meetings of the 
Board of Directors and of the Unit Owners; keep all books and records of the Association other 
than books of account, including the membership list described in Section 2.05; and perform such 
other duties incident to the office of secretary as may be required under the Wisconsin 
Condominium Ownership Act, the Wisconsin Nonstock Corporation Law, the Declaration, the 
Articles, or these Bylaws, or by the Board of Directors. 
 

(d) Treasurer. The treasurer shall receive and deposit in appropriate bank accounts all 
funds of the Association and disburse such funds as directed by the president or by the Board of 
Directors; keep complete and accurate books of account; prepare the annual report of the business 
transacted by the Association each year; and prepare a proposed annual operating budget each year 
for consideration of the Board of Directors or Unit Owners. 
 



7.08. Compensation. No officer shall receive any compensation for his or her services as 
an officer of the Association, other than reimbursement for reasonable out-of-pocket expenses 
incurred in the performance of officers’ duties. 
 

7.09. Fidelity Bonds. The Board of Directors may require any officers, agents, or 
employees of the Association handling or responsible for Association funds to furnish adequate 
fidelity bonds. The premiums of such bonds shall be paid by the Association. 
 
 ARTICLE VIII 
 
 BOOKS AND RECORDS 
 

8.01. Inspection. The books, records, minutes, papers, and membership list of the 
Association shall at all times, during reasonable business hours, be subject to inspection by any 
Unit Owner. The Declaration, the Articles, and the Bylaws shall be available for inspection by any 
Unit Owner, Mortgagee, or prospective purchaser of a Unit at the principal office of the 
Association, where copies may be purchased at reasonable cost. 
 

8.02. Audits. The accounts and records of the Association shall be audited at least once 
every other year by an audit committee selected by the Board of Directors. The committee shall 
retain such professional auditors and other independent examiners as it deems appropriate. The 
cost of such audit shall be a Common Expense. 
 
 ARTICLE IX 
 
 BUDGET, ASSESSMENT, AND ANNUAL REPORT 
 

9.01. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Association shall begin on the first day of January 
and end on the last day of December. 
 

9.02. Budget. Throughout the period of Declarant control as described in Section 6.2 of 
the Declaration, the Board of Directors shall adopt an annual operating budget for the Association 
at the annual meeting of the Board of Directors, provided, however, that the first annual operating 
budget for the Association shall be adopted by the Board of Directors before the first sale of a Unit 
by the Declarant. After the expiration of the period of Declarant control as described in Section 
6.2 of the Declaration, the Unit Owners holding at least fifty-one percent (51%) of the votes present 
in person or represented by proxy at their annual meeting shall adopt the annual operating budget 
for the Association at such annual meeting. The budget shall be effective for the period January 1 
through December 31 of the succeeding year.  
 

9.03. Levying and Payment of General Assessments. Based on the duly adopted annual 
operating budget, the Board of Directors shall levy General Assessments against the Unit Owners 
in proportion to their respective Percentage Interest. On or before the last day of December of each 
year, the secretary shall mail or deliver a copy of the annual operating budget and a statement of 
assessment for the next twelve (12) months to each Unit Owner. General Assessments shall be 
payable to the Association in twelve (12) equal installments that shall be due monthly in advance 



on the first day of each month. Such installments shall be mailed or delivered to the principal office 
of the Association and shall be deemed paid on the date of mailing or on the date of delivery, as 
the case may be. 
 

9.04. Special Assessments. Special Assessments may from time to time be levied against 
Unit Owners by the Board of Directors for any of the purposes enumerated in the Declaration and 
shall be due and payable in the manner and on the date or dates designated by the Board of 
Directors. 
 

9.05. Association Remedies upon Nonpayment of Assessments. Any General 
Assessment or Special Assessment not paid within ten (10) days after the date on which it is due 
shall bear interest from the day following such due date at the rate of eighteen percent (18%) per 
year or the highest rate permitted by law, whichever is less. The Association may seek to collect 
any assessments not paid when due by filing statements of condominium lien against the Units on 
which they are assessed, by enforcing and foreclosing such liens, or by bringing an action for 
money damages against the Unit Owners personally obligated to pay the delinquent assessments. 
A suit to recover a money judgment for unpaid assessments shall be maintainable without 
foreclosing or waiving any lien securing the same. No Unit Owner may waive or otherwise escape 
liability for the assessments provided herein by nonuse of the Common Elements or abandonment 
of its Unit. 
 

9.06. Annual Report. Each January, the Board of Directors shall, by formal action, 
approve a full and clear annual report of all business transacted by the Association during the 
previous fiscal year, including a report of the Common Expenses, surpluses, and assessments 
collected from each Unit Owner during the year. Copies of the annual report for the previous year 
shall be mailed or delivered to each Unit Owner at the address in the Association’s membership 
list before the third Thursday in February. 
 
 ARTICLE X 
 
 USE  
 

Each Unit shall be used only for purposes permitted under the Declaration, the Articles, 
these Bylaws, and any rules and regulations of the Association. 
 

ARTICLE XI 
 
 ENFORCEMENT OF CONDOMINIUM DOCUMENTS 
 

It shall be the responsibility of each Unit Owner to see that the occupants and tenants of 
the Unit owned by such Unit Owner, and the employees, agents, representatives, invitees, and 
guests of such Unit Owner, occupants, and tenants, abide by the provisions of the Declaration, 
Bylaws, Condominium Ownership Act, all rules and regulations of the Association, and any 
decisions made by the Association, the Board of Directors, or any committees of the Association 
that are authorized by any of the foregoing. Unit Owners should report infractions to the Board of 
Directors in writing, and the Board of Directors shall reply to the reporting Unit Owner within 



thirty (30) days concerning the action taken. In case of a violation of any provision of the 
Declaration, the Bylaws, the Condominium Ownership Act, any rule or regulation of the 
Association, or any authorized decision of the Association, the Board of Directors, or any 
committee of the Association, the Board of Directors shall notify the alleged offender. If the 
violation is not corrected within a reasonable time, the Association may take such action as it 
deems appropriate, including legal action against the offending Unit Owner or the Unit Owners of 
the Unit in which such offender is a tenant, occupant, employee, agent, representative, invitee, or 
guest, to correct the violation. In any such action brought against any Unit Owner in which the 
Association is the prevailing party, the Unit Owner defendant in such action shall pay the 
Association’s costs and actual attorney fees. If the Association fails to take appropriate 
enforcement action within thirty (30) days of the Association’s receipt of the report of the 
infraction, any Unit Owner may take appropriate legal action to enforce the provisions of the 
Declaration, the Bylaws, the Condominium Ownership Act, the rules and regulations of the 
Association, and any authorized decision of the Association, the Board of Directors, or any 
committee of the Association. 
 
 ARTICLE XII 
 
 LIABILITY AND INDEMNITY 
 

12.01. General Scope and Definitions. 
 

(a) The rights of directors and officers of the Association provided in this Article shall 
extend to the fullest extent permitted by the Wisconsin Nonstock Corporation Law and other 
applicable laws as in effect from time to time. 
 

(b) For purposes of this Article, “director or officer” means a natural person (i) who is or 
was a director or officer of the Association; (ii) who, while a director or officer of the Association, 
is or was serving at the Association’s request as a director, officer, partner, trustee, member of any 
governing or decision-making committee, employee, or agent of another corporation or foreign 
corporation, partnership, limited liability company, joint venture, trust, or other enterprise; (iii) 
who, while a director or officer of the Association, is or was serving an employee benefit plan 
because his or her duties to the Association also imposed duties on, or otherwise involved services 
by, the person to the plan or to participants in or beneficiaries of the plan; or (iv) who is or was a 
member of the Architectural Review Committee. Unless the context requires otherwise, “director 
or officer” shall also mean the estate and personal representative of a director or officer. 
 

(c) For purposes of this Article, “proceeding” means any threatened, pending or completed 
civil, criminal, administrative, or investigative action, suit, arbitration, or other proceeding, 
whether formal or informal, which involves foreign, federal, state, or local law (including federal 
or state securities laws) and that is brought by or in the right of the Association or by any other 
person. 
 

(d) For purposes of this Article, “expenses” means fees, costs, charges, disbursements, 
attorney fees, and any other expenses incurred in connection with a proceeding, including a 
proceeding in which a director or officer asserts his or her rights under this Article, and, if the 



context requires, liabilities, including the obligation to pay a judgment, settlement, penalty, 
assessment, forfeiture, or fine, including any excise tax assessed with respect to an employee 
benefit plan. 

 
12.02. Mandatory Indemnification. 

 
(a) To the extent that a director or officer has been successful on the merits or otherwise in 

the defense of any proceeding (including, without limitation, the settlement, dismissal, 
abandonment, or withdrawal of any action by which he or she does not pay or assume any material 
liability), or in connection with any claim, issue, or matter therein, he or she shall be indemnified 
by the Association against expenses actually and reasonably incurred by him or her in connection 
therewith to the extent that he or she was a party to the proceeding because he or she is or was a 
director or officer of the Association. 
 

(b) In cases not included under Section 12.02(a), the Association shall indemnify any 
director or officer against expenses actually and reasonably incurred by the director or officer in a 
proceeding to which the director or officer was a party because he or she is or was a director or 
officer, unless liability was incurred because the director or officer breached or failed to perform 
a duty he or she owed to the Association and the breach or failure to perform constituted any of 
the following: (i) a willful failure to deal fairly with the Association or its members in connection 
with a matter in which the director or officer had a material conflict of interest; (ii) a violation of 
criminal law, unless the director or officer had reasonable cause to believe his or her conduct was 
lawful or no reasonable cause to believe his or her conduct was unlawful; (iii) a transaction from 
which the director or officer derived an improper personal profit or benefit; or (iv) willful 
misconduct. The termination of a proceeding by judgment, order, settlement, or conviction, or 
upon a plea of no contest or an equivalent plea, does not, by itself, create a presumption that 
indemnification of the director or officer is not required under this subsection. 
 

(c) Indemnification under this Section is not required to the extent that the director or 
officer has previously received indemnification or allowance of expenses from any person, 
including the Association, in connection with the same proceeding. 
 

(d) To the extent indemnification is required under this Article XII, the Association has 
purchased or is required under Section 12.10 to purchase insurance on behalf of the indemnified 
person and the insurance policy includes a provision obligating the insurer to defend such person, 
the Association shall be obligated to extend such defense. To the extent possible under such 
insurance policy, the defense shall be extended with counsel reasonably acceptable to the 
indemnified person. The Association shall keep the indemnified person advised of the status of the 
claim and the defense thereof and shall consider in good faith the recommendations made by the 
indemnified person with respect thereto. 
 

12.03. Determination of Right to Indemnification. Unless otherwise provided by written 
agreement between the director or officer and the Association, the director or officer seeking 
indemnification under Section 12.02 shall make a written request for indemnification that shall 
designate one of the following means for determining his or her right to indemnification: (a) by a 
majority vote of a quorum of the Board of Directors or a committee of directors consisting of 



directors not at the time parties to the same or related proceedings; (b) by independent legal counsel 
selected by a quorum of the Board of Directors or its committee in the manner prescribed in Section 
12.03(a) or, if unable to obtain such a quorum or committee, by a majority vote of the full Board 
of Directors, including directors who are parties to the same or related proceedings; (c) by 
arbitration; or (d) by an affirmative vote of a majority of the Unit Owners entitled to vote; provided, 
however, that Unit Owners who are at the time parties to the same or related proceedings, whether 
as plaintiffs or defendants or in any other capacity, may not vote in making the determination. Any 
determination under this Section shall be made pursuant to procedures consistent with the 
Wisconsin Nonstock Corporation Law unless otherwise agreed by the Association and the person 
seeking indemnification. Such determination shall be completed, and eligible expenses, if any, 
shall be paid to the person requesting indemnification hereunder within sixty (60) days after the 
Association’s receipt of the written request required hereunder. 
 

12.04. Allowance of Expenses as Incurred. Within thirty (30) days after a written request 
by a director or officer who is a party to a proceeding because he or she is or was a director or 
officer, the Association shall pay or reimburse his or her reasonable expenses as incurred if the 
director or officer provides the Association with all the following: (a) a written affirmation of his 
or her good-faith belief that he or she has not breached or failed to perform his or her duties to the 
Association; and (b) a written undertaking, executed personally or on his or her behalf, to repay 
the allowance and, if required by the Association, to pay reasonable interest on the allowance to 
the extent that it is ultimately determined under Section 12.03 that indemnification under Section 
12.02 is not required and indemnification is otherwise not ordered by a court. The undertaking 
under this Section shall be an unlimited general obligation of the director or officer and may be 
accepted without reference to his or her ability to repay the allowance. The undertaking may be 
secured or unsecured. 
 

12.05 Partial Indemnification. 
 

(a) If it is determined pursuant to Section 12.03 that a director or officer is entitled to 
indemnification as to some claims, issues, or matters in connection with any proceeding, but not 
as to other claims, issues, or matters, the person or persons making such determination shall 
reasonably determine and indemnify the director or officer for those expenses that are the result of 
claims, issues, or matters that are a proper subject for indemnification hereunder in light of all 
circumstances. 
 

(b) If it is determined pursuant to Section 12.03 that certain expenses (other than liabilities) 
incurred by a director or officer are for any reason unreasonable in amount in light of all the 
circumstances, the person or persons making such determination shall authorize the 
indemnification of the director or officer for only such amounts as he or she or they shall deem 
reasonable. 
 

12.06. Indemnification of Employees and Agents. The Board of Directors, may, in its 
sole discretion, provide indemnification and/or defense and/or allowance of expenses in advance 
of a final determination of any proceeding to an employee or agent of the Association who is not 
a director or officer in connection with any proceeding in which the employee or agent was a 
defendant because of his or her actions as an employee or agent of the Association; provided, 



however, that prior to such indemnification, defense, or allowance of expenses, the Board of 
Directors shall first determine that the employee or agent acted in good faith and in a manner he 
or she reasonably believed to be in, and not opposed to, the best interests of the Association. 
 

12.07. Limited Liability of Directors and Officers. 
 

(a) Except as provided in Subsections 12.07(b) and (c), a director or officer is not liable to 
the Association, its members or creditors, or any person for damages, settlements, fees, fines, 
penalties, or other monetary liabilities arising from a breach of, or failure to perform, any duty 
resulting solely from his or her status as a director or officer, unless the person asserting liability 
proves that the breach or failure to perform constitutes any of the acts of misconduct listed in 
Section 12.02(b). 
 

(b) Except as provided in Section 12.07(c), this Section 12.07 does not apply to any of the 
following: (i) a civil or criminal proceeding brought by or on behalf of any governmental unit, 
authority, or agency; (ii) a proceeding brought by any person for a violation of state or federal law 
when the proceeding is brought pursuant to an express private right of action created by state or 
federal statute; or (iii) the liability of a director under Wis. Stat. §§ 181.0832 and 181.0833. 
 

(c) The provisions of Wis. Stat. § 12.07(b)(i) and (ii) do not apply to a proceeding brought 
by a governmental unit, authority, or agency in its capacity as a private party or contractor. 
 

12.08. Severability of Provisions. The provisions of this Article and the several rights to 
indemnification, advancement of expenses, and limitation of liability created hereby are 
independent and severable and, if any such provision or right shall be held by a court of competent 
jurisdiction in which a proceeding relating to such provisions or rights is brought to be against 
public policy or otherwise to be unenforceable, the other provisions of this Article shall remain 
enforceable and in full effect. 
 

12.09. Nonexclusivity of Rights. The rights to indemnification, defense, and advancement 
of expenses provided for in this Article shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights to which 
those seeking indemnification, defense, or advancement of expenses may be entitled under any 
agreement authorized by the Board of Directors, any of the Bylaws, any vote of the members or 
disinterested directors or otherwise, both as to action in his or her official capacity and as to action 
in another capacity while holding such office. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Association may 
not indemnify a director or officer, or permit a director or officer to retain any allowance of 
expenses, pursuant to any such additional rights unless it is determined by or on behalf of the 
Association that the director or officer did not breach or fail to perform a duty he or she owes to 
the Association that constitutes conduct under Section 12.02(b). A director or officer who is a party 
to the same or related proceeding for which indemnification, defense, or an allowance of expenses 
is sought may not participate in a determination under this Section. 
 

12.10. Purchase of Insurance. The Association shall use its reasonable best efforts to 
purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or was a director or officer of the 
Association, to the extent that such director or officer is insurable and such insurance coverage can 
be secured by the Association at rates and in amounts and subject to such terms and conditions as 



shall be determined in good faith to be reasonable and appropriate by the Board of Directors of the 
Association, and whose determination shall be conclusive (provided, however, that such insurance 
shall contain a provision obligating the insurer to defend the director or officer, if such provision 
is available at reasonable rates), against liability asserted against or incurred by him or her in any 
such capacity or arising out of his or her status as such, whether or not the Association would have 
the power to indemnify or defend him or her against such liability under the provisions of this 
Article. 
 

12.11. Benefit. The rights to indemnification, defense, and advancement of expenses 
provided by, or granted pursuant to, this Article shall continue as to a person who has ceased to be 
a director or officer and shall inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, and administrators of such 
a person. 
 

12.12. Amendment. No amendment or repeal of this Article shall be effective to reduce 
the obligations of the Association under this Article with respect to any proceeding based on 
occurrences that take place before such amendment or repeal. 
 
 ARTICLE XIII 
 
 GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

13.01. Seal. The Association shall not have a corporate seal. 
 

13.02. Interpretation. These Bylaws are subject to all provisions of the Declaration, the 
Articles, the Wisconsin Condominium Ownership Act, and the Wisconsin Nonstock Corporation 
Law. If any provision of these Bylaws shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not render invalid 
any other provision hereof that can be given effect. Any invalid provision or portion thereof shall 
be interpreted as having been amended to comply with the provisions of the Wisconsin 
Condominium Ownership Act and/or the Wisconsin Nonstock Corporation Law in effect on the 
date of the adoption of these Bylaws. Nothing in these Bylaws shall be deemed or construed to 
authorize the Association to conduct or engage in any active business for profit on behalf of any 
or all Unit Owners. 
 

13.03. Notices. Except as otherwise may be provided in the Wisconsin Condominium 
Ownership Act or the Wisconsin Nonstock Corporation Law, notices to any Unit Owner that are 
to be delivered or mailed pursuant to these Bylaws shall be deemed to have been given (a) in the 
case of delivered notices, on the date when the notice is delivered to the address on file with the 
secretary of the Association; or (b) in the case of mailed notices, on the date when the notice, 
addressed to the address on file with the secretary of the Association, is deposited in the United 
States mail with sufficient postage to effect delivery. 
 
  
  



ARTICLE XIV 
 
 AMENDMENT 
 

These Bylaws may be amended only with the assent of at least seventy-five percent (75%) 
of the votes of the Unit Owners; provided, however, as long as the Declarant owns any Unit, no 
amendment shall be effective without the written consent of the Declarant. Any first Mortgagee or 
its insurer or guarantor shall, upon written request to the Association, be entitled to timely written 
advance notice of any proposed amendment to these Bylaws. 
 



 
 

1 

 CITY OF FRANKLIN  
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 

 

Meeting of February 8, 2024 
 

Site Plan 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  City Development Staff recommends approval of the Site Plan with conditions 
on the applicant revising the landscape plan and lighting plan. 

Project Name:  Dairy Queen 
Project Address/Tax Key: 7730 S Lovers Lane Road/794 9999 007 
Property Owner: AK Developers, LLC 
Applicant: AK Developers, LLC 
Aldermanic District: District 2 
Zoning District: CC - City Civic Center District 
Staff Planner: Luke Hamill, Associate Planner 
 

Project Description/Analysis  
Please note: 

• Recommendations are underlined, in italics and are included in the draft resolution. 
• Suggestions are only underlined and are not included in the draft resolution. 

 
The applicant, AK Developers LLC, submitted an application for a Site Plan approval for the 
development of a multi-tenant commercial building located on the north side of the larger Shoppes at 
Wyndham Village development. The site is accessed from an existing drive on W. Drexel Avenue. 
This property already has an approved special use for a drive through, and a special use that sells 
liquor and tobacco products has also been approved. 
 
The proposed building is approximately 8,298 square feet. There are three total units that will be made 
available. There are already agreements for a Dairy Queen and a liquor store to occupy two of the three 
units.  
 
Note that any tenant occupying these tenant spaces will be subject to the requirements and approval 
process as outlined within the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO).  
 
 
Site Plan 
The total site has an area of approximately 1.61 acres (70,003 square feet) and is currently vacant. The 
development will result in 53,843 square feet of impervious surface and 16,160 square feet of 
greenspace, which equates to 76.1% of impervious coverage. However, the applicant has approval 
from Target, which is the primary developer of the Shoppes at Wyndham Village to use their 
Landscaping as part of the LSR. CC zoning states the LSR of the CC district is subject to approval by 
Common Council. 
 

Item D.6  



 
 

2 

Parking 
The development includes 64 surface parking spaces, and three ADA accessible stalls, for a total of 67 
parking spaces. Table 15-5.0203 of the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) suggests a minimum 
parking ratios, below is a table showing the suggested amount of parking to be provided per use.  
 
Use Gross Floor Area 

(GFA) 
Parking Ratio per 
UDO Table 15-5.0203 

Suggested 
Parking 

Commercial: General 
Restaurant 

800 Square Feet 
Dining Area 

 1589 Square Feet 
Kitchen and 

Employee Service 
Area 

20/1000 square feet 
for dining area 

6.5/1000 square feet 
for kitchen and 

employee service 
areas 

16 spaces for 
dining area 

11 parking spaces 
for kitchen and 

employee service 
areas 

Commercial: Liquor 
Store 

2500 Square feet 5/1000 square feet of 
GFA 

13 parking spaces 

Future Tenant (General 
Restaurant) 

800 Square Feet 
Dining Area 

 1640 Square Feet 
Kitchen and 

Employee Service 
Area 

20/1000 square feet 
for dining area 

6.5/1000 square feet 
for kitchen and 

employee service 
areas 

16 spaces for 
dining area 

11 parking spaces 
for kitchen and 

employee service 
areas 

Future Tenant (Retail) 2000 square feet  5/1,000 SF GFA 10 parking spaces 
Total  

 
50 to 67 parking 

spaces 
GFA: gross floor area. 
 
The total provided parking, 67 spaces, complies with the parking standards in the UDO. 
 
Landscaping 
For commercial developments, Table 15-5.0302 of the UDO requires 1 canopy/shade trees, 1 
evergreen, 1 decorative tree, and 1 shrubs per 5 parking spaces provided. 
 
Below is a breakdown of the required number of plantings and the quantity currently provided. 
 

Type 
Required Provided 

Commercial 
67 parking spaces 

 

Canopy/Shade Tree 14 15 
Evergreens 14 14 
Decorative Trees 14 0 
Shrubs 14 26 

 
As seen in the table above, the landscape plan does not meet the required plantings for decorative trees. 
Table 15.0302F of the UDO states that 12 to 20 provided plantings must include 3 different species 
and a minimum number of 4 plantings per species. It is recommended that the Landscape Plan be 
added as a condition of approval to be reviewed by staff. 
 
Outdoor Lighting 



 
 

3 

The outdoor lighting plan identifies parking lot lighting and building lighting, which includes nine 
single fixture light poles and 2 double fixture light poles. All poles are 23-feet tall There are seven 
single fixture building lights that will be 9.5 feet above the grade. Light levels are in compliance beside 
on the southeast side of the property. The foot candles in that area are between 3.5 and 3.9. There are  
2 proposed single fixture light poles located in the 25 utility easement. The applicant will make a 
request to Common Council to keep the light poles within the easement. It is recommended that the 
Final Lighting Plan be added as a condition of approval to be reviewed by staff. 
 
Architecture 
Staff has reviewed Architectural Plans based on the Unified Development Ordinance Standards 15-
7.0800. Architectural plans are in compliance with the UDO. 
 
Signage 
Sign details have not yet been provided. A separate Sign Review and Sign Permit will be required prior 
to installation. There is an existing monument sign on the northwest side of the property facing Drexel 
Avenue.  
 
Storm water Management 
The Shoppes at Wyndham Village have an approved Stormwater Management plan for the entire 
development that the property will be joining. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
City Development Staff recommends to approve the Site Plan with conditions that the applicant will 
revise the landscape plan and lighting plan. 
 
 



STATE OF WISCONSIN        CITY OF FRANKLIN      MILWAUKEE COUNTY                     
PLAN COMMISSION            Draft 2/1/2024 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-  

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A SITE PLAN FOR THE 
CONSTRUCTION OF A MULTI-TENANT COMMERCIAL 

BUILDING FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 7730 S LOVERS 
LANE ROAD 

(AK DEVELOPERS LLC, APPLICANT) 
(AK DEVELOPERS LLC, PROPERTY OWNER) 

 
 

WHEREAS, AK Developers LLC, having petitioned the City of Franklin for the 
approval of a Site Plan for the development of a multi-tenant commercial building, upon 
property located at 7730 S Lovers Lane Road, zoned CC City Civic Center District. The 
property which is the subject of the application bears Tax Key No. 794 9999 007. 

 
WHEREAS, the development proposes a multi-tenant commercial building, a 67 space 

parking lot, and a drive through within pervious surface area, and the Plan Commission having 
reviewed such proposal and having found same to be in compliance with the applicable terms 
and provisions of §15-3.0307 CC City Civic Center District of the Unified Development 
Ordinance and in furtherance of those express standards and purposes of a site plan review 
pursuant to Division 15-7.0100 of the Unified Development Ordinance. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Plan Commission of the City of 

Franklin, Wisconsin, that the Site Plan for AK Developers LLC dated January 23, 2024, as 
submitted by AK Developers LLC, as described above, be and the same is hereby approved, 
subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. AK Developers LLC, successors and assigns and any developer of the AK Developers 

LLC project shall pay to the City of Franklin the amount of all development 
compliance, inspection and review fees incurred by the City of Franklin, including fees 
of consults to the City of Franklin, for the AK Developer project, within 30 days of 
invoice for same. Any violation of this provision shall be a violation of the Unified 
Development Ordinance, and subject to §15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19 of the 
Municipal Code, the general penalties and remedies provisions, as amended from 
time to time. 

2. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon AK Developers LLC and AK 
Developers LLC project for the property located at 7730 S Lovers Lane Road: (i) being 
in compliance with all applicable governmental laws, statutes, rules, codes, orders and 
ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all other governmental approvals, permits, licenses and 
the like, required for and applicable to the project to be developed and as presented for 
this approval. 

 

 



AK DEVELOPERS LLC - SITE PLAN 
AMENDMENT RESOLUTION NO. 2024-  
Page 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

3. The AK Developers LLC project shall be developed in substantial compliance with the 
plans dated January 23, 2024. 

4. Final grading, erosion control, utilities, and stormwater management plans, as may be 
applicable, shall be approved by the Engineering Department prior to any land 
disturbance activities. 

5. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon AK Developers LLC revising the 
submitted lighting plan to comply with foot candle standards according to the Unified 
Development Ordinance §15-5.0401(C) subject to staff approval, prior to the issuance 
of building permits. 

6. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon AK Developers LLC revising the 
submitted landscape plan to comply with required quantities of species and plantings 
according to Unified Development Ordinance §15-5.0302A and §15-5.0302F subject 
to staff approval, prior to the issuance of building permits. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, by the Plan Commission of the City of Franklin, 
Wisconsin, that the AK Developers LLC development as depicted upon the plans dated 
January 23, 2024, attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein, shall be developed 
and constructed within one year from the date of adoption of this Resolution, or this Resolution 
and all rights and approvals granted hereunder shall be null and void, without any further 
action by the City of Franklin; and the Site Plan for the property located at 7730 S Lovers Lane 
Road, as previously approved, is amended accordingly.   

 
Introduced at a regular meeting of the Plan Commission of the City of 

Franklin this 8th day of February, 2024. 
 

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Plan Commission of the City of Franklin 
this 8th day of February, 2024. 

 
APPROVED: 

 
 
 
 

John R. Nelson, Mayor 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk 
 

 
AYES  NOES  ABSENT   
 

 

 



AK DEVELOPERS LLC - SITE PLAN 
AMENDMENT RESOLUTION NO. 2024-  
Page 3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 



AK DEVELOPERS LLC - SITE PLAN 
AMENDMENT RESOLUTION NO. 2024-  
Page 4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
PLANS DATED JANUARY 23, 2024 

 
ATTACHED HERETO 

 
 













1 

     
 

 

City of Franklin 
Department of City Development 

 

 

 

Date: January 15, 2024 
To: Parish Survey & Engineering 
From: Department of City Development. Luke Hamill, Associate Planner. 
RE: Staff Comments, 7730 S Lovers Lane Road / 794 9999 007 
 
 
Please be advised that city staff has reviewed the above application received on December 
5, 2023, for a proposed development on lots located at 7730 S Lovers Lane Road / 794 
9999 007. The following comments are for your review and consideration. 

Site Plan 

The current zoning of the site is CC City Civic Center District. 
1. The Site Plan does not have direct setback lines from the proposed building to the 

property lines. Please include this. (15-7.0102) 
 
Direct setback lines have been added to Sheet C1.02. 

 
2. Please include Estimated Project Costs in your Project Summary. (15-7.0103 

 
The estimated project cost of $1,800,000 has been added to the project narrative. 

 
3. Dwarf Burning Bush is a prohibited species according to Wisconsin Department of 

Natural Resources NR 40 list. Please substitute these in your Landscape Plan. (Wisconsin 
Ch. NR 40) 
 
This species has been removed from the Landscape Plan, Sheet C1.06. 

 
4. The City of Franklin Unified Development Ordinance requires that when there is 51 or 

more total plantings, that there must be at least 4 different species, with a minimum 10 
plantings per species. Please reflect these changes in your Landscape Plan. (15-5.0302) 

 
Four different plant species are provided on the Landscape Plan, Sheet C1.06. 

 
5. Please include a Snow Storage Plan. (15-5.0210) 

 
Snow storage areas have been identified on the Landscape Plan, Sheet C1.06. 

 
6. Please show an Irrigation System in your Landscape Plan. (15-5.0303) 
 



2 

     
 

 

City of Franklin 
Department of City Development 

 

 

 

Hose bibs have been identified on the Landscape Plan, Sheet C1.06. 
 

7. Please include a statement of the property joining the Stormwater Management Plan.  
 

A statement has been provided in the revised project narrative and a separate 
letter and detailed plans have been submitted to the Engineering Department for 
review and approval. 

 
8. Please include the heights of exterior light poles in the Lighting Plan. (15-5.0402) 

 
The peak mounting heights of light poles and fixtures are labeled on the Lighting 
Plan, Sheet C1.07. 

 
9. Please include the lighting cut sheets for luminaire. (15-5.0402) 

 
Lighting cut sheets illustrating the type and style of lighting are attached.  
 

Engineering Department Comments:  
10. Separate engineering and stormwater review submittal is currently under review, review 

comments will be provided to the applicant. 
 
Understood.  

 
11. There is an existing 25-foot utility easement on the north end of the site, light poles 

should be located outside of the easement.  If they cannot be located outside of the 
easement, Common Council approval will be required. 
 
A request will be made to the Common Council to keep and maintain these light 
poles within the easement area. Relocating the light poles could potentially have a 
detrimental impact on the adjacent residential subdivision to the north. Note the 
light poles are a minimum of 10-feet from the sanitary sewer line as recommended 
by the Engineering Department.  

 
Health Department Comments: 

12. Facility must comply with all Wisconsin Food Code requirements including obtaining a 
Retail Food Establishment License from Franklin Health Dept.  Prior to issuing license a 
complete plan review will be conducted.  FHD will need a copy of plans, specs for kitchen 
equipment, menu and application submitted.  Plan review letter will be issued once all 
information is submitted. 

 



3 

     
 

 

City of Franklin 
Department of City Development 

 

 

 

Understood. 
 
Inspection Services Comments: 

13. Structure shall be designed and constructed in accordance with the Wisconsin 
Commercial Building Code. 

 
Understood. 

 
14. Project will require separate Building, HVAC, Plumbing and Electrical Permits. 

 
Understood. 

 
Recommended Conditions of Approval 
Site Plan: 
• Technical corrections. 
• Recording of easement. 
 

Understood and we agree with these conditions of approval. 



Target Properties, Real Estate Portfolio Management TPN-12B, 1000 Nicollet Mall, Minneapolis, MN 55403 

 
Wendi Smith 

Senior Real Estate Portfolio Manager 

Direct Dial: (612) 304-7383 

Email: Wendi.Smith@target.com 

 

January 18, 2023 

Sent Via Email (dghelani27@gmail.com) 

 

Dev Ghelani 

AK Developers LLC 

 

Re: Target Store – T2388 | 7800 S Lovers Lane Rd Franklin, WI 53132 

Operation and Easement Agreement dated November 20, 2007 between Target Corporation (“Target”) and 

Franklin-Wyndham LLC as successor-in-interest to Wyndham Village Retail LLC (“Developer”) (the “OEA”). 

Request for Approval of Proposed the Shoppes at Wyndham Village Development 

 

Dear Dev, 

 

Target is in receipt of your email dated December 11, 2023 requesting Target’s review and approval of 

building plans and elevations for the proposed parcel located at The Shoppes at Wyndham Village (the 

“Premises”). The documents received are attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Plans”). Unless otherwise defined, 

the terms within this letter shall have the meaning prescribed to them in the OEA.  

 

The submitted Plans indicate the proposed development and construction of a 3-tenant building. Target has 

reviewed the Plans together with the OEA, and hereby approves them.  

 

This approval shall not be construed as the consent or approval of Target to anything that is prohibited or 

restricted by the OEA. This approval is not intended to, and shall not be construed to, amend or modify the 

OEA in any way whatsoever and shall not be deemed to release or discharge any person or party from liability 

for all of the obligations to be performed by such person or party under the OEA.   

 

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me.  

 

Regards,  

 
Wendi Smith  

Senior Real Estate Portfolio Manager 

 

Enclosure: Exhibit A – Site Plans 

 

 

 

 



 

 

February 1, 2024 
 
Via Email 
Dev Ghelani 
AK Developers LLC 
dghelani27@gmail.com 
 
Re: Approval of Certain Plans at The Shoppes at Wyndham Village – Franklin, WI (the “Property”) 
 
Dear Dev: 
 
We are in receipt of your emails of January 31, 2024 and February 1, 2024 requesting our review and 
approval of landscape surface ratio plans for the proposed parcel located at the Property. Those plans 
are attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Plans”). Unless otherwise defined herein, the terms within this 
letter shall have the meanings prescribed to them in the Operation and Easement Agreement recorded 
on November 21, 2007 as Document No. 09526084 in the Official Records of Milwaukee County, 
Wisconsin, as has since been supplemented and amended (the “OEA”). 
 
We have reviewed the Plans, together with the OEA, and hereby approve them with respect to the 
landscape surface ratio considerations.  
 
This approval shall not be constructed as our consent or approval to anything that is prohibited or 
restricted by the OEA. This approval is not intended to, and shall not be construed to, amend or modify 
the OEA in any way whatsoever and shall not be deemed to release or discharge any person or party 
from liability for all of the obligations to be performed by such person or party under the OEA. 
 
If you have any questions, please contact me at jeb@cleafgroup.com or 847-272-3300. Thank you. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
FRANKLIN-WYNDHAM, LLC, a Wisconsin limited liability company 
By:  The Cloverleaf Real Estate Group, Inc., an Illinois corporation 
Its:  Manager 

 

 
____________________________________ 
By: Jonathan E. Basofin 
Its: President 
 
 



”

”

”

”

”

TR
A

C
T 

B
A

 6
 W

YN
D

H
A

M
 V

IL
LA

G
E

W
ES

T 
D

R
EX

EL
 A

VE
N

U
E

C
IT

Y 
O

F 
FR

A
N

K
LI

N
, W

I 5
31

32

C1.06

LANDSCAPE
PLAN

12
2 

W
is

co
ns

in
 S

tre
et

, W
es

t B
en

d,
 W

I 5
30

95
26

2.
34

6.
78

00
   

   
   

  w
w

w
.p

ar
is

hs
e.

co
m

JDR

JDR

KJP

”
”

”
”

\ED-12-23\

SUBMITTAL

11/28/2023

e

EXHIBIT A



Legal Description 
 

 Lot 3 of Certified Survey Map No. 8567, recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds for 
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, on November 21, 2013. As Document No. 10315111; being a 
Redivision of Lot 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 8000, being a Redivision of Parcel 1 of Certified 
Survey Map 5762, Certified Survey Map No. 377, and lands in the Southwest Quarter and the 
Northwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of Section 8, Township 5 North, Range 21 East; 
said lands being in the City of Franklin, County of Milwaukee, State of Wisconsin. 



TR
A

C
T 

B
A

 6
 W

YN
D

H
A

M
 V

IL
LA

G
E

W
ES

T 
D

R
EX

EL
 A

VE
N

U
E

C
IT

Y 
O

F 
FR

A
N

K
LI

N
, W

I 5
31

32

C1.01

EXISTING
CONDITIONS

PLAN

12
2 

W
is

co
ns

in
 S

tre
et

, W
es

t B
en

d,
 W

I 5
30

95
26

2.
34

6.
78

00
   

   
   

  w
w

w
.p

ar
is

hs
e.

co
m

JDR

JDR

KJP

\ED-12-23\

SUBMITTAL

01/23/2024



TR
A

C
T 

B
A

 6
 W

YN
D

H
A

M
 V

IL
LA

G
E

W
ES

T 
D

R
EX

EL
 A

VE
N

U
E

C
IT

Y 
O

F 
FR

A
N

K
LI

N
, W

I 5
31

32

SUBMITTAL

01/23/2024

C1.02

PROPOSED
SITE PLAN

12
2 

W
is

co
ns

in
 S

tre
et

, W
es

t B
en

d,
 W

I 5
30

95
26

2.
34

6.
78

00
   

   
   

  w
w

w
.p

ar
is

hs
e.

co
m

JDR

JDR

KJP

\ED-12-23\



TR
A

C
T 

B
A

 6
 W

YN
D

H
A

M
 V

IL
LA

G
E

W
ES

T 
D

R
EX

EL
 A

VE
N

U
E

C
IT

Y 
O

F 
FR

A
N

K
LI

N
, W

I 5
31

32

C1.03

EROSION
CONTROL

PLAN

12
2 

W
is

co
ns

in
 S

tre
et

, W
es

t B
en

d,
 W

I 5
30

95
26

2.
34

6.
78

00
   

   
   

  w
w

w
.p

ar
is

hs
e.

co
m

JDR

JDR

KJP

\ED-12-23\

SUBMITTAL

01/23/2024



TR
A

C
T 

B
A

 6
 W

YN
D

H
A

M
 V

IL
LA

G
E

W
ES

T 
D

R
EX

EL
 A

VE
N

U
E

C
IT

Y 
O

F 
FR

A
N

K
LI

N
, W

I 5
31

32

C1.04

GRADING
PLAN

12
2 

W
is

co
ns

in
 S

tre
et

, W
es

t B
en

d,
 W

I 5
30

95
26

2.
34

6.
78

00
   

   
   

  w
w

w
.p

ar
is

hs
e.

co
m

JDR

JDR

KJP

\ED-12-23\

SUBMITTAL

01/23/2024



TR
A

C
T 

B
A

 6
 W

YN
D

H
A

M
 V

IL
LA

G
E

W
ES

T 
D

R
EX

EL
 A

VE
N

U
E

C
IT

Y 
O

F 
FR

A
N

K
LI

N
, W

I 5
31

32

C1.05

UTILITY
PLAN

12
2 

W
is

co
ns

in
 S

tre
et

, W
es

t B
en

d,
 W

I 5
30

95
26

2.
34

6.
78

00
   

   
   

  w
w

w
.p

ar
is

hs
e.

co
m

JDR

JDR

KJP

\ED-12-23\

SUBMITTAL

01/23/2024



”

”

”

”

”

TR
A

C
T 

B
A

 6
 W

YN
D

H
A

M
 V

IL
LA

G
E

W
ES

T 
D

R
EX

EL
 A

VE
N

U
E

C
IT

Y 
O

F 
FR

A
N

K
LI

N
, W

I 5
31

32

C1.06

LANDSCAPE
PLAN

12
2 

W
is

co
ns

in
 S

tre
et

, W
es

t B
en

d,
 W

I 5
30

95
26

2.
34

6.
78

00
   

   
   

  w
w

w
.p

ar
is

hs
e.

co
m

JDR

JDR

KJP

”

”
”

\ED-12-23\

SUBMITTAL

01/23/2024



TR
A

C
T 

B
A

 6
 W

YN
D

H
A

M
 V

IL
LA

G
E

W
ES

T 
D

R
EX

EL
 A

VE
N

U
E

C
IT

Y 
O

F 
FR

A
N

K
LI

N
, W

I 5
31

32

C1.07

LIGHTING
PLAN

12
2 

W
is

co
ns

in
 S

tre
et

, W
es

t B
en

d,
 W

I 5
30

95
26

2.
34

6.
78

00
   

   
   

  w
w

w
.p

ar
is

hs
e.

co
m

JDR

JDR

KJP

\ED-12-23\

SUBMITTAL

01/23/2024



TR
A

C
T 

B
A

 6
 W

YN
D

H
A

M
 V

IL
LA

G
E

W
ES

T 
D

R
EX

EL
 A

VE
N

U
E

C
IT

Y 
O

F 
FR

A
N

K
LI

N
, W

I 5
31

32

\ED-12-23\

C2.01

CONSTRUCTION
SPECIFICATIONS

AND NOTES

12
2 

W
is

co
ns

in
 S

tre
et

, W
es

t B
en

d,
 W

I 5
30

95
26

2.
34

6.
78

00
   

   
   

  w
w

w
.p

ar
is

hs
e.

co
m

JDR

JDR

KJP

SUBMITTAL

01/23/2024



TR
A

C
T 

B
A

 6
 W

YN
D

H
A

M
 V

IL
LA

G
E

W
ES

T 
D

R
EX

EL
 A

VE
N

U
E

C
IT

Y 
O

F 
FR

A
N

K
LI

N
, W

I 5
31

32

C2.02

SITE DETAILS

12
2 

W
is

co
ns

in
 S

tre
et

, W
es

t B
en

d,
 W

I 5
30

95
26

2.
34

6.
78

00
   

   
   

  w
w

w
.p

ar
is

hs
e.

co
m

JDR

JDR

KJP

\ED-12-23\

SUBMITTAL

01/23/2024



TR
A

C
T 

B
A

 6
 W

YN
D

H
A

M
 V

IL
LA

G
E

W
ES

T 
D

R
EX

EL
 A

VE
N

U
E

C
IT

Y 
O

F 
FR

A
N

K
LI

N
, W

I 5
31

32

\ED-12-23\

C2.03

EROSION
CONTROL

AND UTILITY
DETAILS

12
2 

W
is

co
ns

in
 S

tre
et

, W
es

t B
en

d,
 W

I 5
30

95
26

2.
34

6.
78

00
   

   
   

  w
w

w
.p

ar
is

hs
e.

co
m

JDR

JDR

KJP

SUBMITTAL

01/23/2024



OVERALL FLOOR PLAN

SCALE: 3/16" = 1'-0"

1

(STUD WALL TYPES)

PARTITION TYPES:

SHEET

DATE

SET USE

PROJECT NUMBER

REVISIONS

SHEET TITLE

en
vi

si
on

 d
es

ig
n

A
 
R

 
C

 
H

 
I
 
T

 
E

 
C

 
T

 
U

 
R

 
E

F
R

A
N

K
LI

N
 T

E
N

A
N

T
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G

77
30

 S
. L

O
V

E
R

S
 L

A
N

E
 R

D
.

F
R

A
N

K
LI

N
, W

I 5
31

32

PROGRESS SET

***

01.12.2024

XX.XX.XXXXXX.XX.XXXX

XX.XX.XXXX

XX.XX.XXXXXX.XX.XXXX

XX.XX.XXXX

XX.XX.XXXX

XX.XX.XXXXXX.XX.XXXX

XX.XX.XXXX

OVERALL FLOOR PLAN

A2.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text
101

AutoCAD SHX Text
MENS

AutoCAD SHX Text
104

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOMENS

AutoCAD SHX Text
105

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPACE B

AutoCAD SHX Text
107

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNISEX

AutoCAD SHX Text
108

AutoCAD SHX Text
101

AutoCAD SHX Text
103

AutoCAD SHX Text
106B

AutoCAD SHX Text
104

AutoCAD SHX Text
105

AutoCAD SHX Text
RISER RM.

AutoCAD SHX Text
109

AutoCAD SHX Text
107

AutoCAD SHX Text
109

AutoCAD SHX Text
108

AutoCAD SHX Text
107B

AutoCAD SHX Text
W-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
W-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
W-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
W-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
W-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
W-4

AutoCAD SHX Text
W-4

AutoCAD SHX Text
W-5

AutoCAD SHX Text
W-5

AutoCAD SHX Text
W-6

AutoCAD SHX Text
W-6

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE B-SHEETS FOR DAIRY QUEEN BUILD OUT PLANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
B101

AutoCAD SHX Text
B101A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B110

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A5.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
A5.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
A5.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
B4.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
B4.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
B4.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
A5.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
A5.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A5.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SERVICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUNTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
102

AutoCAD SHX Text
HALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
103

AutoCAD SHX Text
B.O.H.

AutoCAD SHX Text
106

AutoCAD SHX Text
DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text
B101

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHILL KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
B104

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE THRU

AutoCAD SHX Text
B105

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREP

AutoCAD SHX Text
B107

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASH

AutoCAD SHX Text
B108

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRILL KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
B106

AutoCAD SHX Text
B.O.H.

AutoCAD SHX Text
B110

AutoCAD SHX Text
OFFICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
B109

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOMEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
B102

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
B103

AutoCAD SHX Text
106

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8" GYPSUM WALLBOARD (EACH FACE) ON

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 4 WOOD STUDS, 16" O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FULL THICKNESS SOUND INSULATION BATTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN DIMENSION:         5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACTUAL THICKNESS:  4-3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8" GYPSUM WALLBOARD (EACH FACE) ON

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 4 WOOD STUDS, 16" O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN DIMENSION:         5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACTUAL THICKNESS:  4-3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8" GYPSUM WALLBOARD (EACH FACE) ON

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 4 WOOD STUDS, 16" O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FULL THICKNESS SOUND INSULATION BATTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN DIMENSION:         5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACTUAL THICKNESS:  4-3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8" GYPSUM WALLBOARD (EACH FACE) ON

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 4 WOOD STUDS, 16" O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN DIMENSION:         5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACTUAL THICKNESS:  4-3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
14







Project Catalog # Type

Prepared by Notes Date

PS514102EN   page 1
January 30, 2023 4:47 PM

Quick Facts
• Available in 14W - 123W (1,800 - 17,000 lumens) 

models
• Full cutoff and refractive lens models available
• Energy and maintenance savings up to 95%  

compared to HID
• Energy efficient illumination results in up to 144 LPW
• Replaces 70W up to 450W HID equivalents

Interactive Menu
• Ordering Information page 2

• Mounting Details page 3

• Product Specifications page 4

• Energy and Performance Data page 4

• Control Options page 6

Dimensional Details

Wall Mount Luminaire

Lumark  
Axcent 

Full Cutoff Refractive Lens Deep Back Housing

A A

B B C DC

Dimensional Data

Full Cutoff Refractive Lens Deep Back Housing

AXCS Small AXCL Large

A 8" [202mm] 11-1/2" [292mm]

B 7-1/2" [190mm] 10-3/4" [273mm]

C 3-5/8" [94mm] 4-7/8" [124mm]

D 6-1/8" [155mm] 7-1/8" [181mm]

LumenSafe Technology Light ARchitectTM

Connected Systems
• WaveLinx Lite
• Enlighted

Product Certifications

Product Features

CLASS A
CAN ICES-005

AVAIL ABL E

CO

MPLIANT OPTIONS

BAA
BUY AMERICAN ACT

DUSK-TO-DAWN

http://eaton.com/lumensafe
http://www.cooperindustries.com/content/public/en/lighting/connected_systems/wavelinx_wireless_connected_lighting_system.html


Project Catalog # Type

Prepared by Notes Date

PS500005EN   page 1
November 29, 2023 1:26 PM

Quick Facts
• Direct-mounted discrete light engine for improved 

optical uniformity and visual comfort
• Lumen packages range from 4,300 - 68,000 nominal 

lumens (30W - 550W)
• Replaces 70W up to 1,000W HID equivalents
• Efficacies up to 157 lumens per watt
• Standard universal quick mount arm with universal drill 

pattern

Interactive Menu
• Ordering Information page 2

• Mounting Details page 3, 4

• Optical Configurations page 5

• Product Specifications page 5

• Energy and Performance Data page 6, 7

• Control Options page 8

Dimensional Details

Area / Site Luminaire

Lumark  
Prevail Discrete LED

Connected Systems
• WaveLinx

Prevail

Prevail Petite

13-15/16" 
[354mm]

26-13/16" [681mm]

2-3/4"
[70mm] 6-15/16"

[177mm]

Prevail XL

17-7/8"
[454mm]

39-5/8"
[1006mm]

3-11/16"
[94mm] 7-1/8"

[180mm]2-3/4"
[70mm]

13-15/16"
[354mm]

15-1/4"
[386mm]

20-7/8"
[531mm]

6-15/16"
[177mm]

Prevail Maxx

22-7/8"
[581mm]

7-1/16"
180mm

41-3/8"
1051mm

Product Features

LumenSafe Technology

NOTES: 
1. Visit https://www.designlights.org/search/ to confirm qualification. Not all product variations are DLC qualified.   
2. IDA Certified for 3000K CCT and warmer only.

Prevail XL

Prevail

Prevail Petite

Prevail Maxx

Product Certifications
 1  1 

 2

CLASS A
CAN ICES-005

AVAIL A BL E

COMPLIANT OPTIONS

BAA
BUY AMERICAN ACT

https://www.cooperlighting.com/global/brands/wavelinx.html
https://www.designlights.org/search

	01 2024-0208 Plan Commission Agenda (rev. 2-1-24)
	02 2023-1221 PC Minutes - Draft
	03 Item C.1._Hamed-Salma Investment LLC_Area Exception
	1 PC Staff Report - Hamed AE
	2 Planning Map_Combined
	Planning Map_Aerial
	Planning Map_Locator

	3 app combined
	3 plat of survey
	4 plans
	sheet 1
	REVISED SHEET 2
	sheet 3
	SHEET 4
	sheet 5

	AE standards
	Authorization for Impervious Surface Use


	04 Item D.1._Croation Park Pavilion_Site Plan Amend
	01 2024-0-08  Staff Report -Croatian Park Pavilion_SPa_9100 S 76th Street
	02 2024-0-08 DRAFT RES -Croatian Park Pavilion_SPa_9100 S 76th Street
	03 Planning Map_Combined
	Planning Map_Aerial
	Planning Map_Locator

	04 PC Application - Pavilion
	05 Project Narrative 1-23-24
	06 2063.00A Legal Description - Pavilion Property
	07 Pavilion Site Intensity Calculations 11-2-23
	08 2023-01-10 Staff Comments PEG response
	09 Croatian Pavilion SPL Report-01192023
	10 Conservation Easement Rev 1-23-24
	11 Croatian Park Artificial WER Letter_00932
	12 NRPP Exist - Pavilion
	13 NRPP Prop - Pavilion
	14 2063.00 Pavilion Civil Rev 01-23-24
	2063.00 MASTER PAVILION-EXISTING
	EXISTING

	2063.00 MASTER PAVILION-DEMO
	DEMO

	2063.00 MASTER PAVILION-GRADING
	GRADING

	2063.00 MASTER PAVILION-UTILITY
	UTILITY

	2063.00 MASTER PAVILION-UTILITY2
	UTILITY2

	2063.00 MASTER PAVILION-DETAILS
	DETAILS

	2063.00 MASTER PAVILION-DETAILS2
	DETAILS2


	15 Elev Light Sound plans

	05 Item D.2._City of Franklin_Rural & Urban Areas Map Update
	01 PC Report - Rural-Urban Map update
	02 RES Rural-Urban Map update DRAFT
	02a Exhibit A - Urban-Rural map update 2024-B&W
	03 Urban-Rural map update 1986-2024-Color rev 01-11-24
	04 RES1986-2680 Amd Urban_Rural Map

	06 Item D.3._City Development_Amend Plan Commission Admin Procedures
	1 Memo to the Plan Commission
	2 2005 Admin Procedures - 2024 amend meeing frequency

	07 Item D.4._Franklin Public Schools_Site Plan
	01 2024-0208 PC Staff Report - Franklin Public Schools SP Amendment
	02 2024-0208 RES 8255 W. Forest Hill Ave-Frank Pub Sch_12-04-23
	03 Planning Map 24_Combined
	Planning Map_Aerial
	Planning Map 24_Locator

	04 Franklin CERC - Plan Commission Packet
	1 Project Narrative
	2 Review Response Letter
	3 Site Plans
	C1.0 DEMOLITION PLAN
	C2.0 LAYOUT PLAN
	C3.0 GRADING PLAN - NORTH
	C3.1 GRADING PLAN - SOUTH
	C4.0 EROSION CONTROL PLAN
	C5.0 UTILITY PLAN
	C6.0 DETAILS
	C6.1 DETAILS
	C6.2 DETAILS
	C6.3 BOARDWALK DETAILS
	C6.4 FRANKLIN STANDARD DETAILS
	L1.0 LANDSCAPE PLAN

	4 NRPP Map

	05 4 E200L - SITE LIGHTING SUBMITTAL
	Sheets
	E200L - SITE LIGHTING SUBMITTAL


	06 Franklin CERC Building Elevations

	08 Item D.5._ACG Acquisitions #10_Condo Plat (final)
	01 2024-0208 PC Report - Forest Home Commercial Condominium
	02 2024-0221 RES Forest Home Commercial Condominium
	03 Planning Map_Combined
	Planning Map_Aerial
	Planning Map_Locator

	04 Project Narrative (01430580xC3B04)
	05 Condo Plat Application (executed) (01430584xC3B04)
	06 Legal Description
	07 Condo Plat 240123 (01440819xC3B04)
	08 Declaration (01430553-3xC3B04)
	09 Bylaws (final) (01430551xC3B04)

	09 Item D.6._Dairy Queen_Site Plan
	1 PC Staff Report - AK Developers LLC - LH11
	2 2024 RES-7730 S Lovers Lane Rd-Dairy Queen Site Plan
	3 Site Plan Package Final
	Site Plan Combined Plan Commission Submittal_1-23-24 (002)
	1. Plan Commission Review Application_Site Plan
	2. Site Plan Project Narrative_1-23-24
	2. Site Plan Project Narrative_1-23-24

	3. Applicant Responses_2024-01-17 Staff Comments - Site Plan - Dairy Queen 7730 S Lovers Land Road
	4. T2388 - Franklin WI - Approval - Shoppes at Wyndham Village Development
	5. Legal Description
	6. Civil Plan Set 1.23.24
	C1.01 Existing
	Sheets and Views
	C1.01 Existing


	C1.02 Proposed Site
	Sheets and Views
	C1.02 Proposed Site


	C1.03 Erosion Control Plan
	Sheets and Views
	C1.03 Erosion Control Plan


	C1.04 Grading Plan
	Sheets and Views
	C1.04 Grading Plan


	C1.05 Utility Plan
	Sheets and Views
	C1.05 Utility Plan


	C1.06 Landscape Plan
	Sheets and Views
	C1.06 Landscape Plan


	C1.07 Lighting Plan
	Sheets and Views
	C1.07 Lighting Plan


	C2.01 Construction Notes
	Sheets and Views
	C2.01 Construction Notes


	C2.02 Site Details
	Sheets and Views
	C2.02 Site Details


	C2.03 EC and Utility Details
	Sheets and Views
	C2.03 EC and Utility Details



	7. E4-A2.1 - FLOOR PLAN
	Sheets and Views
	D - Size


	8. color copies

	Lumark-AXCS-AXCL-Axcent-specification-sheet
	Lumark-Prevail-Discrete-Series-specification-sheet
	Dev Approval - 2.1.2024.pdf
	2-1-24 - Dev Approval Letter
	C1.06 Landscape Plan (002)
	Sheets and Views
	C1.06 Landscape Plan






	This application form accurately completed with signatures or authorization letters see reverse side for more details: Off
	200 Application fee payable to the City of Franklin: Off
	Word Document legal description of the subject property: Off
	toggle_4: Off
	Other items as may be required for specific applications per a city planner: Off
	Email or flash drive with all plans  submittal materials: Off
	Three 3 project narratives: Off
	toggle_6: Off
	toggle_7: Off
	This application form accurately completed with signatures or authorization letters see reverse side for more details_2: Off
	40 Application fee payable to the City of Franklin: Off
	Word Document legal description of the subject property_2: Off
	toggle_13: Off
	Email or flash drive with all plans  submittal materials_2: Off
	toggle_14: Off
	Three 3 scaled copies of the Site Plan showing the location of the proposed signage relative to 1 any existing or proposed: Off
	This application form accurately completed with signatures or authorization letters see reverse side for more details_3: On
	toggle_18: On
	Word Document legal description of the subject property_3: On
	toggle_23: On
	One 1 colored copy of the building elevations on 11 X 17 paper if applicable: On
	One 1 copy of the Site Intensity and Capacity Calculations if applicable see division 1530500 of the UDO: On
	Email or flash drive with all plans  submittal materials_3: On
	Tier 1 2000: On
	toggle_20: Off
	toggle_21: Off
	Three 3 project narratives_2: On
	toggle_25: On
	This application form accurately completed with signatures or authorization letters see reverse side for more details_4: Off
	50 Application fee payable to the City of Franklin: Off
	toggle_31: Off
	Email or flash drive with all plans  submittal materials_4: Off
	Three 3 project narrative: Off
	Three 3 folded scaled copies of the Site Plan see section 1530804 of the UDO for information that must be denoted on each respective plan: Off
	PS514102EN-2: 
	PS514102EN-4: 
	PS514102EN-6: 
	PS514102EN-1: 
	PS514102EN-3: 
	PS514102EN-5: 
	PS500005EN-1: 
	PS500005EN-3: 
	PS500005EN-5: 
	PS500005EN-0: 
	PS500005EN-2: 
	PS500005EN-4: 


